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BSE Scrip Code: 506642 
 
Subject:  Annual Report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2018  
 
Dear Sir/Madam, 
 
In terms of Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, we are pleased to submit herewith Annual Report for the Financial Year 2017-
18 duly approved and adopted by the members in the Annual General Meeting held on 
Thursday, 30th August, 2018. 
 
Request you to take the same in records. 
 
Thanking you, 
 
FOR SADHANA NITROCHEM LIMITED 

 
 
 
________________________ 
NITIN RAMESHCHANDRA JANI 
COMPANY SECRETARY 
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SADHANA HITI70 CHEM LIMITED 

NOTICETOTHE MEMBERS 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THATTHE FORTY-FIKH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OFTHE COMPANY WILL BE HELD AT 
SHFCH HIRACHANO GUMANJI TRUST HALL, HlRA BAUG, 1ST FLOOR, KASTURBA CHOWK (C.P. TANK), MUMBAI- 
400004. ON Thurseday,THE3Mh August 2018AT3.m P.M. TOTRANSACTTHE FOLLOWING BUSINESS:- 

ORDlNARY BUSINESS: 
1. To receive, conslder and adopt the Audited Financial Statement (Including the Standalone and Consolidated 

Statements) of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2018 together with the Reports of the 
Directors1 and Auditors'thereon. 

2. To declareafinal dividend forthe Financial Year 2017-18. 
3. Toappoint a Director in place of Mr. Abhishek A. Javeri (DIN: 00273030) who retires by rotation and is eligible for 

re-appointment. 
4. To ratify appointment of auditorsand fixtheirremuneration. 
SPEClALBUSINESk 
5. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 

Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") and the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 {including any statutory rnodification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the 
time being in force), and pursuant to  the applicable provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India {Listing 
Obllgations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Including any modification or amendment 
thereof, Mr. Amit M. Mehta (DIN: 00073907), who was appointed as an Additional Dlrector (Independent) of 
the Company with effect from 30th April, 2018, under Section 161 of the Act, be and is hereby appointed as an 
Independent Director of the Company to  hold office for a term upto five consecutive years commencing from 
30th April, 2018" 

6. To consider and, i f  thought fit, to pass with or without modifimtionlsl, the following Resolution as a Special 
Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to  the provisions of Sections 196, 197,198 and 203 read with Schedule V and all 
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") and the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification and re-enactment 
thereof for the time being in force) and subject to further approval of the Central Government if required, the 
consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to terminate the existing agreement as on 30th April, 2018 
and to reappoint Shri Asit D. Javeri (DIN: 00268114) w.e.f. 1st May 2018 as Chairman & Managing Director and 
to redesignte him a5 executive chairman of the Company from his existing position of chairman and managing 
director w.ef July 24,2018for a period of 3 (Three) Years commencingfrom 1st May, 2018 on remuneration of 
up to 5% of the net profit of the company for the financial year computed in a manner laid down in Section 198, 
subject to a minimum of 7 1,68,00,000/- p.a. and on such terms and conditions as may be agreed to between the 
Board of Directors and Shri Asit D, Javeri (DIN: 00268114) with liberty and authorltyto the Board of Directors to  
alter and vary the terms and conditions of the said appointment from time to  time within the scope of the 
Companles Act, 2013, or any amendments thereto or any re-enactment thereof. 

RESOLVED FURTHER f HAT the Board of Directors, be and are hereby severally authorised to sign and submit all 
relevant e-forms, documents, in respect of aforesaid appointment with the Registrar of Companies and to  do all 
such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary or expedient in their entire discretion, for the purpose of giving 
effect to thls resolution and for matters connected therewith or incidental thereto1' 



7. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass wIth or wRhout mdHlcatIon(s), the following Resolution as a Special 
Resolutlon: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196,197,198 and 203 read with Schedule V and all 
other applicable provisions of the Companles Act, 2013 tWActR) and the Companies (Appointment and 
Remunerati~n of Managerial Personnel] Rules, 20M (Including any statutory modification and re-enactment 
thereoffor the time belng in force) and subjectto further a p p m l  of thecentrat Government if required, the 
consent of the members be and Is hereby accorded to termlnatethe extstingagreement a5 on 30th Aprll, 2018 
and to reappointskri Abhishek AsitJawrl (DIN: 00273030) w.e.f. lst may 2018 as Exemtlve Director & CFOand 
redesignate him as managing director and CFO of the Company from his exldng position nf executive director 
and C M  w.ef 24th July 2018 for period of 3 (Three) Years commencing from 1st may 2018 on remuneration of 
up to 5%of the net profit ofthecompany for the financial yeat computed in a manner lald down in Sedon 198, 
subject toa minimum of&. 1f6&f00f000/- p.a. and on such terms and conditions as may be agreedm between 
the Board of Directorsand Shri Abhishek Asit laveri (DIN: 00273030) with ltbertyand authodty to the Board of 
Djrectorstoakerandvary-the terms andconditionsof thesaid appointment from time to time within thescope 
of the Companies Act, 20l3, orany amendmeetsthereto ar any re-maclmentthereof. 

RESOLVED FURTHER M A T  the Board of Directors, be and are hereby severally authorised to slgn and submit 
aIl relevant e-forms, documents, In respect of aforesaid appointment with the Registrar of Companies and 
to do all such am, deeds and thlngs as may be necessary or expedient in their entire discretion, for the 
purpose of giving effect to this resolution and for matters connected therewith or lncldental thereto" 

8. To consider artd, if thought flt, to  pass with or without modWtca2on(s), the following Resolution as a Special 
Resolutlon: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisjons of Sections 196,197,198 and 283 read with Schedule V and all 
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 20W ("Art") and the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification and re-enactment 
thereof forthe tlme belng in force) and subject to further approval of the Central Gwemment if required, the 
consent of the members be and is hereby aaorded to terminate the existing agreement as on 3MR April, 2018 
and to reappoint Mrs. Seema Asit J m r i  (DIM: 01768936) as Executive Director (Administration) ofthe Company 
for period of 3 (Three) Years with efFect from 1st May, 2018an remuneration of up to 5% ofthe net profit of the 
company for the financiaf year computed In a manner lald down in Sectlon 198, subject to a minimum of r 
1,68,W,000/- p.a, and on such terms and conditions as may be agreed to between the Board of Directors and 
Mrs. Seema AsltJawrl (DIN: 01m936) with libemand authorityto the Boardof Directors toalterand vqrythe 
terms and condklons ofthe safd appointment f m  timeto time wlthln the swpe of the Companies Act, 2013, 
orany amendmentsthereto orany re-enactmentthereof. 

RESOLVED FURTHERTHAT the Board of Directors, be and are hereby severallyauthorised to slgn and submit al l  
relevanteforms, documents, in rwpect of afOresald appointment with the Registrar of Companies and to do all 
such am deeds and thlngs as may be necessary or expedient In thelrentire discretion, forthe purpose of glvlng 
effecttothis resolutionand for matters connected therewith orlnddental thereto" 

Registered Office: 
Hira Bau& 1" Floor 
Kasturba Chowk, (C.P. Tank), Mum baI-400004 
ClN:U4110MH1973PLC016698 
E-mail: sadhananitro@sncI.com 
Date. 24th July, 2018. 

By Order of the Board 
N.R. Janl 
Company Secretary 
Membership No: A4757 



SAOHANA NITRO CHEM UMITED 

w 
MOTES: 

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a pro~yto attend and vote instead of 
himself and a proxy need not bea member of theCompany.The proxylnorder to be effectlw must be deposited at 
the Registered m c e  of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. 

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in th0 aggregate not mom than 
ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying votlng rights. A member holding more than ten 
percent of the total share capital of the Company carrylng voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and 
such personshaltnotadasa proxyforanyotherperson or shareholder. 

Corporate members intending to send their Authorised Representatives to attend the Meeting are requested to 
send to the Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorising their representative to attend and 
vote on their behalf. 

In case of joint holders attending the meeting, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of 
namesas per the Register of Members ofthe Company will beentitled tovote. 

2. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act,2013 relating to the Special Business to be 
transacted atthe Annual General Meeting (AGM) Is annexed hereto. 

3. The Equity Dividend for the financial year ended 31st March,2018, as recommended by the Board, if approved at the 
AGM, will paid on or after Thursday, 4th September 2018 to those Members whose name appears in the Register of 
MembersoftheCompanyason the bookclosuredate. 

4. The Company hasappointed Link lntime India Private tirnlted, RTA, C 101,247 Park, 1 BS Marg,Vikhroli West, Mumbai 
400 083 as Registrars and Share Transfer Agents for Physicai Shares, The said (RTA) is also the Depository interface of 
the Company with both NSDL & CDSL. Thelr Telephone No. 022- 49186000, E-mall address: 
mt.helpdesk@Iinkintime.wC(]in, Fax No.022-49186060. 

However, keeplnginview the wnvenlenceof Shareholders, documents relating toshares will continue to be received 
by the Company at itsRegistered OfficeTelephone No.022-23865629, Emall: sadhananitro@snci.com 

5. During the period beginning24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the meeting and ending with the 
conclusion of the meeting, a member would be entitled to Inspect the proxies lodged a t  any timedurlng the business 
hoursofthecompany, provldedthat not less than three days'notice in writingoftheintention so to inspect isgiven to 
thecompany 

6. Thecompany has transferred the unpaid or unclaimed dividends upto the financial years 2007-08 from time to timeon 
due dates, to the Investor Educatlon and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Central Government. Pursuant to 
the provisions of Investor Education and Protection Fund (Uploading of information regarding unpaid and 
unclaimed amounts lying wlth companies] Rules, 2012, the Company has uploaded the details of unpaid and 
unclaimed amount lying with the Company as on 2nd August, 2017 (date of last Annual General Meeting) on 
the webslte of the Company (www.sncl.corn), asalso on the website ofthe Ministry of Corporate Affairs. 

7. Members who hold shares In electronic form are requested to mention their DP ID and Client ID number and those 
who hold shares in physical form are requested to mention their Folio Number in the Attendance Slip for attending 
the Meeting tofacllltate identificationof membershipatthe AGM. 

8. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the subrnIsslon of Permanent Account Number 
(PAN] byevery participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested 
to submit their PAN to  their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. 
Members holding sharesin physiwt form cansubmit their PAM to the Company/RTA. 
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9. The Refister of Members and the ShareTransfer Bookof thecompany will remain closed from Friday,Zth August, 
2018 toThursday 30th August, 2018 (both d a p  inclusive)forthepurpo~ of Annual General Meeting. 

10. All documenCr referred to In theaccompanying notice and the explanatory statementsare open for Inspection at the 
Registered Office of the Company during office hours on all working days, except S aturdays & Public holiday, between 
ll.OOa.m. and 1.00 p.m. up to thedateof the AnnualGeneral Meeting. 

11. Members are requested to notify immediately change of address, if any,to their Depository Partlcipants 
(DPs) In respectoftheirelectronlcshare accountsand linklntime India Private limited (RTA), orto the Company a t  its 
Registered Office in respect of their p hysical shares. 

12. The hdster of Contram or Arrangements in which Directors are Interested, maintained under Section 189 of the 
CompaniesAct,2013 will beavailablefor inspection by the members at the AnnualGeneral Meeting. 

13. Entrance Pass and Proxy Form is annexed. Members are requested to brlng thelr duty filled In attendance slip wlth 
copy ofAnnual Reporttothe placeof meeting. 

14. Members who hold shares in Dematerialized form are requested to bring their client ID and DP ID numbers for easy 
identiflcauon of attendanceai the meeting. 

15. Membersdesiringany information arerequestedto write to thecompany lDdap inadvance 

16. Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far  are requested to register their e-mall address for 
recelvlng all communlcatlon IncludingAnnual reports, Notices, Circulars, eZc.from thecompany electronically. 

17. The Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2017-18 is being sent by electronic mode to those Members 
whose email addresses are registered with the Company / Depositories, unless any Member has specifically 
requedeted fora physicalcopy ofthesame. 

18. The Members who have not yet registered their e-mait address  are requested to register the same with RTA 
/Deposltorles. Members, who want to receive hard copies of all the communication, have to make a specific request 
to thecompany bysendinga letter in hard form in this regardto the RTAor thecompany. 

19. Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 36 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (ListingObljgatlons and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI (LODR) Regulations") sndsecretarialstandards issued bythe 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India, a brief note on the background and the functional expertise of the 
Directors of the Company seeking re-appointment along with the details of other Directorships, memberships I 
chairmanships of Board Committees, shareholding and relationships amongst directors inter-se Isset out In the Brlef 
Resume appended to this Notice. 

20. Voting through electronic means 

I. In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Cornpanles Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended by the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of the SEBl (LODR) Regulations, the Company is 
pleased to provide 18 members, as on the cut-off date being Thursday 23rd August, 2018, thefacilltyto exerdse their 
right to vote by electronic means on any or all of the businesses specified in the Notice, at the 45th Annual 
General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the buslness may be transacted through e-Voting 
Services provided by National Securities Depository Lirnlted (MSDL). 



[I. The iacilltyfor votlngthrough ballot paper shall be made avaliable at the AGM and the members atbendlngthe 
meeting who have not cast' their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting 
through ballot paper. 

Ill. The members who haw caqt theirvote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM but shall 
not be eMltledtocasttheirvdeagln. 

IV. The remote e-Wing period commences on 27th August 2018 at  9.00 a.m. and ends on 29th August 2018 at 
5.00 p.m,During this period memka' of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in 
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date 23rd August 201% may cast their vote by remote e-voting. The 
remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDLfor voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by 
themember,the member shall not beallowed to changeit subsequently, 

V. How do I vote elemnleally using NSDL ~Vot Ing  system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of "Two StepsH whlch are mentioned below: 

Step 1 : Log& to NSDLe-Vutingvm at https://www.wotlng.nsdI.com/ 

Step 2: Castyour vote electr~nically on NSDLe-VodngsysCem. 

Details on Step 1 is mentioned below: 

How to L o ~ f n t o  NSPL @ - V o w  website? 

1. Visit the e-Voting webslte of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following VRL: 

https:/lwww.evoting.nsdI.com/either ona Personal Computeror ona mobile. 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon "Login" whlch k avallable under 

'Shareholders' section. 

3. A new screen wlll open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password and a Verification Cocle as 

shown on thesuean. 

Alternatively, 'if you are reglsered far %DL eservlces 1.e. IDEAS, you can log-In at https://eservlces.nsdl.m/ with 
your existing IDEM login. Once you lag-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-In credentials, click on e-Voting and 

you can proceed toStep2I.e. Cast your vote elearonicaily. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 

Manner of holding shares i.a %mat 
(NsDt or CDSL) or Physical 

a) For Members who hold shares in 
demrrt account wiSh NSDL. 

Your User ID Is: 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 
Client ID 

For e xample if your DP ID is IM300*** 
and Client ID is IPP**** &en your user 
JD is IN300***12****** . 
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I 12****"******" then your user ID is 

b) For Members who holdshares in 
demat account with CDSL. 

I c) For Members holding shares in 
Physical Form. 

16 Digit Beneficiary LD 

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 

I EVEN Number followed by Folio 

I Number registered with the company 

For e xample if folio number is 00 1 * ** 
and EVEN is 10 1 456 then user 1D is 

101456001*** 

5. Your password details are given below: 

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast your 
vote. 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the 'initial password' 
which was communicated to  you. Once you retrieve your 'initial password', you need to enter the 'Initial 
password'andthesystemwillforce you tochange your password. 

c) How to retrieve your'initial password'? 
(I) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your 'initial password' Is 

communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the 
ernail and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is 
your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 d i g h  of client tD for CDSL account or folio number for shares held 
in physical form. The .pdf file contains your 'User ID' and pur'lnitial password'. 

(ii) If your ernail ID is not registered, your 'initial password' is communicated to  you on your postal address. 

6. If you are unable to  retrieve or have not received the " Initial password" or have forgotten your password: 
a) Click on "Forgot User Details/PasswordP(If you are holding shares In your demat account with NSDL or 

CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b) Physical User Reset Password?" (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on 
w.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 
evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account nurnber/folio number, your PAN, your name and 
your registered address. 

7. After entering your password, tickon Agree to "Terms and Conditions" by selecting on the check box. 
8. Now, you will have to clickon "Login" button. 
9. After you clickon the "Login" button, Home pageoof e-Votingwill open. 

Details on Step 2 isgiven below: 
Howtocast yourw&electronlcally on NSDLe-Votingsystem? 
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to  see the Home page of e-Voting.Cllck on e-Voting. Then, click 

on Activevoting Cycles. 
2. After click on Active Voting Cycles, you will be able to see all the companies "EVEN" in which you are holding 

shares and whosevotingcycle is in activestatus. 
3. Select "EVEN" of company for which you wish to cast your vote. 
4. Nowyou are ready fore-Votingas thevoting page opens. 
5. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dlssent, verify/modify the number of shares for 



whlch you wishtocast yourvote and clickon "Submlt" andalso "Confirm" when prompted. 
6. Upon mnfirmation,the message "Vote cast sureessfullf wltl be displayed 
7. Yo~onalsotake the printout of thevotes cast by you by diskingon the prlnt optionon thecanfirmation page. 
8. Once you wnfim yourvoteon theresolution, you wlll not beallowed to modify your vote. 

General Guidelines forshareholders 
I 

1 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuds, HUF, NRI etc) are required to  send scanned copy 
(PDF/IPG Format) of tho relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of 
the duly authorized signatory(les) who ate authorized to vote, to the Scrutinlzer by e-malI to 
kumudlniparanjape@rnm~~.in with a copy marked to evotlng@nsdl.co. h. 

2. R b strongly recommended not ta share your password wlth any other person and take utmost care to keep 
your password confidential. Login to  the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessfut attempts to 
key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the "Forgot User Detail JPasswordP 
or "Physical User Reset Password?" option available on www.evoting.nsdl.eomto reset the password. 

3. In case of any queries,you may referthe Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-votlng user 
manual for Shareholders available at the downbad sectlon of www.wotlng.nsdl.com or calI on toll free no.: 
1800-222-990 or send a request atevotlng@nsdl.co.in 

VI. The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share caphl ofthe 
company a5 on the cut of date 23rd August 2018. 

VII Any person, who acquirssshares of the Company and become member of the Company after dispatch of the 
notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e,23rd August2018, may obtaifi the login ID md password by 
sending a request at I5suer/RTA. 

Vlll A member may partielpate Intht AGM even afterwrclsing hIs r lghttowte through remotewcrting but h a l l  
not beallowed tovoteagainatthe AGM. 

IX. Aperwn,whose name Is recorded In the registeraf members or in the register of beneficlal owners maintained 
by the depositprles as on the cut-offdate only shall be entitled to avalt the facility of remote e-votlng as well as 
voting at the AGM through ballot paper. 

X. Mm Kumudini Paranjape, Partner of M/s Makarand M Joshi & Co., Praetidng Company Secretaries, has been 
appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting and remote e-voting process In a fair and transparent 
manner. 

XI. The Chairman shall, at theAGR1, atthe end of discussion ~n the resoltrtiomon whlch voting Is to be held, allow 
voting wfth the aalstance afscrutlnlrer, by use of "remote +Mtlng" ar "BaIlot Paper" for all those members 
whoare pmentattheAGM buthawnotmstthelrvotes by avallin@[theremotee-votingfacility. 
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The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the general meeting, will first count thevotes cast at 
the meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least 
two witnesses not In the employment of the Company and shall make, not later than three days of the 
conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated scrutinizer report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, 
to the Chairman or a person authorized by him In writing, who shall countersign the same and declare 
the result of thevotingforthwith. 

The Results declared alongwith the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the 
Company and on the website of NSDL The results shall simultaneously be communicated to the 
Stock Exchange (BSE), Murnbai 

Registered Office: 
Hlra Baug, 1" Floor 
Kasturba Chowk, {C.P. Tank), Mumbai-400004 
CIN:L24110MH1973PlCO16698 
E-mail: sadhananitro@sncl.com 
Date: 24th July, 2018. 

By Order of the Board 
N.R. Jani 
Company Secretary 
Membership Mo: A4757 

Pursuant to provisions of SEBI (LODR) Regulations and Secretarial Standards on General Meetings, relevant 
particulars of Directors seeking appointment I re appointment as this AGM are given here below: 

I 1 

Date of Birth I Age ] 25.06.1956 162 years 1 18.12.1984 1 34 years 

Name of the 
Director 

1 I 
Date of original I 1.09.201 5 1 1.04.2016 

Mr. Asit D. Javeri Mr. Abblshek A. Javeri * 

appointment 

Termination of 
Original Agreement 

I I 

30.04.20 1 8 

Term and Condins 
of amointment 

Appoint for 3 years 
w.P.~. 

Designation 

Areas of Expertise 

30.04.2018 

Marketing in the chemical 
industry 

As per draft Agreement 

01 .05.2018 

Chairman & Managing Director 
& redesignated as Executive 
Chairman w.e.f.24.07.2018 

Operating, Managing, 
Strategic planning, 

EducationaI 
Qualifications 

As per draft Agreement 

negotiation and strategic 
planning finance. 

I I I University USA. 

01.05. 2018 

E x d v e  Di to r  & C.F.O. 
& rdesigmtpd as Managing Ditor 
w.e.124.07.2018 

Sourcing, control, 
effective utilisation, 

the field of adminishation. 

B.Sc.(Hon) 

I 

01.05. 2018 

Executive Director (Administration: 

Skill, experience and 
knowledge inter alia, in 

Graduate in Economics 
frnm Nonh Westcm 

B,Sc. 
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Companies in 
he /she holds 
Directorship 

0 th  listed 
Companies i 
he& hob 
Directorship 

Membershy / 
Chammhip of 
Board Committees 

Sharehokding ason 
30' April, 2018 

Rehtionship wi!h 
other Directors and 
KMPs 

Son. 

1. hcmicr Limitcd 
2. Indian Extractions 

Limited 
3. Phthalo Colours & 

Chemicals (1) Ltd. 
4. Lifestyle Net Works 

Ltd. 
5. Anuchem b.v.b.a, 

Belgium 
6. Manekchd Pmachand 

Trading Invcstrncnt 
Company Pvt. Ltd. 

7. Chandra Net Private 
Limited 

8. Strix Wireless Systems 
Pvt. Ltd. 

9. Sttix System Inc. USA 
10. AHANA lnc. USA 
1. Premier Limited 
2. Indian Extractions 

Limited 

Sadhana Nitro Cham Ltd 
Share Transfer Committee 
- Member (Executive) 
Premier Limited 
-Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee - Chairman 
(Non Executive) 
-Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee, 
Audit CommitteeMember 
won-Executive) 
Indian Extractions Limited 
-Audit Committee, 
Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee, 
Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee - Chairman 
(Non hecutire) 
Phthdo Colom & 
Chemicals (1) Limited 
-Audit ComrnitteeMember 
won-Executive) 
3#759 

Mrs. Seema A. Javeri is 
Wife and Mr. Abbilek 
A. Javeri is Son 

1. Lifestyle Networks 
Ltd.. 

2. Chaudra Net Private 
Limited, 

3. Strix Wireless 
Systems Pvt. Ctd. 

4. Strix System Inc., 
USA. 

5. Mmekchand 
Panachand Trading 
Investment Co. Pvt. 
Ltd. 

6. A W A  Inc., USA 

NIL 

151419 

Mr. Aslt D. Javeri is 
Father and Mrs. Seema 
A. Javeri is Mother 

1. LifegtyIe Networks 
Ltd. 

2. Manekchand 
Panachand Trading 
Investment Co. Pvt. 
Ltd, 

3.  Shix Wireless 
Systems Pvt. Ltd, 

NIL 

17827 

Mr. Asit D. Javeri is 
Husband and Mr. 
Abhishek A. Javeri is 



SADHAMA NtTAO E H M  UMlTfO 
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FOR SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMlTED 

No, of board 
mQttings attended 
d ~ i h & F Y  2017-18 

Remumation s+t 
to be paid 

Remuneration last 
paid 

NITIN R JAN1 
COMPANY SECRETAY 
MembershipmNo: A4757 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 102 OF THE COMPAN IfS ACT, 2013 
1. Item No.5 

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of 

Directors of the Company have appointed Mr. Amit M. Mehta (DIN: 00073907), as an Additional 

Director(1ndependent) of the Company to hold office fora period offlve consecutive years, not liable 

to retire by rotation, sublea to consent by the Members of the Company at the ensuing Annual 

General Meeting ("AGM"). 
As an Additional Director, Mr, Amit M. Me hta (DIN: 000739071, holds office till the date of the AGM 

and is ellglble for being appointed as an Independent Dlrector. The Company has received a 
declaration from Mr. Amit M. Mehta (DIN: 00073907), confirming that he meets the criteria of 

independence as prescribed under the Act and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("tisting Regulatianf). Mr. AmR M. 

Mehta (DIN: 00073907), Is also not dictualifiedfrom belng appointed asa Director in termsof Section 

164 of the Act and has given her consent to act as a Director of the Company. In the opinlon of the 

Board, Mr. Amit M. Mehta (DIN: 00073907), futfllls the conditions for his appointment as an 

lndependent Dlrectar as specified in the Act and the Usting Regulations and he is independent of the 

(*)The disc1owre is as perthe Sectetaid Stmdards on GeneFal Meding and S-1 (LODR) Regulations 201 5 for his rs 
appointrnentpurrruant to mtkementby robtionas well as forre-appointment as Executive W i t o r  & ~ ~ ~ t r e d e s i g n a h n  
ashfmmsing Director & CFO. 

Membership No: A475 7 
Registered Office: Hira h u g ,  1'' Floor, 
Kasturba Chowk, {CP. Tank), IWurnbaI-400@4M 
CIN: L24110MH1973PLCO16698 
E-mail : sadhananltr@sncl.com 
Date : 24th July, 20T8 

6 

Upto 5% of Net profit far the 
financial yew, computed 
u1s 193 with minimum o f  
T 1 ,M,Oo,OOO under 
schedule V 

T 70,11,670 

management. 
A copy of the draft letter of the appointment of lndependent Director setting out the terms and 

conditions h available for inspection by the members a t  the Company's registered office durlng 

normal business hours on all working days upto the date of Annual General Meetlng. 
Pursuant to Securities and Exchange Board of lndla (Ustlng Obligations and Oisclowre Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 and details as required under SS-2 (Secrehrial Standard-2 on "General Meetings*) 

of Mr. Amit M. Mehta (DIN: 00073907), seeklng appoi~men~reappointment as an Independent 

Dlrectoris asfollows: 

12 

5 

U p b  Yh of Net profit for the 
financial year, computed 
uls 198 with minimum of 
'f 1,68,00,000 under 
schedule V 

T 1,14J3,177 

6 

Upto 5% of Net profit for the 
financial year, computed 
d s  198 with minimum of  
7 1,6 8,00,000 under 
schedule V 

7 26.61,200 



SADHAHA NKRO CHEM LIMITED 

w 

The Board of Directors recommends the Resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the accompanying Notice for 
approval of the Members of the Company asan Ordlnary Resolutlon. 
None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are in any way, concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at ltem No. 5 of the Notice. 

Name 

Date of Birth / Age 

Date of Appointment 

Expcriencc in functional area 

Qualification 

Terms and Condition of Appninnnent & re - 
appointment along with Remuneration sougbt to 
be paid and last drawn remuneration 

Directorship in other Companies (fublic Limited 
Companies) 

Membership of Committees of other Public 
Companies (Audit Comrninee /Nomination 
Remuneratioi~ Cornmittee/Stakel~oIders Relationship 
Committee) 

No. of Shares held in the company (Shareholding) 

Date of First Appointment on the Baard 

Relationship with other Director, Manager C KMP 

No. of Board meeting attended during the ycar 
(F.Y. 201 7- 18) 

2. ltem No. 6,7 and 8 
A. On the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and subject to approval of the 
Members and the approval of Central Government if required, the Board of Directors of the Company at its 
meeting held on April 30,2018 have terminated the present agreement with :- 
1, Shri Asit D. laveri, asthe Chairman & Managing Directorwhich was expiringon 3lstAugust, 2018 

Mr. Arnit M. Mehta 

15.06.1954 1 64 Yenrs 

03.04.2018 

Chemical Business 

BSC.  (Chemistry) 

Terms &Condition as per appointment letter. 

No mmeretion except sitting fees in 
FY 2017-111 :NU 

1. Perfo Chem (India Pvt. Ltd. 
2. Finogra (India) Pvt. Ltd. 
3. Value E-Healthcare Ltd 
4. Diamines & Chemicals Ltd. 
5.  Diamines Speciality Pvt. Ltd. 
6. Insight Healthscan P~ Lttd. 
7. Top-Notch Realty Pvt. Ltd. 
8. Pinarni Realty Pvt. Ltd. 
9. Global Local Lifestyle Services Pvt. Ltd. 
10. Tomorrowland Appearals Pvt. Ltd 
1 1 .  S. Arnil Speciality Chern Pvt Ltd. 

Dlamines Chemicals LM, 
- Chairrtmn in Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. 

_ Member in Relationship 

35156 

30Ih April, 2018 

NIL 

NIL 

2. Smt, Seemalaveri a5 Executive Direaor-Administration which wasexpiring on 30th lune, 2018 

3. Shri Abhishek A. Javeri Executive Director & CFO which was expiring on Jlst March, 2018 and 
reappointed 



SAMlllWA MlTRO CHEM LIMITED - 
For Item 6 - 

Taking into consideration the contributions of Shrl Asit D. Javen' and on the recommendation of 
Nomination and Remuneration Committea and Board in its meeting held on 30th April, 2018 it is 
proposed to reappoint him as Chairman 8 Managing Director and further in the Board Meeting held on 
24th July, 201 8 redesignate him as Executive Chairman of the Company w.ef. 24th July, 2018 subject 
to the further approval of Shareholders of the Company for a term 3 years wiih effect from 1 st May, 201 8 
on remuneration of up to 5% of the net pmflt ofthe companyforthe financial yaar computed in a manner 
laid down in Section 198, subject to a minimum of T. 1,68,00,0001- p.a. 

For Item 7- 
In view ofthe succession planning and in order for giving the nextgeneration the oppartunityb lead the 
Company Shri Asit 0. Javeri, Chairman & Managing Director as proposed to appoint Shrl Abhlshek Asit 
Javeri as the Managing Director & CFO ofthe Company. 

The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 30thAprll, 201 8 on the recommendation 
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee accorded their consent to reappoint Shrl Abhbhek A. 
Javeri as Executive Director & CFO and further the Board in its meeting held on 24th July, 2018 
redesignated him as Managing Director & CFO of the Company w.e.f. 24th July, 2018 subject to the 
further approval of Shareholders of the Company fora period of 3 yearswith effect from 1st May, 2018 
and on remuneration of up to 5% of the net p d k  of the company for the financial year computed in a 
manner laid down in Section 198, subject to a minimum of C 1,68,00,0001- p.a. 

For Item 8 - 
It Is proposed to re-appoint SrnL Seerna Javeri as Executive Director-Administration for 3 years with 
effect from 1 st May, 2018 on remuneration of up to 5% of the net profit of the company fortbe financial 
yearcomputed in a manner laid down in Section 198, subject to a minimum of 71 ,M,00,0001-p.a. 

B. The present remuneration payable to Shri Asit D. Javeri & Smt. Seema A. Javeri have been approved 
by Special Resolution passed in the 42nd Annual General Mesting held on 11 th August, 2015. The 
present remuneration payable to Shrl Abhishek A. Javerl has been approved by Special Resolution 
passed In the 1 0th Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 22nd May, 2017'. 

Tha Board of Directors of the Company, keeping in view the qualffication, experience, expertise of and 
In padiwlar he contribution made by (a) Shri. A. D. Javeri, (b) Smt. Seema A. Javeri and (c) Shri 
Abhishek A. Javeri, in the overall development of the Company and havlng regard to the provisions in 
respect of managerial remuneration of the Companies Act 201 3, thought it justYed to re-appoint them 
as above respectively and It is proposed to pay, subject b approval of the rnernben and the approval 
of Central Government if required, the above remuneration to them within the overall limits spscif~fisd 
under the Companies Act, 201 3 which is commensurate with their experience and responsibilities 
of headlng a company of this size. 

C. Withln the above rernuneration and accordance with the rules ofthe company or as may be agreed by 
the Board of Directors on recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC), they will 
be entitled to draw monthly remuneration alongwith the perquisites and allowances like house rent 
allowance together with reimbursement of expenses or allowances for utilities such as gas, electricity, 
water, furnishings and repairs, edumion allowance, medical reimbursement, club fees and such other 
perquisites and allowances me perquisites shall k evaluated at actual wst. 

D. In the event of loss or inadequacy of p r o b  during the aforesaid period, the maximum remuneration 
payable to (a) Shri Asit D. Javeri (b) Smt Seerna Javeri and (c) Shri AbhishekA. Javeri as specified in 
Schedule V shall be payable to them as a minimum remuneration. 

E. In addifion managerial personal shall be eligible forfollowing perquisite which shall not be included in 
computation of ceiting of remuneration payable under Schedule V. 

I, Company's contribution to Provident Fund, Family Pension Fund and superannuation or annulty fund 
totheaxtent these eithwsjngly ortogether are nottaxable under the IncomeTaxAct. 
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II. Gratuity payable not exceeding half a month's salary for each completed year of service and; 
Ill. Encashment of leave at theend of tenure. 
IV. Provision of Company's carfor official duties with driver 
V. Free telecommunication facility atthe residence. 

F. The terns and conditions of the said reappointment andlor remuneration andlor agreement may be 
altered and varied from time to lime by the Board as itmay, in its, discretion, deem fit. 

G. The agreement may be terminated by either party by giving h e  other party six months' notice or by any 
shorter notice as may be mutually agreed to between the parties. 

H. They shall not, so long as they function as such, become interested or othewise concerned dlrectly or 
through their spouse andlor minor children in any selling agency of the Company in future without prior 
approval ofthe Central Government. 

I. So long as they function as such shall not be paid any sitting feesfor attending the meetings of the Board of 
Directors or committees thereof. 

J. In compliance with the provisions of Section 196 & 197 Companies Act 2013 read with Schedule V and 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and all other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act 2013, the terms of remuneration specified above are 
now being placed before the members in the Generaf Meeting for their approval. 

K. The proposed draft Agreement between (I) Shri. Asit D. Javeri, (2) Smt. Seema Javeri and (3) Shri 
Abhishek A. Javeri and the Company is available for inspection by the members of the Company at its 
Registered Office of the Company during the office hours on all working days, except Saturdays, between 
I 1  -00 a.m. and 1 .OO p.m. upto the date of theAnnual General Meeting. 

. This may be treated as an abstract of the t e n s  of reappointment of Shrl Asit D. Javeri, Smt. Seema A. 
Javeri and Shri Abhishek A. Javeri, the memorandum of interest pursuant to Section 490 of the 
Companies Act, 201 3. 

M. The Board recommends the Special Resolutions at Item No.6, 7 & 8 of the notice for your approval. 
Additional information for the shareholders, as required under Schedule V to the Companies Act, 
201 3,and to the extent applicable to the Company of appointee is given below: 

N. General Information: 

I. Mature of Industry: The Company is engaged in the Manufacturing of various chemical 
intermediates. 

II. Date or expected date of commencement of commercial production: The Company was 
incorporated on 21st July, 1973 and Certificate for Commencement of Business was issued on 10th 
September, 1973. 

Ill. Financial performance based on given indicators: as per published audited financial results for the year 
ended 31 "March, 2018: 

I Particulars I 7. In Lrmkhs 
Sales and Otber Income 
Profitlloss before tax 

11,115 
2,828 

Net Excess Provision for tax and Differed 
Profit after tax 

3 09 
3,137 
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IV. ExpoFt performance and foreign exchange earned for the financial year ended 31 st March, 2018: FOB 
value ofexports: 7 8163 Lakhs. 

V. Foreign Investment or Collaborators: Foreign investment in Foreign Wholly Owned Subsidiary 
Anuchem b.v.b.a. of7 771550. 

2. INFORMATION ABOUT THE APPOINTEE: 

i) Background details: 

ii. Past remuneration drawn: 

Shrf. Asit: D. Javeri 

Shri. Asit D. Javeri, aged 
62 years, and having 
Graduation in Science, 
joined the company in 
January, 1985 as Managing 
Dhctor. Prior to joining 
the company, Shri. Asit D. 
Javeri had experience of 9 
years of w i n g  chemical 
industry. He has been 
associated with the 
company for more than 28 
years. 

SmL Seema A. Saver- 

Smt. Seem A. Javeri, aged 
60 years, and 
Having Graduation in 
Science joined the Company 
on Februeuy 13, 20 I4 as 
Additional Director. Prior 
to joining the company, 
Smt. Seem A. Javeri had 
experience of f 1 years in 
Administration. 

Year 
2015-16 
201 6- I7 
2017-18 

Shri Abblshek A. Javeci 

Shri Abhkhek A. Javeri, aged 
34 years and having graduation 
in Economics Erom North 
Western University, USA joined 
the Company in 2007 and acted 
as a Non-Executive Director of 
the Company. 
He was &her appoint4 as 
Executive Director and Chief 
Financial Officer on 10 ' 
February, 20 16. He has an 
experience of 10 years and has 
been associated with the 
company for 10 years. 

iii) Recognition or Rewards (Guarantee Commission payable): 

(*) Includes Allotment of I ,14,3 I9 sweat equity shares vdue of Rs. 50,23,200 for F.Y. 20 16-1 7 

Year 
2015-16 - 
2016-17 
20 17- I 8 

NIL 
NIL 
Rs. 1,14,23,177 (*) 

Shri Asit D. Javeri 

Shti Asit I). Javeri Smt. Seema A. Javeri Sltri Abhishek A. Javeri 
-- -- -- 

-- -- 
Rs. 1,44,00,000 (*") - - 

Rs. 52,19,494 
Rs. 57,78,443 
R~.70,11,670 

(**) Includes Rs. 1,20,00,000 for earlier y e a .  

Rs. 13,50,000 
Rs. 17,4 1,500 
Rs. 26,61,200 
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iv) Job profile and suitability: 

Remuneration proposed: The terms of remuneration proposed are detailed in the Resolution and the 
explanatory statement. 

Sbrl. Asit D. Javerl 

Over the years, Shri. Asit D. 
Javeri has been entrusted with 
the overat 1 responsibility of 
the Cmpany. He has 
immensely contibuted in the 
overall development of the 
Company specifically in 
attaining higher exports and 
commercialization of several 
high value added chemical 
intermediates. Shri Asit D. 
Javeri has taken several 
initiatives to restructure the 
business operatims. 

Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of the Company, profile of the position 
and person:- 
Taking into consideration the size and nature of the Company, the profile of Shri. Asit laveti, Smt. Seema 
Javeri and Shri AbhishekA.Javeri the responsibilities shouldered by them and the industry benchmarks, the 
aforesaid remuneration is commensurate with the remuneration package paid to slmitar senior lewI 
positions in other companies. 

vii) Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the Company or relationship with the managerial 

personnel:- 

Besides the remuneration proposed, Shri Asit D. Javeri. Shri Abhishek A. Javeri and Smt. Seema Javeri do not 

have any other pecuniary relationship with the Company except that Shri Asit D. Javeri has given personal 
guarantee forthe borrowings of the company. Shri Asit D. Javeri and Smt. Seema A. Javeri are husband and wife 

and Shri Abhishek A. Javeri thelr Son. Shri h i t  D. Javeri has given personal guarantee to the bank for the 

borrowings of the company for which heis being paid guarantee commission. 

Smt. Seema A. Javeri. 

Smt. Seema A. Javeri, 
joined the Company in 
February, 2014 as 
Additional Director. She 
is Science Graduate and 
having experience and 
knowledge in Administration. 
Keeping in view the relevant 
expertise in Administration 

3. OTHER IMFORMATION: 

Shri Abhishek A. Javeri 

He joined company since 24- 
as Executive Director 

& CFO w i t h  o v e r a l l  
responsibi l i ty  of finance 
control* efficient working 
capital & cashflow 
management. 

1. Reasonsof loss or inadequate pro& 

Due to change in market condition, fluctuation in foreign market, change in technology or other governmental 
regulations or increasing cost of raw material the company may have inadequate profits to meet the proposed 

remuneration out of profits, some times. 
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2. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement 

The Company Is in the process of increasing its production capacity to bring ecrrnornles of scale to Its business 
and Is expected to boost Its profitability. 

3. Enpected Increase In producthityand profits in measurable terms 
The company assuch cannot quantify the increase in profits incomingyears. 

V. DISCLOSURES: 
The details o f  the remuneration package oFShri. A. D. Javeri, Shri Abhishek A. Javeri and Smt. Seema Javeri are 

given in the explanatory statement hereinabove and the same is contained in the dmf~ agreements with them 
which are open for inspection as mentioned hereinabove. Other Directors are paid no remuneration except sitting 
fees for the meeting of the Board and Committees thereof. The remuneration is  variable as linkedto the profits of 
the company except in case of inadequate profit when the remuneration will be paid as per schedule V. 

The appointma is contractual and provides for six months' notice period. 

Except in Financial Year 20 17-1 8 allotment of l , l4,3 19 Equity Shares on Sweat basis to Shri Abhishek A. 
Javeri, no stockoption has ken given to any of the above- mentioned Directors. 

Your Directors recommendthe Resolution at Item No. 6,7 & 8 for your approval. 

ShFi. Asit D. Javeri, Shri Abhishek A. Javeri and Smt. Seema Javeri are concerned or interested in their 
respective reappointment and the remuneration payable to them. Further, none of the other Directors I key 
managerial personal of the Company / their relatives are, in any way, concwned or interested, financially or 
otherwise except Smt. Seema Javeri (wife of Shri Asit D. Javeri and mother of S k i  Abtrishek A. Javeri for 
resolutionoftheirreappointment.), Shri A. D. Javeri (husbandofsmt. Seema Javeri and father ofShri Abhishek 
A. Javeri for resolution of their reappointment) and Shri. Abhishek A. Javeri (son of Shri Asit D. Javeri & Smt. 
Seema A. Javeri for resoIution of theirreappointment). 

Registered Ofnce: 
Hira Baug, 1" Floor 
Kasturba Chowk, {C.P. Tank), Mumbai4OCK)4 
CIN:Lt4110MHl973PLC016698 
E-mail: sadhanantm@snd.com 
Date: 24th July, 2018. 

By Order of the Board 
N,R. lani 
Company Secretary 
Membership No.: A4757 
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BOARD'S REPORT 

To 
The Membem of 1 
S r l l ) W  NITRO CIiElM W T E D  

Your Dimtors take pleasure in dresenting the 4 9  d u a l  Report toge&er with ~ u d i t e d  Firmacid 
Statements kr the Financial Yeak ended 3 lBP Mmh, 20 18. 

I 

L FINANCIAL RESULTS (TInLwkhs) 
I 

2. DIVIDEND: 

Y o u ~ s D ~ m ~ p ~ i o  recommend dividend of 7 1.00 per equity s h e  of T 10.00 mchfor 
financial year2017 -1%. 

Your Board of Directofs Bave approved and SW pay preference- dividend of C 0.101- Per 1% Mon- 
Cumulative Hon ConvertiiIe Preference sham of 7 1 W each, to the Preference Shareholders. 
Tbh will entail an out go of7 103 Iwkh9. 

There is no unclaimed dividend which remains to be transferred to Investor Education & Protection 
F a d  (IEPF). 

3. TRANSFER TD RESERVES: 

The Board ofDirectors has not approprid and transferred my amount to any R m e  and have decided to 
retain the earire amount in Profit and Loss account. 

The total mvenue of your company for the financial year d i n g  3 1' March, 20 I8 ha5 been T 1 1,115 
Lakhs as compared to 3 5,9491- 1- in the previous years, regkkrhg a sigd5~ant growth of 87 %. 

Focus efforts have Ima placed on expanding ae d applications of company% product line over the last s e v d  
years which has helped in yield strong results this year, offering healthy sustainability for tbe years to come. 
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This diversifica~ion, in end application has also simuItaneously diversified clients and end destinations for company's 
products globally,de-risking ourportfolio h in  any single customer, applicationormarket. 

The level ofoperations has been steadily inmasedover thc last several year and has reached satisfactory level. This has 
helped in economies of scale and made company competitive on the global front. 

Because of your company's product quality standards, we have been able to maintain steady relationships with our long 
standing customers along with building relationships with several new customers. 

The result of all the above factors has led to cornpany'sbest year to date, registering company's highest ever turnover, and 
the highest ever Profit After Tax (PAT) of 7 3,137 lakhs. (pY, 7 94 Lakhs) h r n  normal operation registered in 3237 % 
growth. 

Pursuant to the notification dated Eebruary 16, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs , the Company has 
adopted the Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 
,2015 with effect fiomApril1,2017. As such the financial statements forthe year ended as at March 3 1,2017 havebeen 
restated to conform tohd AS. 

The company has a very strong order book position and expect to maintain the same or higher growth trend. The cost 
control at every stage ofoperations with the increaselevel ofoperations resulted in product cost improvement. 

This resulted in outstanding perfomanceand best ever year, the EBTDTA from normal operation for 201 7-1 8 wasT3500 
lakhs (PY EBIDTA of 7. 9 13 lakhs) which represents a growth of 283 %. Moreover, the profit for the last quarter OF 
2017-18 frornnormaloper~tion was of 721 86 lakhs (LastquarterofPY profit of f 125 Iakhs). 

5. EXPORTS 

With the increase in competitiveness of your company on a global front, it has stable exports to across Europe, Japan, 
Korea, North and SouthAmerfca,andwith asignificantquantity being sold to Qina, 

While our local market is growing steadily company's turnover is still focused on the export market with this year's 
exports beinga total of781 63 Iakhs compared to [ast year's 74,152 lakhs registeringagrowth of 96 % 

Exports constituted about 76 % of the overall revenue from operation including other income. Company's Exports are 
well diversified in t m o f p r o d u c t  range as well as the Countries of Export. 

6. EXPANSIONS 

The company has resumedrnanufacture of CoIour formers, aperformance cheinical it used to manufacture in the past. It 
is the key raw material for the coating of thermal paper, apresently growing industty. Due to global demand and growth of 
thermal paper, your company is expanding its production Iines of colour former to capture the current global 
requirements 

There i s  increased demand of Meta Amino Phenol and Aniline 2,5 Disulplionic acid globally, two ofyour company's k g  
products, due to which yourcompany is in the pmcessofincreasingit's capacity by 50% in botliproducts. 

The proposed expansion wilI be put to use and aperationalise its entire capital work-in progress during the year 201 8-1 9. 
In addition to this the estimated project cost will be around 7 50 Crores. The above expansions are being funded through 
internal accruals and are likely to be completed by the end ofthis financial year. The additional positive effect on your 
company'sresults due to these expansions wit1 take effect in the financial year ending March 2020 
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7. OUTLOOK 

Your company has strong long term fundamentals. The company has practically reduced all it's borrowing, and has 
started the year debt free. It is looking towards leveraging it's unique product offering along with it's competitive 
strengh towards a long term diverse sales pipeline with sustainable cash flows for the foreseeable future. Your company 
is looking to utilise it's cash flow towards expanding product lines as well as diversifying into downward derivatives of 
it's existing products to create a maintainable long term revenue pipeline. 

8. REPORT ON PERFORMANCE OFSUBSlDI ARIES, ASSOCIATESAND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES: 

The performance and financial positiod salient features of the financial statement of each of the subsidiaries, associates 
and joint venture companies for the year ended 3 I st March ,20 1 8 is given in Form AOC- 1 and is attached and marked as 
'Aonexure I' and forms part of this Report. 

" ' Z,.l 
The Company has two wholly owned subsidiaries viz. Anuchem B.V.B.A. Belgium - a Foreign Subsidiary, and Armg 
the year your company acquired Strix Wireless Systems hrt. Ltd, an Indian Subsidiary. The Audited Fiancial Statement 
of the said subsidiaries is considered for tbe purpose ofpreparing Consolidated Financial statements. 

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The Board of Directors of the Company has, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, adopted a policy to regulate 
transactions between the Company and its Related Parties, in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act, the 
RuIes thereunder and the Listing Regulations. The Poiicy on Related Party transactions has been hosted on website of the 
Company. 

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in subsection (1) of section 188 of the 
Companies Act, 20 13 in the prescribed Form AOC-2 is attached as 'AnnexureIIy to the Boards Report. 

10. FINANCE 

I. Deposits 

The Company has not accepted or renewed any amount falling within the purview of provisions of Section 73 of 
the Companies Act 2013 ("the Act") read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014 during the 
year under review, Hence, the requirement for furnishing of details relating to deposits covered under ChapterV of 
the Act ox the details of deposits which are not in compliance with the ChapterV ofthe Act is not applicable. 

11. Partfcularsof Loans, Guarantees or Investments 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with The Companies (Meetings of 
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time (including any amendment thereto or re- 
enactment thereof for the time being in force), Loans, guarantees and investments covered under Section 186 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 form part of the Note No.5 & 8 to the financial statements provided in this Annual 
Report. 

HI. Issue of Sweat Equity Sham 
As per provisions of Section 54(l)(d) of the Act read with Rule 8(13) of the Companies (Share Capital and 
Debenture) Rules, 20 14, details of sweat equity shares issued by the Company during the financial year under review 
is furnished in 'Annexure 111' attached herewith which forms part of this Report. 

Iw Employees Stock Option Plan 
The Company has received in principIe approval for issued of ESOP pursuant to scheme approve by members. 
However, the same has not been granted t ill date. 



11. MATERULCHANGESANI) COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIALPOSITION BETWEEN THE 
END OFTIZE FINANCIALYEARAND DATE OFTHE REPORT: 

AquisitionlTakeover: TheBoad, at its meeting held on January 19,201 8 momm&d and which is duly approvd 
by shareholderAquisition of SpidigoNet Pvt. Ltd., Indian Company 

12. RELEASE OFENCUMBRANCE OFSHAREHOLDING OFHOLDING COMPANY 

On the clearance of the dues corresponding to pledge the encumbrance on the part of the shareholding held by the 
holdi y company were releasdonApriI24,2018. 

13. IS0 CERTIFICATION 

Your Company has certification as per IS0 900 1-2008, IS0 1400 1:2004 and OHSAS B.S. 18001:2007 granted by 
the d t r t i f y b g  body RINAEordevelopment and manufacture of Chemical Intermedim. 

The assets of your Company are adequately insured. Your Company has also taken wt suitable cover for PubIic 
Liability. 

15, ~RWALCONTROLSYSTEMS AND TFIETR ADEQUACY 

The Company has an adequate Internal Control System commensurate with the size and nature of its businm. The 
prepamtion designing and documensation of  Policy on Internal Financial Control are in place and implemented 
which is reviewed periodically and modified suitably to ensure conmls. 

The internal audit are k e d o u t  by a separate firm of Chartered Accountants. The periodical audit reports, including 
significant audit hewations and corrective actions thereon, am presented to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. 

16. ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL IlrlECHANISWWMSTLE BLOWJCR AND RISK MANAGEMENT 
POLICY 

The Bcmd ofDkctors ofthe Company h, pursuant tothe provisions ofSection 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with RuIe 7 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2Q 14, and Regulation 22 of Listing 
ReguIatiws the C ~ l p s y  has established "V~il Mechanism Policy" for Directors and q10yees af the Company 
to provide a mechanism which ensures adequate safe+ to employm and Directors from any victimization an 
raising of concerns of my violdons of legal or regulatory requirerneuts, incorm% or misrepresention of my, 
hinancil statements and reports, etc. 

Tho employees of the Company have the rightloption to xeport their cwcern/grievrmce to the Chairman of the Audit 
Committee. The Company is commi#ed to adhere to the highest standards of e?hical, moral and legal conduct of 
businw operations. The Company also adopted Risk Assessment Procedure. The details ofthe same are mentioned 
in the CorporateGo~mrmceReport. 

17. MATTERS RELATED TO D W O U D  KEY MANAGIZRML~OSNNEL 

Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence aa laid down under 
s a ~ i m  149c6) of the Companies Act, 20 13 and Regulation 16(I)(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclormre 
Requirements) Regulations, 201 5. 



TI. Board EvaIuation: 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Coompanies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17(10) of SEBI @isti% Obligations and 
Disclosw Rqu imen t s )  Regulations, 20 15, the Board has tarried out annual performance evaluation of its own 
perhmnce, the directors inrdividually as well as the evaluation of fhe working of its Audit, Nomination & 
Remuneration and Stakeholder relationship Committees, The manner in which the evaluation has been carried out 
has been explained in the Co~orate Governance Report. 

In a sep- meeting of Independent Dimtors, perfomce of wn-independent directors, performiice of the 
Board as a whole and per fomme of the Chairman was evaluated, taking into amount the views of executive 
d k t m .  7'he same was dimmed in the Board meeting held subsequently to the meeting of the independent 
directors, at which the perfommm af the Board, its Committees a d  individual dimtors was &o discussed. 
Perfomme evaluation ofindependent directors was done by the entire Board, excluding the independent director 
being evaluated. 

TII. Remuneration Policy: 

The Board has, an the recommendation of the Nomination &Remuneration Comrnitw framed policy for selection 
a d  appointment o f D i r s ,  Senior Management and their munwstion. The Remuneration Policy is stated in the 
Corporate Governance Report 

W. Number of Board Meetings: 

TheBDardmetMvetime~~the~cialy~arendd3lstMarch,2018in~rdancewith~pro~i~nso~the 
Companies Act, 20 13. The details of which are given in the Corporate Governance Repmt. The intervening gap 
between any two Meetings w a s  within the pied prescribd by the Companies Act. 2013 and the Listing 
Regdatioa 

V. Board of Directors and Key Managerial Persons: 
-t of dim to^ and Kev Mamerial Persannel 

The existing agreement with Shri Asit D. Javeri Chairman Br Managing D h r  Mrs. Seema A. JaVeri, Executive 
Director (Administration}aud Shri. Abhishek A. Javeri, Executive Director& CFO ofthe Company was terminated 
as on 30thApril, 2018 and they were subject to the approval ~f thc members in the General Meeting and subject to 
further approval of mhl povt. if required mppointed on f st May, 2018 on the recommendation of the 
Nomination & R e m u n d w  Committee. 

Mr. Amit M. Mehta PIN: 00073907), was appointed as an Additional Independent Director of the Company with 
eEect from 30thApril,2018. 
The terms of appointment of S h  Mitin R J& Company Secretary who retire on 13th Movembw, 2018 was 
extendedfurherby3 (I3xee)yearsupto 13thNovember,2021. 

Reslgwatlon 
Mr. D.MShah resigned as Director of the Company with affect from 19th JmuaryZOl8 due to persond reasons. 
The buardappreciates and takes on mod his vaIuableadvice andcontribution during his termre. 

I. Retlrernent By Rotation 
In accordance with the provisicnns of the Act, none of the Independent Directors is  liable to %tire by rotati~n. 
As per the provisions of Section I52 of the Companies Act, 201 3, Mr. Abhishek A. Javeri retires by rotation at the 
ensuingAnnual General Meeting and being eligible, offer himself for re-appohent. 

18. AUDIT COMMITTEE: 
The Audit Committee of Directors was constituted pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 
2013. The composition afthe Audit Committee is  in con for mi^ with the provisions o f  the said section, The derails 
of Composition and meetings of the Audit Committw held has been mentioned in the Corporate Governance 
Report. 
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19. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 

TheNornination andRemunemtion Committee of Directors as constituted by the Board ofDirectors ofthecompany 
inaccordance with the requirements ofSection 178 ofthe Act. 

The details ofcomposition of the Committee and the number of meetings held by the committee are mentioned in the 
Corporate Governance Report. 

The Board has in accordance with the provisions of sub-section (3) of Section 178 ofthe Companies Act, 2013, 
formulated the policy setting out the criteria for determining qualificatims, positive attributes, independence of a 
Director and policy relating10 remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees. 

Major criteria 1 gist are defined in the Remuneration policy kamed for appointment of and payment of remuneration 
to the Directors of the Company. The remuneration policy is stated in the Corporate Governance Report. 

20. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

The Board of Directors of the company has constituted, pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013; the 
Board afDirectors of the Company has constituted the Stakeholder's Relationship Committee. 

The details ofcomposition ofthe Committee and thenumber of meetings held by the committee are mentioned in the 
Corporate Governance Report. 

21. AUDITORS & REPORTS 

I. Statutory Auditors of thecompany and thefr observations on accountsfor the yeareuded31st March, 2018. 

At the 44th Annuai General Meeting held on August 2, 2017, the Members approved appointment of MIS. 
Chandrashekar Iyer & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm registration No: 1 I426OW) to hold office from the 
conclusion of the 44thAnnuaI General Meeting until the conclusion of the 49th Annual General Meeting to be held 
for the financial year2022 subject to ratification of their appointn~ent at every AGM on such remuneration asmay be 
fixed by the Board apart from reimbursement of out of pocket expenses as may be incurred by them for the purpose of 
audit. 

I. SecretarialAuditors 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Compwies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, Ms. Makarand M. Joshi & Co., Company Secretaries in 
Practice, Mumbai, has been appointed toundertake the Secretarial Audit ofthecompany forthe financial year201 8 - 
19. The Secretarial Audit Report in form MR-3 for the financial year 20 17-1 8 is annexed herewith as 'Annexure W' . 
The replies to the comments of Secretarial Auditors in Auditors Report are as follows:- 

1. The Company has not filed eForm MGT - 14 as mandated under Section I79{3) read with Section 117 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 fox the following purposes: 

a) AvaiIment of Ioan &om Hero Fincorp to the extent of Rs. 136 crores approved in the Board Meeting held on 26th 
April, 2017 

6) Delegation of authority to Mr. Asit Javeri and Abhishek Jmri to borrow from Banks/NBFC/ICD to theextent ofRs. 
75 Crores approved in the Board Meeting held on 26th April, 201 7. 

The fiting of the abovementioned forms are inadvertently missed. However the company is in process of taking 
necessary corrective action. 

2. The Outcome of Board Meetings held on 13th September, 2017, 04th December, 2017 and 19tli January, 2018 
pertaining to approval of QuarterIy Financial results have been submitted to the Stock Exchange beyond the 
mandatedtime period of 30minutes. 



SAOHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED = 
Onaccount oftechnologicalconstraint the saidfiling were made indelay. 

3. ADesiynatedErnployee ofthe Company hasmade contra trade which is acontravention oftheprovisionsofbisider 
ReguIations. 

The company i s  in process of taking necessary action against the designated Employee. 

22. CORPORATE GOVERNANCEAND MANAGEMENTDISCUSSIONANDANALYSIS REPORT. 

Pursuant to Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of ReguLation 46(2) and Para C, D and E of Schedule Y of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 201 5 the corporate governance report together 
with Auditor report on the compliance on the same is attached as 'Annexure-V' and the Management Discussion 
and Analysis report is attachedas 'AnnexureVI'. 

23. CONSOLTDATED ETNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company prepared in accordance with relevant Accounting 
Standards (AS) viz. AS 2 1, AS-23 and AS-27 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Tndia form part of 
this AnnuaI Report. 

24. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION A N D  FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

The infomarion on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo 
stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of The Companies (Accounts) 
Rules,2014, is annexed herewith as WnnexureVII'. 

25. EXTRACTOF ANNUAL RETURN 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(a) o f  the Companies Act, 2013, Extract of the Annual Return for the 
financial year ended 31st March 2018 made under the provisions of Section 92(3) of the Act is attached as 
'Annexure-VmI' which forms part ofthis Report. 

26. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

Employee drawing Remuneration in excess of  the limits prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013. The information 
required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule, 5 of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 isgiven in 'Annexuw IX' 

27. HUMAN RESOURCEnNDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

Human Resource programs and initiatives are aligned to meet the business needs. Your company believes in 
investing in people to develop and expand their capability. The Company has been able to create a favourable work 
environment that motivates perfonnance; customer focus and innovatian in your company's strategies are based, 
inter aha, on processes of continuous learning and improvement. 

28. DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 197(12) OFTHE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND OTHER DISCLOSURES AS 
PERRULE 5 OFCOMPANIES (APPOINTMENT& REMUNERATION) RULES,2014 
The disclosures as per Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment & Itemunerztion) Rules, 2014 have been marked as 
Annexure IX. 

29. SIGNlFICANTAND MATEMAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE RJ2GULATORS OR COURTS 

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators J Courts which wouId impact the going concm 
status ofthe Company and its future operations. 
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30. DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

In terms ofsection 134(5) ofthe CompaniesAct,2013, in relation to the audited ~ancialstatementsofthe company 
for the year ended 3 1 st March, 20 18, the Board of Directors hereby confinns that 

(a) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31st Marcb,ZOl8,the applicable 
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any; 

(b) that such accounting policies as mentioned in the Notes to the Financial Statements have been selectedand applied 
consistently and judgment and estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a hue and fair 
view o f  the state of affairs of the Company as at 3 1 st March, 20 18 and of the profit of the Company forthe year ended 
on that date; 

(c) ihat proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Companies Act,2013 for safe guarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

(d) that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis; 

(e) that proper internal financial controls were in place and that the financial controls were adequate and were 
operating effectively. 

(0 that systems to ensure compiiance with the provisions of a11 applicable laws were in place and were adequate and 
operating effectively. 

31. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

Your Directors would like to express their appreciation - for the assistance and cooperation received from the 
Banken, Central and State Government Departments, customers, vendors, and other business partners. The 
Directors also wish to place on record their appreciation to all the employees of the Company for their cooperation 
and continued contribution to the Company. Last but not least the Directors place on record their gratitude to the 
Investors, Clients and Shareholders of the Company for their support and trust reposed. 

For and On Behalf o f  the Board o f  Directors 

ASIT D. JAVERI 
CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR 

DM: 002681 14 
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n 

ANNEXURE-I 
AOC-1 

(Pursuant to first proviso to subsection (3) of section I29 read with rule 5 of Coinpanies 
(Accounts) Rules, 20 14) 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries1 
associate companies I joint ventures 

Part "A": Subsidiaries 

(Information in respect of each subsidiary1 Associate Companies/ Joint Venture 
Companies to be presented with amounts in T ) 

Sr. 
No. 
1. 

2 

3. 

4 

Particulars 

Name of the subsidiary I Joint 
Venture / Associates Companies 

Date on whrch the subsidiary 
company was associated or acquired 

Reporting period for the subsidiary 
concerned, if different from the 
holding company's reporting period 

Reporting currency and Exchange 
rate as on the last date of the relevant 
Financial Year in the case of foreign 

Particulars 

Anuchem B.V.B.A., 
Belgium 

0110411998 

January to December 

Euro 
1 Euro = N R  76.39 
Date: 3 1.12.20 17 

Strix Wireless 
System Pvt. Ltd 

231312018 

April to March 

INR 
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Names of Subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: - N.A. 
Names of Subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: N.A. 

Part "B": Associates and Joint Ventures 

(Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate 
Companies and Joint Ventures) 

Names of associates /joint ventures which are yet to commence operations: - N.A. 
Names of associates /joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year: N.A. 

Particulars 

1. Name of AssociatesIJoint Ventures 

2. Date on which the Associate or Joint 
Venture was associated or acquired 

3. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 

4. Shares of AssociatelJoint Ventures 
held by the company on the year end 

i. Number (in numbers) 

ii. Amount of Investment in Associates/ Joint Venture 

iii. Extent of Holding % 

5. Description of how there is 
significant influence 

6.  Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated 

7. Net worth attributable to 
Shareholding as per latest audited 
Balance Sheet 

8. Profit I Loss for the year 

i. Considered in Consolidation 

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation 

As per our Report of even date 

Name 1 

NOT APPLICABLE 

. 

For Chandrashekar lyer & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No. 114260W 

Place : Murnbai 
Dated : 30th April, 201 8 

Chandrashekar lyer 
Partner 
Membership No. 477723 
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1 ANNEXURES TO THE BO*RDiB REPORT 

I ANElExuRFPIl 

FORM AOC2 

( b a n t  to clause (b) o f  subsection (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 
Companies (Acmunts) Rules, 2014) 

Particulars of c o ~ ~ g e r n e n t s  enkred into by the Company with reIated@ies 
referred io in subsection (1) of  section 188 of h e  Companies Act, 20 13. 

a) Transactions at arms length basis in theordinary~x)wse of business :- 

1 

2 

Far and On Behalf of the Board of Directors 
S A D W A  NITRO CHEM LIMITED 

Details of con- or mgmenc or tmmctions 
nM at m ' s  length basis 

Details of mtracts or arrangement w transrtctionsat 
a m ' s  length basis 

Name of 
the 
Related Patty 
Nature of 
Relatiomhip 

Strk  Wireless 
System Pvt. 
Lid 

An- 
B.V,B.A.. 
Belgium, 
Wholly 
Owned 
Subsidiary 
C O * ~ Y  
Slrix Wuelms 
Spmuhrt. 
Lta 
Spidigo Net 
Private 
Limited 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30th April, 201 8 

Nane 

As detailed below 

ASXT DJAVERI 
CHAIRMAN AMD MANAGING DIRECTOR 
DIN: 00268 I 14 

Name of 
conhacts / 
m g e m e n t  l 
transactions 

Receipt of 
repayment o f  
loan llptb Rs. 
10 Cr. 
Transactions 
dating ta the 
Purchase/ 
Sde of his. 50 
-PA 
basis 

Acquisition 
ofloo% 
S ~ W  

Acquisition 
of Bushxs 

Duration of 
the conkacts l 
amgements / 
mansactions 

- 

Yearly 

- 

- 

Salient terms o f  
the contracts or 
armgemen$ or 
tranmctims 
includingdae 
value, if any 
T &42,94,647 

7 10,55,09,151 

T 6,523 

Acquisitionof 
business is in 
procesg 

Date(~) of 
appro& by 
the B o d ,  if 

27/05/2018 

27/05/2016 

19/01/2018 

19/01/2018 

Amount 
paid as 
d v a m a  
, if my 

N.A. 

N.A. 

M.A. 

M.A. 



ANNEXURE III 
Disclosure of d e w  pertaining to issue of sweat equity shares pursuant to the 
provisions of Section $l (l)(d) of the Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year 
under review; I 

For and On Behdf of the Board of Directors 
SADHANA WIT0 CHEM LMlTED 

The class of Director or empIoyee to whom 
sweat equity shares were issued 

The class of shares issued as Sweat Equity 
Shares 
The number of sweat equity shares issued to 
the directm, key managerial personnel or 
other employees showing sepamte1y the 
number of such shares issued ta them, if my, 
for consideration other tban cash a d  the 
individual names of allottees holding one 
percent or more of the issued share capital 

The reasons or justification for the issue 

The principal terms and conditions for issue 
of sweat equity shares, including pricing 
formula 

The total number of shares arising as a result 

of issue of sweat equity shares 

The O/a of the sweat equity shares of the total 

post issued and paid up share capital 

The considemtion (including consideration 

other than cash) received or benefit accrued to 

the Company h m  the issue of sweat equity 

share0 

We diluted Per Share ePS) 
pursuant to issuance of sweat equity shares 

ASIT DJAVERI 
Place: Murnbai CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR 
Date: 30th April, 201 8 DIN: 002681 14 

30 

Executive Director & CFO 

Equity 

1,14,3 19 

Mr. Abhishek Asit Javeri, helped the 
Company to gain various tangible & 
intaugibb benefits paving the way for the 
Company for its growth and prosperity. 

A, pr v a l h o n  report by ~ ~ ~ h a n t  B&er 
the price &odd not be less than Rs. 43.94 

93,15,149 

122% 

7 50,23.200 

mS before Swmt Equity t 33.61 pr 
EPS after Sweat Equity 7 33-22 Per share 
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Annexure IV 

FORM NO. MR.3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

For The Financial Year Ended 31st March, 2018 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 20141 

TO 

The Members, 
SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED 

HIra Baug, lst  Flow 
Kasturba Chowk (C.P.Tank) 

Mumbai 400004 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the mpliance of appllcablc statutory provlslom and the adherence to good 
mrpomte practices by Sadhana Nitro &em Limited (hereinafter called the "Company"). Sewetarial Audit was conducted in a 
manner that provided us a reasonable bagis for evaluating the ccrrporate conducts/ statutory mmptlances and expressing my 
opinlonthereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company's book, papers, mlnute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company and also the information p m # e d  by the Company, its oficers, agents and authorized 
repfese~sduringthecondubof secretarial audit, We hereby report that tn our aplnlon, the Company has, durlng theaudlt 
period coverlng the financbl year ended on 3lst March, 2 0 s  ('Audik Period') comptled wlth the stirtutory prwlslons listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-procemes and compliance-mechanism in place to the Merit, in the 
manner and subjectto the reporting madeheminafter: 

We haw examined lhe books, papers, minute books, f o m  and returns Rled and other recordtimaintained by the Company 
for theflnandal year ended on 31st March, 2018 according to the provisions& 

(i) ~eCompaniesAet,ZOl3~tkAct)adtherul~ madethere under; 

(11) T h e S ~ r i t h s  Contracts (Regutation) Act, 1956 (~SCRA') and the rules madethere under; 
(Ill) m ha Depositories Act, 1996 and the Reguhtlons anti Bye-law framed thereunder. 

(Iv) Foreign hchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and Mgularions made there under to the cant of 
Overseas D i m  Inwstment. (Forelgn DIna Investment and External Commercial Borrowiq are not Applicable durlng 
the audit period) 

{v) The following Rqulations and Guidelines prescrlkd under the Securities and fSpchange Board of lndla Act, 
1992 ('SEBI A d )  :- 
la)The Securitlesand Exhange Board of lndla (Substantial Acquisitlon ofSharesanff Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, 

(b) The SecuRies and Exchange Board of hdia (Prohibltlon of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 (herek after referred 
as'hsider Regulations'). 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of Indla (Issue of Capita[ and Qisclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009 (Not 
Appficabletn the Companyduringttie audit period) 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listim of Debt kutltles) Regulations, 2008 (NM 
Applicable to the Mrnpany duringthe audit period). 
(A The Securities and Exchange Board of lndIa to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 
regardingtheCompanles Act and dealingwith client 

&) The Securil'-es and &change Board of India (Delisting of Equlty Shares) Regulations, 20G9 (Not Appllcable to  the 
Company during the audit period) and 
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(h) The Securitiesand Exchange Board of lndia {Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 (Not Applicable to thecompany during 
theaudit period) 

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(I) Asidentified, nospecificJaw applicable to thecompanyduring the Audit Period. 

We haw alsoexaminedcornpliance with theapplicableclausesof thefollowlng: 

(I) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
( i i )  The Listing Agreementsentered into by theCompanywith stockexchanges. 
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidellnes, 

Standards, etc. except thefollowlng: 

1. The Company has not filed @-Form MGT - 14 as mandated under Section 179(3] read with Section 117 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 for the following purposes: 

a) Availment of loan from Hem Finwrp to theextent of Rs. 136 croresapproved in the Board Meeting held on 26th April, 2017 

b) Delegation of authority to Mr. Asit Javerl and Abhlshek Javeri to borrow from Banks/NBFC/lCD to the extent of Rs. 75 
Crores approved in the5oard Meeting held on 26th April, 2017. 

2. The Outcome of Board Meetlngs hetd on 13th September, 2017, 04th December, 2017 and 19th January, 2018 
pertaining to approval of Quarterly Financlal results have been submitted to  the Stock Exchange beyond the 
mandated time period of 30 minutes. 

3. A Designated Employee of the Company has made contra trade which is a contravention of the provisions of Insider 
Regulations. 

We further reportthat 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 

Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period 
under review werecarrled out in compliance with the provisionsof the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to a l l  directors to schedule the Board Meetings and agenda items were sent at least seven days In 
advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and ~Iarifications on the agenda Items before the 
meetingand for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

Att decisions a t  Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out either unanimously or majority as recorded in the 
minutesof themeetinpof the Board of Directorsor Committeeofthe Board, as the case may be. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and 
operationsof thecompany tomonitor and ensurecompliance withapplicable laws, rules, regulations andguidelines. 

We further report that durlng the AudRperiod 
(a) The Company has approved the issue of 1,14,319 Equity Shares by way of Sweat Equity to Mr. Abhishek Javeri in the Extra 
Ordinary General Meeting held on 22nd May, 2017 by passing Special resolution 

(b) The Company has approved the issue of shares under Employee Stock Option Scheme 2017{"ESOS 2017") to the 
employees of the Company. Further also approved the issue of Shares under ESOS Scheme to employees of Holding and 
Subsidiary Company. 
8 The Company via Postal Ballot held on 20th March, 2018 sought approval of the members of the Company to Acquire 
the following Companlcs: 

(i) Spidigo Net Privatelimited 

(ii)Strix Wireless Systems Private Limited 

For MMJC& Associates LLP 

Company Secretaries 

Arti Ahuja Jewanl 
Designated Partner 

FCS No. 8503 
CP No. 9346 

Place: Mumbal 
Date: 27.04.2018 

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an Integral part of this report. 



To, 1 
The Members, 
SADHlWANrmOQIEM UMmD 

Hlra Bau& 1st Floor 
Kasturba Chowk (CR Tank) 
Murnbai400004 

Our reportof wendateis tobe readalong withthis 1-t 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the mmpany. Our responsibility is Po 
express an opinion on these semtarlal records based on our audit. 

2. We have Clfowed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain masanable assurance a b u t  the 
correctne~ofrhe wntentsofthese~retarial nxords.Theverlfication wasdoneon test b a s i s t o r e t a t c o  f a  c t s a r e  
reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the pmeses  and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for 
ourdpinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books d Accounts of the 
company. 

4. Where ever required, m Rave obtalned the Management representation about the cornpliane of laws, rules and 
rquladonsand happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, ruks, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management. Our ereminationwas limited to theverification of procedures on testbasls. 

6. The Seeretarla1 AudR report Is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company ndr of the efficacy or 
efhbivenesswithwhich the management hasconducted the affiirs ofthe company. 

For MMJC &Associates UP 
Company Secrnrles 
Arti Ahuja JewanI 
Deslgnated Partner 
F i 3  No. 8503 

CP No. 9346 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 27.042018 



ANNEXURE -V TO DIRECTORS REPORT 2017-18 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Previously, Regulations 17 b 27, clauses (b) to (1) of Regulation 46(2] and Para C, D and E of Schedule V of SEBl (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 was not mandatory to the Sadhana N i h  Chern Limited (the 
"Company"), however, the Company voluntarfly disclosed the Compliance to the best extent possible. Fmm the end of the 
financial year 2017-?a. theaforesaid Regulations are applicable to the Company. 

In accordanc~ with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations"), the report containing the details of Corporate Governance 
systems and processes of the Company Is as follows together with the Auditors Certificate on compliance wlth the 
condltlons of Corporate Governance laid down are presented In the Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended 
31stMarch, 2018. 

I. COMPANYS PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE: 

Sadhana Nitro Chern Limited believes that transparent accounting pollcles, appropriate disclosures norms, best-in- 
class Board practices and consistently high standards of corporate conduct towards Its stakeholders are essential for 
sustained corporate growth. 

Corporate Governance is abu t  commitment to values and ethlcal business conduct. The Report on the Corporate 
Governance is to fulfill thls commitment. An Organization is able to attract investors and enhance the trust and conff dence of 
all stakeholders by following the best governanoe practices. 

Our Governance philosophy is based on the foHowing:- 
* Management is the trustee of the Shareholders capital and not the owner. 

Provlde an enabllng environment to harmonize the goals of maximizing stakeholder value and maintaining a 
customer centric focus. 

* Havea simpleand transparent corporate structure driven solely by business needs. 
Communicate extemallv. in a truthful manner, about how the Comoanvls runnina Intemaltv. 
' ~ a k e  deardistinctlon b e k e n  personal convenience and corpoAte &sources.- 
* Be kansparent and maintain high degree of disclosure levels in all facets of its operations. 
* Satlsfy the spirit of the law and not just the letter of the law. 

The Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance Is thus concerned with the ethics, values and rnowls of the 
Company and its directors, who are expected to act in the best interests of the Company and remaln accountable to 
shareholders and other bonellclarles forthetraction. 

Composition of the Board and D l n W h t p  held in other Cornpanles as on 33st March. 2018: 

1 2.1 MC. Adnd ~ . ~ o s h i  I Independent - Mon - Execlrtive I 2 

Sr. 
No . 

1. 

1 3.1 Mr. Prlyam S. J-tl indepmndent - Non- ExeruW I 

Name of fh8 MmCtWs) 

Mr. Aslt D. Jawwf 

4. 

6. 

Promotart Independent 
Exearthre I Non-Exswtlve 

Pmrnohw - IExeeutive Chairman 

Manqrns otnetw 

7. 

Mr. D.M. S?mR (** ) 

Mr. Abhlshek A J a r e r i  

No. of outside 
Dfrectorshlp 

+O 

Mr. Pmdeep N. 0-1 

8 m t  Swma k J a w r l  

No. OT other autulde 

Cornmhe positions held (') 

Chairman I Member 

Independent - Nan- Examthe ------ 
Promoter - Executive Dlrectwa 

m GFO 

4 

Indewnderrt - Non - Executive 

Pmmomr- EmuUve Dhetor 

3 

9 - 
Y 

4 - 
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('1 In other Llmited Companies (including Private Umited Corn~anlesK Forelan mm~anles. Onlv membership of audil 
wmmittw and ~takeholdeh ~d$ionship-committee are considered. 

' - 
r) Mr. D. M. Shahceased to be qlrectorof the Company with effectfrom January 19,2018 

3. DIRECTORS' PROFILE : I 
Shri Asif D. Javerl (DIN: 00268114) aged 62 years, is a Science graduate from Mumbal University. He is Slo (Late) Shrl 
Dhankumar T. Javeri, founder ~ h b i m n  of the Company. 

I 
He joined m p a n y  in December t 984as a Directorof the eornpany and in January 1985, he was appointed as the Managing 
Director. Prior to joining the mrnpany he had experience of 9 years of running chemlcal company. He has been associated 
with the companyformorethan 33 years. 

At present Shri Aslt 0. Javeri is Executive Chairman & Managing Director of the Company. He is promoter ofthe company 
and holds 3.88,759 Equity Shares of the comoanv as on 31 st March. 201 8. 

Name of the Companies 
he holds Directorship 

1. Premier LimWed 
2. Indian Extractions Limited 
3. Phthalo C o l o u r s  & Chemicals 

(I) Ltd. 
4. Lifestyle Net Works Ltd. 
5.  Anuchem b.v.b.a., Belgium 
6.  Manekchand Panachand 

Trading Investment 
Company Pvt. Ltd. 

7. Chandra Net Private Limited 
8. Strix Wlreless Systems Pvt. 

Ltd . 
9. Strix System Inc. USA 
10. AHANA Ine. USA 

Name of the Companies in which he is a Member of the 
Committee of the Board 

Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited 
Share Transfer Committee-Member 
Executive) Premler Llmited 
Stakeholders Relationship C o m m i t t e e  - Chairman 
(Non Executlve) 
Nomination & Remuneration C o m m i t t e e ,  
Audit Committee- Member (Non Execu t i ve )  
Indian Extractions Limited 
Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
- Chairman (Non Executive) 
Phthalo Colours & C h e m i c a l s  (I) Limited 
Audit Committee-Member (Non Executive) 

Shri Arvind R. Doshi (DIN: 00015293) aged 79 years, is a Civil & Sanitary Engineer from VJTI, Murnbai and Diploma 
in Business Management. 

He joined company on 17th September, 1974 as a Director. He has been associated wlth the company for more than 
41 years, At present Shri Arvind R. Doshl is Director of PAE Ltd. 

He has a wide experience in industries like Engineering &Automobiles since 1965. He has received Prestigious 
Dadabhai Naroji International award for Excellence &Achievement in f 999.Also he has been awarded Sarnaj Ratna 
by Mahamastaka Abhishek Committee 2006. Shri Arvind R. Doshi is holding 12498 Equity Shares of the mmpany as 
on 31 st March, 2018. 

Name of the Companies he holds Name of the Companies in which he is a Member of the 
Directorship Committee of the Board 

1. PAE Limited Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited 
2. PAE Renewables Pvt. Ltd. Nomination & Remuneration Committee Chairman (Non 

Executive) 
Audit and StakeholdersRelationshipCommitteeMember (Non 
Executive) 
PAE Limited 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee Member 



3. PMhala Colours & ~hernikls (I) LW. 
2, Indian Exlractbns Limit4 
3. Excel Industries Lirnlted I 
4. Nanavati Spedalty Chertpals Pvt. LW. 
5. Nanavati Sons Privata Litpitad 
6. Sonera lnvesbnsnts Prlyte Lirnitd 
7. Sonege Tredes & InvesQents hrt LM. 
8 .  Meddrem Technologies fvt. Ltd. 
9. Nanavati Chertex Prlvat? Limited 
10. Nanavatl bctronI= Prhr te Limited t 

Shrl. PrIyam 8. Jhaveri (DIN: 0045038) aged 64 years. He is a Commerce graduate and Mng rich q r i e n c e  In 
Chemical Industq. lie is assoda with Manavati Group of Companies and joined Company as a Directorfmm I1  th March, 

Sadhana Nitro Chem Umited 
Nomination & Remuneration Cornmlttea &Audit Committee - 
Member (Non Executlve) 
Stakeholders Relatlonshlp Committee - Chairman (Non 
Executive) 
Indian Extractions Lirnlted 
BhareTransfer Cornrnlttee-Member (Executive) Phthalo 
Colours & Chemicals (I) Limited 
Audit Committee -Chainan (Executive) 8 Numination & 
Remuneration Committee - Member (Exmtive) 
Excell Industries tsrnlted 
Audit, Nominath & Remuneration Committee &Allotment 
Committee - Member (Non Executive) 

1W8. He Is holding 100 Equity 

Name of the Companies he 
Oirectorsftlp 

r)Shrl DhirendraM. ~hah{~1~:~0380008)agect71 years(Up to 19.01.2018). He isCommerceand Law gmdwte having 
experience of48 years asAdwca26-Tax Consubnt. He joined the company as a Director from 29th July, 2002. He is holding 
5OM Equity Shamsofthe wmpariyason 31st March, 2018. 

SkaresoftheCompany ason 31st March, 2018. 

r)Shrl Dhirendra M. Shah ceasdtobe DiredoroftheCornpanywith effect h m  January 19,2018. 
I 

wlds 

Name of the Companies he 
I holds Directorship 

I 
1. Faberge Finance Seylces Pvt. LM. 
2. Mangaldas Darnda es Investment Private 

Limited ? 

I 

Shrl Pradeep N. D m i  (DIN: 01602942) aged 56 years. He is Chemical EngineeK Ha joinedthecornpany as a Directorfrom 
12th February, 201 3. He is h o l d l ~  200 Equity Shares of the company as on 51 st March, 201 8. 

Name d the Compenias in whiEh he is a Member of the 
Committee of the Board 

Name of the Companies In which he is a Member 
of the Committee of the Board 

Sadhana N i i  Chem Limited 
Audit Committee Chairman (Non Executlve) 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee 
Member (Mon Executive) 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
Member (Non Executive) 

I 1. Dslta Hitech Coatlnp ~ r i v a 4  Limited - I 
I 

Name of the companies ha 
holds ~irectorsb~ 

I 

Shri Abhishekk Javeri (DIN: Oq273030) aged 38years. He is son of Mr.Asit D. Javeri, Chairman 8 Managing Directwand 
Brnt Seema A. Javeri, Executive; D l W r  -Adminlstraiion, of lhe Company. He is BA in Economics from Narth Westem 
University, USA. He joined the co pany as a Directorfmm 24th January, 2007. He is hdding I51419 Equity Shares of the 
company as on 3lst March, 2018. r" 

I 

Name of the Companies in which he is 
a Member of the Cornmiflee of the Board 
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M n l n g  of  on-executivb members of tho Board 

AII new n o n - e x m e  ~ihcfars are appointed on the Board of the Company are introduced to the culture 
through induction sessions. The Executive dimctors and senior management pivide an overview of the operations 
and farnlliarlze the new Mwl-executive Directors on matters the morals and principles ofthe Company. 

They are introcluced to the organiza~on structures and various prokduks. The Directors are also briefed 
pertaining bthe group structu~and subsldiarles. 
The details of the familiarization programmes imparted to lndependent Directors Is available on the website d the 
Company at ht$:llww.sncl.w~wnciab.htm 

I 
6. NUMBER OF SHARES & CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS HELD BY P I O N ~ C U T I V E  DIRECTORS: 

1 I I 1 Number of 
Nameof Director I I Dlmctor Category 

I Mr. D.M. Shah (Up b19H12018) Nan-Executive, lndependent I I 5000 I 
I instruments held 

1 I 

I Mr. h i n d  R Dushi I Non-Executive, Independent 12498 I 
Mr. Priyam S. Jhaverl 

Mr. Pradeep N. Desai 1 (w.e.f. 19111201 8) 

I Mr. D.M. Shah 

As required uls f 77 of the ~ o m i a n i e s ~ d ,  2013 and Regulation 18 of the SEBl (Listing OWlgations and Disclosums 
Requirements) Regulations,ZO?S read with part C a f  schedule II thereto,the Board has w n s W  Audit Commitlee 
which mpr lses  of the following Diremrs: 

I 

Chairman 
(Upto 1911 1201 8) 

7. AUDtT COMAIIIITEE: i 

Non-ExecuHve, Independent 

Non-Executive, Independent 

Name of Plrector 

Non-Executive, Independent 

100 

2m 

Nature 
of Membership 

Mr. Priyam S. Jhaveri I I 

Director Category 

I Mr. Arvind R. Doshi I Member 

Chairman 
(From 191112018) 

Non-Executive, Independent I 
Non-Executive, Independent 

Mr. Pradeep N. Desai Member 
(From 191Il2018) 

Non-Executive, Independent 



Change in composition: I 
There was a change In the mrhposltion of the Audit Committee during the financial year 2017-18. Mr. D.M. Shah, 
Chairman of the Committee wed to be the Director of the Company wlth e l k t  from 19th January, 2038. 
Subsequently, Mr. Prtyam Jav f rl was appointed as Chairman of the CommMe and Mr. Pradwp N. Desai was 
appointed as a m m b r  oftheA$d't Committee by the Bmrd at its rneeBng held on 4 9th January, 201 8. 

Powera of the Audit Cornm ee: 7 
The Audt CMnrnlttee shall have the authority to investigate into any matter that may be pmcribed under 

Company Law forthe time bein in force and within Itsterms of reference. 4 
Role otthe~ud~~omrnltted, tnter-alla. Includesthefdlowing :- 

I.  Oversight of the Company's financial reporting proaess and the disclosure of it8 financial information b 
ensurethat the financial st&rnent is m c t ,  ssufAcient and credl ble. 

2. Recommending to the Board the appointment, wappintrnent and, if required, the replacement or removal of 
I 

the statutory auditors and the fixation of audit fees. 
3. Approval of payment tos hbry auditors for any other services rendered by the I statutory auditors. 
4. Reviewing with manage ant the annual financial statements before submission to the Board, for 

a P I P r o v a I 
with particular reference to: 
a. Mawrs requid Mng included in the DimtofsResponsibility Statement. 
b. Changes, if any, in accwnting policies and p d c e s  and reasons for the same. 
c. Major amounting entries Involving estimates based on exercise ofjudgment by management 
d. Significant adjustmelts made in the financialstatements arising out of auditfindings. 
a. Compliance with List@ and other legat requirements d d n g  to finandal statements. 
f. Disclowre of any related pa@ transactions. 
g. Qualifications in draft hudit report. 

I 
5. Reviewing with the management, the quarterly Rnanclal statements befora submlsslon to the Board for 

approval. 

6. Reviewing with the management performance of statutory and internal audiim, adequacy of the internal 
contrd systems. 

I 

7. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit 
department, stafflng and seniority ofthe official heading the department, reporting strudure cweraga and 
frequency of internal audit. 

8. Discussions with Internal auditors any significant findings and follow up thereon. 

4. Rdewlng the findings sf any Internal investiga~ons hy the internal auditors Into matters where them is 
suspected fraud or Irregularity or a failure of Internd control systems of a material nature and 

r e p o r t i n g  I t h e 
mattertothe Board. 

IO.DISUIOOIO~OWIUI datutob auditors beforethe audit mrnmences, about the nature and scope of audit as well 
as past-audkdlscusslon to ascertain any area of concern. 

1l.To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors. 

I 
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I = 
The Audit Committees all mandatorlty review the following information. li 
1. Management discusskn and analysis of financial condition and results of operations; 
2. Statement of significant related party transactions (as deflned by the audit committee), submitted by 

Management; 
3. Management lette ttersof internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors; 
4. Internal audit r e p  2? relating to internal control weakness; and 
5. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief internal auditor shall be subject to review by 

theAudit Committee. 

Mr. Chanelashekar lyer- ChaDdrashekhar lyer & Co., Partner of the firm and Jayesh Dadia &Associates LLP Internal 
Auditor, have been permanent invitees to the Audit Committee Meetings besides Chairman tl Managing Director, Chief 
Financial Officer and Company Secretary attended mostof the meeting of theAudit Committee as invitee. 

During theyear, theAudit Committee, in its meetings, discussad among otherthings, the fallowing : 
- Reviewed wlth management, quarterly, half yearly and annual financial statements before submission to the 

Board. 
- Discussed with the managementand the inkmaland statutory auditors findings in the internal audit reports. 
- Dellberated on the applicablllty, wmpltance and impact of varlous Accounting Standards and guidelines issued 
bythe Instituteofchartered Accwntantsof India from time to time. 
- Revlewed the Company's Financial and Risk Management Policies and Audit Reports covering operational, 
financial and other business risk areas. 

The Chairman of the Audit Committee has briefed the Board of Directors, about the Audl Committees observations on 
various issues discuss4 at its meetings. Minutes of the Audit Committee Meetings are also circulated to all the b a r d  
Members along with agenda of thesubsequent meeting. 

All the suggestions I recommendations of the Audit Committee during the financial year 201 6-1 7, have been acmpted by the 
Board of Direhrs. 

The Financial decisions of the Company are taken by the Chairman 8. Manegang Director, Mr. A.D. Javeri at the Board of 
Directors Meetlng. 

The attendance r e d  of each member of the Audi Cornrnlttee at the Meeting held on 26th April, 2017, f 3th September, 
2017,4th December, 2017,19th January, 2018are asfollows:- 

The previous Annual General Meeting was held on 2nd August, 2017 Mr. D.M. Shah Chairman of the Audit 
Committee has attended theAnnual General Meeting of thecompany. 

8. RISK MANAGEMENT: 

Name 

Mr. O.M. Shah 

Mr. Arvind R. Ooshl 

Mr. Priyam S. Jhaved 

Mr. Pradeep N. Desai 

The Board takes responsibility for the total process of risk management in the organisation. Results of the risk 
assessments and residual r i s k  are presented to the Senior Management and the Audit Committee members. Ths 

, Management is accountable forthe integration of risk management practices into theday to day activlties.The scope 
I of the Audit Committee includes review of the Companfs financial and risk management policies. The Audit Committee 

I 
reviews the Audit Reports covering operational, financial and other business risk areas. 

39 

Numbers of Meetlngs Date of Appointment 

29th A pril 2008 
(upm re111 2018) 

29th A pril 2008 

29th April 2008 

1gm January 2018 

Held 

4 

4 

4 

4 

Director Category 

Non Executive - 
Independent 

NokEXecUfive - 
Independent 

Non-Exectttlve - 
Independent 

Now Executive - 
Independent 

Attended 

2 

4 

4 

1 



~ttendanca record ofthe ~embers: 
The attendame r e a d  of each membr of the Stakeholder Relabionshlp Committee at the Msetlng held on 27th May, 
2017isasfOllows: 

Pursuant to the provisions of s on f 78 (5) of the Ad and Regulation 20 of the SEBl Regulatims read with Part D of 
Schedule II thereto, the Share Iders' Committee of the Board WEIS reconstituted as the StaketaoIders' Ralatknship 
CwnmW. The Stakehalcbr Rd tionship Committee wrnprises of thefonowlng 0Irecto~:- 

Name of Directors 
f I 

Nature of Director Category 

Mr. Priyam S. Jhaveri 

Mr. Awind R. Doshl 

There are two pending legal matters. in whlsh the Company has bmn made a party, before any other Court(s) I COm3umer 
Fanrm(s) I&., on Inmtws g r l m ~ s .  

All share transfer and eorrespon nee thereon are handled by the Companvs Reglstram and Share Transfer Agents vlz. 
Unk Intime Private Limited, GA 01 4" 247 Park, LB.S. Marg, Vikhmll (West), Murnbal400 83. 

I 

Name 

Mr. Pdyam S. Jhaverl 

Mr. Anrind R Doshi 

Mr. D.M. Shah 
(Upto 1911 1201 8) 
Mr. Pradeep N Desal 
(w.ef. 19111201 8) 

~ a m e  and ~eslgnatlon of ~ompjlance o f k e r :  

Non-Executie, Independent 

Non-EXMUM, Independent 

A 

Nurnhers of Meetings 

Mr. Nlth R Jani. C m a n y  deta ty ,  has been apfmlntad as the Cornpbnce MRcer, as rsquied under Regulation B of 

Non -Executive, Independent 

Non-Executrve - Independent 

membership 

Chairman 

Memkr 

Mr. D.M. Shah (Upto 191112018) 
I 

Mr. Pradesp N. Desal (w.8. .191112018) i 

, Date of Appointment 

1 Zsth Aprll 2008 

29th April 2008 

12!jm August, 2014 
I 

1 19'" January,2018 

Held 

1 

1 

1 

the ~ewrities and Exdianie 3oard of indja (Usting OMiatiwls and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 201 5 ("Listing 
Reaulattons*). He has been etMru6M thetaskof overseeina theShrrreTransftarwork done by the Registrars and Share 

Terms &Reference: I 
Review the existing Investors Redreswl System and suggest measures for improvement 
Review the report of RqistFars and Share Transfer Agents abut investoh grievances and follow up fw the 

necessary action taken for redressal thered. 
Suggest improvement in investor's relations. 
Consider and taka on 4 r d  the CeMeate flwn Practlctng Company S d r y  certifying that the aggregate 

number ofequlty shams held in 6aposhrles and in physfcalfwm tally with the total numberof shares issued, Ilsted end 
admitbd share capital. I 

Member 

Member 

Na-Exmuthe 1 
Independent 

Non-Eecutive I 
Independent 

Non-Executlw I 
Independent 
Non-Executive I 
Independent 
Non-Executive 1 
Independent 

Attended 

1 

1 

f 



SADHAUA NIYRO CHEM UMIWD 

TransferAgents and attending to grievances of the Shareholders and Investors Intimated to the Company directly orthrough 
SEBI and S k k  Exchanges. All plaintslgrievances Intimated durlng the year have been resolved. T 
10. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITEE: 

I 
Pursuanttosectlon 178 of the ~ o h ~ a n i e s ~ c t ,  203 3 and Regulation 19 of the SEBI Regulations read with PartD of Schedule 
!I thereto the Company has con#tuted the the Nornination & Rernuneratlon Comrniftee. This Cammittee shall have the 
authority to Investigate Into any matter that may be prescribed under Company Law for the time being In force and shall also 
comply with the terms of reference as spacified herein as under: 

1. The Nomination B Remuneration Comrnltteeshall haw meetlngs periodically as it may deem fit. 
2. Jhe Nomination & Remuneration Committee shall invite such of the executives to be present at the 

meetlngs of the Committee required by It. 
3. The Nomination & Remuneration Committee shall have the following powers and functions: 

a.Torecommend tothe Board, the terms andconditionsof appointment of key Management personnel. 
b.To s& Information from any employee. 
c.To obtain outside legal wother professional advice. 

Peifomnce Evaluation: 

Tho Nomination and Remuneration Committee lays down the criteria for performance evaluation of Independent 
directors and other direciors, Board of Directors and Committees of the Board of Directors pursuant to the provisions of the 
Companies Act. 201 3. 

~heevalwtionframwvorkforass&sing the performance of Directors comprlsesof thefollowlng key areas: 

i. Atfendance of Board Meetings and Board Commitiee Meetings. 
li. Qualliy ofofntributlon to Board deHberatlons. 
iii. Strategic perspectives w inputs regarding future growth of Company and its performance. 
iv. Provldlng perspectives and feed back golng beyond Information provided by the management. 
v. Commitment tosharehdderand other stakeholder Interests. 

The evaluation Invdves Self-Evaluation by the Board Member and subsequently assessment by the Board of Directors. A 
memberofthe Board wlll not participate In the discussion of his/ herevaluation. 

Remuner;ltlon Policy: 

The Nornination and Remuneration Committee has laid down the critetia for determining qualifications, positive attributes 
and independence of a person proposed to be appointed as a director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating ta the 
remunemtlon forthe directors, key managerial personnel and other employees. 

This policy ensures that- 
(a) the level and composition of remuneration Is reamnabre and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors of 

the quality required to run the company successfully; 
(b) relationship of remuneration to performance is dear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and 
(c) remuneration to directors, key managerlal personnel and senior management involves a balance between fmed 

and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance ob jechs appropriate to the W i n g  of the 
company and its goals. 

The remuneration policy of the Company isdirected towards rewarding performance based on review of achievements on a 
periodic basis and is inconsonance with the existing industry practice. 

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee consists of the following Directors. 
Director Categwy 

Non-Executive- Independent 

Non-Executive - Independent 

Non-Executive - Independent 

Non-Executive - Independent 

Name of Director 

Mr. Arvlnd R. Doahi 

Mr. Priyam S. Jhaveri 

Mr. D.M. Shah(Upto t91112018) 

Mr. Pradeep N Desal (w.9.f. 19M 1201 8) 

41 

Nature of membership 

Chalrman 

Member 

Member 

Member 



change in mmpslbn of ~ornin&m and Remuneration Committee: 
I 

There was a change in the com+sition of the Committee as a -It of resignation tendered by Mr. D.M. Shah fmm the 
Directorship of the Board d t h s  Company. In orderto fulfill the composition requirements dthe Committee Mr. Pradeep N. 
Desal, Independent ~lrector of+ Company was appointed as the member of the Committee In tha Board MWng held on 
3gth January, 201 8, 

Attendance record d the Members: 

The NRC met 3 (three) h e s  during the year.The attendance record of each member of the Nomlnetlon & Rernuneratfon 
Cammittee at me Meeting held on 20th April, 204 7,13th September, 201 7 & f 9th January, 2018 are as follows : 

Mr. Priyam S. J h a M  I 
29th April MOB I Non-EmUtivs~ lndepndem 

Date of 
Appointment 

Non-Executive Independent 

29th April 2008 Non-Executiv e- Independent 

29th April 2008 

Numbers of 
Meetings 

Non-Executive - Independent 

The Company pays remuneratidn by way of salaw, allowances and perqulsltes, performance allowance etc. to #e 
Chairman 8. Mana~ing Diredor and Company Semm on mmendat ion of the Nomination & Remunemtlon 
CMnmlttee as approwd by the Board of D M o r s  and sharebktera of the Company subject to approval of the Central 
Government if necessary. Each Non-Exewtive D i M r  is paid per meeting attended a slthing fee of RB. 5,0001- for Board 
Meeting and Rs. 3,0001-fw Committee Mee?lng. 

DetaHs of remuneration offhe Dlrechs during Financial Yesr 2017-1 8: 

Name of the D b c b r  Fired Salary 

Baoe Benefits Total f h d  
salary salary 

Mr. Asit D. Javerl r) 34,15,000 23,90,50(1 58,05,50U 

Mr. Abhishek A. ~aveti (*I 30,00,0M 23,50,000 53,SO,MKl 

Smt Seema k Javerlr) 14,10,000 7,U,700 21 $7,700 

[ ~ r .  D.M. Shah 

Mr. h i d  R. Doshi 

Mr. Priyam S. Jhavd 

i 

Mr. Pradeep N. Oesal 

Total 

v)They are not eligible for sittiig fees. 

! 

78,25,000 54,98,200 1,33,23,200 77,61,927 1,44,00,000 3,54,85,127 
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M 
Service Contracts: 

In acmrdanca with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 our shareholders approve the salary, benefits of 
Executive Directors. We enter Into service contracts with each of our Directors containing the terms and conditions of 
employment including salary, pefformance bonus and other benefits including perks to be received by the Executive 
Directors. 

Notice Period: 

The terms of our employment amnpementswith Shri . Asit D. Javeri ,Shri. AbhishekAsit Javeri and SmL Seema Asit Javeri 
provide for upto SIX months'notice period. 

I t .  GENERALBODY MEETING: 

(A) Details of the last threeAnnual General Meetings: 

*(I) Replaced existing Article of Association with new set ofArticl8 of Association pursuant to Section $4 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

(2) Re-appointment of Shri A.D. Javeri as Chairman & Managlng Director 
(3)Appointment of Srnt. Seema A. Javeri as Executive Director-Adminlstrat[on 
(4) MdificationorAmendmentor Clarifications, ilany, Clause49 of Listing Agreement. ** Increase in brmwing powers ofthe Board of Directors 

(B) Extra-Ordinary General Meetings: 
During the yearthe Company held One Extra Ordinary General Meeting on 22nd May, 2017. 

No. of Special 
Resolu tlons 

passed 

4' 

Nil 

1" 

1. Special Resolution for reclassification of Authorised Share Capital and consequent Alteration of the memorandum of 
Association. 

2. Special Resolution approving ESOS 201 7 for employees ofthe Company. 
3. Special Resolution for issueof shares under ESOS Scheme to employees of Holding and Subsidiary. 
4. Approve for appointment of Mr.AbhishekAsit Javeri as Executive Director& CFO and his remuneration thereon. 
5. Approval of issue of Sweat Equity Shares to Mr.AbhishekAsitJaveri. 

AGM for 
tho EY 
ended 

2014-15 

2015-16 

2016-17 

(C) During the year, the members have approved I ratified the following Special Resolutions by way of Postal Ballot 
effective 12th February, 2018:- 

1. To approve the Change of name of the Company. 

Date 

11.08.2015 

12.08.20 16 

02.08.2027 

Venue 

Sheth Hirachand Gumanji Trust Hall 
Hira Baug, 151 Floor, Kasturba Chowk (C.P. 
Tank) Mumbal - 400004 

Sheth Hirahand Gumanji Trust Hall 

Hira Baug, 151 Floor, Kastutba Chowk (C.P. 
Tank) Mumbal -400004 

Sheth Hlrachand Gumanji Trust HaI, Hira 
Beug, 151 Floor, Kasturba Chowk (C.P. Tank) 
Mumbai - 400004 

2. To consider and approve Related Party Transaction for acquisition of Business of Spidlgo Net Private Limited. 

Time 

3.00 
p.m. 

3.00 
p.m. 

3.00 
p.m. 

3. To considerandapprove Related Party Transaction for acquisition of shares of StrixWireless Systems Priiate Limited. 

4. Approval of giving loans1 guarantees or providing securities a d o r  making investments in terms of provisions of 
Section 186ofthe Companies Act, 201 3. 
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The Company successfully completed the process of obtaining approval of its shareholders far special resolutions on the 
L m s  detailed above through a postal ballot. 

Mls Makarand Joshi & Company, Company Secretaries, was appointed as the scrutinizerforcarrying out the postal ballot 
process In a fair and transparent manner. 

Procedurefor Postal Batlot: 

In cornptianee with Sectlons I08 and 110 and other apptlcable provlslons of the CompanIesAct, 2013, read with the related 
~ules,the Company provides electronic voting (e-voting) facility to all its members. The Company engages the services of 
NSDLfor the purpose of providing e-voting facilltyto all Its members. The members have the option to vote either by physical 
ballotor through 6-voting. 

The Company dispatches the postal balm nukes and forms along with postage prepaid business reply envelopes to its 
members whose names appearon the registerof members1 list of beneflclariesas on a cut-offdate.The postal balbt notice 
is sent to members in electronic form to me ernail addresses registered wlth fheir depository participants (in case of 
Jectmnb shareholding) I the Companfs registrar and share transfer agents (in case of physical shareholdlng). The 
Company also publishes a notice In the newspaper declaring the details of completion of dispatch and other requirements 
as mandated underttteAct and applicable Rules. 

Voting rights are reckoned on the pald-up value of the shares registered In the names of the members as on the cut-off date. 
Members desiring to exercise their votes by physical postal ballot forms are requested to return the forms, duly complebd 
and signed, to the sautinizer on.or before the close of the voting period. Members desiring to exercise their votes by 
electronic mode are requested to vote before dose of business hours on the last date of e-voting. 

Thescrutinizer submits hb report b the Chairman, after thecompletlon of scrutiny, and Vie consoldated resultsof the voting 
by postal ballot are then announced by the Chairman I authorized officer. The results are also disptayed on the Company 
website, mhm.sncl.com besldes being communicated to the stock exchanges, deposltorj and registrar and share transfer 
agent 

The last date forthe receipt of duly mrnpleted Postal Ballot Forms or 8-votlng shall be the date on which the resolltfion would 
be deemed to haw been passed, ifapproved by the requisite majority. 

12. SUBSIDIARIES: '1 , 
I 

TheCompany does not have any material non-listed Indian subsidiary whose turnover or net worth (i-e. paid-up capht and 
free reserves) exceeds 20% of the wnsolidated turnover or net worth respectively, of the listed holding company and its 
subsldlaries in the lmmedlately preceding accounting year. 

13. DISCLOSURES : 

(a) Materially Slgnlflcanf related party transactions: The particulars of transactions beheen the Company and Its 
related parties as per the Accounting Standard -18 are set out at Note 35 in Notes to Amounts in the Annual Report. These 
transactions are not likelyto haveany wnflictwith Company'sinterest. 

(b) Management Disclosures :The Senior Management Personal have k e n  making disclosures tothe Board dating to 
all material, Rnanclal and comrnerclal transactions, where they have personal interest that may have a potential conflict with 
the interest of the Company at large. Based on the disclosures recelwd, none ufthe Senior Management Personnel has 
entered into any such transactions.during the year. 

(c) Stricturesand PenaWes: 
There were no penalties, strictures Imposed on the Company by Stock Exchange or SEBl or any statutory authority on 

any matter relating to the capital markets during the last three years. 

(d) Risk Management Framework: 
The Board of Directors has adopted the RiskAssessment Procedure. The procedure provides an approach by the top 

Management to Identify potential events that may affect the Company, to manage the risk within its risk appetite and to 
provlde reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of objectivesof the Company, The Senior Management priorities 
the risk and finalise the action plan for mlbigatlon of the key risks. 

(e) Whlstle Blower Pollcy: 

The company has a vigil mechanism and whistle blower pollcy under which it takes cognizance of mmplalnts made 
and suggestions given by the employees and others. Even anonymous complaints are looked into and whenever 



necessary, suttable corrective are taken. No employee of the Company has been denkd m s s  to the Audlt 
Committeethe policy has been on the cxrmpanfs white 

The Quarterly Results, shareholding Pattern and allother corporate wrnrnunicstionto 
the Stock Exchange are filed on QSE Usting Centre, fordismrnlnation on its websitcis. \ 

14. MEANS OF COMMUHICA ON: 
The quarterly, half yearly an i annual results for Sadhana Nitro Chem Limibed and the mnsdklated financial results for 

15. GENERALSHAREHOLDER INFORMATION: 
The current financial year of the Company is 31st March, 201 8 

its Subsidiary' Cornpi-  are 
displayed on Company's w e W  

p~blished in Engllsh in Financial Express and in Marathl in Mumbal Leksh8deep and are 
~ . m d . c o r n l .  

The mmpany hereby contlrms that it has made the payment of Annual Listing F e s  for the Rnandal Year 2037-2018 to 
BSE Limited. 

AGM : Date, time and venue 

11 '11  
D& of ~ o o k  closure m n & n  with 

DiiMend paymnt date 

Finandal Year 

Name and address of the s k k  exchan~ea where 
Company's shares am litad I 
Flnancldl hfendar 
For the year ended March 3.9,12018, resub were 
announced on 
nrst qua* 
Half year 
Th frd quarter 
Annual I 

l T ~ ~ v e ~  Resub for flnandd war 2018 -1% 
I 

June 30, 201 8 I 

September 30, 201 8 
Deamber31. 2018 I March 31,201 9 
Annual General Meeting 

Scrip Code 
I 

ISIN Number I 
I 

45* Annual General Meeting on Ilrumday, the 
30'~ugwt, 2018 at 3.00 P.M. at Sheih 
Htrcrchand GumanJl Trust Hall, Hira Baug,lm~laor, 
Kasturba Ch& (C.P. Tank), Mumbai -400004. 

24/8/2Of 8 to 301811 028 (both days Inclusive). 

Wlthln 30 clays of the A G M k  firtancia1 year 201 7-1 8. 

April 120 17- 31 March ,201 8 

The Company's Equlty shares are Ikted on BSE 
Limited. 

1 3m September, 2017 
Mrn December ,2017 
19' Janu~ry.2OlB 
30' Aprll ,2018 

2nd week of August 201 8 
2nd weak of November 2018 
2nd week of February 2019 
4th week of May 2019 
August, 21119 

506842 

INEg88Cb$Ol6 



I I 
(Source BSE Website) 

17. HIOMLOW OF M4RKET PRICE OF THC COMPANYS SHARES TRADED ON M E  BOMBAY STOCK EXCHANGE 

(BSE) UPTO3?sthtARCH,2018: 
Month 

Ap61 201 7 

May 
June 

July 
August 

Soptenher 
W b e r  
November 
December 

March I 218.75 1 218.75 1 218.75 1 26,241 1 57,40,21 3 

January 201 8 

Febnrary 

I I 1 I I 

(Source: BSE webslte) I 

I 
High 

I 

i 83.50 
69.30 

83.50 
74.95 

, 75.00 
I 79.00 
1 74.90 
I 73.25 
1108.35 

18. INVESTOR SERVICES : / 

189.30 

>218.75 

The Company has appointed Mla. Llnk lnthne India Pvt La. (LIIPL) (Formerly known as Ws. lntima Specbum Regisby 
Limited, who- address ia given below, as Ib Registrar and Transfer Agents. The Registrar handles all matters datingto the 
shams of the Company including transfer, hnwnlsslon of shares, demateriallaatlon of share certfflcates, subdlvlslon 
Iconsadidation of share cwlithtes and inwstorgrfevances. 

Low 

38.05 

50.30 
55-00 
62.00 
54.00 
61.55 
53.00 
80.05 
69.00 

LllPL having regisbred office at C- 01,247 Park, L.B.S. Mag, Wkhroll (West), Murnberl400083 are Registmrs and Share 
Transfer Agents for Physbl SRa 1 . LIIPL Is also the Depositwy interface of the Company with both PtSDL & CDSL. Thelr 
Telaphone No. 022491 80000 E-mail address: rnt helpd&@flnkintlme.ca.ln, Fax No. 022491 8000. 

I 

89.35 
188.85 

Close 

82.75 

55.90 
m.35 

73.00 

87-40 
68.85 
70.60 
80.00 

9470 

A3930 1 5,28,1W 
218.75 I 2,85,921 

No. of 
Shares 
Traded 
2,30,1 t0 
1,95,782 
2,28337 

83,744 

59,488 

1,46,481 

72,770 
52,643 

3,12,026 
7,92,89,501 
5,87,21,598 

Total 
Tumw%r 

1,26,17.566 

1,21,4 2,308 
I ,62,89,917 

5',24,249 
3,76,7507 

1,02,96,568 

47,35,850 
35,97,275 

2,86,10,192 



19. SHARETRANSFER SYSTEM: 

20. OUTSTANDING GLOBAL O POStfORY RECEIPTS OR AMERICAN DEPOSITORY RECEIPTS OR WARR9NTS F 

The Campany% &shares are padable wrnpulsMily in electronic form. The Company has established through its 
Regisimr and Sham Transfer Agents, connectlvliy with National Securltres Depositmy Ltd. (NSDL) and Cenbl Depbsbry 
Sewices (India) Ltd. (CDSL). Ason~lstMar&, 20M, 98.71 % ofthe equity shares have been d m a t e r i d i ,  

I 

22. SHARE HOLDING PA~TEIP~A~ OH 34 St MARCH, 2098 : 

No. of Shares 

Promoters I 6674257 

Other Dlrectom end their ylatives 45614 

Mutual Funds and U l l  560 

I Banks, Financial Institutions (L lnsurence Companlu 1 0.0087 I 

Pursuant to Regulation 3(1)te)(l) of Securities and Exchange Board of lndla (Substantial Acgrlsitlon of Shares &Takeovers) 
Regulations, 1997 and subsequent amendments thereto, Prwnoter Group and P e m  adng in concerl mists of 
Manekchand Pamehand Trading Invesiment Co. Private Umited and Mr. A l l  D. Javeri 8 hisfamlly. 

I 

- 

Bodies Corporate 

Indian Publk I 

NRWFareign Nationals 

Total 

23. DISTRIBUTION OFSHARE~UHWG AS ON S ? S ~  MARCH, 2018 : 
No. of Shares I Folio 1 Amount 

I 

I Number %tototal 1 l?s. % to total 

- 

172900 

2349543 

71 567 

8315149 

1.8571 

25.222B 

0.7683 

100.00 

100001 and above 

Total 

44 

4778 

01209 

f00 

751 9000 

9200830 

82.4045 

tOO 



2 4  UNCWMED DMDERD : 

have remalned unpaldl unclaimed for a p e M  of 7 years tothe 
by !h& Government T t ~ w  Company has already transferred !he 
to the IEPE No unpaU I unclaimed d i i  m a l m  b be 

bansferred to IEPF. 

25. PUNT LOCATION: 
Sadhrrna N h  Chem Umlbd, 47, IDC Industrial Area, Roha, Mst. Ralgad, Mahareshtra - 402 '1 18. Tel: Dhatav-62194- 
2838Ql-2-3, fa :(91)021M-2636 

27. CEOICFO CUmFICATIOW : 
The Company is duly placing rr m@de to the Board from the Chalrman & Managing Dlmctor md CFO. Thls H m t e  is 
b e i i  given to b Board pursuant to Regumn 17(8) of the SEBl (Lllng ObligaUons and Dlscfomm Requirements) 
F E q u ~ I i ~ ,  201 W w l t h  Sched ' le II Part B of the mid regulations. P 

Sadhana Nitro Chem Llmltyl 

Rqd. Office : Him Baug, 14 Floor, Kasturba Chowk 
(C.P Tank), Mumhi - 400 004. 
Tel : 022-23885629 

Fax :{91)22-23887235 1 
E-mall :serdhananitro@sncl.com 

Website : www.sncl.com 

The ahresaki ~ M I c a t e  duty slgn by the Chairman & Managing Dimtor and Diredor & CFO In rsspml of the financial 
perid ended 31st March, 201 8 &en placed More the Board In the meting heIdon 3Mh April. POI 8. 

Lln k lntime Ind la Pvt. Ltd (RTA) 

(Formely known as Intime Spectrum Reeghy Ltd) 
C d01,247 Park, LB.S, Marg, 
Vikhroli West, Mumbai-400 083 

Telephone No. 022491 86000 

Fax No. 022491 88060 

E-mail : mthelpdesk@tinldntime.w.in 

28. SECRETARIALAUDIT FOR #CONCL~ATION OF CAP~TAL: 
AssUpUtated by SEBl a q u a W  PWctng Company SweWy carries out Secmbrbl Audit to reconcile the total admitted 
mpital with MationralSewrHies Demltwy L l m M  (NSDL) and Ceatral Depository Services (India) Umited (CDSL) and the 
total lsaued and ISM capital. This audt Is ~~ out ~ d d h l l y  and thereon is submRtod to the Listed StOck Exchanges. 
The audit can8m that the total Listed and Paid-up Capital is in agreament with the agg- ofthe tom1 number of shares 
in demterlalised form (held wlth NSDLand CDSL) and total number ofshams in ph-l form. 

2% CODE OF CONDUCT AND CERTIFICATE ON COMPWCE THEREOF 
This Is to mnftnn that Company hak a&pM the  cod^ of Cwrduot for Directors and Smior Management d the Campany 
and is availaWe MI the* ofihb Cwnpany. 

I 
I hereby confim theth Company has obtained from all the I W e d r s  of the Board and the -lor Mmqement Personnel, 
affirmafionthat they haw m m w  p+tt~ the Go& ofCanductforthe Finmdd Year2OT7-18. 

ThbceMcal~ Is bhg given pursuantto Part D ofS&edule Vof the SEBl (Listing Obligations and Disdmure 
Requirements) Rwulatlons, 2Of 5. 

Plaoe: Mumbai 
Date: 50th April, 2018 

b i t  D. Javeri 
Chairmen & Managing D l W r  

Abhbhek A. Javeri 
Executive Dlmcbr & CFO 



I CEOICFO ~ E R ~ F I C A T E  UNDER CLAUSE 49 IX OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT I 
The Board of DIrectws. I 

Sadhana Nltro Chem Limited 

A. I have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of Sadhana Nitro Chem Limbd for the year ended 
31 st March, 201 8 and to the best of our knowledge and belief: 
(I) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 

statementsthatmlght be mlsbading: 
(ii) Vlese statements together present a hue and fair view of the oompanfs affairs and are in complianoe with 

existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

6. There ere, tothe best of my knowledge and belief, no transacttons entered into by thecompany during h e  yearwhich are 
fraudulent, illegal orviotathre ofthe company's code of conduct. 

C. We accept responsibility for establishing and rnajtalnlng internal controls for Rnanclal reporting and that we have 
evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the m p a n y  pertaining to financial reporting and have disclosed 
to the auditors and the Audit Commiitee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such Internal controls. if any, of whlch we 
are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to takeb rectifying these deflcfencbs. 

D. We have indicated tothe Auditors and the Audit Committee : 
i, slgnlficant changes in Internal control averflnanclal reporting during the year: 
ii. signiftcant changes in accounting policies made during the year and that the same have been disclosed in 

the notes to the finandal statements; and 
iii. instances of significant fraud of whlch we have become aware and the Involvement therein, if any, of the 

management or an employee having a significant role in the company's internal control system over 
financial reporting. I 

Place: Mumbai 
 ate: rn MI, r n ~  8 

Abhlshek A. Javerl 
Executive Dlrectar 8r CFO 

A& 0. Javerl 
Chairman 8 Managing Dimetor 



Management Dlseussdon and hams Report 

structure .MI ~evdopinent 
Your company is engaged in manufacture of chemical Intermediates, heavy organic chemicals and 
performance chemicals. India emerged as one of the major source for chemical intermedia= 

Oppormnitter.n- I 
Morewet, over the last year the Chinese Government has starting paying strict attention to poilutian control. On 
several ocmsionr, mmpnles in the same vertleal, those are Involved In the same product production as ywr 
company has faced several ternpbrary rurpemions. Thb has not only inoeared costs in China, but has also funher 
increased aedlMlity of your company in the inhmational markets, 

Your company is in the industry ynce last over 45 years. I t  has a very high degree of operating synergy, economies of 
scale and high quality standards. p products of your company have diverse uses and appllcatians In several 
industries ranging from paper, pharmaceutical, agro chemicals, thermal dyes, fight tabillrer, aerospace, dyes and hair 
dyes etc. Your company has good clientele base, which is well diversified over the World. 

I 
Besides, the domestic market has shown growth. 

Operational Performance 

The Companies growth considering the past few years' performance h x  been outstanding. The Company Is strlving 
for further increasing profits. The total revenue from the aperatlons for the year ended March 31,2018 esmlared to 
? 11,115 Lakhs as against? 5,949ilakhs in a previous financial year registering growth of87%. 

Market and Outlodc 
Your m p a n y  has healthy order book position. Despite continued slowdown In the Glohai economies, the demand of 
your mmpany's end products had? increased globally and are expected to do so significantly werthe coming years. 

A better p d u c t  mix, operational efficiency and stringent control on the cost have contributed towards Increasing 
pmdubkitf, production and ope$ting margins. These factors witnessed during the year are expected to continue 
going forward. 

The Company continued to focus on cost control a t  every Iwel to improve the operational efflciencywhtch alongwith 
the increased operating Iwet and lpward revision of p d u a  prices Is expected to maintain growth trend. Continuous 
aFforb are being made for dficledt energy and raw material consumption. The rate of flow of orders is enwuraging. 
Production facilities are realigned and will k expanded to meet the demand. Ywr company, barring unforeseen 
circumstances, expects to further lmprove the turnover and performance. 

I 

Risks and Concerns 

Since raw materials form an Irnpomnt component of your campany's value chain, fore$n exchange rates, mst and 
wailability of some of the key raw materials like benzene, nltric acid, a u d c  potash, sulphur based chemicals, Imn 
powder are an area of concern. 



lntwna I Control System and Th Ir Adequacy t 

Discussion on Financial Perform nce with Respect ta Operational Performance. t 
The Company's revenue from o rations has substantially increased to T 11,115 Lams as compared to the prevfous 
year OR 5,949 La khs registering rowth of 87% f 
Human Resources 

Human Resaum progmms and initiatives in SNCL are aligned to meet the buslness needs. Your campany beliem in 
investing In people to dewlop and expand their capability. The Campany has been able to create a favourable work 
eMronmem that modvates plrbrmance, customer focus and innovation INCL1s strategies are based, inter alia, 
on processes of continuous ledrnihg and improvement 

Cautionary Statement I 
Statements in the Management iscussion &Analysis Report descrlblng the Company's expectations, opinion, and 
predfctions m y  please be mnsi ered as "forward looking statements" only. Actual results could differ from those 
expressed or Implied. Company' aperatlons should be viewed In light of changes in mad@ conditions, prices of raw 
materfals, econornic developme ts In the cDuntry and such other factors, i 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30th April, 2018 

For and On Behalf of the & a d  of Directo~ 
SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED 

AS17 D.IAVERI 
CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR 
DIN: 00268124 



SMHANAWITRO CHW UMmD I 
JcC 

INFORMATION REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 134(3)(1@ OF COMPANlES ACT, 
8(3) OF COMPANIES ACCOUNTS RULES, 2014. 

stem taken for further doaversation of EUW 

The Company has & mad measures to conserve and optimise the use of energy such 
as (a) Recycling of ~ a t k r  (b) Use of Briquettes in place of Furnace Oil (c) Water harvesting. 

Imwt of the above measures: 
The measures stated above would further improve comervation of energy, reduction in 
water and air pollutioq 'reduction in cost ofproduction etc. 

During the year review there is no Capital Expenditure incurred in respect of 
cowmwtion of energy. 

FORM-A: FORM & DlSCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO 
CONSERVAnON 1 

I 

B. TECHNOLOW ~ S Q R P T I I O N  
FOW-B: FORM OF DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO 
ABSORPTION OF TECBNOLOGY 

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT 
I.  Specific areas in which RgtD carried out by the Company. The R&D efforts of the 

Company are directed towards process development, energy conservation, 
Poilution control, e y e n c y  improvement and quality upgradation. 

I 52 



BADHAHA NITRO CHEM UMIYED 

I 
w 

2. Benefits derived as a &mlt of the above R&D. 
R&D effob have resuited in development of process for several chemical 
intermediates, the comfntrcial production of which are commenced, besides 
improving quality and operating eficiency of existing products. 

3. Future Plan of Action I 
To continue R&D in tde relevant areas to acheve its benefits. 

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTIOW ADAPTATLONAND INNOVATION 
1. Efforts* in brief, made tow& technology absorptim adaptation and innovation. 

The Company , has commenced production of some items of chemical 
intermediates, fbe process for which has been developed in R&D. 

2. Benefits derived ;as a resuIt of the above effolts e.g. product improvement, cost 
reduction, product development, import substitution, atc. There is improvement in 
quality and yield of the product and has widened product range for marketing. 

3. In case of imported technology (imported during the last 5 years reckoned from 
the beginning ofthe financial year). No impotd technology during last 5 years. 

4. ExpenditureonRgtD ! 

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGEJL4RNINGS AND OUTGO 
a) Activities relating to exports, initiative taken to increase exports, development of 

new export markets for products and services and export plans. 
The Company is exporting about 76 % of its chemical intermediate production. 
The total exports during the year were P 10,200 Lakhs (PY 7 4,152 Lakhs). The 
Company is putting all its effo& to tap new export markets and widen its clientele 
base. 

b) Total Foreign Exchange used and earned (in ? ) 

(b) 

(c) 

For and On Behalf of the Board of Directors 
SADHANA NITRO CHEM LMITED 

31.03,2018 
0 

$022927 
4022927 

0.35% 

1 
Recurring 
Total 
Total alD expenditure as a % of total 

ASXT D.JAVER1 
Place: Mumbai CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR 
Date: 30th ApriI, 20 I8 DM: 00268 1 14 

53 

31.03.2017 
pp 

0 
3 125977 
3125977 

0.90% 

(i) 

(ii) 

31,033018 

1,55,88,267 
8,36,014 

8 1,09,07,629 

Used: 
a) Imports (CF) 
b) Other expenditure 
Emed: 
Exports (F.O.B.) 

3 1.03.2017 

1,72,47,249 
4,88,351 

42,35,4 1,344 





I SHARE HOLDING PATE (Equity Sham Capital Breakup as pemntage of Total Equity): i 
SADHAMA HlTRO CHEM UWTEO 

--------- 
C u n t d h  far ' + 

GWRa &AD- ---------- 
Gtaod T8Ml ~9.14~6 i 2 , & ~ 1 7 4  9Z.O(hs30 IW m.s.32~n 3,8a,a77. 9 3 . 1 ~ 1 4 ~ -  1tm (A+8+C) 

%Company hasahttd 1,14,3l~&&taqu~aharesdt 101-eachto Shrl Abhishsk A, Javert, ExecutitiveDimctor$CFOofthe&mpany, 
@ 

I 
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11. SHAREHOLDING OF PRO~OTERS: 

St. 
No. 

1. 

2. 
3. 

4.  

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

91. 
No. 

*Shares held by the WsMsnekchandPanachand Trading Investment Co. P. Ltd. were released by the pledgeeMls Jamnalal 
Sons Pvt. Urnited on 24thApril,2018. 
lil. CHANGE IN PROMOTERS' SHAREHOLDING*: 

Cumul&tivt Sharchal ding during the 
year 

% c h p  
in sharz 
holding 
during 
rbc year 
-0.7950 

4.M19 
4.0106 

1.2223 

4.0039 
- 
4.0039 

0.1171 

0.1608 

0.6395 

Sbholder's 
N m  

Manukchand 
PanachadTm. 
ding 
1 n ~ ~ r m ~ t C o . P .  
Ltd. 

Asit D. Javeri 
Molins D. 
Javcri 

AbhidwkA. 
kveri 
Sadhnna h j i v  
Jail 
Chsndrika D. 
J a w i  
Secma A. 
Jnveri 
Anuradha A. 
Iaveri 

TOTAL 

Sham holding at the end of the 

2. 

$1. 
No. 

3. 

For each of  Ihc Directors snd KMP No. o f  sham 

wr 
No. o f  Shares 

59,60,611 

3.88,759 
79.861 

1,51,419 

29.1W 

29,190 

18,327 

17.100 

66.74.694 

% of total shares 
of 
h e  Company 

Sbareholdi gat the beginning ofthe year 

At the beginning of the year 

Date wi se increa se l Decrease in 
Shmholdhg during the year 
At the End of che year 

For cach of thc Dircctonr and KMP 

At the beginning of the year 

Date wi se Increase 1 Ilecreane in 
Shimholding during the year 
At the End of he year 

Shureholding at the beginning oFthe year 

%of total 
S h a ~  of thc 
Company 

63.9884 

4.1734 
0.8552 

1.6255 

0.3134 

0.3 134 

0.1867 

0.1836 

71.65 

No. of shares 

%of Shawl 
Plzdgd 
encumbered m 
tom1 s h a r e  

59.78* 

0.00 
0.00 

-p-ppppp- 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.W 

59.78 

%of Sharcs 
PIrdgud l 
encumbered 10 
tots1 ah- 

59.78* 

0.00 
0.00 

0.W 

0.W 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

59.78 

No. o f  

Ih- I 
59.601611 1 

3,8&759 
79,661 

37,100 

29,191) 

29.190 

7,327 

2,303 

6593,938 

% of tottal shares of 
[he Company 

Shri. Asit D. J ~ v e r i  

$4 of total 
Shams of tho 
Cornpuny 

W.1834 

4.2353 
0.8658 

0.032 

0.3173 

0.3173 

0.0796 

0.0228 

71.01 

3,88,759 4.1734 3,8&759 4.2253 

No Change 

3,88,759 3.88.754 4.1734 4.1734 

No Change 

Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the 
year 

No, of sham 

Smt. 
79,661 

0.855 1 

No. of sham 

79,661 

% o f  total aharcs of 
the Company 

MolhdeviDhankumadaveri 
0.8658 

79,661 79,661 

% o f  total sham 
of 
the Company 

0.8551 

0.855 1 



SnDHANA NITRO CHEY U M E D  

I w 
I I Sharcholding at the beginning of the year I Cumulative Shareholding during the I 

I l year 
For each of the Directors And KMP I No. of  shares I O% of total shares of  I NO. of shares I % of tota 1 shares 

I 

Date wi se Incrase l h a s e  in 
Sharcholding during thc y~ 
Allotment o f  Sweat Equity shares on 
28i03/2018 
At the End of the year 

the Company 

I Sharcholding at the beginning of the year I Cumulative Shareholding during the I 

of  
the Company 

I Shd. Abhishek A Javcri 

1,14,319 

1,51,4t9 

$1. 
No. 

. . 
year 

For each of the Directors and KMP No. of shares % of total shares of No. of shares % of toal  shares 
the Company of 

CurnulaGve Shareholding during the 
ycar 

- .  
I the Company 

~ m t .  SeemAitJaveri 
At the beginning of the year 

7327 0.0796 7327 0.0796 

At the beginning o f  the y e  
I 

1.2272 

1.6255 

5, 

For each of the Directors dnd KMP No. of shares 

$1. 
No. 

Cumulative Shareh01ding during the 
year 

I I I I 

Pur&ae 3OM 0.0326 10327 
15 December, 201 7 0.1109 

37,100 

% o f  total shares 
of 
the Company 

For each of  the Directom and KMP No. of sharer 

Shareholding at the beginning ofthe year 

I I I 

Purchase 5000 0.0543 
22 December. 201 7 15327 0.1645 

0.8032 37,100 

1,51,419 

1,51,419 

At the beginning of the year 

Date wise Increase I Decrease ill 

Shareholding during the year 

At the End of the year 

Shareholding at the beginning of the year 

6. 

% of total shares 
of 
tk Company 

No, of shares 

Purchase loo0 0.0108 
29 December, 2017 $6327 0.1752 ---- 
Purchase 2000 0.02 17 18327 0.1%7 
05 Jan 2018 

0.4032 

1.6255 

1.6255 

No. of shares 

At k e  beginning of the year 

Date wise Increase I Decrease in 
Shareholding during the year 

At thc End of  tbc ycar 

X oftotal shares of  
thc Company 

Smt. Sadhma h j i v  Jain 

I I I I 

At the End of the year 0.1967 0.1 967 
18327 18327 

% of  total shares of  
the Company 

Smt. ChandrikaDhankmlirJaveri 

0.3 134 29190 

0.3 134 29,190 

0.3 173 

No Change 

0.3173 

N o  Change 

29190 

29,190 

0.3134 29 190 

0.3 134 29,190 

0.3134 

0.3 134 

29190 

29,190 



31. Shereholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the 
No. year 

For each of the Direcroft apd KMP No. of shares % of total shares of No. of sharcs % oftotal shares 

I the Company of 
. the Company 

8. I Srnt. Anuradha A Javeri 
At the beginning of the yedr 2 100 0.0228 2100 0.0228 

i'wche 5000 0.0543 7100 0.0762 
15 December, 2017 

Purchase 10000 0.1086 17100 0.1835 
22 Decembtr, 2017 

At thehdofthe year 17100 0.1835 17100 0.1835 

'The Company has allotted sweat equity shares during the year due to which there is a change in the percentage of 
to&l shares of the Company. 

iv. SHAREHOLDING PATTf RN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS (OTHER THAN DIRECTORS, PROMOTERS AND 
HOLDERS OF GDRS AND ADRS): 

S1. Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the 
No. Year 

For each of the Top 10 Shsreholders No. of shares %of total shares of No. of shares %of total ahares 
the Company o f  

the Company 
1. Yeendammi ------ 

At thc bcgnning o f  tttc year 173773 1.8887 173773 I .8887 

Sale (34,403) 0.3739 139370 1.5148 
19January2018 
Sale (5.597) 0.0608 133773 1.4539 
02 F e b w  20 18 
At the Ed of the year 133773 1.8654 333773 I .8654 

S1. Shareholding at the beginning o f  the year Cumulative Shareholding during the 
No. ycar 

For acl i  of the Top 10 Shareholdem No, of shares % of total shares of No. ofsharcs % of total shms 
the Compny of 

the Company 
2. Viwd Kumar Ofiri 

At the beginning of the year 106296 ( 1.1553 1 1062% 1 1.1553 
Date wise Increase I Decrease in Share 
hotding during the year 

No Change 

At the End of the year 106296 1 t.I41l I 1062% 1.141 1 

SI. Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the 
No. year 

For each of  the Top 10 Sham.hotden No. of shares % of total shares of No. of shares YO of tmal shares 
the Company o f  

the Compuny 
3. Nanavati Sons Pvt Ltd 

At the beginning of tbe year 90000 0.9782 9[H)DO 0.9782 
Date wise Increase I Decrease in Share 
holding during the year 

No Change 

At the End o f  the y w  90MH) I 0.9461 I 90DDO 0.966 I 



Sale I 
05 January 2018 
sale I 

19 Jan 
Sate 

I 
I 

Sl. I 
No, 

Fnr each of tbe Top ID S h m b I d e a  

I 
5. 1 I 

At the beginning of thc ycar 

ycar 
No. of shams % o f  total dwm of  No. o f  sham % of totat s h m  

die -VY of 
the Company 

Sang& s 
9849 1 I .Of 05 I 98491 I 1.0705 

t I I I 

' Shmhldmg a tbe beginning of the year 1 Cumulniive Skamholding during tho I 
Y-'' 

No. of s l u m  X o f l o t a l h m o f  No.rrfsharm %oftotdshm 
C ~ n y  of 

thc Compmy 
Kc&nCbbMalShdh 

Shareholding at the hgimhg of the year I Cumulative Sharcholcling d q  the 1 

Sbnreboldb at the beghabg of the yeat 1 bnuhtive Slweholdhg during tha 1 
Yew 

No. of shm % ofma1 sham of No. ofsRares %of tot%[ aharea 
Company of  

&a Company 
Harsh Amir Mehta 

33000 6.3587 33000 0.35g7 
I I I 

Dele wise I~ICW I No Chmga 

Atthefindoflheym I 33000 0.3M3 33000 0.3549 



NO&:   he Cornperny has allotted &at equity shares during the year due to which there is a change in the preentap  of total 
shares of the Company. 
v. SHAREHOLDIMG OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

S1. 
No. 

Curda~ive  M o l d i n g  d a  the 
rn 

For each ofthe Top 10 S ~ t d ~ r s  No. ofskuw 

Shareholding at the beginning of the yeat 

10. 

% of total s h m s  
of 
the COmPaay 

No. ofsham 

8L 
No. 

Cumulative Sharoholding during th .  
Year 

At the beginning of the year i 
Date w k  IacreaseI D s c m  in 
Sharsholding during thc y+ 

I 
AttheEndoftheyear I 

% of total s h e s  of 
the ComparLy 

For cach ofthe Dirocbrs add KMF Mo.ofaharas 

Shareholding at the beginning of Ibeycnr 

0.2940 

Nitin RamaWwBFa Jarri 

SM. Asit D. hwcri 
38m59 I 4.2253 1 3E8759 4.1734 

No C m s  

1 388759 4.1 734 

1. 

%oftotal sham 
of 
the C o m a w  

No. of uharo~ 

27392 1 0.2977 

I 
At the b e g i m  of fhe Y"T 
DutuWim~ 1- I in Shaw 
hol&"g during the 4- tht 
masons fox Immsc 1 dc -e (o.5 
allormmt / mfa I bonus sweat 
muity ex) -- 

%oftotalsWof 
thu Company 

27392 

No change 

0,2940 27392 2h92  O W  



S1. I Sharehnlding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the 
No. ycar 

For each of the Directom and KMP No. o f  shams % o f  total sharcs of No. of shares %of tom1 shares 

I the Company of 
the Company 

2. Shri. Abhishsk A Javeri 
At thc beginning of the yeat 37 100 0.4032 37100 0.4032 

I 
Allotrmnt of Sweat Equity h a s  on 
28/03/2018 / 1,14,319 1.2272 1,51,419 1.6255 

At Lhe End of tbc year 1.51.4t9 1.6255 1,51A19 1.6255 

Sl . Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding 
No. of the year during the year 

For each of the Directors No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of total 
and KMP shares of the shares of 

Company the Company 
3. Smt. SeemaAsitJaveri 

At the beginning of the year 7327 0.0796 7327 0.0796 

Purchase 3000 0.0326 10327 
15 December, 201 7 

0.1 109 

Purchase 5000 0.0543 
22 December, 20 1 7 15327 0.1645 

Purchase 1000 0.0108 
29 December, 20 17 16327 0.1752 

Purchase 2000 0.0217 18327 0.1967 
05 Jan 2018 
At the End of the year 18327 0.1967 18327 0.1967 

S1. SharehoHhg at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding 
No. of the year during the year 

For each of the Top 10 No. of share. % of total No. of shares % of total 
Shareholders shams of the shares of 

Company the Company 
4. NitinRameshchandra Jani 

At the beginning of the year 27392 0.2977 27392 0.2940 

Date wise Increase / Decrease 
in Share holding during the No change 
year 
At the End of the year 27392 1 0.2940 1 27392 1 0.2940 

S1. Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding 
No. of the year during tbe year 

For each of the Top 10 No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of total 
Shareholders shares of the sham of  

Company the Company 
5. Arvind RaojiDoshi 

At the beginning of t@e year 12498 0.1358 12498 0.1358 

Date wise Increase / Decrease 
in Share holding during the 
year 
At the End of the year 12498 1 I 12498 I 
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Jcr 

S1. 
No. 

Shareholding rat the beginning 
of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

For each of the Top 10 
Shareholders 

No. of shares % of total 
shares of 
the Company 

No.ofshares 

6. 

S1. 
No. 

7. 

S1. 
No. 

8. 

*SMDhMra  

%oftotal 
shares of the 
Company 

I 
At the beghhg of 

Date wise Increase I yecrease 
in Shm holding f i g  the 
year I 
At the End of the y& 

For each of the Top 10 
Shareholders 

At the beginning oft e year I 
Purchase 

At the End of the year 

For each of the Top 10 
Shareholders 

I 
At the beginning of the year 

Date wise Increase / Decrease 
in Share holding d h g  the 
year 
At the End of the year 

M. Shahhasresignedfrom 

0.0011 

PradeepNanasaheb 

IBO 

Desai 

No Change 

0.001 1 100 

100 I 0.0011 100 0.0011 

Shareholding at the begiming 
of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

No. of shares No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 
Company 

% of total 
s h e s  of 
the Company 

0.001 1 

0.002 15 

0.002 15 

P r i m  
100 

100 
200 

Shetntilal hveri  
0.0011 

0.0011 
0.00215 

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year 

100 

200 
200 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

No. of shares No. of shares % of totd 
shares of the 
Company 

Dhirendra 
5000 

% of total 
&ares of 
the Campm 

M. Shah* 

No C b g e  

0.0543 0.0543 5000 

5000 1 0.0537 5000 
IkeDireefo~hipofthe Board wIlk @ect f ~ m  l p J ~ l t l l # ~  2018 

0.0537 



~ ~ C H ~ U l Y l l T E D  

- 
Indebtedness at the 
beginning of the financial 
Y- 
Principal amount 
Interest due but not paid 
Interest m a d  but not due 

w 
Secured Loan Unsecured 1 nter Corporate 
excluding deposits Loans Deposits 

14,33,68,52 1 - 
Total(i+iI+Lfl) 

Changes in Indebtedness 
during the flnandd Year 
Addition 
(Reduction) 

Net Change 1 
Indebtednew at the end oe 
the financial year 
i) PrhcipP amolmt 
ii) Interest due but not paid . . . 1u)Intemt accrued but not 
due I 

Toht (i + ii t iii) 1 
I 

Total 
Indebtedness 

27,29,03,769 

- 
27,29,03,769 

- 

6,65,09,475) 
6,65,09,479 

27.29.03.768 - 
33,94,13,248 

- 
14,33,6&,521 

,, 

2,28,74.103 
%28,74,103 

14,33,68,%2 1 - 
- 
19,62,42,624 

rii REMUNERATION OF DIRHTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL -ONNEE: 
I 

14,90,073 

- 

( 24  1,925) 
:2,41$25) 

14,90,073 - 
- 
12,88,148 

A. 

Sr. 
< No 

1. 

2 

3 
4 

5 

12,80,45,175 

- 

1,3 8,77,30 I 
1,38,77,301 

12,90,45,175 
- 
- 
14,19,2&476 

DXRECTOW MANAGER: 

Total Amount 

Shri. 
AbMsheH 
averi 

50,23,176 

REMUNERATION TO MAN;AGWG D-OR I WHOLE TIME 
ParticuIars ofbmunebtion 

Grosssalsry 
(a) Salary as per pr I , visions contahed in 

section 17(1) of @e lncome -tax Act,1961 
@) Value of prqd W u/s 170) income - 

tax AcG1961 t 
(c) Profits in lieu of paIary under section 

17(3) Income -t@x Act,1961 
Stockoption 

SweatEquity 
Comm~sslon I 

- as % ofprafit 

- 0th- specify - 
Others 

TOM@) 

$hi. Asit 
D. Javeri 
CMD 

52,19,494 

-- 
- 

- 
- 
- 
52,19,494 

(GuaranteeComaolishn) 

Smt. Seema 
A. Javeri 
ED-Ahin. 

13,50,000 

- 
- 

- 
- 
-- 
13,50,000 

Overall Ceiling as per the Act 



board / commitas 

a d  I committm3 

C. 

64 

51. 
No. 

1 

2 
3 

TOKlYrPOTAeRT MU- 

Key Managerial Personnel Particulars of 
Remuneration 

Cross salary I 
(a) Salary per I 
provisiom contained in 
section 17(1) of the 
Income-tax Act, 1 961 
@) Value of perqulshs 
d s  
17(2) Income 
1961 *-+* 
(c)  Profits in lieu of I 

salary under section 
1713) Income tax Acb 
1961 
Stack Option I 
Sw& Equity I 

Total CEO 

- 
- 

- 

- 

* 

- 
* 

- 

* 

- 

4 

5 

Company 
Se- 
Nitin R. Jani 
49,82,QOO - 

- 

- 

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

49.82,OOO 

Commission 
- as O h  of profit 

- others, specify 

Others, please 

specify 

Total 

CFO 

AbhishskSaveri 

- 

- 

- 

- 
- 
- 
- 



I Companies I 

VIl. PENALTIES /PUNISHMENT /COMPOUNDMG OF OFFENCES 
I 

I Description 1 Penalty / 

1 Punishmenf/ 1 COURT] 

Authority TYPe Appeal made, 
if any 

Section 05 

I 

Act I 

(give DetaiIs) 

Compounding 

fees imposed 

Brief 

A. COMPANY 

Details of 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

For and On Behalf of the Board of Directors 
SADHANA NITRO CKEM LIMITED 

B. DIRECTORS 

Penalty 

Punishment 

Compounding 

I ASIT DJAVERI 
CHAIRMAN AND MANAGINGDIRECTOR 
DM: 00268 1 i4 
Address: Ratnagar Palace 37 ChowpattySeaface 
Mu~nbai 400007 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

Penalty 

Punishment 

Compounding 

NIL 

NTL 

NIL 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30th April, 20 18 

NiL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 
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Punishment 
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NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 
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NIL 

NIL 
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SADHAM FmKU CHEM L IMED 

e 
ANNEXURE XX 

Particulars of Employee 

A) The particulars of ernploye+s, who were in receipt of remuneration not less than Rs. 60 lacs for the 
financial year ended on 31 st hfarch, 201 8, are given below : 
Name of the Employee I Mr. Asit D. Javeri - - 
Designation of Employee Chairman & Managing Director - . . 

Remumnatlon received I ? 70,00,750 

Nature of Employment Contractual 
Date of Commencement of Employment 22-01-1 985 

QualfRcation of the Employee B.Sc. (Hon.) 
Experience of the Employee 33 Years 

Age of the Employee 62 Years 

Last Employment Bee Chemical Pvt. Ltd. 

Mr. Asit D. Javeii is related to,Mrs. Seema A. Javeri & Mr, Abhishek A. Javeri, Director of the Company. 

8) Disclosure under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 201 3read with Rule 5 of Companies 
(Appointment & Remuneration) Rules, 20 14 

1. The percenbge increase in remuneration of Be executive Director's , Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary 
during the financial year 2017 - 18, the ratio of remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the 
employees of the Company for the h c i a l  year and the comparison of remuneration of each Key 
Managerial personnel (KMP) against the performance of the Company is a s  under: 

U. The median remuneration of empbyees during the financial year was P 3,01J48. 
111. There were199 permanent kmployees on the rolls of the Company as on 3 I* March 2018. 
IV, In the financial year there $as an increase of 23.60% in the median remuneration. 
V. Average increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the financial y w  201 7-1 8 

was 28.66% and average in- in the managerial remuneration w.r.t the managerial personnel for the financial 
year 2017-18 was 24.18%. 

VI. It i s  hereby affirmed tkat the remuneration is paid as per the remuneration policy of the company. 

VII. List of top I0 employees in terms of remuneration dram 
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Cornparis 
on of the 
remuneration 
against the 
performance of 
the company 

f 131% 
increase 

in 
EBIDTA 

of Company 

Ratio of 
remuneration of 
Director 
to median 
remuneraHon of 
emphyees 

23.27 

8.83 

37.91 

20.09 

f;; 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

Remuneration 
for ~ y ,  2017-1 8 
e n  

70,00,750 

26,61,200 

1,14,23,177 

60,54,575 

% 1nc"ase 
in the 
remuneration 
for 
financial 
year 2017 - 18 

2 1.34 % 

52.81 YO 

127.40 % 

14.75 % 

Name 

Asit D. J a v 4  

Seema A. Javeri 

Abhishek A. Iaveri 

Mitin R. Jani 

De&lgnatlon 

*Managing 
Director 

Wholetime 
Director 

Exe. Director 
CFO 

C O ~ P Y  
Secretary 



None of the Employee is relalives of Directors or Manager or W. All Employees we Permanent. 



SADHANA HrmO CHEM U M E D  

I 

RESOURCES 
i 

Capital 

Reserve 

Revenue from operations:- I I I 1 I I 

UTlLlSATlON OF RESOURCES 

Flxad As- 

Less:Deprwiation 

Net Faced Assets 

lnvestmmh 

Net Current Assets 

TOTAL 

Sales of Products 10789.92 5745.49 3450.05 4779.86 3202.23 

other operative revanue 302.51 155.04 57-60 25.17 64.05 

Other income 22.33 48.10 16.21 35.76 99.72 

2017-18 

931.51 

3673.55 

4605.06 

State Govt.Sales Tax Incentives 0 

Other 3orrwvings 1490.74 

TOTAL 6095.80 

12458.20 

7462.08 

4995.22 

7.78 

1092.8 

g095.80 

201517 

920.08 

159.18 

1079.26 

f 1871 .%6 

7303.23 

4568.43 

7.71 

61.34 

4637.48 

201 5-1 6 

1880.08 

(1158.73) ----- 
723.35 

10921.87 

711j.02 

381 0.85 

7.71 

283.21 

4101 -77 

6.54 12.48 

3551.68 3365.94 

4637.48 4101.77 

2014-1 5 

f 880.08 

(672.31) 

203 3-1 4 

1095.08 

(7 069.30) 

f 207.77 

10908.81 

691 0.63 

3998.1 8 

8.80 

(75.77) 

3931.21 

25.78 

14.90 

2708.64 

3931.21 

10115.31 

6691.48 

3423.83 

15.72 

(631 .I 6) 

2808.39 

14.90 

2767.71 

2808.39 



SADHAWHrmO CHEH UMITEU 

I AUDtTOR'S REPORT I 

ImplemWon and maintenance o f ~ ~ u a t e  internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
aeatracy and m p W m  of the h u n t i n g  records, relevant to the prepamtian and prasentatlwr ofthe standalone Ind 
AS financial statements hat give a & and falrvlew and are free from material misstatement, whether due b f r d  or error. 

AudiWs Responslblllty 
Our msponsibiW is 19 express an oplopln on thesa stadaha Ind AS financis1 statements based on wr audlt. We have 

taken into m u n t  the provisbns qthe Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters whkh are mquimd to b 
included in the audit report under Ule pmvrsions of the A d  and the W e s  made them under. 

We conducted our audY of the,standalone tnd AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on AudPlng 
spechd under Seetion 1 &!(lo) of the Act Thaw Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
wrform the audii to obtain masonable assurance about w M h r  tha standalone Ind AS financial staiements ate free from 
material rnisstat8ment.L 

An audit Involves performing &urns to obtain audit evldenorr about the amounts and the d l s ~ m  In the standalone 
fnd AS flnanelal statements. The procedumss&cted depend on the audltohjudgment. Including the assessment of the risks 
of mterial m%atemed of the standdone Ind AS financlal statements, whether due to fraud or error. In maklng those risk 
sss#smsnb, the audltor considers t m a l  h n c i a l  control relevant to the Company's prepamtian of Ute standalone lnd AS 
financial shbments that ghe a h e  and fair view in order to cieskgn audit procedures that areappmpdate In the dm matances. 
An a& also includes evaluating the appropriateness of ttw acoounting polldes used and the reasonableness of the 
aeeounthg Wmates made by the C b r n w s  Directws, as well as evaluetlng the werag pmntatton of the stancttdwre lnd AS 
finandal statement$. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficimi and appropdata to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 
the standalone IndAS financtal sbtemnts. 

I 
Opinion 

In our Opinion end to the best of wr information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
s t a n d a h  tnd AS financial statemehts glve the lnforinatlon mqulred by the Act h thm manner so required and give a bum and 
hlt vlew in conformity with the amounting principles gmmally accepted In Indla including the Ind AS, of the state of 
alhirs(fkraneia1 podbn)  of the Company as at 31* March, 2018, and its @t(Rnancisl performanee Muding ather 
comprehensive Inme),  its cash fl sand lhe changes in equity for the year ended on that &ten 

Other Matters 7 
The c o m p m h  Anandal Infomatioft of the Company for the year ended 31' March 20f 7 and the transltbn date opening 

balanoe sheet as st j* April 2016 i ucled in them standalone financial statements, are based on the pmbusty Issued 
staiubryfinancial statements pmpar, c In accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2000 audited by the 
pred-r auditor whme reportfc+the year ended 3lUMareh 2017 and 31" March 2018 M d  %April 20t7 and fl May 
201 6 respectively w p m d  u n m o w  opinion on #lose standakm flmnndl statements, as adjusted fw the dfffafwces in 
the acmunting principles adopted by the Company an transition to the Ind AS, whlch have been audid by us. 
Our opinion is not modltied Ln mqmctbftthls matter. 

Reporton Other Lmgaland R*guldory Reqdrenunb 
1. &required by the Cwnpanhs (puditofs Repwt) Order, 2015 (me Order) Wed by the Central Govmment in terns of 

Section 143(11) of theAct, we give in "AnnexuteA' a shternmt on the matt- speciw In patagraphs 3 and 4of the Order. 
2. As requind by Section 143(3) offhe Act, wereportthat 

a) We have sought and obtalped all the Infmrtatlon and explanations whlch to the best of our knowldw and bellefwerer 
mmssaryforthepurposesofouraudct. 

b) In cw anion, proper books of amount as required by taw have been kept by !he Company so far as It appears from 
our examination of those +oks. 

c) The BalanceSbt, the Statement of Proflt and Loss, the Cash flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity 
W t M h  by thkReportsre bagreementwiththefmhofaooount. 
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d) In our opinbn, the aforessid standalone lnd AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards prescribed under section 133 of thekt  read with relevant rules issued thereunder. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received fmm the directors as on 3tst March, 2018 taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disquaflfied as on 3lst March, 2018 from 
belng appointed as a director in terms of Section lW(2)of theact. 

f) W~th respecl to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
"Annexure B"; and 

g) With respect to the other matters to be Included in the Audltofs Report in accordance with Rule I1 of 
the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best af our information and 
acmrdlng to the explanations glven to us: 

F. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending Iftigations on its financial posltion in its 
standalone Ind AS financial statements- Refer Note 32 to the standalone lnd AS financial statements: 

if. The Company did not l ave  any long term contracts including derivativecontractsfor which there were any 
material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There has been no defay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Campany. 

For Chandrashekar lyer & Ca 
Chartered Aeeountants 
Firm Registration No: 114260W 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: April 30,2018 

Chandrashekhar lyer 
Partner 
Membership NoA7723 



1 ANNMURE "An TO AUDITORS' REPORT 

The knnexure refermi to in indepe nt auditors report to the members of the Company on the standalone IND AS financial 
Stsbaments of Sadhana Nltro C h m  mited forthe year ended 31 st March 201 8.We report that : 
i) a) The wrnpany has generally maintained proper records, showing full particulars indudlng quantitative details and 
shatlon pf property, plant and equl mertt. 

b) property, plant and qulpms r have been physicaly verHied by the Managemnt durlng the p a r  based on a phased 
programme of verifying all the a ets over three years, whieh in our opinton Is reasmable having regard to the 
size of the company and the natu rr of Its property, dant and equipment. The discrepancies noticed on such verification 
were not material and have been properly dealtwrth in the boob ofaccount. 

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examlnatlon of the r e d s  of the 
Company. thetiedeeds of immwahle properties are held in the name of the Company. 

ii) The Management has conducted physicat voflcab)on of Inventory at reasonable Intervals and no material 
discrepaneieswere noticed on physical verfffcabion. 

iii) The Company ha9 granted loan to a Company covered in the register rnalntalned under section 189 of 
the Companies Act, 201 3(%eActm). 

a) In our opinion , the rate of interest and other terms and condition on which the loan had been granted to 
the company listed in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act was not . prima facie , 
prejudicial to the interest of the Company. 

b) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest Is not stipulated and In absence of such a 
schedule , we are unable to cpmmont on the regularity of the repayments or receipts of princlpal amounts 
and interest 

c) Thm are no overdue atpounts in respect of the ban granted to a company owered in the register 
maintained under Section 189 of t h e h .  
Iv) In our opinlon and awording to the Infomatian and explanations given to us, the Company has cornplied 
wlth the provisions of &on 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and Investments made. The 
Company has not provided any guarantees I security. 
v) The Company has not accepted any depositsfmm the publk. 
v3) The maintenance of cast kwrds has been spmlfM by the Central Government under seetion 148(1) of 
the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed thm cost records maintained by the Company 
pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended preswlbed by the Central 
Govemmerrt under su-n (?)'of Section 148 of the Cornpanles Act, 2013, and are of !he opinion that, prima We, 
the prescribed cost r e d s  have been made and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examinadion of the 
cost r e d s  wlth a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete. 
vit) According to the information and expknations given to us, In respect of statubiydw: 

a) There were delays by the Company in deposklng undisputed statutory dues, lndudlng Prwident Fund, 
Employees' State Insurance, Incometax, Sales Tax, SEN~C~T~X, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, cess 
and other materlal staMorydues applicable to it to the appropriate authorltles. 

b) There were no undisputd amounts payable in resped of Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, 
Incornetax, Sales Tax, Senrlq Tax, Customs Dub, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax. cess and other material 
statutorydues In arrears as at March31,2018 for a period of more than six monthsirom the date they became payable. 

c) Acmdlng to the informationland explanations given to us, there are no dues of himme tax, sabs-tax,sedce tax, 
wstoms duty and cess which have nbt been deposited on amount of any dispute exmpt as given b e h  

I 
I I I I I I I 

Name of Statue 

Maharashtra Value 
Added fax Ad 

vlil) In our opinion and accomling b the informatfon and explanations glven to us, the Company has not defaulted in 
tho repayment of loans or borrowings to financial instiWns, banks or government. The Company did not have any 
bormwingsdurlng theyear by way of debentures. 
ix) According to the infomatiorl and explanations given to us , the Company has not raised any money by way of 
public issue or further public offer Qndudkg debt instruments) during the year. The term loans raised by the company 
have been applied forthepurposeforwlIlch they were raised. 

l n m e  Tax Act 

"lo 

~aharashd Value 
Added Tax Ad 

Income Tax I 

Forum where 
dispute is pending 

Maharashh Vatue 
Added Tax Tribunal 

Commissioner of 
Income Tax - 
Apwls, Mumbal 

period to which h e  
amount M r  

AY :2012-I3 

kY : 2014-1 5 

Amount 
involved (Rs) 

12,48,4391- 

Amount 
Psnding (I%) 

6,9851391- 

55,1801- 55,1801- 



to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its offlcers or 

x i )  According to the Information a b  explanations glve to us and based on our examination of the records of the Cornpaw 
the Company has provided for managerial remuneration In accordance with the requisite approvals 
marsdated by the prwisions ofsection 197 read wlth SeheduleVto the Companks Act. 

xit) In wr opinion and awrding to the information and explanations glwn to us, the Company is not a MMhl 
company.Accordingly. paragraph 3(kil) off he Order is not applicable. 

I 
xil) A c d i n g  to h e  infarmatlo" and explanations given to us and based on our examlnatbn of the recards of 
the CMnpany. trstaiactiotts with the related me9 are h cornplknce with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where 
applkble and details of such tranyctions have been dhclosed in the standalme Ind AS financial statements as required 
by the appl lMe  accwnthg standards. 

I 

xv) Accrrrdhg ! o h  information and exptanerDionsgWn to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, 
the Company has riot entered Into non-cash transactions with directws or parsone connected with them. Acxxrrdingly, 
paragraph 3(w) ofthe Order is notapplicabh 

xvt)   he company is nut required 6 be registered under section 45-IAof the Raerve Bankdlnck Act 1934. 

Place: Mumbai 
Data: AprlI 30,2018 

For Chandmfrekar tyer & Co 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 11 426OW 

Chanclrashekhar lyer 
Partner 
Membership No.47723 



1 ANNEXURE "B" TO AUDITORS REPORT 

Referred to in paragraph 2(9 of wr Aportof even date 

Report on the Internal Financial Controlsunder Clause (I) of Sub-section 3 of Section 443of the Companies Act, 2013 ("theAciu) 

1. We have audited the internal financial controls over financial raporting of Sadhana N h  Chem Limlted(She Company ") 
as of March 31,2018 In conjunction with our audR of the standalone IND AS financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended an that date. 

Management% Responsibility for lntemal Financial Controls 
2. The Cornpanfs management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal Rnancial controls basd on the 
internal control over financial reporting crlteria established by the Company considering the essential components of lntemal 
control stated in the Guidanca Noteon Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Rnancial Repotling (Guidance Note) issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities indude the deslgn, lrnplementatlon and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls thatwere operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and effident conduct 
of Its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of fts assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of tho accounting r e d s .  and the timely preparation of reliable flnanclal 
information. as required underthe Companles Act, 201 3. 
Auditors' Responsibility 
3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our 
audk. We conducted our audit In accordance with the Guidance Note on AudR of Internal Flnandal Controls over Financial 
Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by lCAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 
143(f 0) ofthe CompaniesAct, 2013, totheextent applicable toanaudit ofinternal financial controls, both applicable toan audlt 
of Internal Financial Controls and, bobh Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethlcal requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such contmlsopemted effectively inat material respects. 
4. Our audil involves performing procedures to obtain audlt evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audlt of internal financial controls over financial repMting 
included obtaining an understanding of lntemal Rnancial wntrols over financial reporting, assessing the rlsk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluatiw the design end opemting effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the ffnandal statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
5. We twlleve that the audR evldenm we have obtained is sufhcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit oplnion on 
the Company's intemal financial controlssystem overfinanclal repoltlng. 

Meanlng of InCmal Flnanclal Controlsaver Financial Reporting 
6. A company's lntemal financial control over financial reporting is a process deslgned to prwlde reasonable assuranoe 
regarding the reliability of financial,reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting prindples. A company's lntemal financial control over flnancial reporting indudes those 
policies and proceduresthat (I] pertain to the maintananceof records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions oftheassets of the company; (2) provlde reasonable assurancethat transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of Rnancial statements in accwdance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
recelpts and expenditures of the company are Mng made only in amdance wit4 authorisations of management and drrectors 
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthotised acquislion, 
use, or disposition of the mmpanl(s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
Inherent Limitatlonsof Internal Flnanclal Controls over Flnancial Reporting 
7. Because oftfie Inherent limltatlonsof Internal Rnandal controls wer financial reporting, lncludkg the possibility of Collusion 
or improper management override of controls, material mlsstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. 
Also, projections of any evaluation of the lnternal financial controls over financial reporting to future perlods are subject to the 
risk that the lnternalfinancial mtrd overfinancial reporting may become Inadequate because of changes in conditions, orthat 
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
Opinion 
8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2018, based 
on the internal control over finandal reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lntemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
lnstltute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For Chandrashekar lyer 8 Co 
Chattered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 114260W 
Chandrashekhar lyer 

Place: Mumbai Partner 
Date: April 30,2058 Membership No.47723 
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FOP Cbndrashekar lycr & Co 
Chartered a u n g n u  
Hrm Rogkbtlon Number :lI&%OW 

stateme&. (Wkr N o h  1- 38) 

For and on k h a l f  of the B w r d  of Directors 

NItirI R h n l  
Company Sewetury 

Plsdsrp N Decal 
Director 

Amlt M Whts 
Director 



SADHANA NiTRO CHEM L W E D  

A5 p o u r  report of wen l a  attached 

Fos and on b o k l f  of the Board of ~~ 

I STATM~WTOF morn& LOSS FORTHEYEAR 

Abhbhak A. Javerl 
E m u t i w  Dl-r $. CFO 

U~R~ED S~STMARCH mnl 

h+lculars 

(1) 

Pradeep N. Desai 
Director 

INCOME 

NWn R Janl Amlt M. Mmhta 
company 01-t 
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SMHAWAWTRO C H M  LlMiTEO 1 
Notes to S h d a b n e  Rnanctal s+ents for the year ended March 31,2018 

I- 

I. CORPORATE INFORMATKIIY 1 
The Company was incwpora on July 21,1973. The Company Is engaged b Manufacturing of &micat intermediates , 
heavy organic chemicals a performance chemicals. Aa on March 31, 2018 Manekchand Panachand Trading 

Investment Company hrt LM, h ing company owned 63.99% of the- Eornpany's equity sham capbtal. The Company's 
registered office Is located at Mu $ , Maharashtra India and manufacturing @dl@ Is located at Roha, Ralgad District, 
Mahsrashtra, India.- m p n y  s a m  are lgted In Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) 1 

In accordance with the nofif[catlon issued by the Ministry of Cwporah Affalrs, the Company has adopted Indlan 
Aocounting Stan&& (referred to k 'Ind AS") n d W  W e r  the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 20f 5 
with Meet from Aprll 1, 2017. Pmviws period numbers in the Rnandal statements have been restated to Ind AS. In 
accordance wlth Ind AS 701 RW-time Adoption of lndlan Accounting W a r d ,  the Company has presented a 
remdliatlon from the presentation of financial &dements under Aewunting Standards notlRed under the Companies 
(Amounting Standards) Rules. 2006 (Tmbus W) to Ind AS ofSharehoklers'equlty as at Msrch 31,2017 and April 1, 
2016 and of the Othw comprehensive Income for the year ended March 31, 2017 and Aprtl t ,  2016. These financial 
sWemenl$ have h e n  prepare in acmrdance with Ind AS as not3hd under the Companies (Indian Accounting S!andards) 
Rules, 201 5 read with %don 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

2.02 Basls of preparation and presentation 
Thctseflnandal statements haye been prepred on the historical mst basis, exceptfwoertaln flnandal tnsttumentswhkh 
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting perhi, as explained in the accounting @ides below. Hlstorial 

oost is generally b a d  on the fair value of the consideration given In exchange for goods and aervlces. Fair value Is the 
price w h i i  that would be receiv6d or paid to Wnsfer 8 liblily in an o&dy transaction b e m  market partidpants at tha 
masumment date. 

2.W Usa of estimate 
The prepamiton of tlpese financiat sE8hmnts In conformity wfth tRe reoognltlon and measurement principhs of lnd AS 

requires the rnanmement of h e  Cqrnpny to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets 
and liabiliis, disc to sure^ relatlng to contingent liabitlties as al the date of the finandal sEaternwts and the repwted 
amwots of I n m  and expense for h e  p e w s  presented. 

Estimates and unttedyimg agsumpfians are m v M  on an ongoing basis. Revisions tu accwnting estimates are 
ncognbes In the period In which the estimates are revised and future periods am affected. The management believes 
that the earnatas used in prepadon of the financial statements are pntdent and reasonable. Future results could dlfkr 
dw to these Urnales and d i m m  hewn actual results and estimates am recognized in the periods in whiih the 
resub are knownhnalerialim. 

Key source of estlmatlon of umert~1nty at the date of the financial statements, whldl may causo a material adjustment to 
the carrying amounts of assets a# Ilabiltles withln the next financial ymr, is in respect of lrnpalrment of Investments, 
useful I Iw of ppoperty, plant and equipment, valuation d d d e r d  tax Ilabllltles and prwlsions and contingent liabilities. 

I 

Impairment din-& 
The Company reviews ito cahing value of imstmentr oarfled at cost annually, or more frequently when there ia 

indlcatim far impalmrent, #the m w m b k  amount Is less than I t s  wnying amount, the impairment loss is awuntedfor. 
I 

U d i ~ l  lives of property, plant and kquipment 
The Company reviews the useful life of prop~rty, @ant and equipment at the end of each mportlng perlod. This 

Msw#srnent may result In change i depmclatlon e ~ n s s  In future pertoda r 
Valuation of defenedbxsssets ' 

The Company reviews the m&ng amount ddefemd tax assets at the end of each mportlng period. The policy for the 
same has been exphi& under Notb 2.1 0. 

I 
Provlslons and contingent ~ l a b l l i t i ~  

Provisions are noognimd wheh the Company has a present legal or mstructlve obllgation as a result of past even&; Its 
probable that an outflow of bsources wlll be required t~ settle the obligation; and the amount can be reliably 

estlrnatsd. 
Provldons am m e a d  at the present v a l u ~  of the expenditures expcted to be required to settle the 

obllgation using a pretm rate thqt reflects current market assessments of the tlme value of money (if the Impad of 
d h u d n g  Isslgnificant) and the risks speciRc to the oMlgation.The Increase in theprovhbn due to unwinding of d I s c o u n t 
overpassage of t he  b reccrgnked &~flnancemst. Provblm are reviewed at the each repwting dateand adlusted to 
reffectthemnt besterstimab. tf It Is no longerpmbable thaf an o u t f h  of econor f i k res~m will be required to d o  the 
obtlgatlon, the prwlslon C reversed. 

A provision for onerous contracts Is remgntzed when the expected beneffts to be &rived by the company from a 
mntract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meetim its &figations under h e  contract. The p~ovlskn IS measured at 



the p m t  value of the expe net mt of continuing with the contract. Before a provlsian is sstatdished, the 
company recogdm any impa 4 ment loss on tho assets aredated with that contract. 

A dlsdosure far a mhge lability is made where there is a possible obllgatlon that arises from past events and 
the existence of whlch WN be firmed only by the occurrenm or non accurrence of one or more unoertafn future 
events not wholly within the co I of the company or a preseh obllgatlon that arises from the past events where It is 
either not probable that an wtR 4 of resouroes will be required to M e  the obbgation or a mliabb estimate of the 
amunt cannot b@ made. Contingent ItabUities are not rewgnised in the financial statements. A contingent asset is 
neiher recognlsed nor dldosed In 9eflnancial sfatements.' 

F Jr value measurements b d  valuatim pro- 
Some of the company's assets and liabllties am measured at fair value forflnanclal reporting purposes. The company 

has obtained independent falr d lua~on  for financial Instruments whefever necessary to debmine the appropfiate 
valuaflon techniqyes and inputs for fair value measurements. In some cases ths fair value of financial I m m e n G  k 
done internally by the management ' f the Company uaing market+bserva#s Inputs. P "In estimating the fair v a k , d  an asset or a Ilbility, the company uses market4bservable data to the extent It Is 
avallable. Where Level 1 Inputs are not available, the company engages third p2lrty qualKied valuers to perfom tho 
valuatiwr. The qualified external valuers establish the appropd- valuation technique and Inputs to the W e l .  The 
exbmal valuers report to the management of the Comp~ny their findbgs for every reparting per id to explain the c a m  
of Ruduations in the f&r value of we assets and liabillties.lnformation about the valuation techniques and inputs used in 
detmlnlng the falr value of vaous assets and Ilabllffles are d ' i  in notes no 27." 

2.04 RevenueReeognlBon 
Revenue 18 measwad at thelfair value of the mnsideratian received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated 

customer returns, rebatesand otherehtllar allowances. 

I. Sale of goods 
Revenue from the sale of d s  Is mew nised when t h e a d s  are delivered and l e s  have ~assed, at which time all the 
.following conditions are s%sfied: 

- " 

t h e  company has transferred b the buyerthe slgntflflcant rlsks and rewards of ownership ofthe goods; 
the company rearis neither mntinuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor 

Meethe wntrol over the goods sold; 
a t h e  amount of revenue mn be measured reliably; 
.it is pmbablethat the econoh~nlc benefits associated with the transaction will Row to the company; a d  
-the costs incurred or to be ldurred in respectof!he transaction mn be measured rellebly. 
Revenue from sales and ope on indudes Exclsa Duty but d u d e s  SalesTax, Vatue Added Tax &Gf 

Il.Otherlncome 
a. DMdend income from i estmnts is nmgnlsed when the shareholder's right b ncehe payment has been 

established whlch Is when Me sharehohters approve the dividend. (provided that it Is probable that the economic 
beneffta will Row b the company andthe amount of incomecan be measured reliably). 

b. Interest i m m e  from a financial asset is reeognised when it is probable that the e m m i c  benefits wlll Row to the 
Company and the amount of I h m e  m be measured mHably. Interest Income is accrued on a ilme basis, by 
referenee to the principal outsta 'dlng and at ths efbctIve interest rate applicable, whkh is isthe rate that exactly 
dlsrmnb estimatad future cash Jcsipts through the expected life of me financial asset to that a w f s  net onying 
amount wl inltlal rsoagnition. 

2.05 Leases 
Leasesare dasstfied as RM Ace Iew whenwer the terns of the lease t ranafersu~t ia I ly  all the risks and rewards 

of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are c k s l f f d  as operating bases. 

Operating Lease: 
Rental Income from operating leases is mognlsed on a straight-kme basis over the term of the 

relevant lease, InitjaI direet costs incumcl in mgotratlng and arranging an operating lea= are added to the carrying 
amount of the team asset and recagnised on a strslght-line basis o w  the lease tern. Opsrablng lease p3yment8 are 
recugnised as an expense on a slraleht-llne basis wet  the lease term, 

Finance Lease: 
Assets h l d  under 

the InEeptlon of the lease 
the I-r is included in the 

Lease payment$ ore a p p o r t i w  between tlnance expensas and reduction of the h a  obligation so as to achieve a 
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the Ilabllii. Finance expenses are r&agnlsed immediately In profit 
or h. 

2.05 Foreign Currency 
The functional cumncy of Company is Indian rupee. I m  and expenses in fmlgn currencies are recorded at 
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2.07 Borrowing Cosb 
Banowing casts dir* att iutable to me acquisition, mnslrudlon or pmductlon of qualifying are added to the 

cost of those ass&, until such t l k  as the asset8 are substanttally ready far their intended use. Interest income earned 
on Ute temporary investment of s&cifin borrowings pending their expendfture on qualmng assets is deducted from the 
borrowing costs ellgiWs f~ra~iblisbtion. 

Ail other bormwSng msb are m g n i s e d  in pmfit or toss in the period In whlh they am Incurred. 
I 

2.08 Government gmnta 
(j) Government gmnts in to manufacturing unltes located in Weloplng regions : The Company Is entitled to 
various incentives fmm g authorities in respect of manubduring unrts located in ddop ing  regim. The 
Company accounts for It9 on a r u a l  bask on approval of the inltlal clalm by the relevant authorities and 
there Is reasonable assurance that e grants will be remived. 
(II) Government grants in resp ? ,et of addltlonal Caplhl Expendlturem : Gwemment grants whose ptlmary condition Is 
hat !he Company should purchase, construcl or otherwe acquire wplfal assets is accounted for as deferred income. 
The grant is recagnid as In- ovlr the lif@ of a depmciabfa asset by accounting defemd Income in th Statement of 
Profit and Loss on a ~ W m a t i c  and rational bad8 over the useful IKe of theasset. 
(iii) E+ I n e e n W s E ~  I n m M s  undervarlous schemes are accounted in the year of export. 

I 
2.W Employes b e n e f i  
(I) Detlnad Contribution Plan: knlments to defined cmitibutbn rslirement ben& sasn*. vk.  Company8 Pmvldent 
Fund Scheme and Superannuath Fund are remgnised as an expense when Me employees have rendered the senrice 
entitling them tothe mntribution. 7 
(2) M n e d  Benefit Plan: For ddned beneRt retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined uslng the 
projected u d  wedit method, d actuarial vallratlms beiw carried out at the end of each annual reporblng ~J-IocI. 
Remeasurement, cornprislng autuqrlal gains and losses. the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (If applicable) and 
the rehmr on plan m t s  (exdudhg Internst), Is reftectd immediately in the statement of financial @tion wlth a charge 
or credit rewgnised in other m p r e  enslve Inwme In the perid in they w u r .  

h l  Remeasurement m n i d  other comprehensive income is dected immediately in Walned 8arnings and will not be 
nclassld to @I or I-. Past a&ee cost is m n l a  ln pmfii or loss h t h ~  of a plan amendment. Nst i n t d  i s 

(I) Gratuity: I 
The Company has an obhigation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement phn mverlng etrgible employees. The 

plan prwides for a lump sum paynenl to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or an 
termination of mployment of an amount equivalent to 1W26 days salary payable for each completed year of servlm. 
Vesting m u r s  u p  mmpfefion qf five yean of servlce. The Company a w n t s  for the lability for gratuity bermfits 
payable In future based on an Independent actuarial valuation. The Compny has taken a Group Gratuity cum L L  Assuranoe 
Sehrme with Life Imwance Corporath for future payment of gratuity tothe eHgW employees. 

I 
(II)CompensatadAbsence~ I 

The Company provide$ for thqmcashment of cornpen$ated absences with pay subject to certain rules. The employees 
are enbitled to accumulate wrnpensqt#d absences subject to certain limits, for future enecrshtnent. Accumulated leave, 
which is expected fo be utlllaed 'hthln the next twelve months, is freated as short-term employee benefft end the 
accumulated leave e-d to be mri-ied h a r d  h y m d  M v e  month is beatad as long-term srnployee k n d t  whlch 
are pmvik l  based on the numMr of days d un utrllsed compensated %Wen= on the basls of an indepdent actuarial 
valuation. 

I 
2-10 Taxatfon 

lnmrne tax expew mmpdra? wrcn t  tax w p m  and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liabilily during tho 
year. Current and deferrsd Eax are remgnkd In profit or loss, except w h ~ n  tlwy relate to Items that ate recognhd in 
other mprehens iv~  inmme or dl* In equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised In other 
comprehensive i m m e  w dlredyl in squ& mspectively. Income tax expensn represents tha sum of the tax currently 
payable and deferred tax. 

Current Inwme tax The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxabte pr~tit  differs from 'profit 
I before tax' as reported in the statement of prufH or loss and o h r  wmprehensive Incornelstatement of profit or loss 

-use of items of Income or expense t h l  are taxabk or dedudlMe In other p a r s  and b m s  that are never taxable or 
ddudble. The Company's wrre$ tax Is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively ert~ted by 1 me end ofthe reporting peliod. 

Advance taxes and provislons~for currant incame taxes are presented in the balame sheet afler off-setting advance tax 



paid and i n m  tax provision ari ng in the same tax jurlsdlction and where the retevant tax paying units Intends to settle 
the asset and liabitity on a netbasls 

"Deferred Income taxes 
Deferred Inmetax Is recog 1 sed using the balanca sheet approach, Deferred inmme tax assets and liabilities 

are mmgnlsed for deductible taxable temporary diirenms arising beheen the tax base of assets and liabilities and 
their carrying amount. excap! w h e  defer4 income tax arises from the inihl recognition of go~dwill or an asset or 

tlme of the transaction." 
Deferred income tax 

=4 liablllty In B transaciion that Is not business combination and affeds n&her accounting nor taxable prom or loss at the 

assst are recpgnisd to the xtent that It Is probable that taxable proM wUI be available against whlch the deductible 
temporary d i f fe rem and the rn faward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utitised. The ~arrylng 
amount of defetred Income tax assets Is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced b the extent that It Is 
nolonger probable that sufficleat e pmM will be available to allow an or part of the deferred i n m  tax asset to be 
utilisad, I 

Deferred tax assets and liabi3tbles are memured uslng substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable 
Income in the years in which the temporarydifferencesare expected to be received or settled. 

I M w e d  tax assets and IlaMIIUes are offset when they relate to Income taxes levled by the same taxaHon authotlty arid 
the relevant entlty Intends to settle ltb current tax assets and libillties on a net basis. 

Deferred t a x m t s  include Mjnlmum Alternatetax (MAT) paid In awrdance with the tax laws in India, which is likely to 
give future economic benafitE in the form of availability of set off against Mum income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT is 
rewgnised as deferred tax asset id ths balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is pmbable that the 
future economic benefit associated with the ssetwlll he malisgd. 

I 
2.tf Property, Plant and Equipmq 

Property, plant and equipmen! held for  us^ in produdon or supply of goods ormnrices wforadm1nMmtive p r p w  are 
stated at cost less ammufated depreclal4onlam~tton less aocurnulated Irnpalrment, l any. The cost of h e d  assets 
comprises its purchase price net any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (ofher than those 
subsequently reooverable frwn the tax authotlbles), any directly attributable expenditure on maklng the asset ready for its 
Intended use, and interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying fixed assets up to the date the asset Is 
ready f o r b  Intended use. I 

Capital work-ln-progress for production, supply of admlnlstratlve purposes Is carried at cost lesssccurnulated impairment 
loss, If any, unffl construction and installabion are mplete  and h asset is ready for its Intended use. 
'Depmlatlon is reoognizd (other than on eapltal wwk-in-progress) on a straight fine basis over the estirnatd useful 

llves of mtzr In rasped of property plant & equlpment & computers acquired after 1st Aprll 2006. P r o m  plant & 
equipment including non fadory building furniture fixuturea & vehiies acquired prior to 1st April 2008 are depm&M 
under WDV MatW at the rates presaikl under Schedule I t  of Companies Act, 2013. Depweiation on assets aacquiredl 
purchased, s o l d l d i i d  during the year is provided on a pro-rak basis from the date of eaeh addition till the date of 
saIe/retlrement. " 

The economic useful lives of assets is assessed ha& on a technical evaluablon, hklng hto account the nature of sssets, 
the Wrnated usage of a m ,  the operating mnditlons of the assets, past hlstory of replammnt, antIcipaM 

technological changes, maintenanm history, etc.The estimateU useful life is reviewed at the end of each nportlng period, 
wrth effed of any change In estlrnatd belng accounted for on a prospeche basis. 

Where the costof dthe a&et 1s slgnlflcant to the total cost oftha assets andthe useful IL of that part is diirentfmm 
the useM of the remaining asset, useful life of that significant part is determined separately. Oepreclatfon of Such 
slgnMcant part, if any, ls based on the weful l i  ofthat part. Freehdd land is notdepredated. 

An item of property, plant a& equlpment is derxognbd upon dlsposal or when no future economlc loenem are 
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset Any galn or loss arising on the dispCISal or retirement of an b m  of 
property, plant and equipment, d&rdned as the differenm be-n the sales proceeds and the csnying amount of the 
asset, Is recognized In the htemeqt d P M  or Loss. 

For transition to IND AS the company has elected to mt inue with the canylng value of all its property plant and 
equlpment remgnlsed as on 1st Aprll20t6 transltlon date measured as per previous GAAP and used that mrrylng value 
as its deemed cost asdthe tran~jti n date. r 
2.l2 lntsnglble Assets 

Intangible assets with fmb MI Ihres that are acquired separately are carried at mt less accumulated arnortizalion. 
Amortization Is W n i z e d  on a str@igM Tine basis ww their estimated useful Ilw of 3 years, wblch reflects the pattern in 
whlct! the asset's m m l c  beqefits are consumed. The estimated useful Meife, the emorhtion method and the 
amorbization period are reviewedl at tho end of each reporting period. wlth effect of any change In estimate being 
accwnladforon a pspcllve basis. 

An intangible asset is deremgnised on disposal or when no future econmlc benefits am expected from use or disposal. 
Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the diemnce between the net disposal 
proceeds and the cariylng arrwunt ofthe asset, and are recognisd in the p 6 t  or loss when the asset Is dere-niwd. 

21 3 Impairment 
Finandal assets (other than at ?air value)The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a finandal a m t  

I 
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or a group of financial assets is i m p a i r e d . ~ ~ ~  AS 109 requlres expected credit losses to be measured Ulrough a loss 
allawance. The Company reaognlses lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and E or all trade receivables that do 
not constitute afinancing transaction. 

For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12 month expected credit 
losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on Ihe financial asset has increased 
significantly since initial recognition. 
2.1 4 Inventories 

Inventories of raw materials, stock-in-trade, stores & spares ,Fuel, packlng materiel, work In progress ,stock in trade and 
finished goods are valved at the tower of cost and net realizable value after providing for obsolescence and other losses, 
where cons~dered necessary. Stock of scrap and spent acid is valued at net realizable value. Cost comprieses all cost of 
purchase, cost of conversion and other msts incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition . 
Stores and spares arevaluedon weighted average cost basis and all others arevalued on a FIFO basis. 

2.15 Flnancial Instruments: 
Financial assets and liabllltLs are rmgnised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 

inshment. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financ~al assets and financial liabilities (other than financia'f assets and financial 
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of 
financ~al assetorfinancial liability. 

Cash And Cash Equivalents: 
The Company considers all highly liquid financial Instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts ofcash 

that are subject to an insignificant rlsk of change in value and having original maturities of three months or less from the 
date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which are 
unrestricted forwithdrawal and usage. 

Flnanclal Assets Atdmortlsed Cost: 
Financial assets are subsequently measured at arnortised cast if these financial assets are held within a 

business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the 
financ~al asset g~ve rise on specified dates tocash flows that aresolely payments of principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding. 

Financial Assets At Fair ValueThroughOthar C~mprehenslveIneame: 
Financial assets are measured at falr value through other wmprehenslve Income Htheseffnancial assets are held wrthin 

a businesswhose objective isachieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the 
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

FlnancialRssets At FairValueThrough Profit Or Loss: 
FTnancial assets are measured at fa~r value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amottised cost or at fair value 

through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of 
financ~al assetsand liabilities atfair value through profit or loss are Immediately recognised in profit or loss. 

Investment ln Subsidiaries: 
Investment in subsidiariesaremeasured at cost as per lNDAS 27-Separate Financfal Statements. 
Financial liabilities: 
Financial liabilities aremeasured at amortised wst  using theeffective interest meThod. 
Flnanclal Guarantea Contracts: 
A Financial guarantee contract is a contract that requlres the issuer to make apec1Aed payments to reimburse the holder 

far a loss ~t incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt 
instruments.FinanciaI guarantee contracts issued by a holding company are init~ally measured at their fair values and, if 
not designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measurad at the higher of: 

-The amount of loss allowancedetermined in accordance with irnpafment requlrementsof INDAS 109; and 
-The amount initially recogn~sed less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of incomerscognised in accordance with 

the principlesof INDAS 18. 
Equity Instruments: 
An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest In the assets of the company after deducting all of its 

liabilities. Equity instruments recognised by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received net off dlrect issue 
cost. 

Reclassification of Financial Assets: 
The Company determines classification of financial assets and Ilabtlitles on initial recognition. After initial 

recognit~on, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For 
financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there IS a change in the business model for 
manag~ng those assets. Changesto the businessmodel are expected to be infrequent.The Company's senior manage 
ment determines change in the bus~ness model as a result af external or Internal changes which are significant to the 
company's operations. Such changes are evident to external part~es. A change In tho business model occurs when a 
company elther begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies 
financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the 



Irnmedlately next reporting period hIlowing the change In business model. The Company d w  not restate any previously 
remgnized gains, losses (including ~rnpalnnenl gains and bssss) or Interest 

Offsetting Of Finana l  Instrbmenb : 
Finandat aseels and financial liabiliiss are o w  and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is currently 

errfprceabl~ @a1 fight to offset thb recognlred amwnts and there is an intention to ~ t t l e  on a net basis, to realize the 
assets and Methe l i ab t l b  simultaneously. 
2.1 6 Eamlngs Per Share (EPS) 

The Company reports basic and diluted sarnlngs per share In accordance with Ind AS 33 on Eamlngs per share. Basic 
earnings per sham is computed by dlvldhg the net profd or loss for the period by the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the piid. Dtluhd earnings per share is computed by dMdlng the net proM or toss for the 
period by the weighted avenge number of equity sham o u m d l n g  during the perid as adjusted for the effects of all 
diluted potential eqwty shares except where the results are antldflutlve. 

BADHANA MrmO CHEW LIMITED 

21 7 Cash Flow Statement I 

The Cash Flow Statemmt Is &pared by the Indirect method set out in IND AS 7 on Cash !=low Statementsand presents 
cash flows by opwatlng, Investing and Rnandng activities ofthe Company. 

M 

2.1 8 Current/ NonCumd ClassIfptlon 
The Company presents assets and Habillties in the balance sheet based on currmt/nonarrent classlfkation. An asset is 

dassified as current when itsatisfie any of the fotIwvlng criteria: - It is expected to be r d i d  of Intended to be sold or consumed In normal operating cycle - It is held pfimanly far the purpose oftrading - It is expeded to be reallred @thin 12 rnonthsafterthe d a t ~  of reporting period. or 
- Cash and cash equivalent un?ess restricted from K n g  exchanged w used to seltte a liability for at least 12 months afkr 

reportinsperid. 
Current assets includethe current portlon of noncurrent Rnanclal assets. 
All other am classiiled as nowcurrent. 
Aliabllity iscurrentwhenitsafiyfiesany of thefollowingaiterla: - It is expected to be seftled in normal operating cyds - It is held primarily fwthe p u q b  oftrading 
-It is due to be settled within 12months aRer the reuortlna wrfd, or 
-There Is no uneondltlonal right to defer the se&ma$of the liability for at least 12 months after the repwting period 

Currentlisbllitie9 Include the wrrent wrtlon of lona term financial liabilities. 
The Company dassifies a l  oth&lbblliles agnon-current 
Defemd tax assets and WaMlltl sare classified as non-current assets and liablllttes. f 
The operating cycle Is the tlrne'behvem the acquistbn d assets and their r e a h t i m  in a s h  and cash equivalents. The 

Company has identWed 12monthsasLope~ngcy~ .  

2.19 Shsre Capital 
Ordinary Shares Ordinary shales are claa&& as equity. Incremental msb, If any, directly abibutable to the issue of 

ordinary shares are mrhd as a deduction from other equiiy, net of any tax effects. 

2.20 Fair Value Measurement 
Fair value is the price that would be r e l v e d  from the sale of an asset or paid to bansfera liability in an orderly transaction 

between market uarliciuants at the h u r e m e n t  date. The fair value measurement Is based on the wesum~tion that the 
transaction to sslian a&t or bnsfej the liabilliy tykes place olther: 

-Jn the arinclde market forthe w e t  orliabilltv 
-in the absetice ofp~nclple ma$&, In the mdst advantageous market for the asset or liability. 
The ~dndde or the most advantaaeous market must be ac~essible bv the Cmnanv. 
lhe iair v h e  of an asset or a liab?ity is measured using tha assumptions that participants would use when pricing 

the asset or liability, assuming that market participants ad in their economic best interest. 
The fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into a m n t  a market participant's ability to generate 

economlc benefits by using the asset In Its highest end best use or by selling It to another market participant that w w l d  
usethe asset in its highest and bestub. 

The Company uses valwtton pchnlques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are 
available to measure fair value, w l m i n g  the use of relevant obsemble htputs and mlnlrnizlng the use d unobservable 
inputs, 

All assets and liabilities for whi* fair value is measured or disclosed In the financial statements are categorized within 
the fair value hierarchy, describ as follows, based on the lowest level Input that is signltkant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole:- 7 

Level i -Quoted (Unadjusted) Market prices in active marketsfor incidental assets or l iabies 
Level 2 -Valuation techniques for which the h t  level input that Is algnlffcant to the fair value measurement is 
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direcliy or indirectly observable ' 
Level 3- Valuation Techniques forwhlch the lowest level input that Is significantto the fair value measurement Is 

unobnrabfe I 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the finandat statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines 
whether transfers that have occun-h between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorization (based on the lwvest 
level input that is significant to h e  fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

Determination &Fairvalue , 

1) FlnancialAssets-Debt lnstrqments at amortizedcost 
After initial measurement the qnancial assets a n  subsequently measured at amortized cost ulng the Effective tntsrest 

Rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost!ls calculated by taking into account any discount or premlum on acqulsitlon and fees or 
cost that are an integral part of the EIR. 

2) Flnanclal Assets-Debt Instruments at Falr V a t e  through Other Comprehenslve Income (MOCI )  
Measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the Other 

Comprehensive Income (OCI). On deremgnitbn of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is 
reclassified from the quity to PBL. 

3) DeMin~tturnenb~derivatives and equity instrumentsat Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) 
FVWLlsa residual categorjfor debt instrurrtents.Any debt instrument. which does not meetthecriteriaforcategorlzatlon 
asatamortized cost oras M O C I ,  isclassiikdasat FVTPL. 

4) Flnanclal LiabllltIes 
Financial liabilities are ctassiM, at inltial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through prom & loss, loans and 

borrowings. payables. or as der~ativesdesignatedas hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. 
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of 

directly attributable transaction costs. The Companies financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and 
borrowingsincluding bankoverdmfls and derivative financial instruments. 

Subsequent Measurement 
FalrValueThrough Proflt& Loss 
Financial liabilities st fair value through profit & loss include f l ~nc la l  liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities 

designated upon Initial rewgnitlon as at fair value through profit or loss. All changes in fair value of such liabilities are 
recognised In statement of profit or loss. 

Loans and Bormwlngs 
After initial recognition, interest-bearlng loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 

EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognlzed as well as through the 
EIRarnortition pmcess.The ElRamortizafion is included as finance costs in thestatement of profit and loss. 

2.21 Dlvidend 
Dividend on share is recorded as liabilityon thedate of approval by the shareholders. 

222 Investments 
Long Term Investments are carried at cost. Provision for diminution is made to recognize the decline, other than 

temporary in thevalueof these investments. Current investments arecarried at lower ofthe cost andfalrvalue. 

2.23 Segment Reporting 
The Company Identifies primary segments based on the dominant source, nature of risks and rebms and the Internal 

organisation and management structure. The operating segments ere the segments for which separate financial 
information is available and for which operating profit I loss amounts are evaluated regularly by the Chief Operating 
Decision Maker (CODM) In declding how to allocate resources and In assessing prformance. 

The accounting pdicies adoptad for segment reporting are in line with the aocounting pollcles of the Company. Segment 
revenue, segment expenses, segmnt assets and segment liabilities have been identified to segments on the basis of 
their relationship to the operating activftles of the segment. Inter-segment revenue is accounted on the basis of 
transactions which are primarily determined based on market] fair value factors. Revenue, expenses, assets and I l a b I !  I t  i e s 
which relate to the Company as a whole and are nofarlocable to segmen tson reasonable basis have been i n c l u d e d  
under unallocated revenuelexpenses I assets I liabilities. 

I 
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SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED = 
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2018 

Note 4: Investments 
(Amount Ln 71 

\ . 
Particular 1 March31,2018 I April 1, > O H  I 

Note 5 - Loans (Amount in 7) 

Loans to related partles comprise loans to the following subsid~aries 
(I) S t l i ~  Wireless Systems Private Limited 8,42,94,647 

Max~mum amount outstanding during the year 8,42,94,647 

Sr. No 

A 

(i) 

(ii) 

Particulars 

Non Current Loans 

(Unsecured Considered Good, untess otherwise stated) 
Loan to related party a t  amortised cost 

-Subsidiary company (Refer Note 35 1 

Loan to staff 

Total 

March 31,2018 

8,42,94,647 

13,78,946 

8,56,73,593 

March 31, 2017 

4,68,636 

4,68,636 

April 1,2016 

3,10,650 

3,10,650 



B Currentloans 

(Unsecured Consirfered G d , unless otherwise stated) 

(i) bantostaff 5,97,470 l,25,0Ml I (ii) Other* n,871 1,45,27,453 

I Total 6,75,341 &46,52,453 

* Others imlude 

Short Term staff advance b22,m 
Advance U~ence 20,06,901 
Interest Receivable ahers I 12,74332 
Salaty Advance I 77,871 3,17,089 
Vat & Servlce Tax Receivable 2557,835 
Demurage Charges I?ecei+ble 38,68,379 
Other Advances Receivable In cash I Kind 47,80,577 

5 77.871 1, 45,27,453 
I 

Notes forming part of the Fi ancial Statements for the year ended M a h  31,2018 I' 
Note 6 - Wher financial &sets ! (Amount in 7 ) 

Particulars ( March35 2018 I March 3l,2017 I April 1,UIY 

Current Financial Assets 

(i) Interest Accrued on Deposits 222,381 4,33,134 
I 

Note 7 - Deferred tax ~latril'riesl(~sset) {Net) 

R&r&Bwa 1 1 Bmaht fumard u n a h r M  d e e ~ l a t l o n  to be carried forward to next - I E m w e  Benefit &ligatIor)s 

Note: 
Due to change5 In Global Macro ~cbnomic Scenarlo , the demand for the compenles products has Increased resulting improved 
trading conditions and profitability. j ~ h e  trend is expected to continue making it probable for the company to generate sufficient 
ta~able profts In future. Hence, ddferd  tax asset amounting to ? 3,09,19,39l/- has been created in respect ofthe unused tax 
losses. 



D M e A  Tar Uabllhy 
Plant Propeny Equipment 
mcds DclferdTan UabiHly 

I 

For the vwrom3edSlrt~areh 1017 Ogenlng Balance 

Deffemd Isx UaMlhy 
Plant -erty E ~ l p m n t  
G r ~ s  -red Tax UaMlHy 
DefleredTaxAsset 
Dan& beneRt o b l i ~ n  
Other Dhllowabk W n s e s  
B r W  forward unabwbsd dwndauon to & wrded fornard to nmr wars 

I 

Note 8 : OtherAssrts (Amount in7 ) 

A. 

(1) 
I w 
(iii) 

Non Current Assets 
Capital advance 
Security Deposlts with Publk Bodies and others 
Balance with Statubry/Rwenue Authorltles 

March 31.2018 

rw) I Prepaid Expenses 5,13,782 
3 73 86,687 

B Current Assets 1 
(1) Balance with Statutory/Rwenue Authorities 
(ii) Advame to Vendor 
(iii) Prepaid Expenses 

Aprll 1,2016 

I I I t I I Total 1 10,26,19,942 1 5,01,30,556 1 3,46,94$140 

Note 9 : Inventories (At tower of cost and net realisable value) 
(Amount In 

Sr. No 

(i) 

(ii) 
(iil) 
(Iv) 
(v) 

i 

Raw materials(lnclude stock In translt r 14,05,998/-( March 
31,2017 - r5,02,504/-) (April 1,2016 - NII) 6,30,@,789 

Work-in-progress 7,11,82,993 
Fjnlshed Goods 3,2452,742 
Stores & Spares 4,f 833,144 
Others(Fuel,PacMng M-rial) 4/37,a49 

Total - 

Particulars March 31,2018 March 31,2017 April 1,2M6 



h 
Mote No. 10 - Trade rece~vadles 

1. Tmcte receivables are dues in respect af goods sold in the normal mursa of business. 

2. The normal credlt perioq allowed by the company ranges from 60 to 90 days. 

( A m m  In n 

3. No trade or other receivabla are dues from dlmcton or other officer of the company either severally or jointly wlth any 
other person nor any trade or other receiuables are due from Rrm or private companies respecflwly. 

4.Trade M v a b l e s  indude recehgbles from related parties i Nil (March 31,2017 -7  3,l3,91,521/- and March 31, 
2016 - ? 2,98,29,663/-) ajld maximum amount outstanding7 7,41,10,762 1- (March 31,20171 -7 3,49,52679/- ; 
March 31,2016 - C 2,98,29,663/-1-) 

5. Refer note no 23 for crejlt risk 

Sr. Wo 

( i  

( i i ]  

Note - 11 : Cash and Cash ~auivalents 

Mote - 12 : Other Bank ~alanees 

7.68.17P76 13,04,06,221 12,9Y,831912 

h&eulars 

Unsecured 

tonsidend good 
(knldered doubtful 

L ~ w  : A!lowance for doub$ul debts 

I 

Q l l a n d o 5 i t , a c c w ~ t s  
haargh money ~ e p m b  witfi orlglnal Maturlty<U Months 
k f e r  (a) &wl , 

I 
less : Term Oepsit with Bad maturing after 12 months fmm the balanw 
sheet date and other Earmarlawl / Margin monq / PI* d e w  

March 32 2018 

7,68,17,476 
17,00,239 

7,85,17,715 

17,00,239 

t I d a d e d  a5 Mw - Current Flnanclal W t s  I I 
1 I _Total I a 1 3 5  1 W&l1L I 68.42326 

FootmtM: I 
(a] Matgin money depmtts wlth carrylngamount of 181,13,42q- [March 3l,2017 -f 60,42,131(- ; March 31, ZOlB -? 69,42,226/-) are 
subject to first cham agalrrst bank guarantees. 

I 

March 331,2017 

13,04,06,221 

l3,04,06,221 

Aprll 1.2018 

12,97,83,912 

12,97,83,912 
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Authorired Capital:' 
1,OO,W,WO Euuwy Shares o f f  101- each 
[March 31.2017 92.50.CK Equtty Sharer o f?  101- each) 
[Aprtl I. 2016: 92.50.CC4 Equity Shares oi  ?lo/- each) 

Note 13 : Equity Share Capital (Amount in 7) 

Issued Subsctibed & Paid up: 
93.lS.149 Equitv Shares of? lo/. each lully pald 
[March 31.1017: 92,W.830 Equq sharer of 7 101- each) 
(Aprrl I, 2016:92.00,830 Equlty Shafesoi? 101- eachh) 

Particulars 

' Authonsed rapltal of 1,1O,W,OOO (1017 :1,17.50,000) and (2016 :l,l7.50,000], 1%(2017 -9%) and (2016 9461 Nonconvert~ble Non Cumulative I2017 : ~urnu la t lw ) and 12016 
.CumulatlveJ Redeemable PreferenceShare o f?  lo/- each I5 not cunsiaered above Redeemable Preler@ncc sharcs ~ssued have been cons~dered as borrowingsin accordance 

with the reuuirement of Ind AS. Refer Note 15 ( e I 

Footnotes: 
(I1 Reconclllalonofthe number of shares and amount autstandin~at the beginning and at theend of the reporting year 

March 31.1019 

(IIJThc company has only onc class olequgty shares havlngat par value of z lo/. per Shaie.Each holder ofequlty share IS entltled to onevole pershafe The company declares 
and pays dlvldend in lndlan Aupees,The dlvldend proposed by thc Board of Director is subject to theapproval of the share holderr in the ensuing annual general mee11ng.ln the 
ewnt ot llquldat~on of the~ornpany~the holder of equlty shares will beentltled to recelve remaining assets of the company afrer distrlbutlon of all prelercntlal amounts The 
dlstrubutlon will hem proporrlon to number of shares held by share h d d ~ r .  

March31,1017 

Pafticular~ 

Eaulw 
No 01 sharer OutrtanLtingat the beginning of the year 
Add- Additional sharer issued during thevear 
less: $hare$ lorleated/lought back durtng Ihe year 
No oirharsrout%tandingat the end OF the year 

1iiiIShareholders holdlngmore than 5 1  shares in the Company : 

April 1.2016 

None of !he Shareholdersother than Holding Company holds more rhan 5%as on the reponlng date and vrewour war 

Marth 31.2018 
Equlty Share 

(lv) Equity Sharer in the entity held by holding company: 

N0.d Shares 

92,00.830 
1,14,319 

93,15,189 

April 1, 2016 
Equity Share 

Noof Shares 1 %of Holding 
I 

Particular. 

Equltf Sharer of 101- lully pald held by Huldlngmmpaey 

Amount 

9,20.08,300 
11.4?;,140 

9,31,51,440 

March 31,2017 
Equlty Share 

lvlaggregate number and class of share$ allotted asfullvpa~d up purruant tc contract(s) w~tliout payment belng received In cash, bnussharer and sharer bought back lor the 
per~od o f  5 years immediately preceding the balancesheet date - NIIiMarch 31.2017 - NII and April 1. 2016. NII] 

Aprll 1. 2016 
EquHyShare 

No.dShares 

92,CK,830 

92,00,810 

March 31,2018 
Equity Share 

No o i  Shares I BkoiHold~nfl 

Panlculan 

Manekchand Panarhand Tfading Invcstmanr Co Put Lrd 

No.01 % a m  

92.00.830 

92,W,830 

Amount 

9,20,a8,300 

9,20,08,300 

Marrh 31.2017 
Equity Share 

No of Shares 1 %of Hold~ng 

Amount 

9.20,08.300 

9,20,0B,3W 

March 31,2018 
NooISharcs I % o f  Holdlrg 

54.60.611 63.99 

April 1. 2016 
NOOlShafeS I %ofHoldlng 

59,60.6?1 64 78 

March 31,2017 
Mool Shares I %of Holdhrrg 

59.60.6H 64.78 



Notar Forming part of the Flnandal btabements for the year ended 3isr March ZOlS 

Resenres and 5- 
Capital Reserve 
Opening and Clodng balance 

I 

0 t h  Eq~lty 

Capital Redemption ~ e r v e  
Opening and Closing balanm 

I 

(~mwmt in P) 

Securities Premium Account 
Opening balance 
Add:Prernlum on Issue of sweat equity shares 
Closing balanw I 

Particulars I March31,20lS I March 31,2Ol7 I April l.MZ6 
I I I I 

Retalned E arnlngs 
Opening, balance 
Add: Additions 
Add: Current Years Profla 
Closing balance i 
Tmnsitlon Reserw I 
opening balance 
Add:Additions 
Closing balance 

General Reserve I 

Opening balance 
Add Additions 
Qoslng balance 

I 

1 Total I 36,73,55,114 1 l,59,17,876 1 77,20,813 

I 

I 

Qpitat Reserw Is utllised In actnrdance wlth the prwldons of the Act. 

-drerenB reserve neated on redernfinion of preference sharer. It is non distributable rerewe 

I - 
Securities Premium Reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares . This reserve is utillsed In accordance wlth 
the prwislons of the ha. 

I 

Ratalnad Eamlnns 

The amount that mn be distrib'uted by the company as divldend to its equity shareholde~ - 
Transition Reserve represents reserve created on transition from Accounting Standards to Ind AS. 

-1 ftesp* I 
General resenre is used from time to time to transfer profib from retalned earnlnp for appropriation purpose. 

I 



SADHAMA NITRO CHEM LIMITED 

Notesformlng part of the flnancht statements for the year ended 31st March 2018 
Note 15 : Borrowings I 

Sacured Borrowings 
Term loanfmm bank (Refer Note [ a  1 below) 
Others (Rk Note I b ) below) 

I I Less :Current Matudty of h n g  term borrowings disclosed under the head 
other financial I l ab i l l t i ~  (Refer Note 161 I 

(b) Unsecured bnowings 
(0 Deferred sales ten loan [Refer note ( c ) below l 
[li} inter CDrporaW Depsit [Refet note ( d ) below 1 
(lii) Redeemable Preference Shares 

9600000 1% Nan convertible, Non cumulatlue (2017 - 9600000 9% Non 
convertible, Cumulative and 2016 - 9 S m 0  9% Non Convertibk , 
Cumulative Redeemable Preferen- Sharesoft 101-(2017 - C 101. and 
2016 - T 1 O/-) )[Refer nm ( e ) below] 

(a) Secured brmwlngs 
(I) Working Capital Loan from Bank [Refer Note ( f )I 

(a) Dudngthe year, the Company had obtained term loan from a bank towards purchase of motor vehicle. The t e r n  loan is secured 
charge m motor vehicles. The charge is yet to be registered. f i e  terms of repayment are arfollows 

1 1 

(bJ 
( I )  

Particulars Terms of repayment 

Rate of Interest 8.25% 
Year of Maturl March '2023 

(b) During the year, the Company had obtafned t e rn  Ioan towards purchase of rnach1neryand quipmenu. The term Ioan is secured by 
chargeon plant and equipment5 . The charge Is yet to be registered. The terms of repayment are as folbws 

Unsecured Bormwlngr 
lnter Corpnte  Depsit [Refer note ( d ) below1 

The Company had obtalned a interest free Loan d 720.89 Lakh under sales taxdeferred &me repayable In 15 Installment .The Ioan 
( was repaid during the year. 

( d ) lnter Coporate Deposlts are cartying interest rate of 1296 and repayable on or bebte 2019. 

{ e } kdeemabb Preference *ares 
h r i n g  the year ,(after obtaining the consent of the preference shareholders 1 the wrnpany has varled thetermsof issueof preference 
shares aflotedfmm 986 cumulative preferenceshares to 1% noncumulative preference shares redeemable at par until th@ entlre loses 
are recouped or at such a premlum not exseeding? 8 per shareatter entire losses of the company are recouped at the sok dlscretlan 
and option of thecompany with effect fmm lst  Aprll2017. Further cumulative dlvMends accumulated upto 31st March 2017 haw k e n  
waived. 

( f ) Worklng C a m 1  loan from Bank 
The Company had workfng capltal faclllt~esfrom varloua bankraftying Interest rate of l2.95%p.a.Th~se fadlltles are repayable on 
demand, secured bv way of flrst par1 passu charge on current assets, semrnd pari p a w  chargeon compam/'s entireflxed assets and 
further mured  by penonill guarantee of Chairman and Managing Oirectw 

92 



SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED = 
Note 16 - Other financial liabilities 

IAmount in 7) 

(1) 

(i i) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

(4 

(vi) 
(vii) 

(viii) 

Particulars 

Current Financial Liabilities 
Current maturity of long term borrowings 

{Refer note l 5 A  ) 

Other payables 

Interest accrued and due on borrowings 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 

Redeemed Preference Share & Excess right 
issue {Unclaimed) 

Creditors for Capital Expenditure 

Unclaimed Bonus &Salary 

Book overdraft 

Total 

March 31.2018 1 March 31.2017 Aoril 1. 2016 

B Current I I Employee Benefit Obligations 
(i) Compensated absences 

Note 17 - Provisions (Amount in 7 ' 
Sr. No 

A 

I (ii) Gratuity (Refer Note No. 31) 

Note 18 - Other Liabilities 

Particulars 
Non Current 
Employee Benefit Obligations 

(i) Compensated absences 
(ii) Gratuity (Refer Note No.31) 

Total 

41,55,054 1 56,43,119 1 15,46,400 

(1) 

Particulars 

March 31,2018 

51,28,365 

2,04,95,146 
2,56,23,511 

1 Total 

Movement in provisions 

Opening balance 
Add/Less :Provision recognised /(reversed) during 
the year 
Closing balance 

1,28,80,204 1 81,27,412 1 63,39,671 

March 31,2018 

I I I I 

Total I 34,42,26,263 1 6,72,85,730 

March 31,2017 

44,77,093 

1,56,36,872 
2,01,13,965 

Gratuity 

1,81,21,165 

65,29,035 

2,46,50,200 

March 31, 2017 

(i) 
(ii) 
(iii) 

[Amount in 7) 

April 1,2016 

Aprll 1,2016 

34,67,829 

1,36,53,368 
1,71,21,197 

Compensated absences 

1,01,20,212 

37,33,303 

1,38,53,515 

Current 
Statuatory Dues 
Employee Dues 
Advance From Customer 



( a ) Disclosure required under Clause 22 o f  Mlcro, Small and Medlum Enterprlses Development ('MSMED') Act, 2006 

Note 19 : Trade Payables 
(Amount in f) 

Sr. No 

(i) 
(Ii) 

( b ) The amount due to  Micro and Small Enterprises as deflned In the "The Mlcro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 
Act, 2036'' has been determined to the extent such partles have been identified on the basis of information collected by the 
Management. 

Particulars 
a) the prlnclpal amount and the Interest due thereon (to be shown 
seperately] remaining unpaid to  any supplier as at the end of 
amunt ing year 

b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED 
Act,2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the 
supplier beyond the appointment day during each accounting year 
c) the amount of Interest due and payable for the period{where 
the principal has been pald but interest under the MSMED Act 
2006-Not pald 
dJThe amount of interest accrued and remaining unpald at the 
end of accounting year; and 
e)The amount of further interest due and payable even in the 

succeeding year,udil such date when the interest dues as above 
are actually paid to the small cnterprlses,for the purpose of 
disallowances as a deductible expenditure under section 23. 

( c ) Atl trade payables are 'current'.The Company's exposure to  currency and IlquIdlty risks related to  trade payables is disclosed 
In note no 28 

Note 20: Revenue from Operations 

Particulars 

Mlcro and Small Enterprises 

Others 

Total 

March 3 5  2018 

March 31.2017 

25,50,48,0W 

25,50P8,060 

March 31.2018 

13,52,41,2 87 

13,52,41,287 

April I, 2016 

20,33,82,389 

20,33,82,389 

March 31,2017 

Sr. No 

(i) 

(ii) 

April 1,2016 

Total 

Mar& 31,2017 

57,45,48,712 

57,45,48,712 

1,46,02,040 
9,01,469 

Particulars 

Sale of Products 
(a) Finished Goods 

Other Operatlnp Rewnue 
(a) Sale of scrap & sales other 
(b]  Export Benefit 
(c) Sundry balances written back 

March 31,2018 

1,07,89,92,716 

1,07,89,92,716 

3,81,681 
2,83,89,687 

14,78,882 



SADHMA NITRO CHEM UlllTED 

. . 

Mote 21 - Other Income 

Particulars 

(i) Interest Income on: 
(a) Deposits with banks and financial institutions TDS 
t 23,109/- (P.Y t 21,702/-) 
(b) Others 

(ii) Other Miscellaneous income 
(iii) Foreign Exchange ~ a i n  (Met) 
(iv) Other operating income 

March 31,2018 

Note 22A - Cost of Raw materials and packing materials consumed 

March 31,2017 

Sr. No Particulars 

Inventory at the beginning of the year 
Add: Purchases . Less: Inventory at the end of the year 

Cost of materials consumed 

I March 3l, 2018 March 31,2017 I 

Value of Raw material and packing materials Consumed ( h u n t  ln ; 

t ~artrculars I March 31,2018 I March 31.2017 

Imported 0.45% 18,52,263 5.31% 17,85,764 

Indigenlous 99.55% 49,72,92,251 94.69% 31,73,76,260 

Flaw material and packing materials Consumed 

(vii) I Other I 19,32,61,597 

1 Total 41,91,44,514 

Sr.No 

(1) 
(ii) 
(iil) 
(iv) 
(v) 
Ivi) 

(Amount h 3 

Particulan 
Benzene , 

Nitric acid 
Cast iron powder 
Oleum 65% 
Caustic Potash Flakes 
Packaging Material 

March 31,2018 
8,92,25,847 
2,94,46,980 
6,99,41,019 
3,18,11,171 

22,59,049 
31,98,851 



SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED 

3hC 
Note 228 - Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 

(Amount in 7) 
L 

(ii) 

Particulars March 31,2018 March 31, 2017 

Opening Stock 

Work in progress 

Finished goods 

Scrap 

Total (i) 

Closing Stock 

Work in progress 

Finished goods 

Scrap 
Total (ii) 

Changes in Inventories Decrease/(lncrease)(i-ii) 

I I Total I (1,47,11,735) 1 (4,25,97,452] 

Note 22C- Excise Duty 

The Government of India has implemented Goods and Service Tax (GST) from July 1, 2017 replacing excise duty , 
service tax and various other indirect taxes. Excise duty for the year ended March 31, 2018 pertains to the 
period of 3 month (April 2017 to June 2017) whereas for the year ended March 31, 2017 pertains to 12 month period. 

Note 23- Employee Benefit Expenses 

( ~ r .  NO I Particulars I March 31.2018 1 March 31,2017 

(ii) 
(i i i) 

Note :23(1) 

The company had  issued 1,14,319 Equity Shares at 7 43.94/- per share as Sweat Equity Shares t o  Shri . 
Abhishek Asit laveri, the Executive Director & CFO in substitution of the remuneration due to  him for 
2016-17 in terms of the Special Resolution passed in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 
22nd May 2017. 

Salaries and wages, including bonus 
Contribution to Provident and other funds [Refer Note No. 31(a) ) 
Gratuity (Refer Note No. 30(b) ) 
Share based compensation expense (Refer Note No.Z3(l)below) 
Staff welfare expenses 

Total 

83,618,433 
3,476,318 
3,605,357 
5,023,177 
1,763,707 

97,486,992 

71,363,938 
3,068,171 
1,739,163 

1,458,845 
77,630,117 



Hote 2! 

SADHAHA NITRO CHEM LIMITED 
ti 1' I 

Sr. No 

(i) 

(ill 
(ail 
(ivl 
(4 
(4 
(vll) 
(vili) 
Iix) 
Ix) 
(xi) 

(xii) 
(xiii) 

(xlvl 
(W 
(wl) 
(hi) 
(mill) 

(xix) 

(xn) 
(mi) 
IxxllI 
(xxiii) 

Note 24 - Flnance Cost 

- Other Expenses 

13cIc 

(Amount In ?) 

Power and fuel I 
I 

Rent 

Rates & Taxes 
Insurance 

Printing & Stationery 

Postage, Telegram &Telephone (Cornrnunicatlon Expenses) 
Trawlling & ~omreyan& Expenses 

Legal &Professional fees 
Directon Fees 

I 
Electricity charges 
Security Charges 

Stores & spares ~onsuked 

Re~airs % Maintenance 
Plant & Machinery1 
Others I 

Other Manufacturing Expenses 
Effluent Expenses 
Research & Development Expenses 
Payment to auditors (Refer Hote A below) 
Sellinrr Exwnses I 

Freight and ~orwadlng Expenses 
Commission Charges 
Local Freight & other expenses 

Foreign E~change Fluctuation 

Bad debts &Sundry ~ b b l t  B a l a n ~ e ~  Written off 
Guarantee Commission 
Amortlsatlon of Lease hold land 
Miscellenous Expenses 

March 3l, ZOZg 

Sr. No 

(I] 
(ii) 

( i l l )  
(iv) 

h 

March 31,2017 

Particulars 

Interest expense on term loans and other financial liabilities 
Interest wst on preference share liability 
Other borrowing cost 
Interest on delayAd Payment of tax 

I Total 

Marrh 31,2018 

2,31,05,405 
56,08,930 

1,92,94,189 
24,00,0 00 

4,84,08,524 

March 31,2017 

2,68,76,701 
1,44,00,000 
2,13,13,062 

6,25,89,763 



SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED 

rce 
Note A :Pavment t o  Auditors [Amount in 71 

(i) Statutory Audit Fee 3,00,000 3.00.000 
(li) Tax Audit Fee 65,000 65,000 
(iii) In Other Capacity 

Other Senric~s (Certification fee) 

TOTAL 4,92.500 

I Payments h r t h e  year ended March 31,2017 represents fees and re+imbursements paid to the predecessor auditor. I 
Note - 26 First-tlme adoption of Ind-AS 
These are the Company's first financial statement prepared In accordance with Ind AS. The Company has adopted Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs with effect from 1st Aprit 2017, with a 
transition date of 1st April 2016. Ind AS 101- firs time adoptfon of Indian Accounting Standards requires that all Ind As 
standards and interpretations that are issued and effective for the first Ind AS Financial statements which i s  for the year 
ended March 3L$t , 2018 for the company , be applied retrospectively and consistently for all financial years presented. 
Consequently, in preparing these Ind AS financial statements , the company has availed certain exemptions and complied 
with the mandatory exceptions provided in Ind AS 101, as explained below. The resulting difference in the carrrying values 
of the assets and liabilities as at the transition date between the Ind AS and Previous GAAP have been recognised dlrectly in 
equity (retained earnings or another appropriare category of equity. 

Set out below are  the IND AS 101 exemptions availed as applicable and mandatory exceptions applied In the transitlon from 
previous GAAP to IND AS. 

Ahoptional Exemptions Availed 
( a ) Deemed Cost 
The Company has opted paragraph D7Ab and accordingly considered the carrying value of property, plant and equlpments 
(other than free hold land) as deemed cost as a t  the transition date. Freehold land valued a t  fair value. 
( b ) Investments in subsidiaries 

The Company has opted paragraph Dl4  and Dl5 and accordingly considered the Previous GkAP carrying amount of investment 
as deemed as at the transitlon date 
( c ) Deslgnatlon of previously recognlsed flnancial 
Paragraph Dl96 of Ind AS 101 gives an option to an entity to designate investments in equity instruments at FVOCl on the 
basis of the faas and circumstances a t  the date of transitlon to IND AS. The Company has opted to apply this exemption 
for Its investment in equity Instruments. 

&. Applicable Mandatory Exceptions 
( a] Estimates 
An entity's estimates In accordance with Ind AS a t  the date of transition to IND AS shall be consistent wlth estimates made 
for the same date  in accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting pollcles). 
INDASestirnates as at April 1,2016 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in confirmity with previous 
GAAP. The company made estimates for the following items in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these 
were not required under previous GAAP. 
-Investments in equity instruments carried at WPL or FVOCl 
-Investments In debt instruments carrled at FVPL 
-Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model 

(b} Classification and measurement of financial assets 
As requried under IND AS 101 the company has assessed the classification and measurement of financial assets [Investment 
in debt instruments) on the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at the date of transition to IND AS 

C. Transition to  1WO AS - Rewnciliations 

The following reconciliations provide a quantification of the effect of significant differences arisfng from the transition from 
previous GAAP to Ind AS a5 required under IND A5 101 



(I) Reconclhatlon of Equw and Profit and loss as prevlous reported under lnd~an GAAP to IND AS 
(11) Reconc~llat~on of Balance sheet as a t  March 31,2017 and Apr1l1,2016 (Transrtron Date) 
(111) Reconcll~at~on of Total comprehenslve Income for the year ended March 31,2017 

Note 27 - First-time adoptlon Reconcfliatians 

(I) Rmnc~l~at~on of equlty and Profit and loss as prenously reported under lnd~an GAAP to IND AS 

Reconcrl~atron at profit 
(Amount tn 71 

I Part~culars I 1 March 31 2017 1 

11 Remnc~ltat$on of Balance Sheet as at March 31,2017 and Apnl1,2016 (wnsrt~on date) 
(Amount ln?) 

I' I I I 
March 31.ZM7 

!NO &S 
Mjurrmemr IN wmwl 

I (alPmomy Plan1 and Equlpmcnt 
( b b p b l  umrk ~n pmgress 

(i)b curfenl flnanealhm 
Ill lrmnmmt! 
(~l)lasns and Pdwanter 
(I##) Other bnancld arrets 

(d)b)skmd h r M e U  (Wtl 
(epnmrne Tax As* [Met] 
(FJOfhw h current Asreis 

T& ~ K W L ~ U ~ M A ~ M I  
Current&%& 

(8111r~unlm1 
(aRmnclsl nlaetr 

(~ITrade md other recmuabler 
(11) Cash and Calh Equlvnlann 
(1111 Bank Balancer other t b n  1111 abwe 
( I Y ] l M n 5  

(4 Other flnanoal met5  
I c l O t k r ~ r m m  Aswo 

I Assets clarrfied ar hdd b r  d e  
*Ma Currant A& 

Total 

I Equ~ty and Ilsbll~W 

I - . - :  - - .~~O:ISJP~) i o a g . ~  cas' ln5g,~7ax 

. .  . . . r,4s,3tosl l o  89 94,385 10.79.16.176 

Total E q t ~ l t y  9ASJ2,Wl 30 89.91 W5 M.79,16,176 



SAOHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED 

IIcC 
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2018 

(Amount in f) 
Partkutarr March 31.2017 April I. 2016 

Non-current Liabilities 
(a] F~nancial L~abil~tlel 

Borrowingr 
Other non-current financial L~ab~lrt~er 

(b)Ernployechenefit obl~gaticns 
(cJ~ong-term provirionr 
(d)Oeferred Tax Liab~lit~er (net] 
(elmher non,current Liabilities 
T&l Non Current liabilities 

Current Liabilities 
[alfinantial Liab,lltrer 

(1) Borrowing 
(ill Trade Payabler 
(111) Other current f~nancial L~abilit~er 

Employee benefit ob11ga:ionr 
(b)Short.terrn Provisions 
(c)Prov-rion for taxlnet) 
(d)Orher current tlab~lit~er 

L~abilit~er directly associated withassetsclarsitied ar held for sale 
Total Current Liabilities 

Total 

I Expenses I ~GMP ~ N D  AS ~djuttrnem 
INDA5 I 

iii.Reconciliation of Statement  of Prof i t  and Loss for the year  ended M a r c h  31,2017 
[Amount in ?) 

Mater ia l  Consumed 
Change in inventory  
Employee Benefi t  Expenses 

Finance Costs 

Depreciat ion and Amortisat ion 
Other  Operating and General Expenses 

Total 
Prof i t /  (LOSS) Before Taw and Exception i t ems  

52,20,79,073 22,20,79,073 

74.33.77.116 38.44.49.427 #3,24,26,853 

Part iculars 
Income 

Revenue 
Revenue f r o m  operations 
Other Income 
Total 

Enceptional I t ems  
Profit/ (1055) Before Tax 
Tar Expenses 

Current  Tax 
Deferred Tax 
M i n i m u m  Alternative Tax Credit  
Prior Years Tax Over/Under Provision Expenses 

59,20,83,849 - 59.20g3,Mg 

68,17,75,953 18,44,49All 17.02,25,380 

March  31,2017 

IGAAP IND AS Adjustments  INDAS Total 

57,28,15,349 57.28.1 5,349 
48,10,467 48,10,467 

57,76,25,816 57,76,25,816 

I Total 
Protit/ (Loss) for the period after taxand before shareof assoclater and joint ventures 2,25,97,063 (1,32,20,166) 93,76,897 

l ~ d d  : Share of Prof i t  / (loss) of Associates I - I 

I Add : Share of Profi t  / (Loss) of Joint venture5 
Profit /  (Loss) After Tax and share of associates a n d  j o i n t  ven tu res  before 2,25,97,063 (1,32,20,166) 93,76,897 

Less: M ino r i t y  Interest 

NET PROFIT 2,25,97,063 (1,32,20,166) 93,76,897 



ltsms that will net be 4asdfM su 
Rcmeasuremm of M n c d  benefit (IL79,834) (lWgs34) 
less +Inooma brr expm 

[1t79,834) ( 1 W 9 S W  

Prd t /  (h) Cr tho H o d  adbubble ap: 
Owners of the Company 

I 
2,2537- (113&W166) 93,74897 

Non-controlnng httarest 
(1.323RI-66) 3 m X 8 9 7  

total tomprehcruiw b w m ~  for tha P I C  d awlbmbk to 
Owners of the Company WflP63 (ZWmJw %1,97,063 

Note No. -28 Financial lnstru n t ~  and Wsk Review 4 
Capital Hsnagemsnt 
The key objectlw of the Cwnparr)s *MI mawrnent i~ lo ensure that it m a l ~ n s  a W e  capital stru~turra wilh the foous on 
toEalaaquKy to uphold the Investor, crdbrgnd customer confldencaand to ensure future developmmtofit9 buslfless. The Company bud 
on kwptn~ +Amw total equityheto e d r e  lndependenm , searrityaswarll him financial ~~ldblBtyforpbtmt~a~futunt borrowings, if wquird 
with& impaetlng the h k  proOUe of the campany. The Cwnpnylsgoal b b mlinue to be &!e to return exc&s Ilq~MIty to shareholders by 

As at March 31, At at M& 31, 
pWdbUl- 2018 m7 

Total equity attributable to equttyshsr+hddars of the company 46,05,06,6@4 10,79,26,176 

As a p e n e m  of total capital 76 13 

Long term bermwings 6,54,30,727 18,23,07,639 

Short term bomwlngs 8,36,42,575 17,35,14,149 

~ o t r r ~  bommlngs 1430,n,m ~ ~ * , z z T B ~  , 
As a percentage of total =pita1 24 n 
Total C a p M  (Equlty and Borrowiwl W,95,79,905 W7A7,9w - 

The company busiws plan m u p l J  with global macro mhornic scenario have helped the wmpany achieve 
e n h a n d  protltabfllty and liquid resulting Improved equity base and lower the risk profile of the wmpany. ? 

Flnanelal Risk hbnagemetlt Framework 
The carmpany has expbsure to tha following dsks arising from financial instruments : 
a) Credit risk 
b) Liquidity risk 
C) Matket risk I 

1) Credit Risk I 
Crsdi risk 1s the risk that the $nferparLy d l  not meet it. obhgalbn under a financial in.trument or arstomer mtract 

leadhg to h n c l a l  loss. The m d  arises principally from Its o w i n g  acthrltlss ( primarily trade w h b l e s )  and 
from Its ftnandng a c l ~ ~  lncludln with banks and finmlal Institutions and ottler financial Instnrmernts.me 
customer mdit is managed by establlshd &ky , prowdutes and mtrols relating to customer wedlt 
management. The company has eatablkM a credit pollcy under whtch each rsew customer Is analysed individually for 
&it wwthlms before the corntianfa standard payment and denvery terms and eondItions are &mi. Tha 
oompanfs revlew Indudes extern+ rrrtlngs where available and other publlwlty available financial Information. 
OuMndbg cwtomersrecelvablw a& regularly monitored and any shlpmentta m a j o r c u m m e r s a r e ~ w ~  Ewered by 
Met d credit w other forms 4 hi insurance,lbe m p a n y  establishes an allwrvanee for Impaimrent that 
repmsants fixed estimate of expected losses in respect of W e  and ether mivabte. The maximum ex$#ure b cred%rEskssat 



SADHANA NITRO CREM LIMITED - 
reporting date Is prlmarlly from h e  receivable arnountlng to t7,68,17,4761- (2017- F13,04,06,2211- and 2016 - 
71 2,97,83,9121-). The movement in allowam for impairment in trade and otherrecaivaMes during the p a r  was as follows : 

AtIowanee for trnpalrment March 31,201 8 March 31,2017 
Opening balance I 

fmpairrnent loss rec6gnlsed I reversed 17,00,239 
Closing babnce I 17,00,239 

No single cusfomr acmunted kr 10 percent of trade receivable as of March 31,2018 and March 31,2017. There is no 
sigrtfiwnt Eoncantration of erebit risk. Credlt risk on cash and cash equivalent Is limited as the Company generally 

transacts with banksand financial institutlonswith high credit rabingsassigned by international and domestlccreciit r a t i n g s 
agencies. 

II) Llquidlty rlsk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial 

liabilities that are settled by dsllwrln~ cash or another financial asset The cornpanfs approach to managing liquldiw Is to 
ensure as far as possible that will hive suffident llquidity to meet its tlabililies when they are due under both normal and 
stressad conditions without lncurridg unacceptable losses or risking damage to company's reputation.The Company 
believes that the working capltal is sufficient to meet its current requirements. Accordingly , no llquidity risk is perceived. In 
addltion ,the company maintains the following tine of credl. 

a) Working capital loan from a bank carrying Interest rate of 12.95 % pa. These facilities am repayable on demand. 
secured by way of first pari passu charge on tfie present and future current assets of the company, second pati passu 
charge on entire movable and immovable fixed assets of the company, present and future at plot no 47, MIDC, Roha 
Industrial Area, Raigad District - 402116 and further secured by personat guarantee of Mr A. D. Javeri Chairman and 
Managlng Dlrehr of the company. 

The table b l o w  provlch details regarding the undiswunted mntrachral maturities of signlflcant financial Ilabilities as of 
March37,2018 

R m  LCLdlhDntpsr ImZyman 2-lwrr 5-7 Y.rrr -I 

Long term barmwlng 4.wpL8m 1.05.54.704 1,18,74,223 AS4.X1.727 

Shmmrm bcmuulngr B16.4LrilS + 8,36,42,575 

Trade pwpyable 13.52,41,287 - ~3UdI.181 

M h e r f l ~ n c l d  UabUl& 1W88,244 3MJL2-M 

rwal 2 9 d 3 . m  l p S . % r n  &W74rn - W P W 3  

The table below prdvlder details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of slgnificant finandal Ilabllltks as of March 31.2017 
Patlru*n lesthn1ya.r ISwn 24yearr 57  yun mul 

Lonu term bormwlnp 9.21.36,441 9 ,~ ,71,19# - 1&23,07,639 

5hon *rrn bwmrl- 173,14.M - 17,35,14,149 

Tnde *Me 1524481160 - 25,54~40~48,0W 

Othsr flna-dal Ihbllks 1 S t W , 7 n  1,U,W,122 

m a  53,8&0292 gp l ,~ i ,m - w s 1 7 a m  

The table b&w pmvldes detaikmgarding the undlsclwmed contractuat rnaturitlar of slgntRcant financial llablfltls as of March 31,2016 
r a m  I bmiyeu 1 1-2yean I 2-5 yurr 5 - 7 ~ ~  -I 

long term b w l n g s  I 2,35,879 1 6,10,55,342 1 I - 1  6,12,9l,221 

Shwl knn bamwIw 

Trade paylble 

ill) Market Risk 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial Instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 

market prices. Such changes in the values of financial instruments may result from changes In the foreign currency 
exchange rates. interest rates, cr It, llquldity and other market changes. The Company's exposure to market risk Is 
phari ly on amount offoreign curma exchange rate rid. 

Forelgn Currency exchange rate Ask 
The Company operates inCmati~lally and major portion d the business is transacted in several currencies and 

consequently the m p a n y  is exposed to foreign exchange risks through operating advities in foreign currency. The 
company d m  not engage in hedging and the unhedgad foreign currency exposure Is as follow : 



Mote 29 : Earnings Per Sham 

Sr. PI0 

{Amount in 3 
For the year ended 

March 35 2017 

83,76,897 
92,00,830 
92,0,82U 

1.02 

hrticulats 
For the yeat end J 

March 31,2018 

31,36,97,275 
92poB30 
93,15,149 

33 31 

a) 
b) 
c) 
d) 

W e t  Profit for the year attributable to the equrty sharehdders 
Opertlng number of  putty shslres outstandllrg 

closing  umber of ~qulty rhdF o u ~ ~ n d l n g  
-it /DLluted earning per hare [(aj/(c)](r ID/-  ger share) 

luoteao: m u n d e r l n d A S 1 7  (Amount ln t) 
Fw the year nnded 

ADriiIJQu 

804 

804 

3,216 

4L004 

45,024 

Partkub 
For the p r  ended 

N& 3 aW8 - 
804 

lease armrrg%mants fw ce 
a c e  premises. Yhe l e a s  m- 

p l o d  on mutual a g r e y  oftha paw 

29+31,804 
Laterthtmewrandnw#w~frvem m,w4616 
Laermanhvears. 

39,396 

Expensas m g n i x d  In the 
P&t and LodJ 43,416 

For the year ended 
MrCh3LaW7 

EOQ 

864 
3,216 

4 P m l  

44,220 



N o t e a l  : Employee benefits 

(a) Dbeflned Contribution Man 
The Company makes 

Fund Commissioner. 

tlme. 

fund the ben-,The 

are in aceordance wfth rules framed by fhm Government fmm time to 

@) Deffned BmneRt Plans: 
Gratuity 

The ~ ~ i p b p e ' 8  grahrity hrnd a defined benefit plan.The pce& value of tha obligation Is 
determtned bmed on actuarial credlt metRod,which r w n h  each nerlod of as 
giving r k  to adlltfoi?al unI demp~ebenefftinWementand measurea each u ~ t s a p x a t d ~ b  buiw up& w obl ig r tlo n, 
The obhgatlon for leave encashmentis m n i s e d  in the same manneras dratulhr. The estimateti of . ... . 

escalation in daqconsidwed h adadat vduatlon,take into a~count infl&on,#nlor~y promotion and other relevant 
fa- indudlng supply and demand in theemptoyment market. The ahve Information & bertlRed hy actuary. Tfie expected 

I rateon plan asset8 b detem-dned cwrsMering several applIeablefaetor,main~~ tb composition of ~ l a n  as sets hold 
assessed rlsk ,historical result of return oh plan assets and tho company's poliq for plan assets 
management. 

! I 



111, Change in fair value of assets during the year ended 31st ~ a K h  
1. Fair value of plan assetsat the beginning of the year 
2. Add/(terr) on account of Lheme ofA(rangement/Business Transfer 
3. Expenses Recognigdin Profit and Loss Account 

I -Expected return on plan assets , 

+ Interest Income I 
4. Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 
Remeasurement goins / (loses) 
-Actual Return on plan assets in mess of the expected return 
- Mhers (specify) 
5. Contributions by emptoyer {including benefit payments recoverable) 
6. Benefit payments 
7. Falr value of plan assets at the end of the year 

IY. The Major categories of plan assets 
- List the plan assets by category here 

Insurance Fund 

V. Actuarial assumptions 
1, Discount rate 
2, Expected mte of return on plan assets 
3. Salary Increase Rate 
4. Rate of Employee Turnover 

5, Mortality Rate Durink Employment 

6. Mortaliv Rate After Employment 

VI, Other Details 
1. No of Act i i  Members 
2. Per Month Salaq For Active Members 
3. Weighted Average Duration of the P r o j d  Benefit Obligation 
4. Average Expected Fuhre S e ~ c e  
5, Projected Beneft Obligation (PBO) 
6. Prescribed Contribution For Next Year (12 Months) 

VII, Net Interest Cost 
1, Interest Cost 
2, Interest Income 
3. Net lnterest Cost (1-2) 

7.78% 
7.78% 
4.09% 
2,m 

lndian Assured 
lives Mortality 

(2006-08) 
N.A. 

211 
41,55,054 

5 
15 

2,46,50,200 
41,55,054 

lndian Assured lives 
Mortality (2006.08) 

N.A. 

38,12,712 

3,03,111 

(1,20,799) 

15,118 
(14,48,215} 

25,61,927 

25,61,927 

7,81% 
7,81% 
4,001 
2.00% 

lndian Assured lives 
Mortality (2006481 

N,A, 

135 
15,46,400 

5 
I1 

l177,6t695 
15,46,400 

13,65,487 
(3,03,111) 
10,62,376 



SADHANA NmKl CHEM LWITED I 

2nd Follnwlng Year 16,92,594 23.80,201 13,57,460 
3rd Foliowlng Year 20,93,052 18,2S,M1 34.13.404 
4th Foltowlng Year 2426,116 l8,51,669 15,12,150 
5th Following Year 11,38,551 23,9l,583 15.57.540 
Sum of Year 6 To 10 1,81,30,628 62,12,283 54,74,456 

I 

Maturity Analysis of Pra]lacted Beneflt Obligation: Fromthe Employer 
Projected BeneRts Payable In Future Years From the Date of Reporting 
1st Following Year 
2nd Following Year 
3rd Following Year 
4th FollowZng Year 
5th Following Year I 
Sum of Year 6 To 10 

VI11. Utperlencta Adjustments : I Year Ended 
2018 1 2017 

1. Defined BeneRt Obtlption (2,46,88,046) (2,08,88,046) 
2. Fair value of plan a& 
3. Surplus/{DeficitJ (1,46.88,046) (1,81,21,165) 
4. Experience adlustmenton plan liabilities [(Gain)/Loss] 
5. Otperlence adjustrnenlot~ plan assets (Gain/(lossJ] 

I ~ e t h o d d o ~  Adopted for A M  - I 1 Projected Unit Credit Method I 
I I I Sensltlvity anatysis Is an analyslr which will give the movement in liability if I 

the assumption were not proved to be true on different count. This only Iurofu1ne55 and Methodolow f ~ ' ~ ~ ~ ' ~ l ~ * ~ ~ l ~ ~ - I  signifies the change in the liability if the diffenrx. between assumed and I 
1 the actual is not following the parameters of the sensit-Mty analysis. I 

l~nwstrnent strategy - I ~ o t   DISCUSS^^ I 

Notes 
'Gratuity is payable as per company's scheme as detalled in the report. 
'Actuarial gainsflosses are recognked In the period of muran- under Other Comprehensive t n m e  (OCI). 
*All above reported figures of OU aregross of taxition. 
'Salaryescalation & aarttion rate are wnsldered as advised by the wmpany; they appear to be in line with the Industry practlce 
considering promotion and demand &supply of the employees. 
*Maturity Analysis of Projected Benefit obllgatfon Is done mnsldedng future salary, attrition &death In respealve year for members as 

Comment on Quality of Assets - 
Management Perspective of Future Contrlbutlons - 

mentioned a b m .  
*Avenge Utpected Future Service represents Estimated Term of Post - Employment BeneRt Obligetlon. 
'Value of asset prwided by the client is considered as fair value of plan asset for the perlod of reporting as same is not 
evaluated by us. 

Since Investment is with insurance company, Assetr are wnsldered to be 
secured. 

As per Actuarial Calculation 
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Note 32 - Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for) (Amount In? ) 

:iJ Contingent Ilabilitiep : 
(a) Bank Guarantped ~arterof t r a d i  
{b] Conolngent Uabilltles for Income Flc, Swvlce Tax and others: 
- lnwrne T8x # 
-Sales Tax # I 
- Sprvlce Tax # 
- Employees Claim # 

! 
(t i) Cornmltments : 
Estimated amcrunt of contracts rernainiw to be executed on capital afcount and not 
pmuided for (Net 01 advance) 

# Future cash outflow, If any in respect of these matters are deterrnlnable only on receipt of judgements Idecisions 
pendlng at various stages befoie the appellate authorities. The Management is of the opinion that the matters would be 
resolved in favour of the Company. 

Note 33 : 
A.Val 

Raw Material and Components 

8.Ex~enditure In forelan currencv (Amount tn fJ 

Mher matters - Foreign travel, torporate allocations etc. I 8,36,013 7,74,148 

Note  34: Slgnlficant estlrnates and assumptions 
I 

Estimates and Assumptions , 
The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 

aPTect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the 
disclosure of cantingent liabilities. Uncertainly about these assumptions and estimates could resuIt in outcomes that 
require a material adjustment to the carrylng amount of assests or tlabilitles affected in future periods. 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that 
have a stgniflcant rlsk of causlng a material adjustment to the canying amounts of assets and liabilities wlthln the next 
financial year, are described klow. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when 
the financial statements were prepared. Exlstlng clrcumstanms and assumptions about future developments, however, 
may change due to market changeg or circumstanoes arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes 
will be rdected in theassumptions wren they occur. 

lmpalnnent of non-financial assets 
lmperlrment exists when the carrying value of an asset or Cash Generating Unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount, 

which is h e  higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and Its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal 
calculation is based on available data from binding sates transactions, conducted at arm's length, for similar assets or 
observable market prices less inwemental costs for disposing of the asset. The value In use calculation is based on a DCF 
model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next Rve years and do not include restructuring activities that the 
Company is not yet committed to or slgnlffcant future investments that will enhance the assets performance of the CGU 
being tested. The recoverable amounts sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected 
future cash-Inflowsand the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. 
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Defined Benefit Plans {Gratuity Benefits) 
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity 

obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation invofves making various assumptions t hat may 
differ from actual developments In the future. These include the determinat~on of the discount rate, future salary 
Increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexilles involved In the valuetlon and its long term nature, a defined benefit 

obligation is h~ghly sensitive to changes in theseassumptions.All assumptions are reviewedat each reporl~ng date. 
The parameter most sublecl to change is the discount rate. In determlning the appropriate discount rate for plans 
operated in India, ths management considers the Interest rates of government bonds in curranclas consistent with the 

currenciesof the post-emptoyment benefit obligation. 
The mortality rate is based on publlcally available mortality tables forthe specific countries. Those mortality tables tend to 

change only at antenrat In response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based o n 
expectedfuture Inflation rates. 

Detailsabout gratuityobllgatlons are given in Note 31. 

Fairvalue measurement of flnancialinstrurnents 
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based 

on quoted prices in active markets, the fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF mods!. The 
inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of 
judgement is required in establ~sh~ng fairvalues. Judgements include considerationsof inputs suchas liquidity risk, c r e d I t 

risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value target and the 
discount factor. 
The Company has Valued its Rnanclal Instruments through profit % loss whlch Involves signfificant Judgements and 
estimates such as cash Rows for the period for which !he instrument is valid, EBlTDA of irmestee company, fair value of 

share price of the investee company on meeting certain requirements as per the agreement, etc. The determination of 
the falr value is based on expected discounted cash flows. The keyassumptlons take into consideration the probability 

of meeting each performance target and thediscount factor. 

Note 35 - Related party transactions 
I) Llst of related partfes 

I) Holding Company Mls. Manekchand Panachand Trading Investment Co. Pvt. Ltd. 
ii) Subsidiary a - MIS Anuchem t3.V.B.A Belgium 

b - MIS Strix Wireless Systems Pvt Ltd 
II) Key Management Personal 

I) Shri. Asit D.Javeri I Chairman & Managing Director 
Smt. Seema A. Javeri wife of Shri A.D Javeri 
Shri. Abhlshek A. Javeri son of Shri A,D Javerl 

ii) Abhbshek AJaveri Director & Chief Financial Mficer 

iii) Shri Nitin R Jani Company Secretary 

Ill) Disclosum in respect of material related party transaction during the year 

1 ). Sale of G o d  lo Anuchem BVBA, Betglum f 10,55,09,1511- (P.Y 79,29,27,2251-1 
2) Loan given to Mls. Strix Wireless Systems Pvt Ltd 78,42,94,6471- (P.Y Nil) 
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H 
Related party transactions durinq the vear [Amount in fl 

Nature of Transaction 
1 Holding Company I Subsidiaries l ~ e y  ~anagernent person I 

Sale of Goods 1 10.55,09~151 1 

Director Sitting Fees 

Managerial Remuneration 2.10,96,047 

{77.13,443) 

Loan Accepted 

(2 69.12.3131 1 
Loan Repayment 

Loan Given 

Interest on Loan 

Outstanding Balance as on 31st Match 2018 [ I I 20.92,499 1 

(2.69.12,313) 

2,71,830 1 

I h) I Guarantee Commission 

8,42,94,647 

l.44,00,000 I 

Notes: 
I .  Figures In brackets denote previous year amount. 
2. Related party relationships are as idenlified by the Company on the basls of lnforrnatlon ava~lable and relied upon by the auditors. 
3. No amounts has been wr~tten off orwntten back during Ihe year in respect of debts due from or lo elated party. 

209 

Outstanding Loan Balance as on 31 st March 201 8 

(3,13,91.521) 

8,4294,647 

(29.40.014) 



llw r a m  of Inmme. 
For the Leal year ended 

untanrs report In thls regard is awaited. In the opinlm of the management, the 
transactionsateantedoutat and no adjustments is ex- to arise hereon." 

Nob 37 -Segment reprtfng , 
Information reported b the Ief operating deciaim maker (CODM) for the p u m  of remum allocation and 

assessment of segment perfam$ h m e s  m the types of goods or sa.rvke. dslWred or pmvlded. The Campany is 
engawd in msnthctmg of chemlcal Intermediates, heavy wgank chemicals and perfomram chemicals. Which In the 
context of Indian Accounting Standard 108 'Segmmt Information' represents single #portable business segment The 
ecmunting polides of the reportab$ segmnta are the same as the accounting polloies dlsdoared In Note2. The revenues, 
totaI expensea and net fmlil as 4 the Satatemsnt of Protit and Lass  represents the revenue, total axpenses and tha net 
profitof the dols rqmbble segment, 

\ 
I 

Note 38  vents after reportldg period 
(I) On April 30,201 8, the B ' ard of Mmctors of the Company approved Issue of 1500000 Warrents convertible into 

equily share* ?8 months at 8 prehurn on Preferential basic fothe Promotem Gmup 
I 

(il) On &dl 30,2018, the &rd of Olrectors of the Company has proposed a dlvldend alT 0.10 per preferenm and a 
dkidgnd of r 1.W- per equity share. The ppo- dividend is subject to the apprwal of shareholders in the Annual 
general W n g .  

As per our repon of euen dab a t t a c h  
I Far and on behalf oft& Board of DImcbm 

Abhlshek A. I m r l  
Wrpwtln Director & CFO 

Pradmap N. Desal 
Director 



Tothe Members of Sadhana ~ltr4chern Llmited 
Report on the Consolidated lndl ' n Accounlng Standards (Ind AS) FInanclal Statements 1 
1. We Rave audited the a m  panylng consolidated Ind AS finandal statements of Sadhana MItrochem Limited 

(herekafter referred to as "th Holding Company") and its su bsidiary (the Holdlng Company and its subsidiary tcgether 
referred to as *the Gmup*), 9 mprising afthe Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2018, the Consolidated 
Statement of ProR and Lossl(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolldatd Statement of Cash Flows 
and the Consdidaied State ent of Changes in Equity for the year then ended. and a summary of the signmeant 
accounting polides and othe explanatory Information (herelnafler referred to as "the consolidated Ind AS financial 
statemsnts"). T 

Management's ResponslbllIty forthe Consolidated lnd AS Flnanclal Statements 
I 

2. fhe Holding Cornpanys ~oab of Directors is responsible far the preparation of these consolldated Ind AS financial 
statements in terms of the mqulrernents of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as *the A&) that give a 
true and fair vlew of the hnsolldated Rnancial position, consoltdated financial pelfomance (including other 

of changes In equfty of the Group 
indudlng In scmdsnce accounting principles generally accepted In India .Including the ind AS prescribed 

3, The respective Board of ~ i h m  of the wmpanies induded In the Group are responsible for maintenance of 
adequate accounting records In accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets ofthe Group and 
for preventing and detecting frauds and other trregularities; the selection and appliFation of appropriate accounting 
pdicies; making judgments h d  estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, lrnplementatlon and 
maintenance of adequate internal financlal controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting words, relevant to the prepamtion and presentamn of the consdldated Ind AS 
finandal statements that give a true end f a t  view and are free from material rnlsstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements by the 
D h d o r s  of the Holdlng Company, as aforesaid. 

4. Our responsibility is to exprey an opinion on these consolidated Ind AS financial statements based on our audit .While 
conducting the audit. we have~taken Into account the provjslons of the Act, the acaountlng and audklng standards and 
matters which are required to be induded in the audit report under the provisions of !he Act and the rules made 
thereunder. 

5. We c o n d d  our audit In aewrdance with the Standards on Auditing s m e d  undw Seetion t43(10) of the Act. 
Those standards requlred thkt we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audlt to ebbin 
reasonable assumnce abed whether the eonsolklated Ind AS Bnanclal stFlbments are free from material 
misstatement. 

8. An audit Involves performind procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts end dlsdwures in the 
consolldated Ind AS financbl frtatements. The procedures selected depend on the auditat's judgment, lncludhg the 
assessment of the risks of materlal mlsstaternent ofthe condidated Ind AS financial statements, whether due to b u d  
or ermr. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers lntwnal control relevant to the Holding Company's 
preparation and psentatlon 9fthe consolklated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view In order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate In the clrcumstsnces. An audit also Includes evaluating tha 
approprhkness of amounting pollcies used and the reasonableness of the aceountlng estlmEttes made by Holding 
Company's Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial 
ststemnts. 

7. We belleve that h e  audit evldthxe obtained by us and the audit evldence obtained by other auditom in t8rrn~ oftheir 
reports refemd to in sub-parabraph 8 of the Other Matters paragraph below, Is supficient and appropW to provMe a 
basis for ouraudlt opinion on thb consolidated lnd AS financialstaternenis. 

Oplnion I 
8. In our opinbn and to the best of our information and according to the explanations g i m  to us and based on the 

cansolIdation of reports dthe  other auditors on separate financlal statements of the subsidiaries as noted hbw , the 
aforesaid c a n d i d  Ind AS financlal statements glve the information required by the A d  In the manner so required 
and give awe and fa t  vlew In w n f m l t y  with the amounting principles generally accepted in India (inchding the Ind 



AS), of the consdidabed finan' al position of the Group as 31st March 2018 and L mnsoHdatedfinancial performance 
W i n g  other mmprehenal$ income, consolidated rash flows and h e  m o l l d a t e d  changes in equity fa me year 
then ended. 

Other Mabm 

b. We did not audit the tlnadm~ statements of two wholly owned subsidiaries (of which one is imxrrporatgd outslde 
India) indudd in Ehe wnsol ' at& Ind AS financial statements of the Group. T h w  subsidiaries accounts for tot4 
assets of RS 44,84,34,120 as 1 t 31sl March 201 8, total revenue of Rs f 3,56,30,602 , net proM I@oss) amounting to Re 
(2588,299) and total compdhensive Income of Rs (25,86.299) for fhe year ended on hat date. The financial 
statements of two whofly 9 suboidiarier (of which one is inmrprsted India) have h e n  audlted by &or 
auditors whose reports twe een furnished to us by the management and our opinbn on the consolldatd Ind AS 
financlal slatements, in so farlas it relates to the amounts and disdesures included in respect of these wholly owned 
subsidlatles, ls based sddy the repom ofthe other auditors. T 

10. Our oplnlon an the consolida(ed financial statements, and our r q m l  on Othr Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
WOW, is not m c d M  In r e s p y  ofthe abovematten with respectto our relianca onthe work doneand the reports of the 
other auditors. 

Report on 0th Legal and Regulatory Requlremnts 

11. As r e q b d  bySecfSon143(3) of the&& ha& on our audit and m the conslderatlon of the mpwt of the 0th auditors 
on separate financlal statemen@ of two wholly owned subsidbries (of which one is Immpoated &fde Indla) as noted 
in the "Other Mat&ersu paragra h we report, to the extent applfcah, that: 4 

a) We trave sought and obtain the information and explanations which to toe best of our knowledge and beliefwere 
necasmry for the purposes audit of theaforesaid consolMated Ind AS financial statements. 

as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consdidated lnd AS 
far as it appears from our examination OT those books and the reporis of the 

other auditors. 

c) The Consdklaterl Balance sheet, the Consdklated Statement oi  prdlt and Loss (Including Other CompMensive 
Income), the ConsolldaW Strrtemsntof Cash flow Statemant and Conwlidated SMernent of Changes in EquHy dealt 
wilh by this Repofl are In agreement with the relevant boolcs of account maintalnerd for the purpose of preparation of the 

d) In our opjnion, the afmwfd ~nsdldated Ind AS financial statements -ply with the lndtan Aocwnthg Sbntfards 
p&bed under SWm 133+fbtheAct, madwlth relevantrules issued there under. 

I 
e) On the basis of the written reprksentations re~eived from t h e d i m  of theGmup Gompanies incoprated in India as 

on 3lst March, 2018 taken od record by the respective Board of Diredon of the Gmup Companies incorporated in 
India, none of the dfr&ors dthe Gmup Companies Incorporated in India is dlsqualiied as on 31st M h ,  2018 from 
being appointed as a directwok the company In terms of S&lon 164 (2) of the Act. 

I 
f) Wth respect to the adequacy h a  inlwnal finaricial controls over flnandial reporling of the Gmvp and the operating 

effectiveness of such controls,fei%to our separate Report in"AnnexureAH, and 

g) WIUI respect to !he other m a t k  to be included in the Audbfs Repal In aewrdanee wlth Rule I I of the Companies 
(Audit and Au#itor's) Rules, 2014. in our opldon and to the best of our hfwmation and acrxlrding to tfae explanaffons 
given to us and based on the wnsMeratIon of the report of other auditors on separate tinanclal statements and other 
finanelrl infomatlon ofthe whdtly owned subsidiary mmpnias as noted inother matter paragraph : 



(0 The consdidated Ind AS finahcia1 statements dlsdose the impact of pendlng lltlgatlons on the consolidated finandal 
position of the Group. Refer N Q ~ B  32 to the mnsalidated lnd AS financial statements. 

(ii) The Group dld not have any m terial foreseeable losses on long-term mnhcts Indudlng derlvatlve contracts i 
(iii) There has been no delay In amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection 

Fund bythe Holding owned subsidiary company lnwrpwated in India. 

For Chandrashekar lyer & Cg 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: 114260W 

Chandreshekhar lyer 
Pamer I 
Mernbwship Number : 47723 

Murnbal , April 30,2018 
i 

ANNEXURE "A" TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED IND AS 
FINAEICUL STATEMENTS OF SADl-fANA NITROCHEM LIMITED 

Referred to In paragraph 11 (f) of our report of even date 
I 

Report on the Internal FInanelal kontrob un&r Clause (i) of Sub-sectlon 3 of Seetlon 143 of the Companies Act, 
204 3 ("'the Actu) 

In wn]unctlon M h  our a 1 dit of the consolidabd Ind AS financial statements of the Company as of and fw#e year 
ended 31st March 2018, we have audited the irrternat financial controla over flnanclal reporting of Sadhana Nilrochem 
Umited (hereinafter referred to as e Holding Company") and Its su bsldlary companies whieh are companies Incarporated 
in India , as of that date. + 
Managements Responsl blllty fo Infernal Financial Controls 7 

The respective Board d Directws of the Holding Company and subsidiary companies whieh are companies 
tncwporated in India, are responsble for establishing and maintaining internal financial oontrols based on the intemal 
control over financial reporting criteria estabtished by the Company eonsldering the essential components of Internal 
control stated In the Guidance ~otebn~udit  of lntei-nal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (Guidance Note )issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Amuntants of India ('LCAI). These responsibilities include the design, imflernentation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efflclent 
conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the preventton and 
detection of frauds and e m ,  the accuracy and completeness of fhe accounting records, and the timely prepamtion of 
rellablefinartclal informatian, as requird undwthe Companies Act, 201 3. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our revnsibility is to ekress an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporbing 
based on our audit. We conducted bur audit h accordance wlh  the Guidanm Note on Audi of Internal Rnancial Controls 
over Financial Reporilng (the 'Gul@nce Note Issued by ICAIH) and the Standards on Auditing, Issued by lCAl and deemed 
to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 201 3, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controts, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidanm Note require 
thai we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about wReiher 
adequate internal financial controlsoverfinanclal reporling was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effdvely in all material respects. I 

Our audit involves performing promdures to obtain audit evldence about the adequacy d the internal financial 
wntdssystem wer financial reportingand their operating effectiveness. Ourauditof internal financial wntrolsover 
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We beleve that the audit evidence /ve have obtalraed k svffidmt and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit oplnlon on 
the Companfs internal flnanclal controls system over financial repding. 

SADHAW MTRO CHEM UlTED 

financial mprting Indudd obtaini~tg 

hanlng of Internal Finandal Co s over Financial Repotttng Pt" 

M 
an understandtng of internal financial mirola over financial reporblng, assessing the 

transactions are 

risk that a rnaterlal weakntm exh Wing and mluatlng the dwign and operating dhfiveness of internal cantml 
based m the ass- risk. The res W&ed depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the 
r i s k  of mmatertal ml=tatement of R n a W  stabmnts, whether due to fraud or m r .  

auhr idwrsof  managmentand blmctors of the company; and (3) prwlde k n a b t e  k m w e  &garding prevention w 
blmebdetedion of unauhrbd duisitiwt. use. or dbsnton of the cwnmnvtkassrats that could have a rnaterfal effect on . * 

the lnd AS fmandal statements. 

Inherent UmItatIons of Internal F neial Controls overflnandal RepMtrng 

BBCBUW ofthe inherent l/milalns af internal ~nsncial controls over financial reporting, includiig the possibility of 
eolluston or improw rnamement~ovemide of control& rrrgterlal mlssEatements due to error or fraud mav occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections dany avaluabion of the internal financial controls over financid reporting tohtum perlods are 
abject to the risk that the intend hancial mnml over finandal reportfng may become Inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, wthatthe degreeof dpliancewith the poficiesw procedure maydetwi~rate. 

I 
Opinion I 

In our oplnlon, the ~ofdi;g Company and L sukldlary m p a n b s  which are cornpanha inmrpmted In India , 
haw, In all materld respects, an @equate internal finandal controls system w e r  t inand repotting and such internal 
financlsl mErols over financial mpbrtlng m owratlng effectively as at 31st March 2018, based on the internal m t m l  
over financial mportlng criteria esta&ikhed by the Company considering the esmntial cornponenb of Interns[ mttol stated 
in the GuMance Mote on Audl of it$emal Flrsanchl Controls Over Financial Reporting Issued by the lnsbitute of Chartered 
Accountants of fndb. I 

I 

For Chandrashekar lyer& Co 
Chartered Awxruntants 
Flrm Registration N u m b r  : 314280W 



Consolidated Balance Sheet as/at March 31,201 8 

Noncumnt mssmts 

(bJ Inranyble Assets 
(a) Property. Plant and 

(cl Caaltal work-10-proere 
Id) Flnamlal Aswts 

(I) Immstmenrs 
(iil Loans i 

@) Incoma Tax Asset (net) 
(0 Deferred Tux Asset {net11 
(g} Dthernwr current er-t 

Total Nan-Cumntauvt. 7 
Curmnt ass- 

(s) InvenmrIes 
(bl Flnanclal &lets  

0 )  made receivables I 

[v) Omsr flnanclsl auam 
(c) Other current assmts I 

r-1 wmmt assew 

Esurtv 
(a) Equlty Share capital 
{bl Other EqulN 

LlrbUItIms 
No-mnt I lsbl l l~m 

131 Flnandal Uablllnes 
(I)  aorrowlnp 

(b) PrwIsSons 
Tot41 Nan currant ltabllltlea 

Curmnt IlmbltlUm 
la) Flnandal Llabinties 

(I) BerwSnp  
(11) Tradm psyables 

(III) other financial IlabiIlties 
(b) Provlalons 

(cJ Ocher current IlabrlRler 

Note NO. As M h r c h  31. UIlS As a t  Mareh x. 2017 A5 atAWKlll.20%6 

Theampanying nomare an intern1 part of the consolidated financial statements. (Refer Notes 1- 38) 
As per our report of m n  date attached 

For ChandmJhekar lyer Co 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reglstratkm No : 1 1 4 2 W  

Chndmirrholrhar lyer 
h m e r  
Membership No 347723 

Fw and on bshalf d the Board of Directom 

nbhlshek A lwerl 
Emcutln Director & C K I  

Smt. Seema Alaverl 
Executive Director 
Admlnlstrakn 

Pffpm S Jhmrl 
Dlrector 

Nltln R kanl Amt M M e b  
Company secretary Director 
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Statement of Consolidated trotit and Loss for the year ended March 31.2018 
I 

SADHAMA NITRO CHEM LWTED 

M 

The amrnpanying nptes are an -1 part oft$@ wnsol~abed handal rtatements ( ~ l r  ~ o t e s  I- 381 
Ar per our r q o ~  d m  date attathed 

(I) 
(11) 
(Ill) 
(IW 

(V) 

(W) 
M I )  
(VIII) 
11X) 

{X) 
[XI) 

(XII) 

(XIII) 

(XIV) 

For and on behalf& the Beard d Direcbrs 

W n d  R Dosit! 
Director 

Amlt M Yehta 
Director 

I 

INCOME 
Rwenue from operutions 
Other lnwm 
Toml Income (11 + Ill) 

EXPENSES 

NOTE NO. As at March 31, M l a  Asat March S l ,  UI17 

20 /14.34,74;172 56,87,89.250 
2 1  28,8&W 49,13,531 

l,14,63.E5335 5737.02.781 

MATtWURS 

22A 

21B 

2ZC 
a3 
24 

a5 

[a) Cost of materlalr condmed 
(b) Changes in imrpntor€es of finished goods, e - I n - t r a d e  

and work-In-pmgress 
( 4  w s e  D m  
(d) Employes beneflts -rise 
(el nnancs cost5 I 
(I) Deorec18tlon and amwtlzatlon wense  

Depmbtion Experm (!4efer Note Nq3) 
(g] Other expenses 

foul Expensma (V) 
I 

Rom/(h) tnlora -pti~ml,Wm~ and te* (W - Vl 
m b n a l  km 
RPfft/(lw$) ~ I P  ts* [VI - VII) 
YaxExpenss 

Current tax 
kt%% MAT Cfedlt entitlement 
Deferred mx Assets 

Tom1 ~ P Y  expense 

PrOnt/(losa) far the wrld (WtI - 1x1 
Other hmprshandn lncomsm 

swuentlvto omt or loss 
Re-measurement on defined beneflt plans 

I be re-entlv to ~mRt or loss 
Total of Other Cwnprehanh 1-e ((I) +. (U)} 

Tofal ComprehenHw lnmme (X+ ml) 
I 

Earnlnpr par equiry share trl 
Bask DHuted 

4l,9l,-44,Sld 

l,49,91,965 

37,66307 
9,74.SO,240 
5,20,W,934 

l,9Z,w,4sa 
25,97,21,7l3 
86,63,84,331 

333,68,971 

(6,64024,985) 

1,7235.871 
7,76,30,117 
431484,m 

l,92,2O.W7 
12,52,07,,U1 

A 

29 

27,99,9Z,OW 

2 7 & ~ 8 2 , ~  

4,80PP2M 
t4.80,45.UrOl 
[3,W.19391) 
[3,09.19,385) 

3l,nS,Ol,38e 

50180,a 

s O ~ , w  

50,8h466 

(42,02496) 

(42.02p96) 

30,66,98,f193 

33.m 

(1279,S~l 

11L7983QI 

39, W,638 

0.42 



fhe m p a n y l n g  notes are m InOsgral pe 'of tha wnmlldakd ~ n r n d a l  statemems. ( M r  notas 1- SB) 
&par our repon dtwn date m d  1 
ForChWashsltarIyerklh 
Chartered AcmwnhnU 
F h  fkgkhlh Wo:114265W 

Umndraahekhar lyH 
Pattner 
Membership No :a7723 

ArHDlavad 
Chairman & 
Managing Oircrbpr 

AbMshek A h e r 1  
Exawtlve Director a CFO 



SADHAMA NITRO CHEM U n € O  I 
Consdldated Cash Flow statement br the year ended March 31,2018 

Porrtcularr I For the war ended March 31,2018 For theyear ended March 31,1017 

A. m h  flow imm operdng actlvltler 
ProfIt before tm 27,57.79,508 1,83,00,632 
MjustmentE for: 
Depreciation and amwtlsation erpensrs 1,92,04,458 1,92,20,851 
Finance costs I 5,20,64,934 4*68,42,720 - 

7,12,69,392 480,63,571 
Operaolw profit / (tars] before e i n g  capHal changes 34,70,d8,soO 8.53.84.203 I 
Changes in worlring cspital: 
Inventories 
Loans and advancer 
Tmde Pwables 1 current llabiltrv I Pwisions 
Trade receivables 

Cash generated fmm operations 
&Direct Taxer (Paid) 
Net cash f k w  from / (used In) opentlng retluides (A) 

6. Cash flow from /(used in) investirtg actlvltles 
a.Capita1 expendbun on Fixed Assets 
{Met of Adjustment for capital Wwk-in-prognxs) 
bAcquisitton /Sale of Investment / F I y i  asset (Net) 
c.Cash adslng on acquisition of subsldlarv 
d. lrmstment in suMdiary 6.523 
Net wsh flow from / (med in) lmedlng adtvttles {B) 

C Cash flow from / (umd in) Rnandng a M e s  
a.5uured Botrcdngs -Net of Repavmmt 
b.Unsecured Borrowings -Net of Repayment 
rFinance cost paid 
d.lssue of fresh equity {including premlum) 

I Net cash RDW fmm / (d In) Rmnclng actlvltler [C] I 
Net increase / (decrem) In Carh and t& equMlentr w) 15,7/45,902 
Cash and Q S ~  equivalents at the Wnning of the year (15.46.13.6081 
Cash and cash equivalents a the end of the year 25.32.294 

of the bllowfng 
Cash and cash equivalent as per note 11 
Cash in hand 19,99,183 
Imlance with MnU (on cumnt accounts] 

Bank ovcrdnRs / Cash cndlt (Note 158) 
Balance as per statement of cash tlow 

Notes: 
I flaures In brackets reoresent outflows I I 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. (Refer Notes 1.38) 
As per our report of even date attached 

For Chmndnhmlur 1 y . r  Co 
chartered Accountants 
f l rm Rcglstntlon No :1142SOW 

Chandrwhskkar lye? 
Pmrtnar 
MemberShlp NO 

Mumbal , AM1 90,2018 

Abhlrhek A laver1 
Exewtlve OlmcMr & CFO 
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- - - - - . - . . . . . . - - . - -. . - 
~ ~ g r a n $ l n ~ b m a ~ ~ v n s $ s ~ ~ I n ~ r g ~ 8 g i o n s : ~ h e C o m p l m y k e ~ t o v a ~ ~ u s ~ f m n ~ l ~ ~ o ~ h  
rasped drnmfamhq unb loceted lq develom re$ons. The m y  a m t s  for RB emtdemenh cm eewd bask on appmd af the (nLI ddm by Um 
relwanteulhorlllesand&en, breaso~~noethatthegrantsw311 berecelved. 

'18GovemmentmanLg b wsDeetdeddHi& CapW ~ d L m s : G o v e m m t g m $ M o s e  pdmyoondllion Isthat the CanpenyshwM purchase, cMslructw 

. . 
~ a s a n ~ ~ ~ m p b ~ t t a v e w n d e r e d t h e ~ e n ~ ~ t h e m t o ( h s m b l t u l s o n . '  

'121 M B e n & ~ ~ a n : ~ a r d e ~ n e d  benefiimmm, thecostofpmvidng h e i b  b d e t e ~ e d u ~  the projected un~credimeIhod,w(lh aUuarb1 . . 
each annd rqm@ p e d ,  Ramsasu& m p r i a i q  acbJerial galn~ and k@w, the W o f t h s  hangastothe 
onplanassaPs(ach&tginte&), I s r e l l M l m m e d i  hthas$kmentolfinanwIpcs~w8hach~~#ed'd 



- 
~ ~ o e ~ ~ t ~ d u d t n g e u ~ s m i w  ~ ~ ~ c e m s l . r s w d l ~ s ~ i n a a n d l r r s s e s o n t x r r t a i L n e n t s a n d ~ f t ~ n t s ) ;  
-neti~ewpenseo11lwnme;and 
-maurementn 

(1) G h i t y :  
Tim Cwrpany b an oMqation tnvl9rds gmty, a Md 8dwiit r e t i m n t  plan m k g  e m p p m .  Tha plan pmvideg for a lump awn 
payment to~em~~at&ment ,deathwhi lshempbymentoron termbrahdampl~~danamwntsqu~alentto15128dayssalatypaya~h 
e& m+@leM year of smica cxxxos u p  completion olhe years dwniw. The Cwnpanyaccounts forthe Uabwily bwgm benem p y a k  in 
kbre basad adonan I&pandeni M ualuation. Tha Canpany has taken a Group Grahrity cum U f e h r a n e e  Schm wilh Life lnsmnca Coporah ibr 
f U h l ~ ~ I M t o f ~ ~ b J i i y l o t k 8 e l i g $ l e e m ~ .  

(i) CompeWAbsencw: 
The Compeny -9 far lha smshrneni of cornpew abmm with pay $ cwtein mles. The smpl~yeea are enlitlad to 
m u l a t e  mmymsated abmm subw to cerlain lmk, lorfulure ericashmentkumulated I m s ,  which is expeded to be ufilsed wlthh ttm next twelve 
~ I s l r a a t e d m ~ e ~ b e M a n d I h s a r m m ~ h ~ b b e a t r l e d ~ r d ~ ~ n w n t h i s ~ a s l o ~ r m  
empbyeehnefitwhiia~prwidd badm t k e ~ r o f d a y s d u n  Wsedwmpensad absencsonthe basis DfanindspendmtacMalval~on. 

L t O T w t l o n  
lnwme taxexpense wmpri% w m t  hexpense and the net champ in the d&md tax asseiw libiii during the m. Currenl and deferrd tax= r e m i d  
Inpmfitor~,exceptwhenthayrelaletohlhatare~nised h~eomprehenslvaimordkect lyhegul ty , lnW~,bcvrrantanddefensdtaxm 
a t s o ~ d s e d i n o l h w ~ h s m ~ ~ ~ ~ m a w d i r e c t t y i n e q u ~ ~ ~ . l n e r m e ~ ~ r e p r e s e f i t s ~ s u m d ~ $ I I ~ ~ n e n ~ p ~ a R d M $ x .  
Curmnt Inwme tax 
~tawwnenllypyablekb9~onhbisp~fwtheyaar.~aKakptO~dffershwn'~tbeforetax'asrepDrtedinha~lementofp~w l o s s a n d  
Pther mrp&tedw Inwmels$tement pmRt or k b e m w  of items of i m  or ~w that are W M e  or dadudible In other years and Items lRat are 
n e w  $xaMe or deduWe. The Compenys rxlrrent lax ia calculated using iax ra$s that haw been enaded or 6uMmlively enacled by th end of the r e m  
period.' 
Mvam tax= and pmvisions f rxlrrent i m  h s a r e  presented in ik balarw shed a k o 8 4 @  a d v m  tan pid and in- tax p r c 4 a b  wising in h e  
aameWju~idionandwhe~therekvant~p~~n~intenhtosattlelheasset~dLbiltyonamtbaQis 
Dsfsnedlncom law 
Mmed l m e  lax !smxpnlsed usiqthe bdam shmt appo&. Deferred I m  taw asse band WLim are reccgnlsed bdedmAibh and taxable tmprary 
dhrancas artslrg b&wn Ihe lax base of4bPSBtS and IMlEesmd Iheir camg amwnl mcsplwhan the defmed l n m  tax arbs frm he hDI reagnltron d 
goodwillormass~orfiah~~inahsachlhatisMta b u s j n e s s w n S M ~ t h ~ 1 d ~ s ~ l h e r a c m u n l i n g n o r ~ ~ ~ f w k a t t h e l i m s d l h e t r s n s a c l l o h  
O e f a n a d i n c o m e l a x a M m ~ t i s e d t o h & t M i t i s ~ b l e l h a t h b l e p r o M w i l l k ~ e a g a i n d w M c h t h e d e d t ~ d i b ) e ~ r a r y d l f f e r e n c a s m d t h e  
~ n y ~ d o f l m u s e d l a r r c P e d b a n d u n ~ $ r I o g a e ~ m  b Hped.Themyir@amntofLfemd hmmtex&isrsvi%H9dat each r6porlingd&ard 
r&csdiohhetthaf#isnoloogerproba~tttat~~1AdenttaxaMe~witbea~~ilaMetaallwv~ w ~ o f h e d s k ~ i n w m e l a x a s s e t t o b e N W .  
Defened tax mls and !&Kim are m k r d  using w r b s $ n M y  e w t d  @x rater expected lu apply to &a& income In h e  yean in wh i i  the tempotarj 
d h r s n c e s a f e ~ i o b B ~ ~ ~ ~ i V B d ~ ~ & ~ .  
Manedtaw~b~ndLM~are~t~~entheyrelatetDincrwne$xesleviadbythemtawattonaulhorityand therdevm!enlityintendstow?bi$current 
tarrassa4sandhWtismamtW 
Deferred ia assets lnclde Mmrn AltemateT~~~ (MT) paid h accwdarica wHh the lm laws h Indla, which i8 likePjto$w Mum m o m i c b e  
availabily pfmt obi @net future income @x tlablli. AmAccordingly, M4T is rsmgoised as datarrad ten assst n the M a w  aheat when Ihs asset can be rneasud 
rePablynd%isprPbaMthatthehtm ewbmicbeneRWa$dwiVlthea58etwii bereallsed. 

2.11 Property, Plantand Equipment 
Pmperly, plant and equipment field iw use h pmduction or supply of goods or s e h  w for admitishhe p w s  we dated at aal less acarmukd 
dapraciatimh- k aaumrdeted k r p i i t ,  if any. The mat ob RKed aasets mrrpriaes ils p h a w  pn'ce nd of any h d a  discounls and &ate& any 
i ~ d d u l i e a  md other taws (oWthm Ihose wbquenlty reawenble fmthe lax aulhoribies), any diidly althulabls expandihre on r n l n g  the assdmdyfw 
i$Mendeduse,andhWmbormrri~a~bu$bletoecquisihdquaEty'mgfixed~up to I h e d a t a l h e a s s e t i s ~ f w I t S I ~ B d u s e ,  
Capi$lw&ir+-ogre88fw@ctim, s u ~ o f a d m l n ~ p u ~ s i s  ca~atwstlessaccumubtedGnpairmenlW ifmy, u n b l c w ? ~ m d  insldlalion 
a m ~ ~ a n d t h e a a s e t ~ ~ ~ y k L 1 ~ d e d u s e .  
'Depredation is rswgnkd ( O M  than on WpiIal wwk4kprqress) on a stra&t Ane hsis over the estimated useful kves of asseis in respect of propetly plmt & 
q u l p m m t & ~ a w l ~ a ~ l s l ~ 2 0 0 6 . ~ ~ p l a n t & e q u i p m n t i n d u d q n a n ~ ~  buadig krnlurefmlures b v e h d e s ~ u l ~ p ~ W l o ~ s t A @  
2006 are d a p & d  under WDV Mew at Uw labs prescribad under Schdule [I of Cm-qrdes Act, 2013. W L i P n  on e9sets ecqulredl purchawd, 
~ s ~ ~ d u h g ( h e ~ r L s ~ d s d o ~ a p r P r a l a b a s i s f m m l h a d a t e o f ~ ~ H l o n U H t h e & ~ o f W n U m t '  
TheewnomicuseMlhws o f a w s  Lmsed basedm a techrrlcal e v a l w h ,  lakinglnta awwntthe natureof as-, the eslimated usqs of a d s ,  Ihecperahg 
~ U U O R S  of the assets, anflcbkd WhnWIcaI chnges, mahtenance hlslory, &The what& useful IIfe Is &wed at the end of 
~ ~ p e r l o d , w s l h e i % d d a n y d r e r g s  h s s l i m a b ~ a ~ l o r a n a p ~ b s l e .  
' W h s r e ~ e ~ o l ~ o l l h e ~ t k ~ ~ n t t o t h e t n t a l m s t d t t w 8 5 6 8 t s a ~ h ~ s ~ l i f s o f f h a t p r t i s d i f f s ~ t f m m h s ~ l d t l a e r e m ~ i n g a ~ W l i f s  
P i t h a t e i ~ R c a n t p a r t i o ~ n l R e d s e p a r a l e l y . D ~ a h o f ~ s i g n l h n t p ~ H a n y ,  hhMonthemklFfedhatpert.F&W ImdlsMtde#mdaled.' 
A n l t e m ~ p ~ , p l a ~ s n d s q u @ m s n t i s d e r e c t g n W u p o n d ~ l w ~ e n n o f u l u r e s w r o m l c b e n e f i $ a r e e x p e c t e d b ~ ~ t t f r o s n l h a w n U ~ v s e d I h e ~  
Any gdn u Ices arking on he dispsal or rehmnl  of an kin ofp-orn, plant and equipment, delemimed as dikmca b h n  llw gales p c e d s  snd h e  
c a r r j i n g a m w r t l d t h e ~ l s ~ ~ h l h e S $ t e ~ o Q P r o b d w C o s s .  
Fut ran lonto lNDAShmpany h ~ ~ t o ~ u e w i l h t t w c e r r y i n g w l u e d a l t h p r o ~ p h n t a n d e q u i p m e n t ~ ~ a s c n  19tApril2016hrs3hn 
~m~sunrdas~praviwsGAAPandqdhatcarryingrakreaslhdeemed w s t a s o f ~ ~ s l l i o n d a t e .  

2.~2!nlangl#~A3~& 
Intmgble agPatPwtlh finite whl Bves haare acquhd sepmktj xw anied at mt lass ~~ mrlhtm. AmtzaM is rewgntzed w a sttalghl h e  
besis over t h k  esbmeted useM f r l a  of 3@w, which r e b b  Ihe pattern h which the %sseYs mmic benefits are cmsumed. The ssilmatsd useM IL, Ihs 
a m o r h h n  method and the mllirabkr Prirrd are nviwed at tha end d &ah mpi%ng psriod, wilh efled of any change in e&mte being m t e d  edr on a 
pm+ymcliuebasia 
~ n ~ n $ ~ i ~ e & l s d ~ n h e d m d i s & d w w h a n n r r ~ w ~ c b e ~ a r e e x p a c t e d h u s e m d ~ . ~ a i n s o r ~ s & n g h m d w e c o g n i b o f  
s n I n $ n g P l l e a s s e t , ~ & a s ~ d i f f e ~ m b ~ n ( h a c a e t d i ~ p o s a l p ~ s a n d ~ c a r r l i n g a m o u n l o f t h s & , a l a d a r e ~ n h e d i n t h e ~ w h w 0 l e n  
t h s & i $ ~ n M .  

Z.'IBlnipqIrment 
F M a I  woo$ (other than a4 fair valuo)Ttm Company as- at eac4 da?a c+ balam sheet whether a Mardcial asset or a group of Rnanclal w t s  is 
impaired.lnd AS I# r e q u i ~  c d k  loasas b be rnsawred t h m a  0 Ices albwmm. The Company rmgnisas l i  expechd ht aD oMdmct 
mtsandlwallWs~MmIhatdoRotmWaRnandnghnsacllm. 





opemcyde. 
2 . t t a S h a w ~  

I 
C k d i ~ ~ ~ ~ ~  are dasSHled as 8qulty. Inoremental mats, if any, dl- atbihbblstp the issue of wdinary shares am recognkd asaddudion 
gwnPtherequily,nelofanytaw~ 

2,2WalrVaIwWsu1mnt 
F a l r u a l ~ ~ ~ ~ p r i m B a t w d d  b e ~ h h s a l a o f a n a s a e t ~ @ d t o t r a n ~ a i B a b i l l t y I n a n o r d ~ y ~ s a & n b e h v e e n m a r k e t ~ n t s ~ t h e  
meaeursmni date. T b  hit d u e  m e e u b n t  is hsed on i l ~  presumpth hat the transadkn to ssll an assei or lrensfer l h ~  IlabllHy takes phce e W  - In the 
p r i n d p l e m l k e l f w L h e ~ o r ~ a b l l l t y - ~ t h e a b s e m o f p r i ~ e m r k s t , I n t h e  W a ~ s m a r k a l f n r I h e a s a e t o r l ~ . T h a ~ o r t h e W  
a d v a n t e g e o l l s m a r k s t m u s l ~ ~ ~  ~ l b C o m p n y .  
Thefabvalue of an a m t o r a l M @  is m@d using theassurnpbm that merket partiapmlswkl wHmm piarg the Woriabilky, assumiq that- 
p-actini+mirsmnomiebeatA 
h f a l r ~ ~ d o f a m f i o a  a l a a s s t ~ h b a c c D u n t e m e r k e t p ~ & a M ~ t o g ~ ~ m i c b e n s f i t s ~ u s i ~ b ~ W ~ ~ ~ g ~ ~  
~ t u * ~ ~ a ~ l g l b a m h a ~ ~ n \ t h a l w w l d w t h e & l n b h ~ k a t a n d b e s t u ~ .  
T h e ~ u s s 9 r e l ~ t e c h n ~ w t h a t a m a p p ~ ~ I n t h e ~ ~ ~ a n d f p r ~ i ~ h ~ t d a $ ~ l t ? m W b t o m ~ m f e ' c ~ ~ k r e , ~ ~ I h e u 8 8  
olralevent&mabh h p t s a n d m i t i m i & i g t t w u s e o f ~ I n p u l s .  
A a d  and IIzMU~forwhW fak b r n d  u d i i  In Amdd shtements are d q m e d  mthin tha Wirv&e Wrd?y, desamed aefolwre, Wonhebnuthd~W~~lto~falrdu,maavannlna*hok-WUwl(-~/UnlqW) MaMp-bh ~ m s ~ f o t  
M e n t d  awl6 cu IMlb L d  2- Wm technbques farwhreh h h e &  h l  hpui that Is slghcant tn the blrv&ue n-!#awmmnt Is dlrw ff hd- 
a D m m ~ ~ J - Y U I ~ T ~ ~ t w R 1 c h I h e ~ l a w I h p u 1 I h a t L s a s e d c a n ~ t o ~ f a l r ~ e m e m m m e n l b u m ~ W e W e  
F w ~ a n d I ~ a W l l l e s t h a t ~ r e m g n ~ I n ~ ~ a n c i a l ~ m a ~ b a s l s , h C w n p e n y d a l e r r m n e s w h e I h e r h ~ t h I b w o c c l s r e d b e b w e e n  
lev& h the hferetchy b y w m  c s $ g o r h h  b l e d  on the Lowreallevel inputlhatls significantlo the fatrvrduememremmt aaawhde) atthe end o f d l  
W m p e ~ .  I 

DetermhakndFairValw 
I ]  FlnaneldAgssta-aeWlnstMlenEs&amortl&cW 

#& IMd m m n t  fhe hndd & am subrnugnlly mmsurwi at a& msl Mg Ihe ElWive I n h s t  Rate (@I?) melhod.l\morth& Eoat h 
ml&M byWnghto~~~wpremlummacquis~&feeawmstlhatal leanh$galpartol$wEIR.  

2) F l n a n e l a l A s a e $ - D e M l n ~ ~ a t F a l r V a l ~ ~ t h m u ~ ~ C o r n ~ I m o m a  (-0 
h s w d  hkhb ;w we4 as at each wporllrrg date at lair m e .  Fair vab mwenmenls a18 raoglr&ed h ths b CMnpmhdve b m  (OC1). On 
d e ~ i l i o n o f I h s a s s e t , ~ g a i n ~ ~ I ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ n h e d i n O C l L r e J a s s i f i a d h t h ~ q ~ b P & L .  

3) DeMWmwnts,  dsr lv~andegul ly  Infdwrn~nb at FalrValwthroughProflIw Loas (NIPL) 
n r r P L i s a ~ l d u a l ~ f o r d e b t ~ A n y d e M ~ n s ~ m e n ~ w H e h ~ ~ m e e l ~ ~ a 6 w c a s a g o ~ t l o n  asatamortbedmdorasMOC1, is 
&ssWfiedaaat!TW 

4 ~ L l a b l i i t h  
Financral Italnltm are dwW, eh Initial rewgnlllon, as flnancbl IiWliea at far velue thrwgh ptod B has, loans md ndbormwings, p@les, 
o r ~ d e r l v a t i u e s ~ a t a d a s M ~ g h ~ t r u m a ~ i n 8 n e f f e c l r ~ ~ h e d g e , a s e p p r o p W t l n a n d a l b b A ~ a m ~ ~ i n i ~ ~ a t ~ ~ u e a n d ,  hibase 
ofhmendbonawtngsand&,~totdredly~~ h n ~ w s l a ~ ~ d e s f i n a n e i a l B & b s i ~ e ~ a n d o t h e r p s y a ~ b n s a n d  
b m o w l n g s l n d u d h g b a n R w ~ s n d d a r i u ~ h ~ a l I n s b u m ~ .  

221 W e n d  

2 2 Z l n ~ ~  
LcngTsrm Investments are&&& m h  Pmvtelon I w & n n w h  is mede Cmagn~ze Ihs&dine, &sc than tempmryh the valutof b s e  inwdnmts. Cuffiwt 
l ~ h e l a r e c a m d a t l ~ w e r o f t h e ~ $ n d ~ r n h ~  

9sSmantRepo~a I 
The C m n y  IdenWles prhnarj sagmen$ h a d  an the hinntrouw, nature of dsks ml ndamd W M d  o~nlsabbn and maraagement sbucture. The 
~ ~ n $ a r e b r c B a A l s n $ h ~ l e h s e p a r a t e h n d a l i ~ b i s a ~ ~ ~ e ~ f w ~ ~ p r o M l k a m k m m l l b a t e d r e g u l ~ y  wlythe 
&f&&goedaion M&(COOM) h d e d d l ~ h w t o a k a h  re~wrcesandh&~ perlomwm.7heaccwnfkg polldes ad~ptsdforsqmntreporlslg 
am in Ibe w b  h macUng pow& d the -ny. Segml revenue, segnant ewpensss, wimnt amb d tralsegmed Iiiabfiks !deaMed to 
wntn a - ~  h he& d their &lid@ to Ihe o m n g  aclivlliaa of the segment. W e g m e n t  m m e  Is awwnted pn Ihe M s  of irmacbm whih are 

d&mdned basad on maht IWvalue m. h e m e ,  mpnses,  -$and I l a b i b  whkh dale tothe Company asswhole and am notallocable lo 
s e g m e n t s o n r e ~ b s i e ~ b e e n i i r d u d e d ~ r u d e ~ ~ ~ v e ~ I w x p a n ~ l ~ I l i ~ b l I I ~ .  





Notms forming part of the Consolidated financial Statements for the year ended March 31 ,20T8 
Note 4: Investments 

Note 5 - Loans 

Sr. 
NO 

( i )  

Particular 

Hon Current lnvesbnenta 
O h r  lmimnts (At cost) 
QM 
Anm Cornrnunicatim Ltd 
hmi Finance LM 
Indian Extractions LW 
Indo-biotech 1W 
Firs! objm Techndies Lid 
Mamrth orchardp Lid 
Ojas Technochern Prodm LM 

L m  Pmvisbn for &line other than temporary 
, In valueof m current Investments 

TOTAL 
Fcdnotes : 
(i) Aggregate book d u e  of quoted inmstrnents 

AggregaC matltel valw of quoted Inveshents 
(ii)9ggrqate amount dwrmeni n due d inwhsnts 

April I, 2016 

3,10,650 

3,10,650 

Sr. No 

A 

(1) 

[It) 

Face 
Value 

T 10 
7 20 
710 
T I 0  
t I 0  
710 
T 10 

10,75,127 
3,78,800 

10,75,127 

Particulars ----- 
Non Current Loans 
(Unsecured Considered Ooods , unless otherwise stated 

b a n  to reiated party at amortised cast 

Loan to staff 

TOTAL 

B 

(I) 

(ii) 

10,75,127 

10,75,127 

March 34,2010 

March 31, ZOla 

8,42,94,647 

13,78,9& 

8,56,73,5g3 

~urrent~oans I 
(Unsecured Considered Goods, unless otherwise stated: 

Loan to staff 

Othe? 
TmhL ---- 

'Others include 

Short Term staff advance ' 
Advance llcence 
Interest Receivable Others 
Salary advance 
VAT & Service Tax R e c e i ~  ble 
Demurrage Charges Recelvabla 
Other Advances Receivable In cash & klnd 

TOTAL 

10,75,127 

10,75,127 

Hddings 
As At 

500 
3,900 

15,OM) 
5,000 
2,000 
1,300 
5,000 

March 31,2017 

4,68,636 

4,68,636 

2,24346 

71,95,053 

6,75,341 

71,788 
78,000 

5,08,194 
1,91,250 

81,400 
13,000 

1,31,495 
10,75,127 

10,75,127 

M r c h  31,2017 

1,25,000 

1,45,27,453 

April 1,2016 

Holdings 
As At 

6,75,341 

Holdings 
AaAt 

71,788 
78,OKi 

5,06,194 
1,91,250 

81,400 
13,000 

1,31,495 
1~1,75,127 

10,75,127 

1,46,52,453 

1,22,340 
20,136,901 
12,74,332 
3,17,089 

21,57,835 
38.68.374 
47,80,577 

1,45,27,453 

f 

71,788 
78,000 

5,08,194 
1,91,250 

81,400 
13,000 

1.31,495 
jo,ss,in 

?0,75,127 



SADHAHA NITRO CHEM LIMITED I w 
Notes forming part of the Consobdated financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2018 

Note 6 - Other financial assets (Amount in 7) 

I I 1 I 1 

TOTAL I 4,11,5001 1,22,3811 4,33,13 

Sr. No 

(I) 

Note No. 7 - Deferred tax Llabllltiesl(Asset) (Net) 

~adiculars 

Interest Accrued on ~0posits 
I 

(Amount in P) 
~arch31,20171 Apdl1,2016 

March 31,20f8 

4,11,500 

Sr. No 

0) 
(ii) 

-- 
Deferred Tax Liability 
Depreciation on fixed assets 
Gross Deferred Tax Liability (1 ) 
Deferred Tax Asset 
Employee Benew obligations 
Brought forward unabsorbed depreciation 
!to be carried forward to next years 
Others 
Gross Deferred Tax Asset (2) 
Net Deferred Tax LiabilitNAsset) (1.2) 

(i) 
(ii) 

2,26,27,770 
2,26,27,770 

(1,04,67,974) 

(4,26,24,883) 
(21,03,985) 

(5,51,96,832) 
(3,25,69,062) 

(iii) 

Note: 
Due to changes In Global Macro Economic Scenerio . the demand for the companies products has Increased resulthg 
improved tradlng condrtions and profitability. The trend is expected to continue maklng it probable for the company to 
generate sufficient taxable proms in future . Henm a Deferred tax asset amounting to 3 3,25,69,062/- has k e n  mated 

Plant Property Equipment 
Gross Deffered Tax Liability 

k-t respect of the unused tax losses. 

Deffered Tax Asset 
Dafined beneM obligation 
Other Dlsallwrable Expenses 
Brought forward unabsorbed depreclatfon to be carried 

Closing 
Recognlsed In 

For the year ended 31stMarch 2018 Opennlng Balane 
~roflt or loss 

Recognised in 
profit or loss 

On acquisition of 
subsldlarv 

forward to next years 
Gmss Deffered Tax Asset 

Openning Balanw I For the year ended 31st March 2017 

f 

- 

Deffered Tax Liability 
Plant Properly Equipment 
Gross Deffered Tax Liability 

Defferd Tax Assel 
Defined benefit obligation 
Other Disallowabb Expenses 
Brought forward unabsorbed depredation 
to be ca-d forward to next years 
!Gross Deffered Tax Asset 

(5,37,15,888) (1 4,80.944) (5.51,96,832) 



SADWMA NITRO C H M  UMiTEO I 
3hE 

Motes forming part of the Con olidated flnanclal Statements for the year ended March 31 ,2048 

Note 8 - Other Assets 1 (Amount in T) 

Sr. No Particulars March 31,203 8 March 31,2017 Aprll I, 2016 I 
A Non Currenthats  

(I) Capital advance 3,14,86,328 57,26,831 10,39,735 
(il) Security Deposits wi? Publlc Bodies and others 65,56,439 61,16,539 61,12,539 
(iii) Balance with StatutoQlRevenue Authorities 84,40,076 3,55,43,617 1,6t,38,266 
(iv) Prepaid Expenses 5,13,782 

TOTAL 4,69,96,625 2,73,86,987 2,32,70,560 

Balance with ~tatuto&Revenue Authorities I f  ,44,10,853 
3,93,M,916 

(lii) I Prepaid Expenses I 19,54543 
I TOTAL 13.56.86.312 

Note - 9 : Inventories (At lower of cost and net realisable value) 

Sr. No Particulars March 31,2018 

(ill 
(iii) 

Ilv) 

(March 31,2017-7 5025041 (Aprll 1,2016 - Nil) 6,52,99,436 
Work-in-progress 7,45,14,398 
Flnlshed Goods 3,25,42,888 
Stores & Spares 4,18,53,144 

(v) 1 Others {Fuel,Packlng Material) 41,37,049 

1 TOTAL 21,83,46,915 

March 31,2017 

(Amount in 71 

Note No. 10 - Trade receivables (Amount in 'f) 

Sr. Mo 1 Particulars I March 31,2018 

I I I 
Unsecured I 

(i) Considered good 
(ii) Considered doubtful 

1 I krr  : Allowance for doubtful debts 

t 
I 

I TOTAL I 15,28,66,705 

Footnote : I 

March 31,2017 April 1,2016 I 

1. Trade receivables are dues in r8spect of goods sold in the normal course of business. 

2. The normal credit period alloGd by the company ranges from 60 to 90 days. 
3. No trade or other receivables are dues from directors or other officer of the company either severally or jointly with any 

other person nor any trade or other receivables are due from firm or private companies respectiveb . 
4. Refer Note no 28 for credit risk 



SAUHANA MlTRO CHEM UMmP I = 

I I I t I 

TOTAL 7.14,59,013 1 22.80.541 1 34,42,625 

Note 11 : Cash and Cash Equivalents 
(Amount in T) 

Note 12 : Other Balances with Bank 

Particulars March 31,2018 

, (i) Cash in hand 19,99,18 3 

Footnotes : 
(a) Margin money deposits with carrying amount of T 81,13,4251- (March 31,2017 - 7 60,42,1311- ; March 31. 
201 6 - 7 69,42,2261- ) are subject to first charge against bank guarantees. 
Note 13 : Equky Share Capital 

March 31,201 7 --- 
7,08,630 

15,71,911 (ii) 

Sr. No 

(F) 

Aprll 1,201 6 

4,37,273 

30,05,352 

Authorised capital of l?OOOOOO (2017 :ll750000) and (2016 :11750000), 1% (2017 : 9%) and (2016:9%) Non convertible Non Cumula!ive 
(201 7 : Curnulafive )and (201 6 :Cumulative) Redeemable Preference Share of ;f 101- each is not considered above.Redeemable Preference 
sharesissued haveben conslderedas bormwingsin.accordancew~ththerequlmment of IndAS. Refer Note I 5  ( e ) 
Footnotes : 

Balance with bank in 

TOTAL 

Particulars 
Call and short term depos~t accounts 
Margin money Deposits with original Maturity el2 Months 
[Refere Nate no (a) below) 

Less : T e n  Deposit dth Bank maturing after 12 
months from the balance sheet date and other 
Earmarked I Margin money I Pledged depostrs 
classified as Nun - Current Financial Assets 

Particulars 

Authorised Capital: 

10500000 Equity Shares d 7701- each 

(March 3 7,20j 7: 9250000 Equity Shares of f l. 01- each) 
(April I, 2016: 9250000. Equity Shares of 7101- each) 

Issued Subscribed & Paid up: 
931 5149 EquIty Shares o f f  . I  01- each fully paid 
(March 31,2017: 9200830 Equity Shams of 7101- each) 

(April 3.201 8: 9200830 Equfiy Shares of 3 101- each) 

Total 

6,94,59,830 

1 No of shares orrlslanding at the bsghnlng 01 the year 1 92.00.830 1 0.20,08.300 1 9Z00_830 1 0.20.08.300 1 92,a1,830 1 9.20.08.300 ( 
Add. Mdihond shares issu%d dMng the year year 'l.14.319 11.43,190 

March31,20181 March31,20171 Aprtl1,2016 

March 37,2018 

(i)RecanciliaZion of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year 

Less: Sharesf&ited(Bovght back durlng the yew 
Nod shares wlstanding at Vls end of h e  year 

69,42,226 51,13,425 

Match 31,2017 

p.pd11,2DlB 

No.ofShares 1 Amount - PnrtTculrr 

Bulb 

60,42,131 

April  1,2016 

9,25,00,000 

9,25.00,000 

9,20,08,300 

9,20,08,300 

10,50,0[1,000 

March 31.2018 

No.of Shares I Amount 

I 

9,25,00,000 

March 31, M l f  

Nmof Shares Amount 

10,50,00,000 1 9,25,00,000 

9,31,5?,490 

9,31.51,490 

9,20,08,300 

9,20,08,300 



I I I I I I I I I 
None of the Shamhdders Pttaw Utm ~ddfnd Company holds more than 6% as on ihe reWrllq date and prevlcus year 

(u)AOOreOate numbs md dm6 of sham a& 88 pAd UP -1 to C D ~ E ~ ( . )  without p w t  hing r s c a k l  b cash, bmw sham and shams bwght 
b c k  fm the p e w  d 6 years IrnrmdkMy V l n g  @a belanee sheet date - N1(- 31.2017 - Nll and April I, 201% - WI) 

pv) €quky Sham In the onllly held by 

openlnp brlrncm 
Addltlon / (dmlmtlon) 
Umlng b e l a m  

Opcnlng balun- 
Add:Plamium on Issur of swum equitv Sham& 
Closlns bmlance 

CapaLmswUe: 
I 

CfipltBl RsrPrve k utlswd In amdance  wkh the p#uisim ofthe AcL 

I 
a p ~  ltcdemptlon Rsrsna I 
CapItal rcdcmpth mum repae* m b  created mn rcdrmptlon of praference sharer. It b rm dIstrBbutabae rerenre 

~ p r ~  1, m6 
MoofShamsl %ofHol&Ing 

~,s,so,en 1 84.~8 

%wMm h m l u m  b w u e  
k r l ~ ~ m r r d u r n ~  k u s d  tort 1 rd the ~ u r n o n & u e o l s b r e s .  Thlrrescm tgutllld In acccrdancewl th ths~r lo~of the  Act  

~ a r e k  81, 2037 
N o d s h a m ]  X o f W n g  

s ~ , s o , n l  64.78 

I - 
I 

~unaidmnd P- ~ e ~ n g  ~nv.astmenl+$~ 

m l n e c i  Earninp I 
The mountthatcan be blstrlbuM by !hdmrnpam as dklt6srd m Cr equw rharehld%ts 

March 31.2M8 
# o o f S ~ l o f H a d d l n g  

B,~O.BII I ~ 3 . ~ 3  

Gpnmlnlllesmrc 
G-l rererue Lr used fmm time to time iottamrerpdu from retained esmlw forapmrb l ion  purpwe. 

I 4 2Q 



Match 31,2017 

SAD- N1TW CHEM LBllTED 

'PsC 

I Y ~ I  of Maturity I 

a) During the par, the Compeny had obtained term ban from a bank towards purchase of Wr vehicle. The term loan IS weltred by 
charge on motorwhidm. The &rge is yet to be registered. The t e r n  of repayment are as follwvs 

I ~wnber ol Instalmen$ jefl I 60 I 
b) Ottring ka year, the C m p n y  had ob$lned term loan from a bank W r d s  purd-~ase of machinery & quiprrrsnts. The ten kan h 

secured by charge on machinew8 equipment$. The charge Is yst to be registered. The terms of repayment are asfdbm 

I ParHculsrs 

Rate of Interest 

I ~ameulars I   em of repayment 1 

Terms drepayment 

8.25% 

R a t e d t n h t  ' 
Year d Maturity 

1275% 

March, 2022 



Dwing the year .(sfter oblab-hg consent of lhe preference shareholders )the Cunpany has varled the terms of 1 w e  of pmfemm 
t u a r ~ t o ~ X ~ ~ m n c e s h - t o  1% n o n c u r n ~ ~ s h a n s ~ e C a w u ~ t h e e n O k e l o - ~  

mrnpany are recw&d at the sole dlsmdm and 
ermmuhtd upta 318t March 2017 haw been 

wm. 

The m n y  had w d n g  ~ p t ~ a l ~ f a d l l t h  fmm varlous mnyhg In- M e  d IMS%p.a These fadltlbs am repyak  on 
dmmI,seEuredbywaydfRrst p s s s u e h a r g e ~ ~ u ~ e a s e E B . ~ n d ~ w ~ & ~ o n C o m m & e ~ ~ a w b a n d  
further sewred by pemnaIguam eofchairman and M a w n g  Wmctor. 7 

Note 16 - Other ffnmdal ldbtllties 

(fil 
(ill) 

(14 
(v) 

(vii) 
(viii) 

(Refer note 15 A) 
Other p a y  btes 
Interet amrued but not due on borrowings 
Redeemed Preference Shap & b s s  rfght Issue ( U d a l r n d ]  
Credkorsfor Capbl 

Book owrdraft 
Divided payable 

(Amount in 

March,312PlO March 3 5  2017 Aprl l5  2016 4-+ 

m 1 7 -  Prwishls 

(1) 

Sr. No 

A 

Part 

NonCurrent 
Employee Benefit 

(Amount In T) 

~ m e n t  h pmkion& 

Openlng balance 
Add/Less :Pmisbn recognised /(reversed) 
during the year 

closing balance I 

(I) 
(14) 

0 

(i) 
(H) 
(Ill) 

eutars 

Obiifrl~tattons 

6-w 

l,81,21,165 

65,29,035 

2pS9,m 

Cornpensated absen 
Grabity [Refer Note - Current 
Employee Ben& Obl~t ions  
Campensated absences 
Gratuity (Refer Note No. 31) 
DMdend payable I 

TqTAL 

March 3f, 2M8 

Compensated 
absences 

1,Q1,2Or2U 

37,33,303 
&38,!3,515 

51,28,365 
2,W,95,146 
W,23,511 

87,25,150 
41,55,054 

&28W,204 

March 31,2017 

Total 

2,E2,41,377 

1,02,62,338 
3,85-,7P5 

Aprll &2M6 

44,77,093 
/!X,36,872 
2,01,13,965 

24,84,293 
56,43,119 

1,29,844 
8257,256 

1,7121,197 
&71,2l,l97 

63,39,671 
1,41,431 

64,8&102 



WDHANA NITRO CHEM LlMlTm 
I 

I 

Not* - 19 : Trade Payables I (Amount in C) 

Note 18 - Other Liabilities 
Notes forming part of the Cwroolldated ffnanclaf Statements for the year ended March 39 ,2018 (Amount jn 

Sr. No 

(ii) lothers I I 23,24,43,877 1 25,51,76,382 ) 20,42,03,557 

I TOTAL 23,24,43,8771 25,53,76,3821 20,42,03,557 

Cumnt 

k. no 

(i) 

I 
( a ) Disclosure required under Chuse 22 of Miwo , SmaU and Medium Enterprises Development ('MSMED') A d ,  2008 

April 2,2016 

2,05,90,269 

1,64,74,555 

- 
3,70,64,824 

(1) 
Pi) 
(iii) 
(iv) 

Partleulam 

Micro and Small Enterprises 

( c ) All trade payables are 'cuknt'. The Company's exposure to currency and liquidtty rlsks related to trade 
payables Is dlsslased in ni#e nu 28 

1 32 

Statuatory Dues 
Employee Dues 
Advance Fmm Customer 
other current liabihes 

TOTAL 
I 

March 31,2018 March 31,2017 

March 31,20l8 

April 1,2016 
I 

Particulab 

a) the principal amount and the lflerest due thereon (to 
be shown seperately) remaining dnpald to any suppller as 
at the end of accounting year 

b) the amount of interest paid by L e buyer under MSMED 
Act,2006 along wlth the 
the supplier beyond the 
ambunting year 

c) the amount of interest due and payable for the I period(where the principal has be n paid but interest 
under the MSMED Act 2006-Not +id 

d)The amount of interest accrued nd remaining unpaId at 
the end of accounting p a r ;  and r 

1,34,09,321 
2,49,22,621 

32,46,50,751 
11,45,86,127 
47,75,6ft,820 

( b ) The amount due to ~ l c q a n d  Small Enterprim as defined in the "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006" has been determined to the extent such parties have been identffied on the basis d 
information colleded by&e Management. 

I 

2,62,68,918 
l,79,39,777 
2,30,77,037 

- 
6,72,85,732 

Wrch 3% 2017 

March 31,20u 

Aprll1,2016 

Match 31,2017 



Note 20: Revenue from operations 

! 
Sr. No , Pahlcula~ March 31,2016 

(il Sales of Products 1,11,32,29,522 
I 

I (ii) I Other Operating Revenue 

I Sundry balances written back 14,78,882 

I TOTAL I I , ~ , n , m  

March 31.201 7 1 

Note 21 Other Income (Amwnt In TI 

Sr. No Particulars I March 31,2041 

(i) Interest Income on: 
a) Deposits with banks and financial institutions TDS 
723109 (P.Y 7 21702) 

b) Others 

(ii) (other Miscelianeous income 
(iii) I ~ o r e i ~ n  Exchange Gain (Net) I 9,83,344 

I TOTAL I 28.86.563 

Note 22A - Cost of materials consumed 

March 31,2017 

__I 

- 

Sr. No Particulars March 31,2018 March 31,2017 

Inventory at the beginning of the year 1,53,30,549 1,12,48,181 
Add: Purchases 46,9637,859 33,44,44,000 

48,49,68,408 34,56,92,181 
Ilcss: Inventory at the end of the year 1 6,58,23,894 1 1,31,23,210 
l ~ o s t  of materlab mnsurned 1 41,91.44,514 1 33,25.68,971 

Value of Raw Material Consumed 
Particular March31,2018 M a ~ h 3 5  2017 

0.45% I 18~52,2631 5.31% I 1,78,25,764 

Sr No Raw Material Consumed March 31,2018 March 31,2017 

(i) Benzene i 8,92,25,847 5,81,22,684 
(ii) Nitric acid 2,9446,980 4,22,36,064 
(iii) Cast iron powder 6,99,41,019 4,61,64,962 
(ivJ OIeum 65% 3,18,11,171 1,89,29,577 

(v) Caustic Potash Flakes 22,59,049 31,68,438 
(vi) Packaging Matedal 31,98,851 24,54,974 

(vii) Mher 19,32,61,597 16,41,26,325 
TOTAL 41,91,44,514 33,52,02,024 



SADHAN4 NITRO CHEM U M m D  I - 
Note 22B- Changes in inventories of finlshed goods, stock-in-trade and work-In-progress 

Sr. No Particulars March 31,2018 March 31,2017 

( I )  Opening Stock 
Work in progress 7,f 2,15,981 3,94,84,165 
Finished g&s 8,00,52,648 69,f7,383 
%rap 3,00,000 2,50,0(]0 

15.15,68,629 4,%6,51,548 
(ii) Closing Stock 

Work in progress I 7,4514,398 9.17,12,?09 
Ftnished goods 6,17,37,266 2,f 0,64,424 
SmP 3,25,000 3,00,000 

Total (8) 13,65,76,664 11.30.76.533 
Changes in lnventohes Decreassl(lncmseHi-ii) 1,49,9l ,Q65 (6,64,24,935) 

TOTAL 1,49,91,965 (6,64,24,985 

Note 22C Excise Duty 
The Government d India has Implemented Gods and semiceTax (GST) from Julyl, 2017 replacing excise duty, service tax various other 
indireet taxes. Excise duty for the year ended March 31,2018 pertains to he  p e d  of 3 month (Aprit 2017 to June 2017) whereas for 
the year ended March 32,2017 pertains to 12 month period. 

Note 23- 

Sr, No 

( i i )  
(iii) 

Iivl 

imployee Benefit Expenses (Amount in 

Particulars March 31,2028 March 31,2017 
Sataries and wages, inciudlng bonus 8,31,37,579 7,11,56,584 

Contribution to Provident and other funds 

Gratuity 

share based mrnpsnsation expense (Refer Note No. 23i)  below rl 
Staff welfare expenses I 17,66,956 1 14,58,845 

1 TOTAL I 9,74,90,240 7,76,30,117 

Note 23(1) 
The company had issued 1,?4,319 Equky Shares at f 43.94 pr share as Sweat Equity Sham to Shrl Abhlshek A& Javed, the hecut'ive 
Directos 8. CFO m substitution of the remumtion due to him for 201817 in t e r n  of the Spedal RBsolutBon passed In the Exk% Ordinwy 
General Meeting held on 22nd May 2017. 

Note 24 

(ii) 

(iil) 

Finance Cost {Amount in 

Particulars I March 31,2018 1 March 31,2017 
Interest expense on t b m  loans and other financial liabilities 1 2,13,77,235 1 2,74,71,M]0 

Interest cost on preference share liability I 
Other borrowing cost 

Interest on Delayed Payment of tax 

Net Gain /loss on foreign Currency Transadlon 26,20,867 

TOTAL 5,20,64,934 6,31,&4,062 



SADHAM HrmO CHEM UMlTED 

Note 25 - Other Expenses i (Amount in TI 

(4 
(ii) 

(IN) 
([v) 
(4 
(vi) 
(vii) 
(viii) 

(ixl 
(4 
(xi) 
(xii) 
(xiii) 

(xlv) 
Ixv) 
(mu 
(xvii) 
(xviii) 

Powerand fuel , 

Rent 
Rates & Taxes 
Insurance 
Printing 8 Stationery, 

Postage, Telegram & Telephone (Communication Expme 
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 
Legal & Professional fees 
Directors Fws I 

EIecwicilycharges I 

securltycharges I 

Stores & spares ~onkurned 
Re~airs & Maintenance 
Plant 8. Machinery I 
Others 
Other Manufacturing Expenses 
Effluent Expenses 
Research & Development m n s e s  
Payment to auditws (Refer Note A below) 
Sellina Expenses 
Freight and Forwarding E x p e w  

I Commission Charges, 

Local Freight & other kxpsnses 
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation 
Bad debts &Sundry Debit Balances written afi 
Guarantee Comrnlsdon 
AmMtisation of ~eam'hold land 
Mismllenws Expenses 

TOTAL 

I 

Note A : Pavmetnt to Auditors : ' 

(iii) 

March 33,2017 

Particulars 

As Auditor 
Statutory Aud% Fee 
Tax Audit Fee 
In Other Capacity I 
Other Services (cartifibation fee) 

I TOTAL 

March 31,2018 

3,80,000 
&5,000 

March 31,201 7 

3,00,000 
65,000 

Payments for the year ended M&h 31,2017 represents fees and re-lmbu~menb paid b the predecessor auditor. 

1,07,500 
5,52,500 

1,27,500 
492,500 
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= 
Note "26 Flrst-timeadoption of IND-AS 
These are the Group's first financial stapnent prepared in accordance with IHD AS. The Gmup has adopted Indian Accnunting Standards (INDAS) 
notified by the Minisby of Corporate Affairs with effect from 1st April 2017, with a hndtion date of 1 st April 2016. IND AS 101- first time adoption of 
Indian Accounting Standards requires that all llad As standards and interpretatims that are issued and effective for the first IND AS Financial 
statements wh i i  is fw the year snded,March 31st , 2018 for the company , be applied retrospectively and consistmtly for all financial years 
presentd. Consequently, in p repat i~  these IND AS Rnsncial statements , the Gmup has availed certain e ~ m ~ t i o n s  and comolied with the 
mandatory excepCons provmed in IN0 AS 101, as explarned below. The result i~  differen& in the carrying values ofthe assets and liabiities as at the 
transition date between the INDAS and Previous GAAP have been recognised diredy In equity (retained earnings or another appropriate categwy of 
eauitv). 
s i t  d;t blow are the INDAS 101 e x e m b s  a v a M  as appllcak and mandatory exceptions applied in the trarwilion from previous GAAP to IND 
AS 
A. Optional Exemptions Availed 
(a)  Deemed Cost 
Tha Group has opted parsgraph D7Mared accordingly msidered the carrying value of pwperly , plant and equipments (other than free M d  land) as 
deemed &as athtransltion date. Freehold landvalued at fairvalue. 
[ b)lnvestmonts in subaidlark 
The Gmup has opted paragraph Dl4 and Dl5 and accordingly considsred h e  Previous GA4Pcarrying amount of irwedmsnt sdeemd as at the 
transition date 
( c 1 Designation of previously recognised flnanclal instrurrtnnts 
Paragraph 0196 of lMD AS 101 g i w  an option to an enfty to designale invesmts hr aquily inslruments at FVOCl on tha basls of the facts and 
clrarmstances at the date of h n l o n  lo IND AS. Tlw CMnpany has opted to apply bis exemption for its investment in equity instruments 

B, Applicable Manlfory Exceptions 
(a) Estimates 
An entitfs estimates in aocordance with IND AS at the date of transition to IND AS shall be msistent with esiimates made for the same date in 
accordance with previws G M P  (afler adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting pdjcies). 

lNDM estimates as al April 1 ,2026 are wnsistent with h e  estimates as at the same date made in mfirrnity with previous GAA' The company 
mde estimates for the follwing items in acwrdance with IND AS at the date of transltion as these were not required under previous GMP. 

1 -1nve.tments in quhy hstrurnmtscarrled at W L o r  FVOCI 
-1nveshnts in debt instrumentseamed at FVPL 
-lrnpaimmt of financial assetsbased on ew& credit loss mdel 
(b) Classiibtion and measurement of financial assets 
As requried underlND AS 101 the m p n y  has assessed the classification arsd measurement offinancial assets (investmsnt In debt i~wtntments) on 
the basis ofthe fact sand arwmsbncesthate~stathdab oftransition to INDAS 

C,TransltIon to INDAS- Rewnclliatlms 
The following rewncIliations provide a quantification of ihe effect of significant differences arising fmm the transition from previousGMP to IHDAS as 
required under IndAS 101 
(I). Reconciliatian of Equity and Profrtand loss as previous reported under lndlan GAAP to lND AS 
(ii). Reconciliion olsalance slaeet asat March31,2017 and Awl f ,2016 (Tradfion Date) 
(iii).Rewnulition ofTotel comprehensive incomeforh yaarwndsd March 33,2017 
Note No - 27 first-nrne adoptlm Reconclllatlons 

(I) Roconclllation of squlty and P d t  and toss ao prevloumly reported under lndlan QAAP to IND AS I A m n l ~ n t  In CI , . . . . . - - . . - . . . . , 
Particulars W oter March 31 1017 March 31 2016 

Equky under preulous GAAP attrlbitable to shareholders 9,49,32,091 7.23.35.028 
Adjustments 

A 
Fair valuation of Land 2 8,84,49,427 8,84,49,427 

Other comprehensive income - employee defined benefit expense 

Fair valuation of Financial Ilabilitles I 1 I (1.44,W.OOO) 
Total Adjustments 1.29.34.084 
Equlfy under Ind AS aitrfbutable to shareholders of the I I 10,79,26,175 

2,73.94,084 
9,97,29,112 
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Note No -28 Financial lnstrutments and Risk Review 
I 

Capital Management I 

The key obj- of lhe Gaoup's capital managmenlis to enwe thatn rnainbhsa stabk capital struclure with Lhe focus on Wl equw tn uphdd the imrestor, 
credii and arstomer conRdence md lo ensure future dewbpment of its bus$less. The Group focused on keeping s w  total eN& W la ensure 
independence, mriiyas well high fmndal Rexbhty for poteotlal future bormwm, if required without impacting the risk profile of the comwny. Tha Gmup's 
god is to m 5 n u e  to ba aMe to Mum excess Uqukilly to 9harehcMm by continuing lo disliibte enwl dividends in Mure periods. The amwnt of future 
d l v W o f  equltyshares wlU bebalanced Ah efforts to mntkKleto maintain an sdquata llquidlly status. 

T k  Group b&&s plan coupled with global mama econwnk scenario haw helped the wmpany a c h i i  enhanced profiIabilty and RquiMy 
resulting improved equrty base and lower the risk p m k  of he Gmup. 

Financial Rlsk Management Fnmework 
The Grnup has exposure to the fdtowing risks arising from financial Instruments : 

a) Credlt risk 
b) Liquidity rlsk 
c) Marketrisk 

IfiLfauldllv rlsk 

i) Credit Risk 
Credit risk is the rfskthat the cour$erparty will not meet Its obllgatlon under a financial instrument or customerconhct leading to 

Rnanclal loss. The credit risk arises'principatly from Its operating activities ( primarily trade receivables) and from Its financing 
activities induding deposits with banks and financial institutions and other financial imtruments. 

The alstomer credli Is managed by the Grwp's established pollcy , procedures and controls relatiw to customer uedlt 
management The Grwp has established a wedlt pollcy under which each new oustomer is a n a l y d  individually for wedit 
worthiness before the company$ standard pyrnent and dellvery terms and coladitrons are offered. The &up's mview includes 
external ratlngs where available and other pubticaliy avaltablm financial information. Outstanding customers receivables are 
regularly monitored and any shipment ta major customers am generally covered by letter of credit or other forms of crdk 
Insurance. 

The company establishes en allowance lor impairment that represents flxed estimate of expected losses In respect of trade and 
other receivable. The maxlmum exposure to credit rlsk as at reporting date is primarily from trade receivable amounting to 
7 15,28,56,7051- (2017- 'f 10,31,27,440 and 201 6 -3 12,88,03,6771-). The movement h allowance forlrnpatrment [n trade and other 
mIveMes during the year was as f o W  : 

- . , - . - - -. . . . - . . 
Liquid@ risk is the riskthatthe Groupwill enmnter dlficuliy In meeting the obtlgations associated w%h Its Rnancial tiabllities that are 
settled bv deliverirm cash or another flnandal asset. The GrouD's a~~roacR to managing llquldlty Is to ensure as far as possible that -. . .- 

will ha~~~uf ic len f i~u ld i ty  to meet its liabilities d e n  they arb d& under both mxktai and stressed wndltions without incurring 
unacceptable lasses orrisking darna* to Group's reputation. 
The Group bellwesthatthe wwking cpltal is sufficient to meet L current requirements. Acowdingly , no liquidity risklsprcelved. 
tn addition ,theGmupmaintainsthefdlowlng llneof credit. 
a) WorWng capital loan from a bankmnytng Interest rate of 12.95 % p.a.Thet%facilltiesare repayable on demand, sewred by way 
of first pad passu charge on the present and W r e  current assets of the Group, semnd pari passu chage on entlre movable and 
immovable fixed assets of the Gmup, present and future at plot no 47, MIDC. Roha Industrial Area, Ralgad District - 402118 and 
further secured by personal guarantee of Mt A. D, Javerl Chairman and Managing Director of the wmpany. 

March 31,201 7 Allowance for impairment 

Openiw balance 

Impirment loss feoognised I reversed 

Closing balance 

Mo slm alstomer accounted br 10 percent of trade mivable as of March 31,2018and March 31,2017. There ~s no signirkant mntralion o!credit 
h k .  Credit risk on mh and mh qulualanet is limited as the Company generally bansaets wilh banks mi ndanancial insiihtions wlth hgh credit rams 
a m  by intemaW and dowtic c N I  ratings agencies. 

March 31,2018 

17,00,239 

17,00,239 



t he table below pmidesdelalls regardl& the undiscounted conlractuai maturities of significantfinancial liames asof a arch 3f, 2018 
1 

Pddm I I twsthanlvsa I I-zywn I B S w n  I ~ t y w n  1 Total 

m b w  I 1 43a090,01#N 1 1.a59,W 1 1.1874229 1 1 8.543.711 

The t a b  bdw Wes delals regardslg thi undiwwnted c~rkwual mlurilies of significant finardal MlDs as of March 31,2017 

The table M o w  w o v k  deialls regam the.undmmed wr&c?ual rnaluriliw oi shnificant fmandal bMltles as of March 31,2036 
h r l l e ~ h ~  LssSthM~lySar l-PpEr# 2-Spearr W yaen Tola 

h m e u  zmm 6,10,€6N2 6,I2,9la22l 

~ h p t m w  zax~srn 3 2 , a ~ ~ . 8 ~  
T d  m 

iii) Market Risk 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market prices. Such changes in the values of financial instruments may result from changes in the forelgn currency 
exchange rates, interest rates, credlt, llquldlty and other market changes. The Group's expmum to market risk is primarily 
onamuntofforeign currency exchange rate risk. 

Foreign Currency exchange rate risk 
The Group operates internationally and major portion of the business is transacted In several currencies and consequently 
the Group is exposd to forelgn exchange risks through operating activities In foreign currency. The Group does not engage 
in hedging and the unhedged foreign currency exposure Is as follows : 
1) DetaIlsof foreigncurrency exposures that are not hedged by a derIvatlve Instrument or otherwise : 

Note 29 - Earnlngs Per Share 

For the year ended For the year ended 
Sr. No Particulars March 31,2018 March 31,2017 

a) Net Pmfit forthe year attributable to the equity 3l,09,01,389 
b) Opening number of equity shares outstanding 92,00,830 
c) Closing Number of Equity hhares outstanding 93,15,149 

d) BasidDiluted earning per share(i 101- per share) 33.30 

Equblent amount F) 

Partkularr 

FmancY me8 
Rade h l v a b k r  

Mancld U a b W  
Truda W b k s  

Net A%& / (IibiUtyJ 

CY"Cm 

EUlW 
,MD 

EUrW 
US0 

Amount In foreign currency 

Fwthewrd6d 
Aplltl.ZO16 

5,97,874 
4a933~18 

1.62,08,844 

3333,648 

Fk2y20y 
1,073 

aos,ln 

156,326 

633,928 

Forlhey~arsnded 
Pd&131,HH1 

86,SZS 
5>1,49,476 

l,Ol,64068 

43S7336 

Fmlheyearsnded 
M~rchll,M11 

2,17,154 
5,94,67,n4 

L68,22,4711 

428,6257b 

Fuwysar 
- 3 1 . ~  

%in 
9 . 1 4 , ~  

2,59,459 

658,567 

htheyoaranded 
*pBl,iM6 

7,626 
7 3 7 , ~  

2,44,353 

5.00.368 



I ! 
Note 30: Dis~losums undd lND AS 17 

I 
W i t s  of leasing arrangebm 
Operating Lease 
Leaehold land 
The Company has entered,lnm operating lease 
arrangements for certaln vciliti@s and o h  
premises. The leases an npn-cancellable and 
are for a period of 1 to 5 years and may be 
renewed for a further peripd based on mutual 
agreement of the prtles. 

Future Non-Canwilable mlnlAum l@ase wrnrnbents 
nor larer than one year I 
later than one year and not later than flve years 
later than five years 

I I Ewpenses reeagnissd in fh Statement of PmM and 

~ o t e  51 : ~mployee benetlts i 
(a) Deflnsd Contribution Plan 
The Company makes Prwldent ~ u i d  corhibutlons to defined contributh plan adminlsW by the Regional Provklent Fund 
CommlssFoner. Under this scheme, the Company is required to conttibute a s p M  percenhge of payroll cost to fund the benefits. 
The Company has q n i r e d  731,7! ,9231- or Provident Fund mMbutlons ( M a d  31,2017: 7 27,42,6601- ) and ?1 ,W,3101- 
(March 31,203 7 :  W,W- ) towardsESC In the Statement of Profit and Loss. The provident fund and ESIC mntributio~ payable 
by the Company are In oowrdanm with rules framed by the Government from time to lime. 

(Amount In t) 

I @) Defined Bensfft Plans: 
Gratuity 
The employee's gratuity furPd schdm managed by a Wst is a defined pbn.The present value of the obligath is 
detennlmd based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credk ~ o d . w h l c h  mcognlses each perlod of w* as glving 
rise to adtitiond unlt of ernplwe hnefit entltlernent and measures each unit seperatdy to bulld up the final obtitlon. The 
obligation for kave encashment Is -nked In thesame manner as grahrity. 
The &mated rate of escaldon in salary considered in actuarial whralittion,take into aarrunt inffatlon,~nlcrrky promotion and other 
relevant factwlndudlng supply and dqnand in the employment market.Theabove information is wrlilbd by actuary. The expected 
rate on plan agsets Is Ctermlned oonbldering wveral applicable factor,mlnly the compdtim of p4n assets M d  assessed risk 
, histortcal result of Mum M plan assets and the eornpany's pollcy for plan assets management 

For the year ended 
Mar& 31, 2Ol8 

I Definsd bsnM plans-as peracharia valuation on 31rt Marsh, 2018 1 

For the year endad 
IMaM 3L 2017 

Rrmensurrmem on the WS M n e d  benefft llabtilty 
Return on plsn assen {mlurling amount lncwded In net lntemt expanse) 
W d a l  @Ins snd loss arlslng form dmy In flnanclal assumptions 
m r l a l  @ins and k arUw h m e $ c e  adjustmanta 
Actuarial @nr and loss arMng fmm UemDgraphk d u s t m e n B  

For the year ended 
A d  t ZM6 

W u n t  In r) 

k e h n  

I 
Expanse &red In the mtsmsrn of Plofft and 
hs brthe WI andad 32a Mareh: 
%?*cost 
Current S?wlc% Cat 
Past service cost and (pimylosses from &rnents 

Fundd Plan 
G-bhIlty 

ZWB 

7 J S M  
15,62,923 

a 7  

5,54,461 

1015 

7,45086 



1. PmmtvdueofMned bwtefffo as a 3rst frlarch 

3. Surplu&qDeRdt) 
4. Current pmtion of the a b w  
5 . N o 1 1 w t r e n t ~ d t h e a k w  I 

l~.-hfalrwkad-durblptha&rsn~edMMarch 
1 . W r v d u e d p t a n ~ a t t h e ~ o T Z h a y e a r  
2. Add/(ks)on a a a m t o f k h e m a d A m ~ i n e s s ' I r a n s f e r  
3 . ~ ~ h 1 ~ d l a s s ~ d u n t  
- IxpeaedmonplanaSsetr 
-IrmBtlllcwne I 
4 . ~ h ~ ~ ~  
-@/-I 
- Acaral Relurn w pdsn a m  in exc3ens of thdeqected return 
- 0th- CrpecW) I 

5. Contributions by employer b e 9  paymena recowcable] 
6.-paymentr 
7. ~ v a l u e o l p l a n ~ a t t h a d n d t h t h . y h a r  

I 

1 6. Wrtallty Rate After E m n t  

VI.MhwwlNs 
1. No pOAEthrp Members 
I.hrMon(nW.~Rr-Members 1 
4.Awmge W f M u r e S e n A r e  
5. Prole& BwcFn Obllgathn (PBO) 
6. Presaibad ConWlhtbn Fw M a t  Year I12 MdnthS) 

WL wet mmt twt 
t Interen Cost I 15,MSi 13$7,1%8 
2. I~IWCM income (LOLfiZl kw.ml 
a m ~ n t e w  cast (1.2) 13.17~09 1~87,101 

I 

I 1 42 



S A D W  NITRO C H M  L lWED 
I 

I Maturlh Analvsfs of Profeaed Beneflt Oblieadon: From the Fund I 
Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years From the Date of Reporting 
lst Following Year I 1 91,74,778 1 67,85,704 1 50,98,087 
2nd Following Year I 16,92,594 23,80,201 13,57,460 
3rd Following Year I 20,93,052 18,25,501 34,13,404 
4th Fotlowing Year 26,26,116 18,51,669 15,12,150 
5th Foliowing Year 11,38,551 23,91,589 15,57,540 
Sum of Year 6 To 10 1,81,30,628 62,12,283 54,74,456 

Maturity Analysis of Projected Benefit Obligation: From the Employer 
Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years From the Date of Reporting 
1st Following Year 
2nd Following Year 
3rd Following Year 
4th Following Year 
5th Following Year 
Sum of Year 6 To 10 

Sensitiv*Ey Analysis 

Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Dlscounting 
Delta Effect of +I96 Change In Rate of Salary Increase 
Delta Effect of -1% Change In Rate of Salary Increase 
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover 
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover 

1,77,61,695 

(6,83,371) 

VHI. Experience Adjustments : 

1. Defined Benefit Obligation 
2. Fair value of plan assets 
3. Surplus/(Deficit) 
4. Experience adjustment on plan liabilities [(Gain)/Loss] 
5. Experience adjustment on plan assets [Gain/(Loss)l 

2,08,88,046 

(8,25737) 
Projected Beneffi Obligation on.Current Assumptions 

Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting 
(1/32,053) 
(12,67,130) 
(P1,18,837) 
(3,96,119) 
(4,45,931) 

2,46,50,200 

(10,72,464) 

Year Ended 
2018 I 2017 

Gratuity 

9,26,144 
9,47,439 

(8,54,858) 
2,0&,452 
2,31,336 

(2,46,88,046) 

(2,46,88,046) 
46,07,782 
(6,06,438) 

AddltlonaI Detalts 

7,62,722 
7,84,348 
(7,13,541) 

1,97,606 
2,16,841 

(2,08,88,046) 
27,66,881 

{1,81,21,165) 
7,28,664 
4,56,038 

Methodology Adopted [or ALM - I 

Usehfulness and Methoddogy adopted for kens~tivit~ ~nalysis - 
I 

I 

Stress Tafiq of Assets 
Invesbnent Strategy 
Comment on WaMy of k* 

Management Psrspechw of Future Contdbutions 

Projected Unit Credit Method 

Mliviiy analysis is an analysis which will give the rrwvement 
In liabilily K the assumption were not pmved ta be true on 
different counl. Thisonly shnif~s the change in the liallty if the 
difference bemen assumed and the actual is not l o l l ~ ~ h p  the 
parameters of the swwitiviky analysis. 
Not Done 
Not D i s d  
Since lnvatment is with Insurance oompany, Assets are 
considered to be secured. - 
As per Actuarial Calculation 
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Notes I 
Gratuity Is payable as per companqs scheme as detalted In the report. 
AEtwrbl gdnsnwses are rewgnlkd in the period of ocwmnm under Ottwr Comprehensive Income(OC1). 
All above reported figtlresof OCI a(egrossoltaxablon. 
Salary mcalatlon & Mtlon rate elre consIdared as advised by the mpany; they appear to be in line wfth ttle Indusby practlm 
mslddng promohand demand & supply of ttlswnployees. 
Matunty Analysis of Pmjected BeneiX Obligatbn Is done considering tuture salary, attrltlcm & death In respecUve year for 
membersas mentaoned a h .  
Average Expected FuWeSenrIca represents Estlrnabd Term of Post- Employment BeneMObllption. 

* Value of wet pmddd by the cllent Is consldered as fair value of plan asset for the period of reporting as same is not evaluated 
by us. 

Mote 32 - Contingent IiiabiRtk and c o ~ d t m e t h  (to the extent not provided for) [Amount In 7l 

(I) Contlngmnt Ilabilities : 
(a) 88nk Duarantaed L W  of C k l t  

(b) Contingent Liabitities for Income Tax, Servim Tax and others: - Income Tax # I 55,180 
- Sales Tax # 6,98439 
- Service Tax # 
- Employee Claim # I l5,42,361 

(il) Cornmltments : 
I 

Estimated arnwnt of aontracts remaining to be executed on capita 
aocount and not provided for (Net bf advance) 8,33,39,004 

TOTAL 83134- 

# Fulure ca& wtAow, I f  any In respect d m  maltern aredetenninabae only on m l p t  djudgementsldecisions pendfng at varbu~ stagf 
beforethe appellatea~rities. ftaa ~&agiamentntk of heoplnlon thatthe matterswwkl be-lvd In favour of lhe Cam 

Note 33 : I 

A.Value of Imports tslculated on; CIF bask (Amount in 'C) 
I I 1 I 

I For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31.2018 I March 32 2017 I 

I I Particulars 

Raw Material and Components 
TOTAL 

6-Expenditure in foreign currency 

MrnrrtesandRsamptfons 
The oreoardon d h GIWD~S finallEial & d e n t s  teoukes m a m e n t  tp rr& ssttmates and assm&n$ thgi a h d  Ihe reported m k  d m n w  

1,55,88,267 
1,55,88,267 

I 

Particulars 

Other matters - Foreign travel, Corporate allocations ete. 
TOTAL 

r- - r -  - - - 
&,assets and h b i &  and the amr&yhg djsclosures, i d  he didosure afowlirgent %bi& ~ncerhinly about l k e  ssumphns9nd e%?haW 
E o U W r e 5 ~ l t l n o u t M w n e s W ~ ~ a ~ 8 d j u B f m 8 n t t o t h e ~ n g a m w n t d a s s e s ( s o r l & l ~ ~ k M u ~ p e ~ .  

1,72,47,249 
1,72,47,249 

Tha kev m m d h s  m m i m  the Mure ardsolhar kw s o u m  of&slimatbn uncertalnh at !he rewhim date, that have a $gniRcmt risk of causing a material 

For the year endd 
March 31,2018 

L 

8,36,013 
836,013 

.... -.---- u - - - - 
24justment 01 the carrying am& d ass& and ~ k 8  Wtin tha nefl Fmantial year, a& desabeb be&, The Grnupba assumptions and estimates on 
wamkrsma!ablewhenthe W a l  slatemenkw prepared. ExMng clrwm4ancesendessunlpeonsaboutMure~bpmenB, however, may chargedue 

For the year ended 
March 31,2017 

7,74,148 
7,'14,148 

b m a r ( b e l c h a n g e g o r ~ s t a m a r i s ~ ~ h ~ t m ~ t h e ~ d k ~ . ~ u c h c h a n g e s w 2 s b a ~ l n ~ ~ p b b n s w h e n ~ ~ .  
hpelrmmtdnoMnandal~ 
b n p a i m w n t e r t i s t s w h t h e ~ ~ d a n r d o r ~ h G e n e r a t i n g U n i t ( C G U ) ~ I t s ~ r a b b ~  wh'hkthe h l # ~ ~ o f & ~ v a k r e k m t s o f  
disposaland H s v b  ~n uw.Thefairv&eIeas mela ddl- e t k n  b Wonava iab le  data fmbinding sales ttansecliom, concluded darm'shgth, for 
~ k n s a r ~ o r ~ a b l e m a r k e t p r i o e s l e s a ~ ~ n h l ~ f o r d l s p o s i n g o f ~ a s s e t t h e v ~ h m e ~ a ~ k  b w d o n a D C F d T h a ~ a s h R w r s a r e  



o e R n a d s e n ~ P b ( G & n y ~ )  I 
The cml d the definad beMtl oratutiv I n  and other m&mhmi bend& and the orasant value pf h a m h h  o b h a h  ara determhed uslm a d w M  

 hen & he &@of llrtaW ssse$ and ~hndal tlabilka fcecorded h the b h c e  sheet mot be measured bahed on quoted ~ricea in ecltve ntarke$, the fdr 
v a l u e i s ~ u s i r g v a l u a ( l o n ~ q ~ ~ ~ t h e D C F m o d e l . T h e i n p u t s t o ~ m o d e l s a ~ t a k s n  fmrnm&merR&*posslbte, but- Wc 

I) U 6 t o f ~ p a ~ s  
I) Hoidlng Cdqaiy 

I 
M I M a n e k h n d  Panadland T r d q  Investment Co pvt Itd 

B) Shd. AbhWA Javefi 

RdW party t i - m a d o ~  during Iiw yew 



~ w t l h i n I h e d w d a t e o f f i ~ t h e d m o f I n m m e .  
For Ihe i b l  year mkl March 31,2018, the G-aq Group hastaken namsay I p s  Mudlng wnducllng a Wy a mqulrd by the mgulaQons and the 
~ n t a n t s r e p # t h ~ l 9 g a r d i s ~ r t e d . I n t h e ~ o f W m e n a g ~ ~ ~ s a r e ~ s W w t a l m ' s ~ a n d m ~ k ~  
toadwltrereon I 

87 (a)- WMlt repwtrng 
I n ~ n ~ b ~ h W ~ ~ m e k e r ( C O D M ) ~ p u ~ d w - ~ 8 n d ~ n t o f ~ ~ ~ ~  
~ e l y p a o f g w d r u r ~ e e g ~ w p t d v i d e d . T k G m u p k  ~ d h A k e n u r a ~ o f ~ ~ e ~ l ~ W r m a n a ~ l e a n d  
chendcellntwm&sk)andhless neGEwkequipmsn$.The reported m, maxi & a f o r s e o f t h e ~ ~ l ~ ~ e q u l p m a n L s ) b e l n g  

11 813dlNDAS 

Mob 37 (bl. Addttional infomatlon rn ~~IIwcI by Paragmph 2 of G e m d  InsfruEtl~ne for p r e p d o n  of Condidated Flnanelal 
W m e ~  ta Sdwhle  il to the Compank Ad M9 

%.No. Name dthe EMty Net Assets& I WPPrmldaM Amount %&Share in Pt'of~I w loss Amounl 

p - m  
I Whw H h  CChem M I .OM 46,oS,O6,so4 1.M1 30,94,94,779 

kharashtra, I& 
2 Wholly Owed Subsidlarlas 

i) Anu&mBVBA(Weban) {0.0013) (5,83,252) (0.0064) (t $63,493) 
AnMw, M u m  

fl S l r x W l r e ~ ~ P v t L t d  (O-OO3) (13,75S2) (O.M)27) @,32,W) 
Gulrak IndW.e.f.23td Marph a018) 
Total I 45,85,48,120 1 3011,1,893 

 he ~mup's  wMhies as at March 31, A8 are out M w v .  h k g s  othemlse stated, they have share capital #msl&g c4 equity sttare.$ 
that we by bye Group, and pmwW of m e r a p  Inter&& Wd e q u l  the voting righls held by Group. The anrntry of in-Cm a 
~ ~ ~ l ~ a l s o n * ~ d ~ d ~ c e o f b u ~ ~  

SrMD Mmedmtjty CwnlryoflncwpwatiPn Owne&lp Pf i r@daWhs 
I 

1. Parerit Company 
SadhanaNihChemUd I lnd. lAanWring&C8gardcrnIeals 

2. WhoDy CwdSubsidiariel 
I) Anuchem B.V.BA, Be@urn 1 I 

Tang of C W s  

A) Srlx Web Systems Pvt Ltd lndla 1 Manufacturing of wiretess raehvotk 
(Wiiefleclfmm23~lMarch20~8) eq~i~mm 



(I) On Apnl30.2018, the Board of D~recton of the Company approved Issue of 1500000VVarrants convert~ble rnto equity share 
after 18 monthsat a premlum on Pmferent~al baslstoihe Promolers Group 

( 1 1 )  On Apnl30,2018, the Board of D~rectors of the Company has proposed a d~wdend of Rs 0 10 per preference and a dlwdend d 
71 00 per equity share The proposed dlvldend rs subject to the approval of shareholders In the Annual general 
meehng 

For CRandtaskkat lyar & Co 
Chartered Accountants 
F~rm Regtstrat~on No 1142WW 

Chandrashekhar lyer 
Partner 
Membersh~p No 47713 

For and on behalf of the Board of DI&OIT 

Abhlshek A Jawr~ 
Ewwnve Dlrenor & CFO 

S m t  Seema A J a w r i  
Executive Director 
Admlnlstratron 

Nltln R Jan1 
Company Secretary 

Arwnd R Doshl 
D~reaor 



STRIX WIRELESS SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 
[CIN: U7290OMH2008PTC189141] 

NOTICE 

NOTICE is hereby given that theSmAnnual General Meeting ofthe members of Strix Wireless Systems Private 
Limited will be held on Friday 3h August 2018 at 2.00 p.m. at the Registered mce of the Company at: Hira 
Baug, Kasturba Chowk, C.P.Ta#, Mumbal, Maharash- - 400004 to transact the fol towing business. 

I 
ORDINARY BUSINESS 

adopt the financial statement of the company for theyear ended 3fst March, 
2018 including Balance Sheet as at 31 st March, 2018 and Statement of Pmfit & LOSS for me 

togetherwith Directors' and Auditors' report thereon. 

2. To appoint Auditors add to flx thet remuneration. 

Regfstered Mce: 
Hira Baug, Kasturba Chowk, 
C.P.Tank, Murnbai, Maharashtia - 400004 

By Order of the Board of Dlrecfors 
For Strlx Wireless Systems Prhrate Llmlted 

Place: Mumbal 
Date : IP Aprl12018 

Mr. AsR Javerf 
Plrector 

P I N :  002681143 

1. A MEMBER ENTlTLEO TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO 
AlTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELFIHERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED MOT BE A MEMBER OF 
THE COMPAWA p e w  a n  act as proxy on behaw of members not exeeedlng fifly (50) and holding in the 
aggregate not more than ten percent of tbe total sttare capital of the Company. 

Aproxy form duly completed and stamped should be lodged with the Company not less than 48 hwrs before the 
scheduled commencement of the Meeting. 



STMX WIRELESS SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 
[CIN: U72900MH2008PTC189141J 

I 

To 
The Membew of 
Strix Wireless Systems Pri 

The Board of Directors pres t herewkth the 9'Annual Reportalong with Audited Aocounts and Report of 
the Auditors thereon forthe ended on 31 * March, 201 8. 

I Total Income 1 55,27,417 1 1,04,59,508 

PAR'ITCULARS 

Total Expenditure \ 

I I I ,84,55,385 1 3,f 7,42,908 
P m W I h )  b- tax I 1 (1.29.27.9681 1 f2.12.854001 

I Less :Provision fw Current Tax I I Ni I Nil I 

Year Ended 
3110312[118 

I Addl(ks): Provision for D&& Tax 1 1.23.07.105 1 74.28.431 1 

Year Ended 
31103l2017 

I ~ m f i ~ ( ~ o s s )  mr Tax 1 (2,52,35,073) 1 (2,87,11,831) 1 
I D i i n d  Declared. If anv I NII I N1 I 
I Add : Opening Balanca of Profit & Loss Ale 1 (8,37,14,786) 1 (5,50,022,955) 

I Plof[V(hs) transferred to Baianb Sheet 1 (2,52,35,073) 1 (2,87.11.831) 1 
I Closing Balance of Profit & LOSS &c 1 (10,89,49.859) 1 (8,37,14,786) 1 
NATURE OF BUSINESS: 

Ywr directors are looking In to vari us avallable opportunities and projects. They are checking the prolltabitity of the 
projects avaifable with them and will mn finalre the rn&pMaMe pmject P 
DMDEWO: 
In vlw of the losses Incurred during e year your directors regretthat no dlvldend has been recommended for the year 
under review. 

DIRECTORS: 

I. 
Durlngthe year under review there s no change in the dhcfors. 

HOLDING COMPANY: 
~adhana Nitro ~h.rn ~irnited is the I  ON holding Company with effect from 23rd Maroh 201 8. 

TRANSFERTO R E S E W  
Ths Loss after tax is proposed ta be tfansferred to dam balamdproflt and loss amount in the Regewes and Surplus. 

; EMPLOYEES: 
There were no employee 1.02 Cmms pa. employed for throughout the year or aarnlng a salary of 
C 8.50 lakhs p.m. employed for a 



Henm, m diadoewre~ are requiw to be made under Rule 5 of the companies (Appalntmmt and Remunmtbn of 
Managerla! Personnel) R u k ,  20114. 

I 
DISCLOSURES UNDERTHE CO PANIES ACT, 2Ol3 3 

(a) ~xtractofhnusl ~etur/ l :  

o f h  annual return MGT-9 Is mctosed In AnnexumA, 

The b a r d  d D i M o r s  met Y our) times during the reporbing period. ii 
(c) DlreFtors' Respoftsibi Strrtemed: f As required undar Swtlon 1 (5) as per the CornpanlesA&, 201 3, your D I M m  confirm Mat:- 

\ 
a )  In the prepration of thelannual aeeounts, the applidie aeoounting standards had k e n  followed along with 
pmperexplamtlon dating tat/whrial departures; 

(b). The dlrectom had 9ele d such accounting polfes ernd applled th?rn+mnsi&ntIy and made jud me& and 
eshMates that are reasonabl and prudent so as to g~ve a bus and far wew d the atate of d i m  of h s  
Companyatiheendofthe-fim "t lyeas~tndnfthel~dtfre~m~nyforfhatperiod. 

pro er and %ufAclmt wre for the maintenance of adequate aecountlnQ records in 
s Jthe Compnisa Act, 2013 h r  safeguarding the assets of the Qrnpany and for 
nd other irregularltfes. 

(d)  he directors had the annual a c a ) u n $ o n s .  

(e) Thedirectom had devi~e$~ro~ma~tems to ensure awnp!iarace with theprovlsions of all applimble lawsand that 
such systems weresdeqhte and operating efbdvely. 

(d) AUDITOR& I 
As per the provlslons of h i o n  139 of the Companies Ac& 2913, the qwinbnent of MI5. V. SankarAiyar & Co., 
Chartered W u n t m t s ,  els Statuto Auditors of the Company, hold the o f p  Jrom $8 qdusron afthls annual 

general meeting Mtil he conclusion 3 Hth Annual M e a l  Meeting subjed to ratlfiwkon of appoinfment sf 
everyAnnud General M n $  

(a) PARTICULARS OFLO 5, GUARANTEES OR INVE8fAIIEMTS UNDER SECTION 186: 4 
The Company has not I n any b n s ,  guaranhm and Mtrnents m m d  under section I85 of Companiw 

Act, 2013 during !he yearU@PBYh. 

The mmpern has given MIS of dated party b p c t b n s  as per AS-18 in note no. 24b to tfia finanetcd 
s h h m t s .  + related pa Wnsamw as per section 177 and $88 of Vita ampmiss Act 

20l3.Thedetalbdwhlchare hown lnAOC-2 in nnemrreB 
I 2 

MATERIAL CHANGES AElP COMMnMENTS ,IF ANY ,AFFECTING THE POSmON OF THE GQMPANY TO 
THE F-CIAL s~qtE.Ems RELATEomD D m  REPORT : 

There are no matwid ch affecting the fmaneial p i t ion  of the Co ny whlch have 
-nd barnen the en6 of mrnpny ta which the finandal statemezrdate and the 
date m e  report 

(R) CONSERVATIQN OF EWRGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGB: 

The pmvlslolrai of Sedan 34 (3) (m) oFth&ornpombs~-20.13 red with Rub 8 of ~ompanles (~e~nunts) 
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Rules 2014 ch nat apply ta our Company as the Company has not mrried out any activities dating to conservation dl 
energy and technolagy absorption. The Particulars regarding foreign exchange earnings and 
outgoamas fallows: I 
Foreign Exchange Earnin : h.53,32,500/- 
Forelen ~xchange 0utgo:?87.95~- 

(t) RlSK MANAGEMENT WL*Y : 
The C m  any does not ham any Rlsk Management Policy as the elements of rIsk threatening the Company's 
e ~ l s t ~ n w  & wry minimal. 

I 
(1) CORPORATE SOCIAL RE8~ONSIBllltV(CSR): 

The net wrfh of the mrrtpa& is kss than C.5WCr. me turnow ofthe company Is less Umn Ci000Cr. and the net 
T.5 Cr. Hence, the company Is not l i ds  to develop and Implemnt poficy on 

I 
(k) SAFETY OF WOMEN EMPLOYEES: 

INTERNAL FINANCW C O ~ L  
The Company has in place I n t h d  Financial Control systm, wmrnensurate with sire and complexity of& operatlorn 
to ensum proper recording dfinanchl and opmmnal informatmi and mrnpliance of various internal contmls and 

other regulatory andstatutory cwnpjianm. 
Durlng the year undw review, o mtwial or serious obsewation has been receivedfm any sourcefor lrrefflelency or 
Inadequacy of such oonlrols. 

DISCLOSURES UNDER SU~RULE 5 OF RULE 8 OF M E  COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014 

3. During the arthere was no change in the nature of bwiness cornparedwith object stated In the main object dause of 
Memorand% ofhsoclation. 

2. S d o n  2(51) of Companies Act, 2013 defines Key Managerial Personnel. Fw the compsny, Key Mana 
Personnel are whole lime Oirehm ofthe mrnpany.The company has not appointed any Company Semtary or r3' 
Finarrciat O k r .  During the year there was no change in Key Managerial Personnel. 

I 

3. The company has notaceepfdd any deposits from public. 
I 

4. The Company does not have &y su bsidiary, Joint venture orhsociate Company. 

5. No slgnlffcant or material ordep were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which Impaa the going concern 
status and Company's opereti ns in future. P 
APPRECIATION 
The Bead of Directom placed, mcord their preciatim for -peration mcdved from thelrsanken, staff, suppliers 
and &tutor/ authoMes durin the period u$r review. ? 

On Behalf Of The Board 
For Strk Wireless Systems Private Llmlted 

Place: Mumbal 
Data :lfApr112018 

Mr. Aslt Javerl 
Director 

[DIM: 002681141 
. 



Form No. AOC9 

(~ursuah to Clause (h) of sub +iecEon (3) of section 134 oftha act and 
l ~ u l e  8 (2) of the Companies ( A w n t s )  Rubs. 2014) 

Fonn for dkclosure of peMs \an of sontnc?s/arrangwnont antared Into by the company wlth related p r b s  Y 
referred to In sub*etlon ( of section 188 of the Companirs Act, 2043 lneludlng certain a m  bngth 
kansactlons under third provl 1 o thereto. 

I 
Details of oonhct9 or a gements or transactions not at arm's length M s  

Name(s) of the related pa and naturs of relationship : Not Applicable 

Nsture of contrrretslamng mentltransdwls : Not Appt idte 1 Duratian of fhe contractalarrangemenhsactlons : Not Applicable 
I Salient temts of the contracts or amwements or transadom )ncludlng fhe value , if any : Not Appllmbb 

JustiRcatlm for entering Into such conkacts or amngement or transawns : Not Applicable 

Data(s) of approval by the board : Not Applicable 

Amount paid as advances, If any : Not Applicable 
I 

Dab on which the special $solutton was passed In general meeting as requfred under first proviso to 

section I88 : Not Applicab e 1 
At Arm's Length Basla 

I 
Name d Related Party I Nature of Relatlonahlp I 

1 

5 1 ABilDJBwri 1 I Key Manasehl P e m n e l  I 

2 

8 

4 

6 1 PmnavShah 1 I Key Managerial ~ersonnel I 

Strlx Systems Inc. --- 

Nature of e o n ~ a r r a n g e m n b h n ~ c t l o n s :  
S t d  Systems Ins: Sale d Sewices 
Strbt Systems Inc.: Sale Gwds 
St& Systems Inc.: P u & y  of Goods 
Sadhana Nitm Chem Lim : Receipt 
Manemand ~nactwndEding investment M . P ~  ~ t d :  Receipt 
Manekchand Panadwnd radlng Investinant Co.Pvt. LW: Loan Given r Ufe Stylo Networks Ltd.: faan Reeelved 
Ask D Javeri: Loan Remi ed 
Pmnav Shah: Loan Rep& 

Enterprises Having Significant InBuence 

Enterprises Havlng Signmcsnt InRlmenae 

Holding Company 

Enterprises Having SignWnt Influenca 

Manekchand Panachand Trading Investment Co.Pvt.Ud. 
I 

Sadham N t h  Cherr 

Llk&+h NeIwoh L 

Limlbd 

d. 



3. Duration of the contracts1 arrangement1 transaetlons: 

1. Sale of Services : During the Year 
2. Sale of Goods: During the Year 
3. Purchase of Goods: Duri Ig the Year 
4. Rsdpt, During the Year1 
5. Loan Receive& During the Year 
8. Loan Glven: During the Year 
7. Loan Repaid: During the year 

I 
4. Salienl t e r n  of the contracts or arrangements or transactions tncludlng the value. if any: 

1. Pmviding services of C 9,89,2621- during the year. 
2. Sale of Goods to Strix *terns Inc of T 26,44.981/- during the year. 
3. Purchase of Goods of? 2P,51.4511- from Strix Systems Inc. 
4. C 18,00,000/- received as'loan from Mr. Asit Javeri. 
5. F 48,38,97U- remlved a ban from Mr. Asit Javeri. 
6. C 1,40,000 Loan repaid d Mr. Pmnav Shah 
9. C 8,25,00,000/- Loan giveh to Manekchand Panachand Trading Investment Co. Pvt. Ltd 
8. Redpt of T 9,22,64,71?li received from Sadhsna Nitro Chem U m M  
9. Recsipt of 7 4,00,CQOl- e i v d  from Manekchand Panachand Trading lnvesiment Co. Pvt. Ltd 

5. D W s )  of approval by 
Theapproval of bmrd wa 

6. Amount p l d  as advandes , If any: NIL 

Place: Mumhi 
Date : 18'Apri12018 

For Strbt Wlreless Systems Private Limited 

Mr. Aslt Javerl 
Director 

PIN: 00268114J 



ANNEXUREA 
FORM NO. MGT D 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
as on Cmncia( year mded on 31.032018 

Pursuant lo S M o n  W (3) of the paniee A& 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Abelsagement & Adfithr Wllon ) Rules, 2014, 

U729WMH2008PTC180I41 
2411212006 

STRH WIRELESS SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 

i 
ii 
lil 

QN 
ReQl&ahnDate 
Name of h Cwnpany 

Compny LlmlM by Sharwlnctian 
Non-Gwernmturt Company 

HlRA BAUG, KASTURBA CHOWK, C.P.TANK, 
MUM3AlW04, INDIA 

iv 

v 

vi 
vil 

1 Ill  PARTICULARS OF HOLDING,, SUBSlWARY &ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 

Cabwy&bcategwy of the Company 

AddmaftheReg 
8conlM6MBI~ Tmm 
WhetherWcompsny 
Name , A d d m  & mlact 
Aaent. if anv. 

AM the buslnws adlvltbs 

*. 
No 

1 

conMbuting fO% or more ofthe total t m v w  offhe m p a n y  shaU be stated 

Sr. 
No 

1 

detals of the Registrar B. Transfer 

Name & Description d 
producbdmwiceis 

Information technow (T') 
cnrpsultlng and support 
services 

naln 

Mo 
N. A. 

Name 8 Address of the 
Company 

S A D W  NITRO CHW 
LIMITED 
HlRA MUG, 1st FLOOR 
KASTURBA CHOWK 
TANK) MUMMI MH 40 

#IC Code of the 
Product Iseruiee 

98831 3 

% to total turnover of 
the company 

100.00 

ClNlG L N 

I241 10MH1973PLC016698 

HOLDING! 
SUBSIDlARYI 
ASSOCIATE 
HOLDING 

%OF 

SHARES 

HELD 
99.99% 

APPLICABLE 
SECTK)N 

2 (46) 



W SHAREHOLDINQ -ERN (Equity Share espltal Brosk up as % to total EquItv) 

nominal shusare mphl  

k k  
Custodian for 
D R s R A D R B  

Grand Total (A+B+CY 

I 155 

. I 

0 

0 

0 

1 3 9 P D O l  

0 

891001 

b 

400 

0 

0 

0 

592004 

0 

392001 

0 

100 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 



SI 
Na 

1 
2 
3 
4 

No. of % of total No of 
Shares shares of shares 

the 

(iii) CHANGE IN PROMO~ERS' SHAREHOLDING ( SPECIFY IF THERE IS NO CH 

I I Share hotding during year spedfylng the 
reasons for Increasd debase lea. altotmenff I 

Shareholders Name 

SIRU(SYSIEA1SINC. 
KALPANA~WMORAKHIA 
SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED 
ABHlSHEKASrrJRYERt I -- 
TOTAL 

ST. 
No. 

IAt the beginning of the year I 11 0.00031 I 
l ~ a t e  wise increaseldecrease In Promotets I -11 4 ~ 0 0 3 l  C 

Share holdlng at the 
beginning of the Year 

2 

Share holding during tlw year specifyng the 
reasons fw Increasd d k s e  (e.g, allohenV 
transfed bonudsweat ec/uity eto) 31.03201 6 

Whnlng of the year 

Cumulatlv 

I I I I I 
IAt the end of the year I O[ 0.OOOOl C 

NOof %oftotal 
shares ~harea 

oftha 
m p n y  

992D00 99.9997 
I 0 . 0 ~ ~  
0 O.OW&, 

. - 
transfer1 bonudsweat d u b  etc) 
At the end of the year 
KALPAMA SHRlPAL MORAKHIA 

sham holdkg 
du6ng the year 

-99.1 
-1.00 

- 99-89 
1.00 

io0.00 

%of 
shares 
pledged 
s n e u m M  
tototal 
shares 

NIL 
NLL 
NIL 

end of thepar 

O.OWI4 NIL 
392~11 ioo.oawl ~n 

NOoi 
sham 

0 
o 

392000 
I 

392001 

0 

3 SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED 
0 

Date wim Inaeaseldecr+ase in Pmmotm 392000 

IAt the beginning of thd year I 0 1  0.0000l E 
1 Date wise Imasddecr+ase In Promoters I 11 0.0003l I 

4 

I 1  Share holding during th4 p a r  specifying the 
reasons for Increapa, debase (e.g. allotment/ 
transfer1 bnus/swat equity etc) 31.03201 5 

%oftotal 
shares 
ofthe 
company 

0.0000 
o . o ~ l o  

WJBW 
0.0003 

1 0 0 . ~ ~ ~ 1  

0.0000 

--- 
0.0000 

99.9097 

I I I I 
[At the end of the year 11 0.00031 I 

%of 
shares 
pledged 
n m m h d  
to total 
shms 

NIL 
w l t  

7 & L  - 
NL 
NIL 

C 

E 
392000 

. - 
transfer1 b o n u d s h  etctc) 
At the end of the year I 
ABHISHEK ASlT JAV~RI 

WGE) 
I Share holding durlng 

the year 

% of total shares of 
the company 

392000 W.WD7. 39200U 



Ov) Shamholdlng Pattarn of top ten Shareholders (other thal 
Holders of GDRs 8 ADRs) 

No I ! I end ol 
I For Each of the Tod 10 Shareholders I No. of 

shares 

At the inn1 of thd ear 
ME wise Increaseldecrease In Promoien 
At the end of the yeari(or on the date of 

I Iseparation, if s&ratdd I during the year) I 
(v) Shareholding of Directors & KMP 

Sr. Sharehol 
No end ol 

1 SEEMA ASFr JAVERl No.of 
shares 

Share holding durlng thkyear spedyng the 
ressnns far hcreasaf d w e  (e.0. allotmentr 
transfer/ b n &  we& equity etc) 31.03.201 5 

I A ~  the end of the year I I P 
21 ASlT DHANKUMAR JAVERi I N o d  

I shares 

I I 

I 1 ~ t  the beginning ofthe year 
I 

I a 
IDate wlae Increase/decresse In Promoters I (1 

I I Share holdlnp durlng the:year speclfyInp the 
masons for increase1 depiase (e.g. allolinentl 
bansferl &nus( sweat equlty etc) 31.03.201 5 

I 
I t 

IAt the end of the y e ~ r  I I (1 

ABHISHEK ASIT JAVERI 1 No.of 

I shares 

. At the beginning of the year a 
Date h w e a d d m s s  in Pmoter$ 1 

I Ishare holding durlng the-year specifying Ihe 1 

I I masans for i n c r e d  demerrss (e.g. allotment, 
banskt M u d  sweat equlty etc) 31.03.2015 I 
.At the end ofthe year 1 

4 NtTlM MEStlqHANDRA JAN1 N0.d 
shares 

Direcorn, Promoters B 

llng at the I Cumulative Shareholdlng durlng 
the year the year 
% of total No of % of total shares of 
shares of shares the company 

the 
company 

MIL MIL NII 
NIL NIL NII 
NIL NIL NII 

the company 

0.000a 

the company 

- 
0.0000 1 01 0.0000 

% of total I No of I % of total shares of 
sham. of I sham. I t i~e company 

the 

0.00031 11 OROOS 
%of total I No of I % oftotal shams of 
sharer of I shares I the company 

the I 
company 

At the bmginnlng of the year 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 
Date wise I n c r e a s d d e ~  In Promoten 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 
Share holding durlng Hw year specHyEng the 
re-s for incr-1 dareass (e.g. allotment/ 
transfer/ bonrrsl sweat eqully tyc) 31.03.201 6 

I I I I I I A ~  the end of the year I ot 0 . ~ 0 0 1  01 o.oooo 
I 



V INDEBTEDNESS 

lndebtness at the beginning of the financial 

yBaf 

Indebtedness of the Company including Interest outstandiag/accrud but not due for payment 
Unsecured 

loans 

1) Principal Amount I 
ii) Interest due but not paid I 
iil) Interest accrued but nor due 
iv) Interest pald I 

Totat (i+iiMii*kr) 1 

Deposits 

I 
Change In Indebtednew duriG the ffnanchl year 
Additions 

i) Principal Amount I 0.00 103294119.d 0.00 103294119. 
ii) Interest due but not paid I 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Ill) Interest accrued but nor due 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
iv) Interest pard 0.00 0.W 0.W 0.00 
Total (i+iHii+kr) 0.00 103294119.4 0.00 103294119.00 

Total 
Indebtedness 

0.00 
0.00 
0,OO 
0.00 
0.00 

Reduction I 
Net Change I 
Indebtedness at the end of the flnadal year 

VI REMLlFIERATlON OF DIRECTORS AND KW MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

A. Remuneralbn to Anawn# Director, W M e  time dEredtw atadlor Manapr: 

. 
0.00 
0 

12768595.00 
0.00 ---- 
A00 
0.00 

12768595.00 

0.00 
0.m 

0.00 

90525524.00 

000 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

I 
0.00l 0.00 

0.00l 90525524.00 
0.00 

90525524.00 

12768595.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

12768595.00 

O.W] 0.00 
0.001 90525524.0C 

1 



For, Strix Wireless Systems Private Umited 

6. Remuneration to other dtmcton: NIL 

VII PENALTIES/PUN~~HMEPIT~~OMPWUNDIWG OF OFFENCES: MIL 

Asit JaverI AbhWek JaverI 
Place : Mumbai Director Dl~etor 
Date : 18th Aprll2018 PIN : 00288'1j4 DIN : 00273030 

I 159 
I 

Authority 
(RD/NCLT/ 
Court) 

Details of 
Penalty/Punishment/ 
Compounding fe%s Imposed 

Brief hser ipdon WPa Sectiqfi of the 
Companies Act 

I 



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Members of STRlX WIRELESS SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the Finsncial Statements 
I 

We have audited the accompanjrIng financial statements of STRlX WIRELESS SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED ("the 
Company"), which comprises the Balanm Sheet as at 31st March 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow 
Statement forthe yearthen ended, and asummarjof significant accounting policiesand other explanatory Information. 

Management's Responslbllltyfqr the Flnanclal Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 201 3 ("the 
Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the flnancial position, 
financial performanm and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accwnting principles generally accept& in 
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards ("lnd AS") specified under Section 133 of the Act further amended by 
Companies (Accounting standards) amendment rules 2016, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance wlth the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventingand detectingfrauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting poticles; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenanceof adequate internal financisl controls, thatwere operating eRectivsly for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the flnancial 
statsrnents that givea trueand fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone flnancial statements based on our audit. 

We have taken intoaccount the provisions of theAct, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required 
to beincluded in the sudit report under the provisions of theAct and the Rules made there under. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those 
Standards require that we comply wlth ethlcal requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whetherthe financial staternents are free from material misstatement. 

An audH Involves perfmlng procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the flnanclal statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the financial statements that give atrueand fair 
view in order to design auda procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the 
Company's Directors, as well asevatuating theoverall presentationof the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provlde a basis for our audit opinlon on 
the Standalone Financial Statemfls. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial 
staternentsgive the information required by the Act in the mannerso required and give a true and fairview in confomlty M h  
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2018, and its 
Loss and Its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order 2016 ("the Order") issued by the Central Government of India 
in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of tho Act, we give in Annexure 1, a statement on the matters specified In 
paragraph 3and4 of the Order, totheextent applicable. 

2. Further to ourcomments in Annexure 1, as required by Section 143(3) of theAct, we report that: 



(a) We havesought and obtahed all the information and explanations which to the b a d o u r  bowledgeand belief were 
necessary forthe purposes ofour dudit. 

I 
(b) In our opinion, proper book% acmunt as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears fram 
our examination d those books 

(c) The Balanm She& the Sta of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Ftew Statement dealt with by thls Report are in 
agreement with the h k s  

undw Seotitiw 133of4htheAcB~~er 
wfth Rule 7 of the ~ ~ i e s  

mebed from the directors as on 51H March, 201 8 taken on record by the 
as on 3'lst March, 2018 from being appointed as a director tn 

tens of Sectlon 4 6 4  (2) ofthem. 

(9 WIth respect to the the lntwnal firtanclat controls over f inand reporting of the wmpany and tfie 
operating effectiveness of refer to cur separate report In ' Annexure T, and 

(g) Wfih respot to !he other ma m to be indud& In the A u d i t s  Report in accordance with Rule 4 1 of the Compani~  
(Audit and Audbrs) Rules, 2014, On cur oplnlon and b the best of our lnfonnatlon and according to the explanaftons 
given to us: t' 
t The company d m  not have kny priding lltigatlon which would impact its financial poslon. 

ii. The Campany did nut have ny long4enn contracts inducting cterivatlve contracts for which there were any material 
fareseeable losses. 

lit. Then am no anoum that ire required to be transferred. to the Invastor Educatfon and Protection Fund by me 
Company. 

i 

For V. Shsnkar Aiyar Co. 
Chartered kcountanxs 
Fl rm Regn,No:109208w 

V Mohan 
Parter 
Membership No.017748 



ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF STRlX WIRELESS SYSTEMS 
PRIVATE LIMITED ON FINANCIALSTATEMENTS FORTHEYEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2018. 

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the financial statements of the 
company and taking into consideration the lnfomation and explanations given to us and the books of account and other 
records examlned by us in the normal course of audit. and in our opinion, we report that: 

II a. The Company has general!y maintained proper records showing full particulars, Including quantitative details and 
situation of fixed assets. 

b. The Company has a policy~of physically verifying its fixed assets in a phased manner to cover all the assets of the 
Company in a blockof three years, whlch inour opinion, Is reasonable havlng regard to thesize oftheCompany and the 
natureof its business. 

c. Thecompany does not hold any immovable property accordingly thisclause is not applicable. 

II, a. The inventory has been physically verified by the Management at reasonable intervals during the year. 

b. In our opinionand according to the information and explanation given to us, the procedures of physical verification of 
inventories followed by the management is reasonabie and adequate in relation to the slze of the company and 
natureof its business. No material discrepancies were noticedon such physical verification. 

c. The company has maintained proper records of inventories.Asexplained to us, there were no rnaterialdiscrapancies 
noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to the book records. 

111. The wrnpany has not granted any loans secured or unsecured during the year in the register maintained under section 
189 of the Companies Act 201 3. 

IV. In our opinion and according to the Information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with section 
185 and 386 of Companies Act 201 3 in respect of loans, Investments, guarantees, and securities. 

V. The Company has notaccepted any depositsfrom public. Accordingly, this clause is not applicable. 

VI. The Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under section 148{?) of the Act. 

V1l.a. The company is generaily Irregular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' 
state Insurance, Income-tax, sales-tax. wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess 
and any other statutoly duos with the appropriate authorities during the year. According to the information and 
explanations given to us, no undisputed amount In respect of the aforesaid statutory dues were in arrears, as at 31st 
March 2018, for a period of moretfian six months from the date they become payable except in the following case: - 

The Income Taw Act, 1961 tDS on rent ? ,92,054 FY 20?4-15 to Sep 201 7 

The Income Tax Act,l961 TDS on contractual payments 93,459 Oct2014 toSep2017 



XVI 

IX. 

According to the information and explanations glvm to us based on the remrds of the c m p n y  examined by us, 
there are no dues of lncwne Tax, S a k  tax, Servlce Tax, Customs duty, Wealth Tax, Excise Duty and Cess which 
have not been deposited on account of a dispute. 

The Cornparry has not de u b d  in repayment of dues to any financial institutions or banks. i. 
any money by way of inl#aI public Mer Fndudlng debts imtrrrments) of further pubnc 
the par-Accordingly, this dause Is notapgllcable. 

No material h u d  by the mpany or on the company by its officers or employees has b w ~  noflced or reported 
duringfhe mrse ofoura k dlt. 

I 
The proviskmsof ~ectioi197 are not applicable to the company. 

The Company is n d  a N i Cmpmy.Mcdingly, this dauee L notappllcable. T 
par#as are in mmpllanea with Section f 77 and s e d m  188 of the CMnpani~Ad,2Ol3 
ils d such hnsamns have been d i o s e d  In the financial statemmta as required by 

the applbble Ind AS. 

of shares or fully or party convertible 

The Cornpny has not entered inb any non- -ah tramactions with dirsetMsm persons c 0 n M  with them. 

The Company ls not requi to be registered un&rSection 45dAoithe Reserve Bank of IndiaM, 7934. 

1 
Far V, Shankat Aiyar & Ca. 
Chartered Accountants 
Flrm Regn.No:l09208w 

V Mohan 
Patter 
Membership No.017748 



mNU(URE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF !hWX WIRELESS W!iTEW PRIV#TE UMrrED ON 
STANDALONE F I W C W  STATEMENTS WRTHE VEAR ENDED 31STMARCH 2018 

I 
3 of 5eamn E43 of the Companies Act, ZOl3 ("the Act") 

Strix Wireles Svtem Private Limlted ("the Company") as of 

thecompany forthe year ended on that date. 

ManagemenPs Responslbllity for In rnal FInancld Controls i 
The Company's management is ns#nsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal mntml 

over finandal reporting crlterla esta Ilshed by the Company conslderlng the essential components of internal control stated In the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal lnandal Controls over flnandal Lport ing issued by the Institute of Chartered Acwuntants of 

India. These responslbiliti~ lndude e design, implementation and maintenan- of adequate internal financial controlsthat were 

operating eff&Ively for ensuring th orderly and efflclent w n d u d  d ks business, Induding adherence to company's palldes, the 

safeguardlngofltsassets, the prwen on and ddetctbn offmudsand erm-the accura~yandwmplebeness dtheacchuntlng records, 

and thetlmely preparatlonufreiiable ancial information, as requlred underthe CompanLsdct, 2013. 

A d i d  ResmsiblMy 

Our responsibility is to express an opi 1 ion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We 

conducted our audi h afwrdanfe ith the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Dver Financial k p w t l n g  (the I 
"Guldmce Note") and theStandads qn Audltlng, issued by lCAl and deemed to be prescribed unde~section l43(10) of the Cwnpanles 

I Act, 2OE3, to the extent spplkable toan audR of Internal financial mnmls, both applicable to an audAaf lntefnal FinandalControls 

and, both issued by the hstitute of dartered Accountants of 1ndla.Thore Standsdr and the Guidance Note require that we mrnply 

with ethis l  requirem~nts and planadd parform the audit to obtain rearonable asrunnce about whether adequate internalfinanchl 

canlmls over financial nportingwas dstabl~shed and maintained and if such controls operated effectlvelyln all material respeck. 
I 

Our audi invafves performing procedures to obtaln audit evldence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system aver 

financial repartingand their o p  r a t i d  effectiveness. Our audit d internal finanrtal controls weiflnanrlal repofling indudEd obtaining 

an understanding of internal finandal Imtrols bvwfinanclal reporting assassln~tha rlskthat material weakness exists, and testing and 

Nalvatlngthcdesign and operating kctivenerr of internal control bared on the a-d rirt, The pmredurer selcrtpd depend on 

the aud[tor'sJudgrnent, Ineluding thl assessment of the r isk  of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or e m . W e  beliewthattheau tevidence we hawobtained Issuflcient andappmpriate topmvidea basisforouraud#opinion 

on the Company's internal financial 4: troksystem aver financial reporting. 

~mnhsgdlnternal flnsndal ~ontrohver~lnand91 ReportImg 

A company's Internal financial cont rd I over financial reporting is a process designed to prwrlde reasonable assuranw regarding the 
I 

reliability of financial reprtlng a d  the preparation of financial staternen& for external puhpses In accordance wlth generally I 
accepted aewuntlng pdnclples. A coTpanyls internal financial control over financial reporting includes those polides and prweduw 

that 

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fajrlyrefied the transadom and disposlt~ons of the 

assets of the company; 

(2)provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparatldn of financial statements in 

aaodanm with generally accepted #countlngprlnciples, and that receipts and expenditures dthe company are being made only in 

acmrdan~ewlth autharirirationsof management and dlrectarsofths company; and 



(3) Prwlda r e a m b l e  assurance wrdlf ig pmtitton br timely detection of unauthotized acquisition, use, of dispasition of the 
company's assets that muld have a material effect on the Rnandal statements. 

I n ~ n t ~ m o t l n t e m a ~  Finarkid contrdswet a m  Reponim 

DpInlon 

India. 

Place: Murnbai 
Dak April 18,201 t 

For V. ShankBf Afyar & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn.N0:109208w 

V Mohan 
Parter 
Membership No.017748 



Balance Sheet as at March 31,2018 
Illmount in 

Total 
EClUllY AND LlAllllllES 

Equirv 
(a) Equity Share c-spital 
(b) Other Equtty 

UABlllTlES 
Monhcurrent IIabllItks 

(a) Pmvlsions 
(b) Flnanclal UabllltIes 

(I] Borruwlngs 

Cumnt Lbll itIer 
(a) Finandal Lhbilities 

(i) Borrowings 
(il) Trade payables 

(b) Provislms 
(c)Other current liabilities 

In terms of our report attached. 
For V. Sanlrar Alyar L Co. 
C h a r m  Afcounhntr 
Flrm k@. No.: 1U9MBW 

Particularr 

Non-current ass& 
(a) Pmperty, Plant and Equipment 
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(c) Financial Assek 

(I) loans 
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(el Other noncurrent as& 

Current as& 
(a) Inventories 
(bJ Flnandal Assets 

[I) Trade receluables 
{li) Cash and ash equivalents 
fill) Loans 
(Iv) Other Flnanclal m e t s  

(c) Other current assets 

ml Equlty and Wbllltles 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Standalone 

V Mohan 
Partner 
Mem bershlp Plumb%r: Oi7748 

For and on behatf of the Board of Directon 
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15 

financial statements. 

Abhishek Jawri Asltjaveri Seema J m r l  
Director Director Director 
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2018 
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6,88,33,682 
90,27,809 
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Strlx Wireless Systems Pvt. Ltd. 

of Profft and loss for theyear ended March 31.2018 
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(IV) 
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Strlx Wireless Systems Rn. ltd. 

Notes to Standalone financial Ftements for the year ended 31st March 2018 
1.CORWRATE INFORMATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
1. CORPORATE INWRMAtlON I 
The Company was incorporated on December 24, 2008. The Company i s  engaged in Manufacturing of Wireless 
Network Equipments. As on 31kt March 2018 Sadhana Nitro Chem Umtted, holding company awned 100% of the 
company's equity share capitall The Curnpany'r registered office Is located at Mumbai, Mahararhtra India and 
manufacturing facility is located at Ahmedabad, Gujarat India. 

II. SIGMIFICANT ACWUNTING WUCIES: 

A. Statement of Compliance 
In accordance with the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company has adopted Indian 
Accounting Standards (referred to as "Ind AS") notified under the Companies (Indlan Aceountlng Standards) 
Rules, 2015 with effect from bpril 1, 2017. Previous period numbers in the financial statements have been 
restated to lnd 6. In accarda ce wlth lncl AS 101 Fist-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standard, the f 
Company has presented a revnciliation from the presentation of financial statements under Accounting 
Standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 ("Previous GAAP") to Ind AS of 
SharehoIders' equky as at  arch 31,2017 and April 1,2016 and of the Mher comprehenslve income for the year 
ended March 31,2017 and I, 2016. 

6. Going concern assumption I 
The order book position has imploved during the financial year as compared to the part including long term supply 

agreement. This will improw thd overall performance of the company in addition to absorbing accumulated losses. 

Hence although here  are accudulated losses as on 31rt March 2018, conridering the overall strategy, going mncern 

would not be affected and accordingly financial statements have been prepared. 

C. Basis of preparation and presentation 

The financial Statements are prepared In accordance with Indlan Accounting Standards (IND AS) notfied under 
Sealon I33 of the Companles Act, 2013 (Act) read with Rute 4A of Companies (Accounts) Second Amendments 
Rules, 2015, Companies (Indian hcco~nt in~~tandards)  Rules, 2015; and the other relevant provision of the Act and 
Rules thereunder. The Financlal;Statements have been prepared under historical cost convention basis except for 
derlvatlve financial instruments, certain financial assets and financial liabilities which haw been measured at fair 
value. 
For all  the period up to31st Ma a I h 2017, the financial statemem were prepared under historical cast convention in 
accordance with the atcountinqstandards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 
ofthe Companles (Accounts) Rules, 2014, Theoefinanclalstatementsforthe year ended 31 March 2018are the first 
the Company has prepared in ccordance wlth IND As. Refer to Note 228 for Information on how the Company 
adopted IND AS. i 
D. Use of estimate 
The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognltion and measurement prlnciptes of 
Ind AS requires the management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
balances of assets and liabjlities, disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported anbunts d income and expense for the periods presented. 

I 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognlred in the period in wh/ch the estimates are revised and future periods are affected. The management 
balims that the estimates use4 In preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future 
mults could differ due to these bstimates and differences between actual results and estimates are recognized in 
the periods in which the results i r e  known/materialira. 

170 



Key source of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the financial statements, whlch may cause a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, is In respect of 
impairment of investments, useful lives of property, plant and equipment, valuation of deferred tax liabilities and 
provisions and contingent liabilkles. 

Impairment of investments '1' 
value of investments carried at cost annually, or more frequently when there is 

indication for recoverable amount Is less than Its carrying amount, the impairment loss is 
accounted for. 

Useful lives of property, plant a d equipment 
The Company reviews the use d I life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. This 
reassessment may result in charla in depteetation expen- in future periods. 

I 
Valuation of defernd tax assets j 
The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred rax assets a t  the end of each reporting period. The policy 
for the same has been explained under Note (K) 

Provishns and cmtingent liabildies 
Provlslons are recognized whe I the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a rault of past 1 
events; It Is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount can 
be reliably estimated. 

Provisions ate measured at the resent value of the expenditures expected to he required to settle the obligation P uslng a pm-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money (if the impact of 
dlrmunhg is slgnifltant) and tde risk specific ta the obligation. The Increase in the provirion due to unwinding 
of dimunt over passage d time Is recugnlzed as finance cost. Provisions are rewewed at  the each reporting date 
and adjusted to reflect the current: best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic 
mourn will be rquired to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. 

A provision for onerous contra? is recognized when the expected benefits m be derived by the Company from a 

contract are lower than the unawldable cost of meeting its obllgationa under the cantract. The provtslon is 
measured at the present mlue of the expected net cost df continuing wlth the contract. Befow a provision Is 
established, the Company recog izes any impairment loss on the assetsassociated wlth that mntraa. 

A disclosure for a contingent IIa 1 tity is made where there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and 
the existence of which will ke bonlirmed only by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain 
future eventr not wholly withir( the contra1 of the Company or a present obllgatlon that arises fram the past 
events where it Is either not pr bble that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a 
reliable estimate of the amou h t cannot be made. Contingent liabilities are not mgnised in the financial 
statern-. A contingent asset Is nelrher recognised nor disclosed In the financial statements. 

Fair value measuremeHtS and valuation processes 
Some of the Company's assets and Ilabiltties are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The 
Company has obtained indepen sntfalr valuation for financial instruments wherever necessaryto determine the 
appropriate valuation techniqu and inputs for fair value measurements. in some cases the fair value of financial k Instrummts Is done internally the managernant of the Company using marht-obsenmble inputs, bv 
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In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the extent it is 
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Company engages third paFty qualified valuers to perform 
the valuation. The qualified eFrnal valuers establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the 
model. The external valuers redort to the management of the Company their findings for every reporting period 
to explain the cause of fluauatlbns In the fair value of the assets and liabilities. 

lnfprrnatlon about the valuatio techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of various assets and i liabilities are disclosed In nates o 228. n 
E. Revenue Remgnltion 1 
Revenue is measured at the ir value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue Is reduced for ? estimated customer returns, re ates and other similar allowances. 
I. Sale of goods b Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered and tltles have passed, at whlch time 
all the following canditbnr a n  atirfied: 4 

the Company has transferred the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods; 
the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated wlth 
ownershlg nor dfectlve conthl over the goods sold; 
the amount of revenue can b measured reliably; e 
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company; and 
the costs incurred or to be ~ndurred in respect of the transaalon can be measured reliably. 

I 
ii. Rendering of Services 
Revenue from service transadins is recognlsed as the service is performed by the mmpleted service contract 
method. 

Performance consists of the ,execution of a single act, Alternatively, services are performed In more than a 

single act, and the services yet Lo be performed are so significant in relation to the transaction taken as a whole 
that performance cannot to have been completed until the execution of those acts. The completed 
servlce contract method is to these patterns of performance and accordingly revenue is recognlsed when 
the sole or final act takes the sewi~e becomes chargeable. 

Revenue from sales and operation excludes Excise Duty, Sales Tax, Value Added Tax & GST 
I 

ii.Other Income 1 
a.lnterest income from a finan ial asset is recognlsed when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to F 
the Company and the amount of income mn be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by 

I 
refewnce to the principal ouMpnding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future ca/h receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net 
canying amount on initial recofjnitlon. 

F. Leases 
She company has not been engaged in neither Operating Lease nor finance Lease, hence there is no question of 
classification. 



G. Foreign Currency 
The functional currency of the Company is Indian rupee. 
Income and expenses in foreign currencies are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the date of the 
transaction. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the 
balance sheet date and exchange gains and losses arising on settlement and restatement are recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss. 

H. Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are added 
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. Interest 
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying 
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible far capitalisation. 
All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in whkh they are incurred. 

I. Government grants 

(i) Government grants in respect to manufacturlng unites located in developing regions : 
The Company is entitled to various incentives from government authorities in resped of manufacturing units 
located in developing regions. The Company accounts for its entitlements on accrual basis on approval af the 
initial claim by the relevant authorities and there is reasonable assurance that the grants will be received. 

(ii) Government grants in respect of additional Capital Expenditures : 
Government grants whose primary condition is that the Company should purchase, construct or otherwise 
acquire capital assets is accounted for as deferred income. The grant is recognised as income over the life of a 
depreciable asset by accounting deferred income in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic and rational 
basis over the useful life of the asset. 

(iii) Export Incentives 
Export incentives under various schemes are accounted in the year of export. 

J. Employee benefits 
(1) Defined Contribution Plan: 
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes viz. Company's Provident Fund Scheme and 
Superannuation Fund are recognised as an expense when the employees have rendered the senrlce entitling 
them to the contribution. 

(2) Defined Benefit Plan: 
For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit 
credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. 
Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if 
applicable) and the return on plan assets {excluding interest), is reflected immediately in the statement of 
financial position with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive Income in the period in which they 
occur. 



Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive incurne is reflected immediately in retained earnings and 
will not be reclarrified to pro4 or toss. Past service cost is remgnkd in profit or loss in the period of a plan 
amendment. Net interest is cal(urlated by applying the discount mte at the beglnnlng of the perlad to the net 
defined benefit liability or asset: Defined benefit costs are categorlsed as foltows: 
servlce cost (including current service cost, pas service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and 

settkrnents]; 
net Intenst expense or incomb; and 
remeasurement. 

(I) Gmuity: The Company has n obligation towards gratuity, a defifid benefit retirement plan cowring elighle I employees, The plan provldes,for a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in 
employment or on termtnatlod of employment of an amount equivalent to 15/26 days salary payable far each 
completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completlan of five years of service. The Cornpahy amounts for the 
liability for gratuity beneflts payable in future based on an independent actuarial valuation. The Company has 
taken a Group Gratuity cum Gfe Assunnce Scheme wkh Life Insurance Corporation for future payment of 

I 
gratuity to the eligible employef3s. 
(il)  Compensated Absences: The Company provldes for the encashment of compensated absences with pay 
subject to certain rules. The pIoyees are entitled to accumulate ampensated a k n c e s  subject to certain 
limits, for future enezlshment. k u  mulated leave, whlch Is expected to be utilised within the next twelve months, 

I 
is treated as short-term employee benefit and the accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond 
twelve month is treated ar lab-term employee benefit which are provided bared an the number of days of un 
utillsed wrnpensatwl absence on the basis of an Independent actuarial valuation. 

K. Taxation I 
Income tax expense comprises Furrent tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liablltty during 
the year. Current and deferred tax are remgnised In profit or loss, except when they relate to kerns that are 
recognhed in other eornprehe&lw income or directly In equity, h which m e ,  the cumnt and deferred tax are 
also remgnised in other eompr$hansive income or directly in equity, respectively. Income tax expense Rpresents 
the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 
Current income tax 

The fax currently payable is on muable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as 
reported in the statement or loss and other comprehensive incorne/staternent of profit or loss because 
of items of income or are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or 
deductible. 

The Company% current tax k alculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantlwly enacted by the 
end of the reporting perlod. 



Deferred income mes 
Deferred i n m e  tax is rereeognisad using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and llabitities 
are rearwised for dedua'ble and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and 
liabilities and thew carrying amount, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of 
goodwlll or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting 
nor taxable profit or loss at the bme of the transaction. 

I 
Deferred lnmme tax asset are recognised to the extent that i t is probable that taxable profit will be avallable 
against whlch the deductible t r n p m r y  dfferences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax 
losses can be vtllisad. The ca ing amount of deferred income tax assets is  reviewed at each reporting date and 4 reduced to the extent that it i no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or 5 
part of the deferred income tawasset to be Irrilised. 

measured using submntively enacted tax rates expected to apply to 
tempomry differences are expected to be received or settled. 

D e f e r ~ d  tax assets and ilabill{les are offset when they relate to inmme taxer levied by the same taxation 
authority and the relevant entit$ intends to settle its current tax assets and llablllties on a net basis. 

Deferred tax assets include Mlnlmum Alternate fa# (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws hr India, which Is 
likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of s t  ofF against future i m m e  tax tiabiilty. 
Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the asset can be measured 
reliably and it is probable that tp future erormmic benefit associated with the asset Will be realised. 

The Company recognlser interet levied and penalties related to income tax assessments in inmme tax expenses. t 
L Property, Plan? and Equipmekt 
Propem, pplant and equipment held for use in production or supply of goods or services or For adrniniNafiw 
purposes are stated at cost lessiaccumulated depreciation/amortlzatlon less accumulated impairment, if any. The 
cost of  f w d  assets comprises purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and Y other taxes (other than those: subsequerrtly recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable 
expenditure an making the $ref ready for its intended use, and interest on borrowings attributable to 
acquisition of qualifying fixed adsets up to the date the aset is ready for its intended use. 

I 
Capital work-in-progress for prbduction, supply of administrative purposes ir carried a t  cost less accumulated 
impairment loss, if any, untll construction and installation are complete and the asset is ready far its intended 
use. 
Depreciation Is recognized on Property plant & equipment including non factory bullding furniture fixutures & 
vehicles (other than on capital pork-hpmgre#) under WDV Method at the rates prescribed under Schedule I1 of 
Companies Act, 2013. ~eprecldion on assets acquired/ purchased, sold/discarded during the year is provided on 
a pro-ram basis from the date of each addition till the date of sale/retirement. The estimated useful lives of 
assets are stated below: 
* Estimated useful life of ass@ consistent with the useful fife specified in the Schedule II of the Companies Act, 
2013 1 
The ewnomtc useful lives of n ets is assessed based on a technical evaluation, taking into amount the nature of 
assets, the estimated wage assets, the operating conditions of the assets, past history of replacement, 7 
anticipated techologiml chan es, maintenan= history, *The estimated useful tffe Is reviewed a t  the end of 9 
each reporting period, with e m  of any change In esthate k i n g  amounted for on a prospective basis. 
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Where the cost of part of the asset is significgnt to the total cast of the assets and the useful life of that part is 
different from the useful of the remaining asset, useful llfe of that significant part is determined separately. 
Depreciation d such significant park, if any, Is based on the useful life of that part. Freehold land is not 
depreciated. 
An Item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits i are expected to arlse from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of 
an ifem of property, plant and equipment, detemined as the differen- between the sales proceeds ants the 
carrying amount of the asset, Is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Lass. 
For transition to IND AS the co I , pany has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its property plant and 
equipment remgnised as on April 2016 transition date measured as per previous GAAP and used that wrying 
value as its deemed cost as afth transttlon date. 

M. lntangibb Assets 
Company has no intengible a 

N. tmpairment I 
Financial assets (other #an  at Gir value) 
The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is 
impaired. 
Ind AS 109 requires expected credit lasses ta be measured through a loss allowance. The Company recognises 
lifetime expected tosses for all  contract assets and / or all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing 
transaction. 
For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12 month expected 
credtt losses or at an amount qua1 to the life time expected credit losses If the credit rlsk on the flnanclal asset 
has Increased significantly s1nce;lnitial recognition, 

0. ItwenPorles i 

Inventoris of raw materialr, s t  k-in-trade, stores & sparer Fuel packing material finished goods are valued at PC 
thelower of cost and net realipble value after providing for obsolescence and other losses, whew considered 
necessary. Cost is ascertained fbr stores and spares weighted average c a t  basis all others are valued on a FIFO 
basis. Valuation of work-in-proiress and finished goods includes proportionate produdion overheads. Stock of 
scrap and spent acid is valued at net realisable value. 

P. Financial Instruments I 
Financial assets and Ilabitities a? recognjsed when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of 
the instrument. Financial ass and IjabMties are Initially measured at fair value, Transaction corn that are 
directly attributable to the acq 7 isltlon or issue of financial ass& and financial Ilabilitles (other than financial 
assets and financial llabiiities fair value through profit or loss) are added to  or deducted from the fair value 
measured on injtial recognltlon f financial asset or flnandal Iiabillty. 
Cash and cash equivalents 
The Company considers all high liquid financial instruments, whlch are readily convertible into known amounts \ 
of cash that are subject to an i ignificant risk of change in value and havhg crrlglnal maturities of three months P 
or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents, Cash and cash equivalents constst of balances with 
banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage. 
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Financial assets at mortised cost 
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business 
whose obj&lve is ta hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms ofthe 
financial asset give rise on specified dates to ash Rows that are solely payments of principal and Interest on the 
princlpal amount outstanding. 
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive Income 
Financial assets are measured fair value through other complzhe~ive income if these financial assets are held 
withln a buslness whose object, k 15 aehlmd by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets 
and the contractual terms of th financial assat give rise on speclfled dates to cash flows that are solely payments e of principal and Interest on the principal amount outsmnding, 
Financial assets at fair value th ugh profit or loss i 
Financial assets are measured ;tt: fair value through profit: or loss unless it Is measured at amortised cost or at fair 
value through other income on initial recognltlon. The transaction costs directly attributable to 
the acquisition of liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are immediately rsmgnised in 
profit or loss. 
Financial liabilities 
Rmncial liabilities are measure at atmortised cost using the effective interest method. 
Equity instruments P 
An equity instrument b a con&ct that evidences residual interest in the assets of the company after deducting 

I 
all of Its liabilities. Equity lnstrumenb recognised by the Company are recognked at the proceeds received net off 
direct issue cast. 
Reclassification of Financial Ass 

The Company determines cla lfication of financial assets and liablfities on lnjttal recognition. After initial 
recognltlon, no nclassiflcation 1 s made for flnandal assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. 
For financial assets which are debt Instruments, a reclassification is made only tf there Is a change in the buslness 
model for managlng those assets. Changes to the business model are ercpeckd to be infrequent. The Cornpany"~ 
senior management determines change in the business model as a result d external ar internal changes which 
are signiAant to the company's operations. Such changes are evldent to external patties. A change in the 
bwlness model occurs when a company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to i ts 
operations. If the Company reclassifies Rnandal assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the 
reclasifieatian date which is the first day of the lrnmedlately next reporting period following the change in 
business model. The company[ does not restate any previously recognized gains, losses (including impairment 
p i m  and losses) or interest. 
~fsett ing of financial instrume I ts 
Financial wets and financial llbllitier are offret and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is 7 
currently enforceable legal rigqt to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net 
basis, to realize the assets and dertle the liabilltles stmultaneously. 

Q. Earnings Per Share {EPS) 

number of aquiry shares during the pefiod. Diluted earnlngs per share b computed by dMding the 
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R. Cash flow statement 
The Cash Flow Statement ts prepared by the indirect method set out in Ind AS 7 on Cash Flow Statements and 
presents a s h  flows by operating, investing and financing activities of the Company. 

S. Current/NonQlmnt ClassiLion 
The Company presents assets nd Ifabtllties In the balance sheet based on cummlnoncurrent classification. An 
asset is classMd as current wh n it satisfies any of the following criteria: 
-it is expected to k realized w intended to be sold or consumed in normal aperatlng cycle 
- It Is held primarily for the pu ose of trading 
- R Is expected to be reallzed wi 1 hin 12 months after the date af reporting period, or 
-Clh and cash equivalent unlks restricted from belq exchanged or used to settie a liability for at least 12 
months after reporting period. 

Current assets include the curre portion of nonsurrent financial assets. ? All other assets are dassifid as,non-current. 
A Babilityls current when It sat1 es any of the following criteria: i" -It is expected to k settled in normal opentiit8 cyde 
- It b held primarily for the pu&se of tradlng 
- It is due to be settled within 4 months after the npomng period, or 
-There is no unmndklonal right to defer the setdement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting 

I period Current liabilities include the current portion of long term Rmndal fiabllfties. 
I 

The Company classifies all ather Iiabilkies as non-current, 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are dasifled as non-current assets and liablllties. 

The operating cycle h the t i ~ e  between the acquiskion of assets and their realization in cash and ash 
equivalents. The Company has identified 12 months as its operating cycle. 

T. Share WbI 
Ordinary Sham 
Ordinary shares are classified equity. Incremental costs, A any, directly attributable to the Issue of ordinary 
shares are recognized as a dsdu I -on burn other equity, net of any tax effects. 

I 
I 

U. Falr Value Measurement 
Fairvalue Is the prlce that would be received from the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a Ifability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, The fair value measurement is based on the 
presumption that the transabio to sell an asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 1 - in the principle market for the ?ss& or liability 
- in the absence d prindple m a p ,  in the most advantageour rrtaket for the asset or llablllty. 
The principle or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

The fair value of an asset or is measured uslng the assumptions that market participants would use 
when pricing the asset ar that market particlpnts act in their economic best interest. 



The fair value measurement of a non -financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its hlghest and best use or by selling it to  another market participant that 
would use the asset in its highest and best use. 
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data 
are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of 
unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financiat statements are categorized 
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to  the fair 
value measurement as a whole: 
- Level 1 - Quoted (Unadjusted) Market prices in active markets for incidental assets or liabilities 
-Level 2 -Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to  the fair value measurement 
is directly or indirectly observable 
-Level 3 - Valuation Techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to  the fair value measurement 
is unobservable 

For assets and liabilkies that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company 
determines whether transfers that have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorization 
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to  the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each 
reporting period. 

Determination of Fair Value 
1) Financial Assets - Debt Instruments at amortized cast 
Afterinitial measurement the financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the Effective 
Interest Rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on 
acquisition and fees or cast that are an integral part of the EIR. 
2) Financial Assets - Debt Instruments at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income {FVTOCI) 
Measured initially as well as at each reporting date a t  fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the 
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized 
in OCI i s  reclassified from the equity to P&L. 
3) Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) 
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for 
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as a t  FVTPL. 
4) Financial Liabilities - 
Financial liabilities are classified, a t  initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit & loss, 
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as 
appropriate. 

All financial liabilities are recognized initially a t  fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, 
net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Companies financial liabilities include trade and other payables, 
loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments. 
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subsequent Measurement 

Fair value through Profit & Loss 
Financial Habliities at fair valup through profit & loss indude financial liabilities held for trading and financial 
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. All changes in fair value of such 
liabilities are recognized in s ment of profrt or loss, 

Loans and Borrowings 
After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost 
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in proflt or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as 
well as through the EIR amortization process. The EIR amortization is induded as finance costs in the statement of 
profit and loss. 

I 

V, lmestments 

I 
I 

Long Term Investments are carried at cost. Provision for diminution is made to recognize the decline, other than 
temporary in the value of these investments. Current investments are carried at lower of the cost and fair value. 
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Strbr Wireless Systems Pvt. ttd. 

Notes fwmlng part oftha Rnamlal Statemenb forth par  endad March 35 2018 

loanto r&ed party at 
n kind or for d u e  tP be received 

( b u n t  in T 

~ a 4 :  ~afarred tar ASM met) I 

Sr. No 

A 

I 

AsatRaarch31, 
2017 

4,86,SOO 

4*~6,5w 

. . 
(Amount in T 1 

Aganpprll,Zold 

4,86,0 

s a w  

AratMard131, 
2018 

4,n,W 

J 

Nonmmtloans 
(Unmred Considered Gowl, t 
Security kposits 

St. l o  

krtkulars 

dess otherwise m d }  

T ~ I  

As at Mar& 33, 
2017 

429,889 
1,77,314 

10,55,&41 
l,24,73,2E 

((U11J63301 

/ J 9 S  

1,79,554 

k at April l,2016 

- 
487,527 - 

1,1l,97,6110 

( W 5 m  

- 

- - 

Parliculan - 
Employee LnGt oblIgabfwrs I 
On Account of Depreciafh 
OWer dlsalhble expenses 

Measurement on defined blneflt plans 

Net PefefrKi Tax bbility/(k&) 
I _  

2,P,85,207 

Rs at March 3l, 
uns 

5,26,995 
1,668, R 

- 
11,33,503 

(IsJ912M 

L79354 

L79 554 
~ C k h e d T i m h t  I 

Footnote: 
Deferred tax asset on unabsorbef depredation as per the lnwme Tax Act, 1961 has been eetognIze,since It IS probable that 
taxable prafit will be available topdjdlust them In the M u m  years. Unabsorbed depreciation which forms major portlon of the 
Defemd Tm Asset can be mrried bmard and siit off against the profits for unlimited number of ~ r s  under the Indian Income 
Tax@ I961 and profitablllty projections based on current marginsshow suPnclentproMs for set-din future. 

168,671 1 l,39,56,776 
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Strh W l r e k  Swms Pvt Ltd. 
Notes fofm'hg part of the financial Statements for the year ended March 3l, 20M 

Mote k Other Asdes 

lance with Statutory Autho 

Note 6: Imntwles (At lower of cost and net reallsable value) 

B8lance wlth Statutory ~ u b h r r k i e ~  

Foo$rotm: 
1 md. recelvablr~ =re duu in dpctofiew*l orxwicer wended l n t k  n m l  mum of businegr. 
2 The normalmdlt perlod allowed by the company ranges fmm 6U to 90 days. 

E 7  18,!nPI l4.50.125 

16,71,497 

(A4muntkC1 

Note 8: Carh and Cab EsuhPlIBntS I 

18,92>21 

aApatApmS,,s 

B,99,591, 

s2,53#591 

~ S l  

I leash in hand I 2232 1 291 1 

14,50,125 

sr. RO 

I b u n t  In 

18dance with bank h artrent a k n t  6,64,438 1 - 1,93,338 

I -- 6,66,670 I 1 7 ~ ~  1 l,96,5l9 

AsatlHareh31, 
20lS 

=Po,= 

3%DOd53 

part~darr 

Unwrad 
tad6id ggood 
Comidamd doubtful 

Les : Allowam for doubtful debts 
I 

A s a t W 3 1 ,  
2017 

15,96337 

15,96,537 

I Total 1536,537 

As at March Sf, 
2017 

As at March 3% 
ZOls Sr, No 

k at Aprll l, UHS 
PartMars 



Strir WirelessSystemr Pvt, W. 
Notes forming part o i  thefinandal Statements for the year ended March 31,2018 

Mote 9: Other Financial Assets Amwnt b f 

Add 
Less 
Less 

Note 10: Equity Share CspItal (Amount in l )  

Partkularn 

Closing cash in hand as on 
November 8,2016 
Permined Receipts 
Permitted Payrnentr 
Amount deposited in bank 

C M h  Current Financial Assets 

Advance fw Goods and Exps. 
Prepald Expenses 

Total 

Cldng mh in hand as on 
December 30,2016 

Fwmcltes: 

(I) The m p a n y  has bnlyone dae of equh shareshav'hg at par value o f f  IN- p% share. Each holder of equkyhhare b entitled t o m  vote pwshare. The company d~lam and 
pq dividend In Idan Rupeer. fhe dividend p r o m d  bythe Bwrd of Oirector Is sublectto the aparwal of the share h[&rs in the ensuiq Annual Gewral Meeting. In the ewnt 
of Ilquldatkn of the company, the holderof equh shares will be entitled to receive remalnlng a d t h e  campaw  aft^ dldlnributlm of an preferential amounts. fne distrubutiwr 
wlll be in proportion to numbw of Iharer held by share holder. 
(11) kndliation of thc numher of sharesand arnolrnt autrtandhg at the w r i n g  and a the end ofthe reponlng yea 

SBN* 

--- 

3,12,24,873 

3,12,24,873 

([[[I Equlty Sham in the mtltyhetf by holdlng mmpny: 

20,132 

Partitulan 

Authorlsed Capital: 
5.00,OW Equity Shares of 7 lo/- each 
(March 31, 2017: 5,00,W0 Equity Shares o f f  lo/- each ) 
(Aprfl 1,2016: 5,00,000 Equity Shares of C lo/- each ) 

Issued Subscribed PaId up: 
3,92,001 Equity Shares of 7 la/- each full y paid 
(March 31,2017: 3.92.001 Equlty Shares of 7 101- each ) 
(April 1,2016: 3.92.001 Equlty Shares of? lo/- each ) 

Total 

20,m 

Mher denomination 

20,617 

2,15,700 
(2,16,185) 

6,19,290 

6,19,290 

As at March 31, 
2017 

SO,W,OW 

50,OO.MK) 

39,20,010 

39,20,010 

As at Mar& 31, 
20.U 

SO,W,OOO 

50,OO.OW 

39.20,OlO 

39,20,010 

Total 

20,617 

2,15,700 
{2,16,1851 

5,41,692 
15,985 

5 . 5 7 ~ 7 7  

As at Aprll I, 
2016 

50,00,000 

50,OO.OW 

33.20,OlO 

39,20,010 

Particulan 

Sadhana N h  Chem Ltd. 

As at Ma& 31 ZN7 

stm: ms lnc. 

Yo of Sans 
Ar at M a d  31 lOU I As at March 31 2M7 

X of Holding %of HoMlng NP of Shares 
3,92,Ml0 

%of Hddlrg 1 No of Shares 
loo%l 

3,92,W0 10% - lm 392,000 



Strlr Wlrelerr System Pvt. LW. 
notes forming part of the financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2018 

Retained Earnfngs 
Opening balance 
Add: Current Yeam Profits 
Qosing Balance 

Note lk Other Equity 
(Amount in 

I Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) 
Opening Balance 

Sr. No 

Note U: Provlsbns 

Particulars 

Add:Movement in OCI [Net) during the year 
Closing Balance 

As at March 31, 
2016 

- 
4,01,526 

(Amount In 7) 

9. NO 

A. 

B 

A. Non.CurrentTerm Borrowings 
I} Inter Cowrate Deposit [Refer Footnote (i)] I II 

As at March 31, 
2017 

4,01,526 
4,01,526 

Note 13: Borrowings 
(Amount In f 

Footnotes : 
(I). ?9,25,09,364/- out of inter-corporate deposits are from Sadhana Nttro Chern Ltd. repayable within one year from April 2018 
carryingrate@ 14%. Restof the inter-corporatedeposltsare interest free. 

As at Apdll, 2016 

- 
- 

Particulars 

NonCurrent 
Employee Benefit Obligations 

(i) Compensated absences 

(ii) Gratulty (Refer Note No. 19) 
Total 

Current 
Employee Benefit Obligations 

(I) Compensated absences 
(ii) Gratuity [Refer Note No. 19) 

Total 

St. No 

b 

As at March 31, 
2018 

- 1,8S,79,640 

1,88,79,640 

Particulars 

As at March 31, 
2017 

17,85,478 

17,85,478 

1,55,92,856 

1,55,92,856 

As at Mat& 31, 
20is 

k at Aprll 1, 
2016 

8,79,538 

8,79,538 

90,27,809 

90,27,809 

As at March 31, 
2017 

As at April 1,2016 
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5 t h  Wireless Systems Put. Ltd. 
Notesformirig part of the financial Statementsfor tbe year ended March 31,2018 

Note A: There is no amount due from any of the Micm and Small Enterprises asdefined in the 'The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2005". 

Note 14: Trade Payable5 
(Amount in D 

Note 15: Other Llablllties 

Sr. No 

St No Particulars k at March 31, Asat March 31, 
2018 2017 

Other Current Liabilities 
Statuatory Dues 26,49,958 51,17,321 
Advance Frcm Customer 85,18,84U 2,70,928 

(Amount in -1 

Particulars 

Mim and Small Enterprises {Refer Note A) 
Others 

TOTAL 

I TOTAL l,ll,68,798 I 53,88,249 1 79,20,867 

r 

Note 16: Revenue from Operations 
IAmnl l l r t  I" Fl 

As at March 31, 
8 

2,45,54,464 
2,45,54,464 

Note 17: Other Income 
[Ammmt In i?! 

As at March 31, 
2017 

7,54,75,524 

Sr. No 

As at Apdl I, 2016 

6,88,33,682 
7,5675,524 6,88,33,682 

Partlculaa 

Sales of Prnducts 
(a) flnbhed G d s  
(b) Traded Goods 

Less: E xcke duly 

Sak of Services 
TOTAL 

9. No 

For the p r  ended 
Match 31,2018 

4343,238 

43p3.238 

9,62,262 

53,32,500 

Particulars 

D u t y m B a c k I m  
WIer  Inmme 
m n t  Rece(wd 

ReigM on 9les 
Fc&gn m n g e  Galn 
Intcrcrt on TDS Wlbadc 

YOTAL 

,-.. ""... ... ., 
For the year ended 

March 31,2017 

48,74,613 

48,74,633 

50,5/846 

99,16,459 

Fnrthe year ended 
March 31, Mls 

24,258 
1,08,143 

7,391 
40,131 
14,W 

1,94,917 

,. . . . . - - . . . . . . . , 
Fnrthe year ended 

March 31,2017 
40,945 

5,939 

1,66..470 
3,19,635 

5,33,049 



Sr. No 

I 
Note 19: Employee Benefit Expenses;' 

Note IN: Changes in Imentorlet of finbled gods, stock-lwtrade and work4n-pro gress 
(Amunt In C 1 

Strk Wireles Sysbarns hh Ltd. 
Mu fwmlng part of the financial Stawments for the ymr ended March 31,20l8 

Note te Cost of materHs consumed 
IAmount In ?I 

Fw tho year d a d  
March 31. N17 

26,45,204 
I1,JI,Me 

l2,X.7M 
25,WJM 

, PartleuIan 

lnventwy at the baginning of ttae year 
Add: Rmhases 1 
less: I ~ k o r y  atthe end dthe year 
~ o f ~ t s ~ m e d  

far bhs year ended 
31 MartR.ZM7 

39,65,410 

39,65,410 

31,82,289 

3f,K!,289 
7,83,121 

- .  

Contribution to PIovidemand/other funds 
Giatuity (Rehr Note No. 19(1)19(11) below) 

Leave Enwhment 

For* year enaed 
Match 3 2  2018 

12.16.706 
24,19,271 

229,646 
upim 

Value aflbw MateM Consumed 1 

Impmid I 

Indbnaous 

For the year ended 
31 

3l,82,289 

3U2,289 

33,31,805 

33,3/405 
(U9,t16) 

L No 

(Arnwmln? 1 

For the year ended 
March 31,W 

87,950.W 
13,13,3M.W 

1 hrtltuha 

[I) Openlng Smk 
Work In pmgtess 
Wished ga& 
Total (I) 

{ii) CIosingSbck 
Work in progcess 
M h e d  go& I 

Total [ii) 
Chanw In lwentwler &creasel{lncrease)lFii) 

For thc year mded 
March 3l. ZLn7 

17,660.W 
25,42,546.00 

I 
Raw Mawhl CDmumtd 

PCBA 
Cable & Csble Assembly 

,Atenma, Cnnnectw & 0th Items 

For the war ended 
March 31,2018 

6.29% 
93.72% 

For the year ended 
March 31,2017 

2,08,07,818 

Staff welfare expenses , 

For thc war ended 
March 31,2017 

0.65% 
99.31% 

Fortheyear 
ended March 

31,2018 
91,45,963 

Sa. No 

1,09,162 I 1,82,662 

Rrthcprrndcd 
March 32 2018 

u,ls,na 
UPLlZO 
32,M,Mlo 
55,66,052 

Particulm 

Salaries and wages, including bonus 

F o r t h u ~ r  d n d  
March 3L 2017 

10,20,g2s 
2 x 3 6 6  
2633,037 
3W,m 

T-1 93,74984 1 2,27,98,902 
b 



Wx Wireless Systwns Pvt. Ltd. 
Not& forming part of the financial Staternem forthe year ended March 31,201 

(i) Emptoyee benefits 
Defined Cantibution Plan 
Contrlbutton to defined contrlbutlon p 1 an,rewgnised as expnwsfor the year are as under 
Employers Contribution to prwident ~ b n d  
Employers Contribution w mnsfon sctame 

I 
M n e d  &n& Plan I 
The empioyee's gratuity fund sfheme managed by a trust is a deflned benefn plan.The present value of the obligation Is dewrrnlned 
basd on m a r i a l  valuation using the projected unit mdi rnehod,which reqnlzes each period of service as giving rise to adltlonal unlt 
of emplqee benefit entitlement and meawws each unlt seperafely to build up the flnal obligation. The obllption for leave encashment Is 
mgnised in the same manner as grawity. 
The tstlrnated rate of escalation In +lary considered In actuarial ~luation,take into account inflatim,seniority promoth  and other 
relevant factor including sup* and demand in the employment market, The above InformatSon is ertMed by actuary. Yhe expected rate 
on plan assets is determined wnsiderlng several applicable Lctor.ma3nty the cornpositbn of plan assets held arsersed rIsk ,historical result 
of return on plan assets and the company's p o k y  for plan assets management. 

Msjor rlskto the plan 

A. Actuarial Risk: 
It Is the risk t ha  benefits will &more than e~pected. This can arise due to one d f h e  follwring reasons: 
Vesting conditkns Benefit eligibility tyrement age. Thwe are no speclal wen& such as benefit improvements or curtailments or 
settlements during the inter-valuation perid. Adverse Salary Gmwth Experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary 
exabtlon wlll result Into an Increase In Obligation aka ratethat i s  higher than expected. 

Varlabiltty In mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed rnortallty rate assumptlon than the Gratuity Ben* will be 
paid earlier than expected. Since there Is no aonditlotlon of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of cashflow wlll lead to an actuarial 
loss or p i n  depending on the relative values of the assumed salary growth and dimunt mte. For funded plans that rely on Insurers for 
managlw the asset$, the~ lw of assets c@ttfied by theinsurer may not be the falr value of Instruments backlng the Ilabllity. In suh me$,  
the present value of the assats Is indwndent of the future discount w. Thls can result in wide fluctuations in the net Ilabllity or the 
funded status if there are slgnifi~ant changes in the dismunt rate during the intervaluation period. Employees wlth high salaries and bng 
durations or those higher in hierarthy, accumulate significant level of bendfia. If some of such employees nsign/retire fmm the company 
there can be strain on the mshfiows. Vadabillty In wlthdrawal rates: If actual withdiawal mtes are higher than assumed wlthdrawal mte 
assumption than the Gratuity Benefits will be paid earlier than expected, ma Impact of this wltl depend on whether the bendits a n  
vested as at the resignation date. 

8. Investment Risk: 
For funded plans that rely on insurers,for managing the assets, the value of assets certified by the Insurer may not be the falr value of 
Instruments backing the liability. In sucp cases, the prewntvalw of the assets is Independent of the future dlscoum rate. Thls can result in 
wfde fluctuations In the net liability M the funded status if there are significant changes In the dlscount rate during the inner-valuation 
period 

C. Uquidity Risk: 
Employees with hlgh salaries and long durations or those hlgher in hierarchy, accumulate slgfilflcant lwel of kbeneflts, If some of such 

empioyees eslgn/retIre from the mrndany there can be strain on the cahflows. 
D. Marbt Risk: 
Ma& risk is a collective term for rlsks that are related to the changes and fluEtuatlons of the financial markets. One actuarial assumption 
that has a material effect is the dimunt rate. The dkwunt rate reflects the time value of money. An Increase In discount rate leads to 
decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assurnptlon depends on the yields on the 
corprate/govemment bonds a d  hence the valuation of liability is exposed to fluctuations In the ylelds as at the valuation date. 

E. legislative Rtsk: 
( i l  Leglslatlve risk is the rlsk of Increase In the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due to change in the legisla~on/regubtion. The 
government may amend the Payment of Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefts to the employees. This will 
dir- affectthe present value of the Deflned Benefit Obligation and the s a w  wlll haw to be m i z e d  immediately In the year when 
any such amendment is effectlve 

(Ii) Durlng theyearsadhana Nitro Chert) Ltd.(SNCL) acquire 1 W o f  pard up equity share In the capital of the company's eotwhlle share holder 
acwrdlngly company has become 100% wbsidiaw of Sadhana Nltm Chem Ltd.(SNCL) from Urd March 2018. All the employees on the role of 
the company have been transferred to SNCLas from this date wtth continuity of wrvke accordingly as at3lst March 2018, thecompany has no 
Ilablllcytogmtutty and otherterrnlnal benefits. 
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SMx Wireless Systems Pvt. Ud. 

Ws formlng part of the finantiat %mants forthe year ended March 31,2018 

Finadal Year Apr-17 to Mar -18 1 
I !4econciliation ~f open1 and dosing balance of defined Benefit obliidon 

Defined Benefit Ob l ia '  a? beginning of the year 
Cunent Servlce cod 
Interest Cost 
Actuarial galnlloss 
Benefit: paid 

7 
Settlement cost 
Defined Benefit Obllgatlofl at year end 

II) ~econciljation of apenin$and closing balance offair value of plan asrets at begbntg of the year 
fairvalueof plan assets s/ bejjinnig of the year 
Expected Return on plan he& 
Actuarial gain/lass 
Employer Contribution 
Benefit paid 
Settlement cost 
fair value of plan assets at year end 
Actual return on plan assets 

Ill) Remnciliatlon of fair va ld  of assets and obllgatton 
hit value of plan arretr 1 
Present value of obligti 
Amount remgnised in ba ance sheet 7 

1V) Expenses recognised durihg the year 
(under head of 'paymentto and Provision for employee" 
Current Service Cost) 
Interest cast 
Expected return on Plan ssets 
Actuarial (gain)/lors "I 
Nognised Past Sewice &&Vested 
kcognised ~ a s t  Sewice dost-~nwsted 
Net cost 

V ) Actuarial assumption , 

D b u n t  Rate(P.A) 
Expected rate of return on plan assets (PA) 
Rate of escalation in salary (P.A) 

Gratuity 
20%-17 

7.15% 
Hot Appticable 

6.0#4 

As per acturialmluatlon, the dqned obllgationattheend offinanclal year 2016-17 was? 10,81,624/-.AddtlonaI Amount 
of T 7,20,41/- was provided in alance sheet as at 31st March 2017 as it was appeamd necessary as per human resource 
department. P 



Strk Wimks-rns h-t rtd. 
N-forming part of the finandal Statemem for the year ended March 3t ZOl8 

Mote Other Expenses I 
I PadeuIam 

P o w  and Fuel 
Rei-tt, RaCI and 
l l e~~ l r  and ~aikrktnce Dtpenses 
Tmvelllng and ~o&nce Expenses 
M Agency ~ h a r g k  
Computer Reparlnp Brp 
D d g n  b Consulkncy W~rges  
FriegM Charges 
Impart Uearing Charges and Damurages 
JpbWork Wrm 
Telephone and mblle E x p w  
Padcirrg Charges 
Omce and Mher l 3pem 
BauiHing Maintenam Charges 
Emlse and m fax Expenses 
Inkrnb and ~ornalr! Charges 
Printing and SCaElyry Charges 
Legal anct Professional Charges 
Irm~mnce Charges 
L a & ,  , dlw, l 3 ~  
Mernbhip W I 

1 Far the year e W  Fortheyearended 

Note A : Pavment to A u d m  : 

m 
Statutory Audlt Fee 

I 
65,000 65,WO 

Tax Audit Fee 15,OW E,WO 
80,000 m m  



- 
Strbc Wireless Systems Rrt. Ltd. 
N&% fuming part ot tha financtal statements lor the year ended March 31,2018 

The followingdlsclosuresare made adrequired by Ind AS-113 pertaklimto Fairualuemewurernent: 

Ncte 22A: Financial Instrumentsand 

The following table shows the ~anyt(~bmount4 and fair values of finandah assetsand Anancial HabHitIes, Including their h b  in the 
fairvaluehlerareh'lt does not include fairvalue information for finandat assetsad financtal IIWlMes notrneawmd atfafrvalue if the 

RiskRavrew 

carrytngamwntis a reasonableappmximatlon offair value. 
I 

b. Flnancbl r i s k m a ~ m e m  
The Company hasexposure tathe y r t  risk, liquidity riskand M a w  rid srtsingfmm finandla1 instruments. 
RiskMana&ment Framework: TRe Cpmpsnv's Board of Illrectors ha5 overall responslbitlty forthe establishment and ova&tht ofthe 
Company's risk management framewok The Board of Directon has tslablished the Risk Management Corninktee (RMC), wh id  b 
respofisiblebr dewloping and rnonFring thecompany's r Wt management polkka 
~ha~ompany'srlskmmpmentpoljd~areestabltshed~identifyandanrlysethe riskfacad bythe Company, tosetappmphterisk 
limlls tn control / monitor risks andladherence to IlmB. Risk management p~lides and svstems ate wiPwad regufarly to d e b  
changes h marltet condiffons andthe,~mpny's actMtles. 
The Audlt Commjttee oversees & management rnonlto~ mmgthnm with the company's risk managemem polleies and 
procedures, and the adequaty of the risk management framework in relation the r i s k  faced by th-rnpany. The AudR 
Corninktee is agslsted by internalau t. lntmnal audit undertaksteviews of i3Amanagement awltroIsand procedures,the resub of 
Whkh are rCported to theAuditbm$lttee. 
The Company's financial i3sk rna&rned Is an integral part of Row to plan and exsrute its fmstness st-ies, me Company's 
financial risk mnagementpolky isadpraved by the 8oard of Dlnetors. 

I 
c-CredtfUsk: 
tledlrriskisthe rlskoffinanclal loss the company ffa customerormunterpamtoa flnandaf instrumenthllr;to meet Its contractual 
abli@ionr, and arises prfntipaIIyPr$ the~pany '~rece~wble~,  

of asset and whether there has been a 

The foIlwi@ table provides In fomhm about the exposure to endR tisk and mmurement of loss allowance using Ltfe time 
expected mdltlossfwtrade ~ceiuables: 

Cash and cash equivalents: I 

The Company held cash and cash equblenbofT6,66,670/-asat 31 MarchtOlS (31 March 2017:Tlf1104&, 01 April 2016: 
? 1,96,519/-1. The cash and cash equ alents are held with reputed banks. 1 



tiltwe& rate risk I 
lnberest raterisk can beekh~rfsirw+e interest* risk arcash fluw Interestrate rlsk. ~alrvalue interest rare rlsk isthe rrskof changes 
In fair values of f l e d  Irtterest hartrig invesrnents bemuse of fluetuatlans In the Imerest: rater, in cases where the borrowings are 
measured at Rk'ualue through the $tatemern of pr& and lo#. cash flow interest rate risk Is the risk that the future msh flows of 
floatinglmter~ bearing tnvestmt&willftuctuate because ofRuctuatlonsin theinterest rates. 

d. Llqulditytlsk 
Uquidity risk isdefined the risk thlt thetompanywill not be able toseHe or rneethr o b l i g a  time or a t  a reasonable price. 
The130mpa$5approa&tomanad$ liquidity is to ensure,asfar aspossiMe, that I! will have sufficient Ilguidity to meet Its IEabit i i  
when they are due, under both normal rrnd stressed condinom, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damap to the 
Corn paws reputation 

I Contractual cash flows 
I 

~arr@ngarnnunt uprnlpar I-*yean 2-5 mr. 
As an 31 Mar. 20UL 

Non-derlvah financial liablltties 
BPrmwings 1tiS135,836 9,89,4,336 85,OS,MK1 W2,500 
Itlierest 
Trade payables 

&prnmtohmr&trnte ri* 
ampany's interest rate rlskarisesfr&n bormwings.Theinteresttate praflledthe Company's Im@rert-karing Iongzerm 
financial instruments is asfoflows; 

Ason31Rrlar.U)17 
Nm-derlvatk financial HabtlRies 

Borrowings 
Interm - 

527,27,500 

I 

Trade paya bles 

85,05,000 

Partlcula~l 
1 
kinancia1 liabilities - measured at aCortisd cost 

7,54,75,524 

42,22,5OU 

----- 

31* M a d  2018 

Variable-rate tnsbuments: 
Finandal liabilities - measurad at 

Total 

I 

9,25,09,364 

9.25.M.364 
ar~ortlsed cast 

1,08,44,507 

42,095 
42.095 

k on 01 Apr. 2016 I 

l,21,46,704 

a Market Rlsk 
Market risk istherlskthatchangesinmarhetpriwsuhasfareignexchanprates, inte~twPeSandcommodl~prk~, willaffectthe I Companfs Income orthevalue of & lnancial Instruments. Market rtsk baWutableto all m a r k  riskserrsl~ve Rnanckal Instruments 
Indudlng fordm curnncy -ivab$r and payabl~s, long term debt and mmrnodlQ prices. me Company is a p a e d  to mar& risk 
primarily related to fordm arccha mtei-&k, interest ateriskand mmmodityprice risk. 7 

--- 
54,34,311 

n,36,26,157 

Non-derivative financial liabllkles 

m W  
Interest- I 
Trade pwbtes 

5,24,84,313 

l,21,8;8,021 

6,gna,az 

9,66,990 

~6~08,323 

1 

40,50,000 17,36,720 

85,99,202 - 



The Company Is exposedtacurrenq tiskon account of itsoperatingand finandngadiv~~.ThefUndb~tcuwencyofthe 
Company is Indfan Rupee. 
TheCompanywtum exchange mp exposure arlslngfrotnfofeign currengtansactlons and the Company fdlowsestablished risk 
management polidas to manageits relgn currencyexpasrrre 
Exposure tocurrencyrisk: 

Thecummy profite of fifianclsl aWsandfinancla1 ilia bilitlesason 31 March 2018,31 March 2017 and 1 April 2016are as below: 
I T O ~ I  I INA l INR equi~4bnt: to USDI USD 

As on 31 Mar. 20161 I I I 
Flnanchl asses I I . -. . - --- - .- I 

Cash and cash equivalents 1 6,66,670 6,66,670 
Short-term loans and advances I l,aO,oW I,O~,OW 
Tmde and other receivables I 4.10272 6,371 

410R72 6371 



Sensltlvfty Analysis : 
A reasonably possible strengthentng of the Indian Rupee against USD at March, 31 by 0.15% and 1.85% would h a w  posfiw impact 
(before tax) byT14,993.69 lakhs and 9,66,469.77 lakhs fnr the net otrMandIng balanca as on 31/3/2018 and 31/3/2017 respectively. 
Similarly a reasanlly posslblt weakening of the lndia Rupee against U50 would h w e  a negative impact {before tax) by same 
amounts 

Capbl Management: 
For the purpose of the Company's ypital management, caplbl Includes issued capital, convertible instruments and resewes.The 
prlmary objective of the Company3 Q p b l  Management is to maxlrnise shareholder value. The company manages Its capital 
structureandmakesadjusbnents,If in the tight of thecurrent e~onomIcenvimnmentandother businessrequirernenB 

HrstTime Adoption of INDM 

The financial statement. for the yealended 31 March 2018, are the Rm the Company has prepared In acwrdsnce with md AS. For 
pedods up to and Including the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company prepared its financbl statements In accordance with 
accounting standards notifled undei section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read tagether with paragraph 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts] Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP). 

Accordingly, thecompany has prepabd financial statementwhich cornplywith lfid ASappliublc for year ended on 3 1  ~ a n h  2018, 
together with thecampsratlw period data as at and for the year ended 31 March 2017. In preparing thesefinancialsEatemants,the 
company's opening balancerheetwis prepared asat 1 Aprll2016,the Company's date oftransitlonto Ind AS. 
This note explalns the mandatory weptlons and optional wmptionsavaiied by the Company In restating Its Indlan GAAP financial 
statements, lncludingthe balancesheetas a t  lAprllZOl6andthefinanclalstatemnbasatandfortheyearenderi3~Matrh2017. 

(I) Mandatory Exception: I 
a) Estimates: 
The estlrnates as a t  1 April 2016 an d ,3P March 2017 are consistent with those made for the same dates in accordante with Indian 
GAM (after adjustments to reflect any differences in accounting pollcles). 5he estimates used by the Campany to present these 
amountsin accordance with Ind ASMectmnditionsasat 1Aprll2M6, thedateoftrai%ition toIndASandasat31 March 2017 

b) Derecognftion offinanrial assets &financial Iiabilltles: 
The Company has applied the de-tee nition requirements In Ind AS 109 prospadiwly fortransactions occurring on or afterthe date 
of transition to tnd AS. 

c) ~lassikation and measurementohlnancial assets: 
The Company has classifled the financial assets in accordante with Ind AS 109 on the basis of fdcts and cirwrnstances that exlst at the 
dateoftransltfon toINDAS. I 
(li) Optional wemptions (allowed as ljer lnd AS 101): 

a) LongTerm ~orelgn Currency ~ o n e b r y  lterns: 
The Company has elected to contlnAe the pollcy adopted for accountin~hr exchange differences arising from translation 05 long 
term foreign currency monetary Items {foreign currency borrowlnp) recognired In fmancial statements for period ended 
Immediably before beginning offirst In& AS financial reporting periodas pwpreviousGAAP i.e. 01 Aprll2017. 

b) Use of Deemed aost: I 
The Company has dected the optldn of carrylng value as deemed mst for all b Property, Plant & Equipment as at the date of 
transldon to lndA5. 
Recondllatbn of~otal ~om~nheml& llncorne f ~ r t h e ~ r e n d e d  31st March 2017 

Particulars 
Net Profit / (Loss) As Per Earller I G W  
Effect for Remeasurement of Employee Benefits 
OeferredTaxlmpaa-  I 
Net Profit / (Loss) As Per Ind-AS I 

p k r  Comprehensive Income ( M e t  of Deferred Tax ) 
mtal CornpnhensIve Income As Per Ind-AS 

Remmiliation of Equity 1 
PdrtiEulan 

Equity As Per Earlier IGMP 
h u ~ t y  As Per Ind-AS 

Mote 

a 

a 

C 
(2,87,11,8311 

9,81,080 
1,79,554 
4,01,526 
4,01,526 

(u7,11,8311 

31 March MU 
39,20,010 
39,20,010 

31 Match 2017 
39,20,0lO 
39,20,010 

01 April 2016 
39,20,010 
33,20,010 



a. Defined EmployeeBenefit Uabllltles 
Both under Indian GAAP and Ind AS, the Company recognised costs related to its poQ-employment defined benefit plan on an 
actuarial basls. Under Indian GAAP, the entfre cost, including actuarial gains and losses, are charged to  Statement of Profit or Loss. 
Under Ind AS, remeasurements [comprisingof actuarialgains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excludingamountsfncluded In 
net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets excluding amounts included in net interest on the net 
defined benefftliabtlity] are recognised in OCI. Due tothis, fortheyearended31 March 2017,the employee beneficnstis reduced by 
7 4,01,526/-and remeasurement gains/ losesondefined benefitplans has been recognized in the OCI 
b. Recognitfon dinvestment property 
The MCA has notlfied Ind AS 515 "Revenue from Commas with Custamers" which iseffective from lApril2018. These have not been 
adopted early by the company and accordingly, have not been considered in the preparation of the financial statements. The 
Tnformation that areexpected to be relevantto the financialstatements is provided below. 

Amendmentsto Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contmctswlth Custarners 

Ind AS 115 was issued in  February 2015 and establishes a five-step model to  account for revenue arising from contracts with 
customers. Under Ind AS 115 revenue is recognlsed a t  an amount that refleasthe consideration to which an entltye~pectsta 
be entitled In exchange for transferring goods ar services t o  a customeK The new revenue standard will supersede all 
currentrevenue recognition requirements under lnd AS. This standard wtll come in to force from accounting period 
commencingon oraf ter lst  Aprll2018.TheCornpany will adoptthe new standardonthe required effective date. 

Note 23 : The losses exceed the capital as at the balance sheet date. The management has drawn up detailed plans Including 
restructuring of the company on account of which the turn around in the operations are expected to take place that will have the 
pffpaof the net worth becoming positive Induecourse. 

Note 24k  Mame of the Related Partles and Nature of the Related Party Relatlonshlp 

Name of Related Parties Relationshlp 

a Sadhana Nitro Chem LM. HoldTng Company 

b Stti% Systems lnc, Group Company I 
I c Life 5tyle Networks itd. 

d Manekchand Panachand TradTng Investment Co.Pvt. Ltd. 
Group Company 

Gmwp Company 
e Aslt D laveri Ofrector 

f PranavShah CEO 

Note 246: TraMaCtlMS with Related Party : 
The following transactions were carried out with the related parties In the ordinary wurse of business: 

thmoum in T) 
As at March 3l, 201B I As at M a d  31,2017 

Stnx Systems Inc. 
Advance rerelwd for Servlte: 

Strlx Swtems Inc. 
Sale of Goads: 

Stria Systems Inc. 
Advance recehred far Goods: 

Strix Syshrns Inc. 
Purchase 01 Goods: 

Slrrx Synems Inc. 
h e l p t  from Group Company 

Manekchand Panathand Tradlng Inwstment Co. Pvt. Ltd 
Sadhana Nttro Chem Umlted 

Loan Glven: 
Manekchand Panachand Tradlng Investment to. W. Ud, 

loan R ~ e l v e d :  
Ltfe Style tdenvotlc; Ctd. 
Asit O laver1 

h n  Repabd: 
Pranav Sha h 

195 

Namre of 

a l e  of Ssrulces: 

Transaction 
Durlnp the Y m  



Noh 25: Calrulathn of Earnlm per Equh Share (EPSI : f m u n t  br f )  

Not~27:tanralNatw: 

a. ~revkbls f~gures hwe b m  regmuped 1 n d a s W  wherwer rwwaly to campand with the c u m  year c I & F d w  / d i  

b. &dance OF depaim , m s  and creditors and other pertles subject to cwrfinnatlon 

~n terms of our report &ached. 
For V. Sankar Al yer O to. For end on behalf of the Board of Directors 
C h a r t e d  Accountants 
Flrm Regl. No.: 1092DBW 

VMolwn 
hrmtr  
MembenhFp Number: 017748 

Abhbheklawrl AEttiawri mema Jmr i  
DImcW Mrectvr Oi-r 
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